




To Be Paid Proof List

10/17/2024 - 11:16AM

ablaser

Printed:

User:

Accounts Payable

Batch: 00502.10.2024

Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

ACSI Mechanical Group

468558

 7,818.00  0.00 10/21/2024  07/26/2024 No29972

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Boiler Maintenance- PD

29972 Total:  7,818.00

ACSI Mechanical Group T  7,818.00

Aflac

030540

 457.90  0.00 10/21/2024  09/26/2024 No530958

  01-000-2053 AFLAC AFLAC- September 2024

530958 Total:  457.90

Aflac Total:  457.90

AIM

046510

 126.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 No1002347

  01-435-4267 Finance Services Flex125- September 2024

1002347 Total:  126.00

AIM Total:  126.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 1

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468558
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468558
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9e54c7f5-15a8-4d9b-9600-c6cc6f4e860d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=030540
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=030540
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f017a2c2-8038-427f-a610-e7abfbf70125
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-000-2053
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=046510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=046510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7905b163-7400-4b21-816e-ad8c3801c8df
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-435-4267


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Associated Technical Services, Ltd.

048610

 804.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 No39117

  60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. Locate- 141 N Lincolnway

39117 Total:  804.00

Associated Technical Servic  804.00

AT&T Mobility

468386

 324.40  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No*** 287322262314

  01-430-4652 Phones and Connectivity Cell Phone 8/20 - 9/19 Admin

287322262314 Total:  324.40

 126.36  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No*** 287322262477

  01-441-4652 Phones and Connectivity Cell Phone 8/20 - 9/19 CommDev

287322262477 Total:  126.36

 710.35  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No*** 287322277733

  01-445-4652 Phones and Connectivity Cell Phone 8/20 - 9/19 PW

287322277733 Total:  710.35

 567.78  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No*** 287322279371

  60-445-4652 Phones and Connectivity Cell Phone 8/20 - 9/19 Water

287322279371 Total:  567.78

 1,460.10  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No*** 287322279713

  01-440-4652 Phones and Connectivity Cell Phone 8/20 - 9/19 PD

287322279713 Total:  1,460.10

AT&T Mobility Total:  3,188.99

Atlas Bobcat, Inc.

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 2

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=048610
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=048610
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4135e3a7-8c5f-4bab-b236-5efd5fe5edc7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4568
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468386
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468386
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a69ff4af-4013-41e4-b5ba-10752db3e1b0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cc2b40d2-428e-49a5-9e0c-0fa10f56dea4
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c1b66fac-d2fb-4c6e-9244-b0879f3c9298
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=77182d88-2222-4b12-bc7a-4f43056eeddc
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4a2e8fe1-e07d-4895-b901-a0216716ea61
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029330


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

029330

 11,853.12  0.00 10/21/2024  09/28/2024 NoQA7001

  71-430-4870 Equipment Mower

QA7001 Total:  11,853.12

Atlas Bobcat, Inc. Total:  11,853.12

B & F Construction

015600

 6,706.33  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 No19991

  01-441-4276 Inspection Services Inspections- August 2024

19991 Total:  6,706.33

 675.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/12/2024 No66060

  01-441-4276 Inspection Services Plan Review- Comfort Inn & Suites

66060 Total:  675.00

 1,369.06  0.00 10/21/2024  09/12/2024 No66066

  01-441-4276 Inspection Services Plan Review- Veterans Affairs Ph3

66066 Total:  1,369.06

 675.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/16/2024 No66098

  01-441-4276 Inspection Services Plan Review- Hometowne Studios Chicago

66098 Total:  675.00

 1,059.30  0.00 10/21/2024  09/17/2024 No66120

  01-441-4276 Inspection Services Plan Review- 553 Quail St

66120 Total:  1,059.30

 1,013.96  0.00 10/21/2024  09/18/2024 No66136

  01-441-4276 Inspection Services Plan Review- 529 Moose Lake

66136 Total:  1,013.96

 375.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/27/2024 No66225

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 3

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029330
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=eeca0773-82f8-4d8f-b47d-dca8e17b6a36
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:71-430-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=015600
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=015600
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1326c6c4-a65b-422d-aeb4-135d00c450fe
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4276
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c9c0d91a-0829-4fb7-b24d-1929edbb0984
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4276
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8016d180-e10b-4aad-80a7-f27ec0fa3b56
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4276
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=65ad81ff-fa65-4ec6-9b9e-33cf615f07d9
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4276
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7187ea3f-203b-442b-8b61-465e9bca2efb
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4276
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=443a14e0-cc60-4fcd-93dc-077edc05e68d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4276
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5c1597ec-b4f3-479d-bc5a-72247c58bdf0


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

  01-441-4276 Inspection Services Plan Review- Messenger Library

66225 Total:  375.00

 750.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/2/2024 No66306

  01-441-4276 Inspection Services Plan Review- Marberry Cleaners

66306 Total:  750.00

B & F Construction Total:  12,623.65

Brevan, LLC

468881

 125.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/9/2024 No10092024

  01-310-3118 Liquor Licenses Overpayment Refund- Video Gaming Terminal Registration

10092024 Total:  125.00

Brevan, LLC Total:  125.00

Buckeye Power Sales Co., Inc.

468441

 730.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/3/2024 NoPSV390069

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint WTP Generator Repair

PSV390069 Total:  730.00

 680.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/4/2024 NoPSV390281

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint ETP Generator Repair

PSV390281 Total:  680.00

Buckeye Power Sales Co.,  1,410.00

Builders Paving, LLC

044930

 188,180.24  0.00 10/21/2024  09/20/2024 No2404703

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 4

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4276
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0ac311bc-0556-49db-8dba-9f5d0bda1ce7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4276
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468881
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468881
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a1674bd1-c0ee-464d-a63f-63c57aab30de
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-310-3118
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468441
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468441
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c2833cab-2e0e-4a9a-acfe-cc0494884eba
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=731cb3a2-dd7c-48d6-acc5-f203f207934b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044930
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044930
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8a56205a-dd44-4271-ab49-9cc2dd996b21


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

  21-450-4875 Capital Improvements 2024 Road Program

2404703 Total:  188,180.24

Builders Paving, LLC Total  188,180.24

Camic Johnson, LTD.

03989

 350.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/30/2024 No*** 165

  01-440-4260 Legal Adjudication

165 Total:  350.00

Camic Johnson, LTD. Tota  350.00

Capital Printing & Die Cutting, Inc

468305

 1,019.50  0.00 10/21/2024  09/26/2024 NoINV-4751

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Graphics (EMA)

INV-4751 Total:  1,019.50

 1,146.14  0.00 10/21/2024  09/25/2024 NoINV-4752

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Graphics (EMA)

INV-4752 Total:  1,146.14

Capital Printing & Die Cut  2,165.64

Carus Corporation

033300

 3,509.40  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 NoSLS 10116508

  60-445-4437 Chemicals - Water Treatment HMO Chemicals- WTP

SLS 10116508 Total:  3,509.40

 2,699.60  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 NoSLS 10116511

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 5

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:21-450-4875
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=03989
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=03989
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8fba6159-73a6-442f-93f6-e1ace9f76ea7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4260
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468305
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468305
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=61256007-0aef-426e-b15c-0eca8ca0cf2f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e67c7feb-8772-426d-8253-0f92b6e7ef54
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033300
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033300
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=52cfe44c-eefa-4d47-ba3e-5cf3597ba8b6
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4437
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3f7c6a47-3cc1-4066-9029-5d1a1853e07d


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

  60-445-4437 Chemicals - Water Treatment HMO Chemicals- ETP

SLS 10116511 Total:  2,699.60

Carus Corporation Total:  6,209.00

City of Aurora

027870

 1,116.50  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No236221

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) Water Testing- August 2024

236221 Total:  1,116.50

City of Aurora Total:  1,116.50

Commercial Tire Services, Inc.

038680

 1,321.06  0.00 10/21/2024  09/27/2024 No3330046852

  60-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Tires- Truck #144

3330046852 Total:  1,321.06

Commercial Tire Services, I  1,321.06

Commonwealth Edison

000330

 2,934.76  0.00 10/21/2024  09/18/2024 No*** 1392693000

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlights/ 211 River Rd

1392693000 Total:  2,934.76

Commonwealth Edison Tot  2,934.76

Core & Main

039040

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 6

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4437
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=027870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=027870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fafe6d93-cd41-4e09-96f4-5420694590d2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038680
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038680
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b557a7b8-1b7d-4972-971f-6c97f39e7189
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000330
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000330
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2ad12955-1bd2-41a6-a426-bfa0e1f6c056
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039040
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039040


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 126.50  0.00 10/21/2024  09/25/2024 NoV700014

  60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 2" Repair Clamp

V700014 Total:  126.50

 281.50  0.00 10/21/2024  010/3/2024 NoV746659

  60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 6" Repair Clamp

V746659 Total:  281.50

 252.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/3/2024 NoV752661

  60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 1.25" B-Box Repair Sections

V752661 Total:  252.00

 126.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/3/2024 NoV752684

  60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 1.25" B-Box Repair Sections

V752684 Total:  126.00

Core & Main Total:  786.00

DACRA Adjudication Systems

467842

 2,434.79  0.00 10/21/2024  09/30/2024 NoDT 2024-09-006

  01-440-4513 Software Maintenance Adjudication

DT 2024-09-006 Total:  2,434.79

DACRA Adjudication Syst  2,434.79

Drendel & Jansons Law Group

028580

 20.00  0.00 10/21/2024  08/31/2024 No11548

  01-430-4260 Legal Legal Services- Liquor/ Aug 2024

11548 Total:  20.00

 1,890.00  0.00 10/21/2024  08/31/2024 No11549

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 7

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5668df04-1caf-4b3c-947b-a8fc4e596b4a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4568
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=476eb6cc-0594-4467-8328-240cb0f78be1
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4568
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=dfcc5c87-e0c4-4707-84ce-661a764271b5
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4568
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=77d2f9bd-6932-4d5d-965f-d4083fdd977d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4568
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467842
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467842
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f9f51264-81f3-489e-8f99-03828b79053c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4513
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028580
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028580
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c24a7f44-e0fe-47fc-8aa0-42bdd6778d97
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4260
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=95a27889-0206-410c-a4ad-420bc86838c9


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

  01-440-4260 Legal Legal Services- PD/ Aug 2024

11549 Total:  1,890.00

 405.75  0.00 10/21/2024  08/31/2024 No11550

  01-445-4260 Legal Legal Services- PW/ Aug 2024

11550 Total:  405.75

 146.67  0.00 10/21/2024  08/31/2024 No11553

  01-445-4260 Legal Legal Services- Aurora Packing/ Aug 2024

11553 Total:  146.67

 1,536.66  0.00 10/21/2024  08/31/2024 No11554

  01-441-4260 Legal Legal Services- CommDev/ Aug 2024

11554 Total:  1,536.66

 2,254.31  0.00 10/21/2024  08/31/2024 No11555

  01-430-4260 Legal Legal Services- General/ Aug 2024

11555 Total:  2,254.31

Drendel & Jansons Law Gr  6,253.39

Ethan Majerus

468372

 71.67  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 No10012024

  01-440-4380 Training Training Travel Reimbursement

10012024 Total:  71.67

 30.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/2/2024 No10022024

  01-440-4380 Training Training Reimbursement

10022024 Total:  30.00

Ethan Majerus Total:  101.67

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 8

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4260
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e683c601-4448-4847-b2b9-1a7bad2240e2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4260
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b7c70e00-b86c-45b4-a033-1765f3e06ddb
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4260
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=58b88a7b-6c61-4aae-96a7-572a1d1d8d0a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4260
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c2cb7d0a-7ce0-4b46-9d34-212669df11b7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4260
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468372
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468372
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d7f80b9f-9e0c-4348-a57a-d3dc8573f532
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=259bbbbe-f20f-477f-acef-979479f3f0c4
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4380


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Feece Oil

031060

 3,663.85  0.00 10/21/2024  07/15/2024 No4090887

  71-000-1340 Gas/Diesel Escrow Mid-Grade Fuel

4090887 Total:  3,663.85

 1,256.84  0.00 10/21/2024  09/21/2024 No4111056

  71-000-1340 Gas/Diesel Escrow Diesel Fuel

4111056 Total:  1,256.84

 4,222.62  0.00 10/21/2024  09/21/2024 No4111074

  71-000-1340 Gas/Diesel Escrow Mid-Grade Fuel

4111074 Total:  4,222.62

Feece Oil Total:  9,143.31

Fox Metro

029650

 180.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 No10012024

  60-445-4480 New Meters,rprs. & Rplcmts. New Service Inspections (6)

10012024 Total:  180.00

Fox Metro Total:  180.00

Frederick Quinn Corporation

468882

 192,510.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/9/2024 NoFQC #564

  21-452-4501 Contractual Services PW Construction Management Fees

FQC #564 Total:  192,510.00

Frederick Quinn Corporatio  192,510.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 9

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031060
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031060
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d35e9df2-ce4a-4ba2-9665-cbbc2d8ace05
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:71-000-1340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=96263ccb-7ab9-42df-9c0d-9fc052c0b88e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:71-000-1340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d9866b01-7b6e-4d73-a1a9-1a9603a6dee9
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:71-000-1340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029650
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029650
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8b2c5e67-ce9f-4c81-baad-677e63f36573
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4480
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468882
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468882
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3861cd27-a05a-4334-9dd5-7581f72ddb94
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:21-452-4501


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Gerald Ford

467768

 514.93  0.00 10/21/2024  09/23/2024 No6074403/1

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Repair

6074403/1 Total:  514.93

Gerald Ford Total:  514.93

Gerald Realty Holdings LLC

468332

 31,522.84  0.00 10/21/2024  010/9/2024 No10092024

  01-490-4781 Sales Tax Rebates Gerald Genesis Rebate- Apr 24 To Jun 24

10092024 Total:  31,522.84

Gerald Realty Holdings LL  31,522.84

Grainger

031900

 78.60  0.00 10/21/2024  010/14/2024 No9253786025

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint Light Ballast

9253786025 Total:  78.60

Grainger Total:  78.60

Hach Company

014100

 549.20  0.00 10/21/2024  09/30/2024 No14205596

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) Reagents

14205596 Total:  549.20

 872.60  0.00 10/21/2024  010/2/2024 No14208656

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) Reagents

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 10

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467768
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467768
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f32e8faa-886d-459b-a466-ab27e4f5b535
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468332
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468332
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=af1d14fc-8ddd-4b45-9cf8-306a2215d5c1
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-490-4781
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031900
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031900
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b23f62cb-8293-464c-b4ba-b32de58fbe59
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=014100
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=014100
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0149d579-0cb0-41d8-b923-1b373ea1f27c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a084106f-8c23-47c8-b4e1-7e00edfe9d9d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

14208656 Total:  872.60

Hach Company Total:  1,421.80

Harmonic Heating & Air Conditioning

047680

 4,169.00  0.00 10/21/2024  05/19/2024 NoI-15948-1

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce HVAC Maintenance- VH

I-15948-1 Total:  4,169.00

 340.00  0.00 10/21/2024  03/20/2024 No*** I-15953-1

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce HVAC Repair- PD

I-15953-1 Total:  340.00

 1,015.00  0.00 10/21/2024  04/1/2024 No*** I-15953-2

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Humidifier- PD

I-15953-2 Total:  1,015.00

Harmonic Heating & Air C  5,524.00

Heartland Controls Enterprise, Inc

468869

 60.12  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 NoINV5864-1

  60-464-4875 Capital Improvements Drying Tube Assembly

INV5864-1 Total:  60.12

Heartland Controls Enterpr  60.12

Hey and Associates, Inc.

040900

 1,613.65  0.00 10/21/2024  010/8/2024 No23-0389-19174

  17-032-4533 Maintenance Vegetation Management- Town Center

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 11

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047680
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047680
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c2ee5df6-ae1b-49bc-b2f7-f6eea75a0a29
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4d577ed0-7fe3-4b31-9da0-34c7c583ed8b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=262d0307-3c84-49ce-a451-a65c87b22d24
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468869
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468869
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=763ae1d2-3b45-43a1-b0d1-9b32bc35ec79
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-464-4875
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=040900
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=040900
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0f7a9e02-08f0-42bf-b475-3073a4dda334
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:17-032-4533


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

23-0389-19174 Total:  1,613.65

Hey and Associates, Inc. T  1,613.65

High Star Traffic

021520

 2,485.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/2/2024 No8319

  60-445-4870 Equipment Cones & Barricades

8319 Total:  2,485.00

High Star Traffic Total:  2,485.00

Huddleston-Mcbride Land

028240

 5,977.50  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 No30224

  60-472-4255 Engineering Drain Tile Survey New Water Tower

30224 Total:  5,977.50

Huddleston-Mcbride Land  5,977.50

Illinois Section American WWA

025350

 48.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/10/2024 No200092339

  60-445-4380 Training Utility Math Refresher- Kennedy

200092339 Total:  48.00

 244.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/10/2024 No200092340

  60-445-4380 Training Water Training- Kennedy

200092340 Total:  244.00

Illinois Section American W  292.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 12

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=021520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=021520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cc1040f1-6e36-42ea-82bf-94f773ef2dfc
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028240
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028240
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4c018f14-d412-4fd3-8f9d-77663bd817fc
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-472-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=025350
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=025350
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=57122df4-7699-4b16-a6cd-7b20d22ce752
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0ff01382-ccea-421e-b060-a7c99e62a1d2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4380


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Illinois State Police Bureau of

041810

 113.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/1/2024 No20240903557

  01-440-4799 Misc. Liquor License Fingerprints

20240903557 Total:  113.00

Illinois State Police Bureau  113.00

Industrial Door Company

044430

 1,198.35  0.00 10/21/2024  09/24/2024 No123404

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Gate Repair- PD

123404 Total:  1,198.35

 1,372.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/26/2024 No338

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Door Repair- PW Garage

338 Total:  1,372.00

Industrial Door Company T  2,570.35

J & S Construction

029060

 4,764.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/11/2024 No2404601

  60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. EM Repair- 141 N Lincolnway

2404601 Total:  4,764.00

J & S Construction Total:  4,764.00

JADE Hanna Surveyors, LLC

468128

 4,350.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/3/2024 No30392

  60-460-4255 Engineering Watermain Survey- Aspen Ct

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 13

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041810
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041810
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=93a69dc1-404f-427a-8d1f-a5640563d5b6
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044430
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044430
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d21e194e-a175-4c7c-8248-ff0f4ab1daca
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0c0b0fbd-6704-4f14-824d-f73213ca3083
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029060
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029060
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=466a2ae3-924b-4cfa-b7db-1c9f79719641
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4568
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468128
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468128
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f76caffe-3b63-44e5-88ff-5a50e016dd48
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-460-4255


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

30392 Total:  4,350.00

JADE Hanna Surveyors, L  4,350.00

Johnson & Buh, LLC

467744

 3,850.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 NoNAUR24-03

  01-410-4260 Legal Local DUI Prosecution

NAUR24-03 Total:  3,850.00

Johnson & Buh, LLC Total  3,850.00

Judges 2008 LLC

468520

 553.46  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 No236

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Washes- September 2024

236 Total:  553.46

Judges 2008 LLC Total:  553.46

Kane County Recorder

010600

 116.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/10/2024 NoNAUR091024

  01-441-4506 Publishing Recording Fees

NAUR091024 Total:  116.00

Kane County Recorder Tot  116.00

LAI, LLC.

042910

 1,898.23  0.00 10/21/2024  01/22/2024 No011267

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 14

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467744
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467744
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=19ff3497-c31a-4b61-a269-bc3ceda310c2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-410-4260
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ce428d7f-85c9-4670-bfc1-c4930a1aad19
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=010600
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=010600
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9ffe0ee6-0421-4c0d-bcc4-4970bd52a29d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4506
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=042910
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=042910
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8bd00e36-4ddd-4e8e-8389-b38d0676035c


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint HMO Hoses

011267 Total:  1,898.23

 17,533.19  0.00 10/21/2024  05/14/2024 No24-60942

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint HMO Pumps

24-60942 Total:  17,533.19

LAI, LLC. Total:  19,431.42

Layne Christensen Company

025170

 3,880.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/16/2024 No2797712

  60-464-4875 Capital Improvements Well #6 Maintenance

2797712 Total:  3,880.00

Layne Christensen Compan  3,880.00

Leonardi Appliance

029710

 99.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/2/2024 No178919

  01-440-4799 Misc. Refrigerator Repair

178919 Total:  99.00

Leonardi Appliance Total:  99.00

LionHeart Critical Power Specialists Inc.

468857

 961.50  0.00 10/21/2024  09/25/2024 No62926

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint WTP Generator Repair

62926 Total:  961.50

 49,016.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/30/2024 No63056

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 15

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=260fc31c-3a44-4d7d-b687-6d485b16cd12
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=025170
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=025170
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4bfb689e-e811-4cab-8f02-92f2676c9540
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-464-4875
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029710
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029710
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f3b6cfdb-5105-4688-9026-659e86d508d8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468857
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468857
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2a06804c-14ec-4d86-8adc-f8706198cfcd
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=21d03242-9d26-4b20-9404-1d84ba85476d


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint WTP ECM Replacement

63056 Total:  49,016.00

LionHeart Critical Power S  49,977.50

Menards

016070

 65.98  0.00 10/21/2024  09/18/2024 No35905

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Flowerpot Mesh

35905 Total:  65.98

 153.86  0.00 10/21/2024  09/18/2024 No35907

  01-445-4870 Equipment Pliers, Pail, Earmuffs

35907 Total:  153.86

 272.71  0.00 10/21/2024  09/18/2024 No35917

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint WTP Lighting Repair

35917 Total:  272.71

 71.28  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No35949

  01-490-4761 Beautification Committee Garden Mums

35949 Total:  71.28

 47.53  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No35949-02

  01-445-4870 Equipment Level, Laser Level, Chalk

35949-02 Total:  47.53

 2,602.51  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No35959

  60-445-4423 Tools Tools & Tool Chest- TPs

35959 Total:  2,602.51

 332.35  0.00 10/21/2024  09/20/2024 No36058

  60-445-4423 Tools Tools For TPs

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 16

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=016070
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=016070
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1c5b4211-f38f-48ac-b3d0-fdf4667b05e8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=390b2a30-10a9-4284-8ca9-9a150bec771d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e626e1cb-c80f-418f-b8b5-f10b2cccfa4a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e3679de2-1637-48e7-b580-f0b7bd667bf9
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-490-4761
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=95c93fed-dc45-4dba-b270-17857e37c9dd
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=dc5b0d0d-839c-4a0d-8910-9121b86fa13a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4423
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=afdcbf70-87d6-4fed-a53a-a342911d6453
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4423


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

36058 Total:  332.35

 165.94  0.00 10/21/2024  09/24/2024 No36294

  01-445-4423 Tools Shovels

36294 Total:  165.94

 4.88  0.00 10/21/2024  09/24/2024 No36294-02

  01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies Plastic Spoons

36294-02 Total:  4.88

 29.57  0.00 10/21/2024  09/25/2024 No36355

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint Batteries

36355 Total:  29.57

 130.63  0.00 10/21/2024  09/25/2024 No36355-02

  60-445-4423 Tools Replacement Tools

36355-02 Total:  130.63

 24.64  0.00 10/21/2024  09/26/2024 No36423

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint Washing Machine Piping

36423 Total:  24.64

 96.04  0.00 10/21/2024  09/26/2024 No36423-02

  60-445-4423 Tools ETP Tools

36423-02 Total:  96.04

 40.94  0.00 10/21/2024  010/2/2024 No36724

  01-445-4870 Equipment Tarp, Knife, Multi Tool

36724 Total:  40.94

Menards Total:  4,038.86

Metallo Services, Inc

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 17

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bb30ff5a-403b-4846-8065-e0d19ce32012
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4423
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ec506d18-631a-4ad1-b294-ed08b6f51a3d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4421
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1d8dc00a-a947-48ac-8b0f-93121b78373c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=97c3a94b-188f-48c7-8cde-c3701155ec48
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4423
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7e4ad867-5a66-4086-ae55-ee1504c319a4
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=46f206d3-4683-491f-953d-debba44e3b82
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4423
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=46f1d4a3-6e73-45de-a9dc-02febb3e83ef
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=052370


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

052370

 5,698.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/29/2024 No09292024

  01-445-4532 Tree Service Stump Removal (37)

09292024 Total:  5,698.00

 1,694.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/4/2024 No10042024

  01-445-4532 Tree Service Stump Removal (11)

10042024 Total:  1,694.00

Metallo Services, Inc Total  7,392.00

METRONET

467874

 999.45  0.00 10/21/2024  08/24/2024 No08242024

  01-430-4652 Phones and Connectivity Phone, Internet 8/24 - 9/23

08242024 Total:  999.45

 804.33  0.00 10/21/2024  08/24/2024 No08242024-02

  01-445-4652 Phones and Connectivity Phone, Internet 8/24 - 9/23

08242024-02 Total:  804.33

 940.43  0.00 10/21/2024  08/24/2024 No08242024-03

  60-445-4652 Phones and Connectivity Phone, Internet 8/24 - 9/23

08242024-03 Total:  940.43

 778.61  0.00 10/21/2024  08/24/2024 No08242024-04

  01-441-4652 Phones and Connectivity Phone, Internet 8/24 - 9/23

08242024-04 Total:  778.61

 2,030.26  0.00 10/21/2024  08/24/2024 No08242024-05

  01-440-4652 Phones and Connectivity Phone, Internet 8/24 - 9/23

08242024-05 Total:  2,030.26

 950.10  0.00 10/21/2024  09/24/2024 No09242024

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 18

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=052370
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=47a3e2ba-d9e8-4bd0-adc8-d40d10901fc8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4532
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2313353b-ecf1-4e5a-83e6-a07a6cebbbb0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4532
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467874
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467874
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=31aa9e22-977f-4332-bf4b-da1bf43b33b8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bfa7e3ef-4d65-482e-bc35-1ddb7787491b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d946f430-56d3-4b94-865d-2f8c1c2701f3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e4ce7d83-bcc0-4ba3-8ed2-c1fef1187b73
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=71e64ba3-5c63-46a3-89de-2ec532a70c89
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=06d9deb9-b1e5-46d2-b8e2-b1f9173b8649


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

  01-430-4652 Phones and Connectivity Phone, Internet 9/24 - 10/23

09242024 Total:  950.10

 757.38  0.00 10/21/2024  09/24/2024 No09242024-02

  01-445-4652 Phones and Connectivity Phone, Internet 9/24 - 10/23

09242024-02 Total:  757.38

 878.13  0.00 10/21/2024  09/24/2024 No09242024-03

  60-445-4652 Phones and Connectivity Phone, Internet 9/24 - 10/23

09242024-03 Total:  878.13

 727.61  0.00 10/21/2024  09/24/2024 No09242024-04

  01-441-4652 Phones and Connectivity Phone, Internet 9/24 - 10/23

09242024-04 Total:  727.61

 1,928.72  0.00 10/21/2024  09/24/2024 No09242024-05

  01-440-4652 Phones and Connectivity Phone, Internet 9/24 - 10/23

09242024-05 Total:  1,928.72

METRONET Total:  10,795.02

MOSCA Design, Inc

468884

 21,466.80  0.00 10/21/2024  010/2/2024 No39751

  01-490-4761 Beautification Committee Christmas Decorations

39751 Total:  21,466.80

MOSCA Design, Inc Total:  21,466.80

Nathan Darga

468879

 172.50  0.00 10/21/2024  010/4/2024 No10042024

  01-441-4370 Conferences & Travel Travel Reimbursement For Mileage

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 19

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b379c750-7c04-410d-90ef-2bb2c515ca37
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a9d06bee-8427-48e4-93c0-aff0b26823a6
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b16d9af7-4c50-41db-bbe6-c01723680b2c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=600a4a8e-3333-40c7-a776-ac5b03382d56
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468884
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468884
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2c4a7d4e-30c2-4645-a63e-75b24b7ad4ac
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-490-4761
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468879
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468879
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c2e397a3-8e31-48a9-b81a-8ee015b4f912
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4370


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

10042024 Total:  172.50

Nathan Darga Total:  172.50

North Aurora Lions Club

467640

 90.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/4/2024 No10042024

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Fall Display (2)- VH

10042024 Total:  90.00

North Aurora Lions Club T  90.00

North Aurora NAPA, Inc.

038730

 122.94  0.00 10/21/2024  09/11/2024 No473958

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Coil & Couplings- Truck #190

473958 Total:  122.94

 84.99  0.00 10/21/2024  09/12/2024 No474021

  01-445-4870 Equipment PW Tools

474021 Total:  84.99

 389.04  0.00 10/21/2024  09/16/2024 No474243

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Ball Mount

474243 Total:  389.04

 19.68  0.00 10/21/2024  09/16/2024 No474260

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Parts

474260 Total:  19.68

 321.98  0.00 10/21/2024  09/16/2024 No474280

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Parts

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 20

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467640
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467640
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=18d219d8-ed32-4d6e-abb7-262c01a05120
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038730
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038730
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1c862d65-f937-4187-9470-0ff3273e4b87
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=290c5bde-7bcb-4966-a092-8086801cf870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=01b945db-e36b-4f4f-8bd3-9134b9cebefd
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c2df1d1a-e1f0-42f8-968f-c2b920cf3d9e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b1686ba8-521c-4620-a666-f0dce5bea309
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

474280 Total:  321.98

 364.85  0.00 10/21/2024  09/16/2024 No474302

  01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies Street Cleaning

474302 Total:  364.85

 40.35  0.00 10/21/2024  09/17/2024 No474341

  01-445-4870 Equipment PW Tools

474341 Total:  40.35

 356.25  0.00 10/21/2024  09/17/2024 No474344

  01-445-4870 Equipment PW Tools

474344 Total:  356.25

 213.32  0.00 10/21/2024  09/17/2024 No474351

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Parts

474351 Total:  213.32

 26.47  0.00 10/21/2024  09/18/2024 No474429

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Parts

474429 Total:  26.47

 391.85  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No474536

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Street PD Sweeper Battery

474536 Total:  391.85

-208.60  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No474589

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Parts Credit

474589 Total: -208.60

-45.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/20/2024 No474652

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Core Deposit Credit

474652 Total: -45.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 21

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=30a2ad44-f895-4112-91ed-752db98263ed
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4421
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=628c033b-c86a-43d5-b82c-6c851c91b4c2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=233005ff-c8ea-4146-b201-ceb6b1821d26
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f6fa5e4e-6de8-4470-9cb5-2836f7dd3b59
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=30a52c4f-056c-4742-8a13-9313e973014f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3058c866-9804-43c8-8b88-fae074ddf32c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=39b78338-f5f9-4396-8e46-7dc6d1d690ae
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3afac960-33dc-4d19-86f7-153f14a8e641
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 51.48  0.00 10/21/2024  09/20/2024 No474682

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Hook & Pick Tool Set

474682 Total:  51.48

 205.99  0.00 10/21/2024  09/20/2024 No474687

  60-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Parts- Truck #183

474687 Total:  205.99

 31.37  0.00 10/21/2024  09/23/2024 No474806

  60-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Parts- Truck #183

474806 Total:  31.37

 436.79  0.00 10/21/2024  09/23/2024 No474841

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Coolant & Oil Cooler

474841 Total:  436.79

 74.97  0.00 10/21/2024  09/26/2024 No475032

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Motor Oil

475032 Total:  74.97

 68.94  0.00 10/21/2024  09/26/2024 No475043

  60-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Motor Tune-Up

475043 Total:  68.94

 104.48  0.00 10/21/2024  09/26/2024 No475044

  60-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Parts- Truck #144

475044 Total:  104.48

 44.12  0.00 10/21/2024  09/26/2024 No475046

  60-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Parts- Truck #144

475046 Total:  44.12

 124.95  0.00 10/21/2024  09/26/2024 No475073

  60-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Parts- Truck #144

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 22

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=948e8b2f-da71-4264-b8c6-0c02a01a1469
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=91b0f2f4-07e4-4a20-9611-72bcc79125be
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2b620ebf-9d06-48b1-8cf6-00898d9ffa26
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f2c370a7-976a-4c0b-9736-9a503f8f711a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=652280ed-15c4-4c88-b23c-7c44e9955732
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=adb305bf-0402-4b6a-b752-547235a4592a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4703743b-c0fb-46f3-afcf-3d54b575ec37
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a4f49b1b-0485-4b28-a340-680b399606ce
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=864e2324-7b52-4718-966c-5eba4b55640d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4511


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

475073 Total:  124.95

 59.99  0.00 10/21/2024  09/27/2024 No475099

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint PW Tools

475099 Total:  59.99

 174.38  0.00 10/21/2024  09/27/2024 No475125

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Parts

475125 Total:  174.38

-36.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/27/2024 No475133

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Parts Credit

475133 Total: -36.00

 93.40  0.00 10/21/2024  09/27/2024 No475140

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Floor Oil Dry

475140 Total:  93.40

 3.44  0.00 10/21/2024  09/27/2024 No475143

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint O-Rings- Truck #183

475143 Total:  3.44

 2.40  0.00 10/21/2024  09/27/2024 No475146

  60-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint O-Rings

475146 Total:  2.40

 34.19  0.00 10/21/2024  09/27/2024 No475149

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint PW Tools

475149 Total:  34.19

 29.94  0.00 10/21/2024  09/30/2024 No475254

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Paint Stripper

475254 Total:  29.94

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 23

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=46bb57c3-3f8b-47df-94cb-3d6c34c5a05b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=11f8a447-656e-4a76-b39f-3aa77a370f11
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8942ad2f-55fc-48bd-af02-a870af1cc639
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=82874e81-4acb-4235-8b84-ad0b03e8addb
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=38f5f93a-d35e-4d97-9ebf-e2627bb59231
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8b83d661-7af5-4a48-8264-b7e6c6145004
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ad7426c5-93c7-457c-b7fa-d80fcc8ca404
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9655fbf1-5cde-4aef-8fdb-f0b6302306eb
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 329.39  0.00 10/21/2024  09/30/2024 No475259

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint New Parts Cleaner

475259 Total:  329.39

 2,249.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 No475388

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Parts, Brake Wash

475388 Total:  2,249.00

 144.14  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 No475393

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Cylinder & Steering Column SFT- 2006 Chevy

475393 Total:  144.14

 219.26  0.00 10/21/2024  010/2/2024 No475433

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Air & Fuel Filters- Truck #194

475433 Total:  219.26

 109.90  0.00 10/21/2024  010/2/2024 No475455

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Antifreeze

475455 Total:  109.90

 54.68  0.00 10/21/2024  010/3/2024 No475541

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Filter- Truck #181

475541 Total:  54.68

 218.72  0.00 10/21/2024  010/3/2024 No475544

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Filter- Truck #181

475544 Total:  218.72

 68.37  0.00 10/21/2024  010/3/2024 No475552

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Horns (3)

475552 Total:  68.37

North Aurora NAPA, Inc. T  6,976.41

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 24

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=46f11893-863f-4e11-9680-c64b35bc727c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c883fa16-5a2a-496a-bc05-4f58ea8d2fbb
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0f7a28bc-fbe6-40cd-8693-8c88ee3e71c7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4d14eca1-2b6f-49d8-b4fd-67ce4dc830f1
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b0d8ca0e-4da0-47cf-921a-e6fc5d89e707
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=213c222f-012a-4702-9e9a-b084ac9efc8c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0a6b9491-7a8c-4caa-a4b5-d8e863315cbf
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e06cb7c2-3858-4779-8d35-01b179b75a50
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

North East Multi-Regional Training, Inc.

001520

 100.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/17/2024 No*** 362075

  01-440-4380 Training Training- McCoy, Nordstrom

362075 Total:  100.00

 1,000.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/30/2024 No362409

  01-440-4383 Firearm Training Firearms Training

362409 Total:  1,000.00

 125.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/30/2024 No362442

  01-440-4380 Training Training- Ragle

362442 Total:  125.00

 70.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/30/2024 No362554

  01-440-4380 Training Training- Majerus, Reyes

362554 Total:  70.00

North East Multi-Regional  1,295.00

Performance Construction & Engineering, LLC

468556

 248,023.86  0.00 10/21/2024  09/18/2024 NoPay #5

  21-456-4875 Capital Improvements Storm Sewer Construction- Tanner/Remington

Pay #5 Total:  248,023.86

Performance Construction  248,023.86

Pitney Bowes Inc.

017470

 91.29  0.00 10/21/2024  09/23/2024 No1026125743

  01-440-4505 Postage Red Ink Cartridge

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 25

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=22738d18-6840-4686-919d-80155d45e60e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=094f4495-2b88-44b6-93aa-5900bb6f4cbe
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4383
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=dd46d0fb-83e7-4d61-a506-08d77265f508
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4361acb4-55f0-431e-a815-069ae2882bc0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468556
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468556
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=63df3739-c5bc-4baa-a8c3-8e4972ac0d8f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:21-456-4875
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=017470
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=017470
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=eff821c4-21e9-4438-aa3f-62c4b7d6a4a6
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4505


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

1026125743 Total:  91.29

 51.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/30/2024 No1026165384

  01-440-4505 Postage Postage Machine

1026165384 Total:  51.00

Pitney Bowes Inc. Total:  142.29

R. J. O'Neil, Inc.

029370

 600.00  0.00 10/21/2024  05/23/2024 No00123817

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint TPs Backflow Tests (10)

00123817 Total:  600.00

 1,020.00  0.00 10/21/2024  05/23/2024 No00123817-02

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce VH Backflow Tests (17)

00123817-02 Total:  1,020.00

 3,550.76  0.00 10/21/2024  06/27/2024 No00124168

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Backflow Test- VH

00124168 Total:  3,550.76

 636.14  0.00 10/21/2024  07/17/2024 No00124375

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce HVAC Repair- PW Garage

00124375 Total:  636.14

 155.00  0.00 10/21/2024  08/6/2024 No00124538

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Backflow Test- PW Garage

00124538 Total:  155.00

 190.00  0.00 10/21/2024  08/6/2024 No00124567

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Toilet Repair- PW Garage

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 26

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c35e813d-9b31-41e6-b5d5-97dbf4d5adbc
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4505
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029370
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029370
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d3e2fabd-cf86-4f22-a66a-1738d43c364d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=729a14f8-9a21-41f6-8114-6b7f175a7ef0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b7957334-c9fc-46fa-a7df-e30683825e5f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=03f0c6c6-2bc6-4d2c-9c70-6cb9b61ed9a3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a8f80bcf-138a-466b-bb69-9f294d84c09d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0f263440-3597-40cb-a738-7088008b72e3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

00124567 Total:  190.00

 232.50  0.00 10/21/2024  08/22/2024 No00124757

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce RTU 2 Repair- PD

00124757 Total:  232.50

 206.32  0.00 10/21/2024  08/23/2024 No00124785

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Toilet Repair- PD

00124785 Total:  206.32

 2,626.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/24/2024 No00125136

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce HVAC Repair- PD

00125136 Total:  2,626.00

 2,723.34  0.00 10/21/2024  09/25/2024 No00125149

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce HVAC Blower Repair- PD

00125149 Total:  2,723.34

 2,120.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/1/2024 No00125184

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce HVAC Repair- PD

00125184 Total:  2,120.00

 775.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/5/2024 No00125206

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Water Heater Valve Repair- PD

00125206 Total:  775.00

 387.50  0.00 10/21/2024  010/5/2024 No00125209

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce RTU 4 Repair- PD

00125209 Total:  387.50

 852.50  0.00 10/21/2024  010/5/2024 No00125221

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Water Heater Blower Repair- PD

00125221 Total:  852.50

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 27

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9ddc6d01-2930-4ee1-a673-65ccf94d9b35
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a9a80ead-140b-40c8-8e5a-a41991827dfe
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=96348249-803c-48cf-9b25-7d217c16ccd2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f8230fee-e2f0-4081-a6e5-7c6738359f4d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ec28c2eb-2288-4810-8d98-dee4ddc17de1
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8c7c6386-6816-462c-86b0-ec61dbe112f6
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4bd0d6bf-c87d-42ae-ada7-4494cf11e2d6
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6c3c78aa-106e-4d4f-950b-50e6ff298626
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 202.01  0.00 10/21/2024  010/10/2024 No00125275

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Faucet Repair- PD

00125275 Total:  202.01

R. J. O'Neil, Inc. Total:  16,277.07

Schaefer Greenhouses, Inc.

029340

 1,833.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No105034

  01-490-4761 Beautification Committee Mums (78)

105034 Total:  1,833.00

Schaefer Greenhouses, Inc.  1,833.00

Sean O'Brien

468880

 100.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/3/2024 No10032024

  01-445-4799 Misc. Expenditures Mailbox Reimbursement- 725 Doral Lane

10032024 Total:  100.00

Sean O'Brien Total:  100.00

Suburban Laboratories, Inc.

045300

 472.34  0.00 10/21/2024  09/30/2024 No228704

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) Corrosion Study Samples

228704 Total:  472.34

Suburban Laboratories, Inc  472.34

True North Consultants, Inc.

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 28

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=81df9262-598c-48ba-a889-707cf304adad
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d8694e5d-ca00-440c-9805-e55b86110382
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-490-4761
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468880
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468880
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=defcd47e-4f6f-48d7-aca1-71caf3e5e15e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=045300
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=045300
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f6d15bfd-c0ff-4f27-b807-f1ebfc1b00ac
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=050930


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

050930

 2,975.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/3/2024 NoINV6240

  21-452-4501 Contractual Services Demolition Testing- PW

INV6240 Total:  2,975.00

True North Consultants, In  2,975.00

Uline, Inc

468220

 861.13  0.00 10/21/2024  09/23/2024 No183440095

  01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies Custodial Supplies- PD

183440095 Total:  861.13

 445.10  0.00 10/21/2024  09/23/2024 No183456646

  01-440-4799 Misc. Community Room Supplies

183456646 Total:  445.10

 142.18  0.00 10/21/2024  09/25/2024 No183561392

  01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies Custodial Supplies- PD

183561392 Total:  142.18

Uline, Inc Total:  1,448.41

USABlueBook

035680

 1,633.27  0.00 10/21/2024  09/13/2024 NoINV00483070

  60-445-4480 New Meters,rprs. & Rplcmts. Hydrant Meters (2)

INV00483070 Total:  1,633.27

USABlueBook Total:  1,633.27

Water Products Company

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 29

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=050930
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5029c1dc-39dc-4c87-91cf-541781830be9
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:21-452-4501
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468220
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468220
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b9c41bb1-9f57-4f17-9d4d-ba5f5bf833c6
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4421
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5a9711e9-3d18-4305-aa55-21a288f2fa94
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d455a6d4-790a-4773-9817-cdc1a7858f80
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4421
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035680
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035680
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=30a9b264-d835-4415-ae58-6bd3beecdca2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4480
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001170


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

001170

 594.00  0.00 10/21/2024  09/19/2024 No0325019

  60-445-4563 Fire Hydrant Repair/maint Hydrant Caps

0325019 Total:  594.00

 113.10  0.00 10/21/2024  09/24/2024 No0325097

  60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 2" Repair Clamps

0325097 Total:  113.10

Water Products Company T  707.10

Water Resources

010380

 489.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/3/2024 No37604

  60-445-4480 New Meters,rprs. & Rplcmts. Cell MIUs (3)

37604 Total:  489.00

Water Resources Total:  489.00

Williams Associates Architects, Ltd.

024930

 22,053.01  0.00 10/21/2024  09/20/2024 No0022753

  21-452-4501 Contractual Services Bidding & Construction

0022753 Total:  22,053.01

Williams Associates Archit  22,053.01

Wilson And Sons Construction, Inc

468883

 4,750.00  0.00 10/21/2024  010/7/2024 No4876

  60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. Public Water Service- 205 Dee Rd

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 30

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001170
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=75d4cee0-10c4-47e4-8010-cc3fe5712b7b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4563
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=84b744ef-ecf3-43f4-a3a8-163d87a417fd
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4568
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=010380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=010380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e51824ef-7179-46b6-8b4c-ed6c31d24ef3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4480
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024930
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024930
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a4548745-4f82-48c6-95c8-2551693217f9
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:21-452-4501
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468883
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468883
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8663cfea-30cb-454e-ab30-f375c9e8624e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4568


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

4876 Total:  4,750.00

Wilson And Sons Construc  4,750.00

Report Total:  944,419.13

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/17/2024 - 11:16 AM) Page 31

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.



 
NORTH AURORA VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 7, 2024 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Gaffino called the meeting to order. 
 
SILENT PRAYER - MEDITATION – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Mayor Mark Gaffino, Trustee Jason Christiansen, Trustee Laura Curtis, Trustee Mark 
Guethle, Trustee Mike Lowery, Trustee Todd Niedzwiedz, Trustee Carolyn Salazar 
 
Staff in attendance:  Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Jason Paprocki, Community 
Development Director Nathan Darga, Village Attorney Kevin Drendel, Public Works Director Brian 
Richter, Village Engineer/Assistant Public Works Director Brandon Tonarelli, Police Chief Joe DeLeo.  
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS –  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Village Board Minutes dated 09/16/2024; Committee of the Whole Minutes dated 09/16/2024 
2. Bills List Dated 10/07/2024 in the Amount of $1,126,988.66 
3. Approval of an Ordinance Amending the North Aurora Code Section 5.08.350 by Decreasing the 

Number of Class D Liquor Licenses Authorized in the Village of North Aurora 
4. Approval of an Ordinance Amending the North Aurora Code Section 5.08.350 by Increasing the 

Number of Class D Liquor Licenses Authorized in the Village of North Aurora. 
5. Approval of an Ordinance Amending the North Aurora Code Section 5.08.350 by Decreasing the 

Number of Class L-1 Liquor Licenses Authorized in the Village of North Aurora. 
 

Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Salazar. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee 
Christiansen – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Approval to Award Bid for Old Central Water Tower Water Main Disconnection Project to 
Performance Construction & Engineering, LLC in the Amount of $47,000.00 

Public Works Director Richter stated that the scope of the project included disconnecting the Village’s 
old central water tower that was removed from service in 1998, from the water main distribution system.  
On September 19, 2024, four sealed bids were received for the project.  Performance Construction & 
Engineering was the low bidder at $47,000.00.  Richter said that the Village staff designed the 
improvement project, and the Civil Engineer will be performing the construction inspection and 
administration of this project in house. 
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Curtis. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee 
Christiansen – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 



2. Approval of an Ordinance Approving a Special Use to Allow a Child Daycare Center in the 
O-R Office and Research District for the Property Located at 581 Sullivan Road, North 
Aurora, Illinois 

Community Development Director Darga reminded the Board that they had seen the plans for the Little 
Duckling Daycare at the Committee of the Whole meeting on September 16, 2024.  Darga stated that the 
facility would be for up to 28 children, and the daycare met the parking space requirement. 
  
Motion for approval made by Trustee Salazar and seconded by Trustee Lowery. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Salazar – yes, Trustee Christiansen – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – 
yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
 

3. Approval of an Ordinance Amending Title 17 of the North Aurora Code of Ordinances 
Regarding Permitted and Special Uses and Other Corrections and Clarifications 

Director Darga explained that this had been seen by the Plan Commission in July and by the Village 
Board at both the August 19th and September 16th Committee of the Whole meetings.  This would update 
all of the sections for permitted and special uses which was a goal in the Strategic Plan.  After the second 
COW meeting, the rules for home occupations was updated.   
   
Motion for approval made by Trustee Lowery and seconded by Trustee Christiansen. Roll Call Vote:  
Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee Christiansen – yes, 
Trustee Curtis –yes, Trustee Guethle – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
 

4. Approval of Resolution Approving an Amendment to the Village’s Purchasing Policy 
Finance Director Paprocki reminded the Village Board that the proposed changes to the Village’s 
Purchasing Policy were presented during the Committee of the Whole meetings on August 19th and 
September 16th.  The proposed changes include adding language that would define change orders and the 
criteria for approval, rewording time sensitive change order section to model the Village’s emergency 
purchase language, where concurrence of the Mayor would be needed and notification given to the 
Village Board for any change orders exceeding the Village Administrator’s approval.  It also included 
removing the need for formal approval when reducing a contract amount, adding sections where the 
Village Administrator could approve change orders out of contingency funds as long as it doesn’t increase 
the total value of the contract that had been previously approved.  The changes would remove the need for 
formal approval when extending contracts more than 30 days.      
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Lowery and seconded by Trustee Salazar. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee Christiansen – yes, Trustee 
Curtis –yes, Trustee Guethle – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
 

5. Consideration of an Ordinance Providing for the Issue and Sale of Approximately 
$13,625,000 of General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) of the Village for the 
Purpose of Constructing and Equipping a New Public Works Facility in and for the Village 
of North Aurora  

Director Paprocki stated that the Bonds were pledged by sales tax revenue, the terms of the Bond was 15 
year repayment with final maturity January 1, 2040.  Paprocki reminded the Board that the Bonds would 
be used to fund the new Public Works Facility.    
Kyle Harding from Chapman and Cutler, who served as Bond Council on the transaction and prepared the 
Ordinance, was on hand to answer questions.  He stated that the Ordinance provided for the issuance of 
$13,665,000.00 for the new Public Works Facility, the bonds are secured by sales tax with a back-up 



property tax levy which further secured the bonds.  Harding stated that this was similar to the way the 
Village had borrowed funds in the past, such as the 2015 and 2017 bonds.  Each year the Village Board 
will need to take action to abate the underlying property tax levy.  This was the third, and final Board 
action that was required to issue the debt.  Harding reminded the Village Board that on August 19th the 
Village Board adopted an ordinance of intent and September there was a Public Hearing.  The bond 
ordinance provided for the sale of the bonds to the Baker Group whom were the winning bidder at a sale 
conducted for the bonds the morning of October 7, 2024.  The Closing was scheduled for October 23, 
2024.   
   
Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Niedzwiedz. Roll Call Vote:  
Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee 
Christiansen – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
VILLAGE PRESIDENT – Appointment of Mark Theis to North Aurora Days Committee. 
The Village Board consented to this appointment.  
 
TRUSTEES COMMENTS – Trustee Salazar commented on the Ground Breaking Ceremony that 
occurred prior to the meeting.  She extended compliments to the staff and everyone whom had worked 
tirelessly on the new Public Works Facility project. 
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – Administrator Bosco stated that staff was planning on giving the 
Board an overview of the equipment utilized by Public Works that will be stored at the old Fire District 
building.  
 
VILLAGE DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Finance – None 
2. Community Development – None 
3. Police – None 
4. Public Works – None 
5. Village Attorney- None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Curtis. All in favor.  Motion 
approved. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Jessi Watkins 
Village Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 7, 2024 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Gaffino called the meeting to order. 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Mayor Mark Gaffino, Trustee Jason Christiansen, Trustee Laura Curtis, Trustee Mark 
Guethle, Trustee Mike Lowery, Trustee Todd Niedzwiedz, Trustee Carolyn Salazar 
 
Staff in attendance:  Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Jason Paprocki, Community 
Development Director Nathan Darga, Village Attorney Kevin Drendel, Public Works Director Brian 
Richter, Village Engineer/Assistant Public Works Director Brandon Tonarelli, Police Chief Joe DeLeo.  
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS – None 
 
TRUSTEE COMMENTS - None 
 
DISCUSSION 
 

1. 2025 Road Program 
Administrator Bosco stated that Village Engineer/Assistant Public Works Director Tonarelli would 
present about the upcoming year’s road program. 

Assistant Director Tonarelli reviewed the seven categories utilized in the rating of the Village roads.  
These range from “failed” to “good”.  He also explained that the cost to repair the roads range, and are 
more expensive the poorer the road conditions.  Tonarelli presented maps to the Village Board which 
highlighted which category each road fell into.  He spoke about Orchard Gateway which will be repaired 
with federal STP Grant funds.  Tonarelli spoke about the timeline for the Orchard Gateway project.   

Tonarelli spoke about the road maintenance strategy and how Village staff approached determining what 
roads to repair and when.  This review process aids staff in budgeting for the upcoming and subsequent 
years.  Village staff also seek the advice of professional consultants that specialize in the scoring, this 
occurs every three to five years and will likely happen within the next year. 

Finance Director Paprocki explained that the funding for the Road Program comes from three base 
revenues, with those being the Village’s 1% non-home rule sales tax, which brings to the Village about 
$2.8 million, Electricity Tax at about $370K, and the Natural Gas Tax at $220K with a total of about $3.4 
million annually into the Capital Projects Fund.   

Paprocki stated that supplemental General Fund transfers to the Capital Projects Fund had been $12.3 
million the last five years, in fiscal year 2024 the Capital Projects Fund year-end balance increased from 
$13.2 million to $14.5 million.   

Paprocki stated that the 2024 Road Program was in the Village’s 2025 budget at about $2.1 million using 
Capital Project Funds, current revenues and reserve balances. 

Tonarelli presented the Village Board with an estimated cost projection for the next five years of the Road 
Program.   



Tonarelli showed the Board a map highlighting the streets that were selected for the 2025 Road Program 
and offered details about what should be expected.  He also had a map detailing what the Road Program 
would address for the next five years.   

Administrator Bosco offered further insight on selection of what roads will be repaired and when, 
pointing out a few roads that were rated poorly, but because there was construction in the neighborhood, 
the repair of the roads would be pushed off until construction ceases.   

Trustee Lowery asked for clarification on how the rating was determined and what criteria it was based 
on, Assistant Director Tonarelli and Administrator Bosco reviewed the information in further detail for 
him.  

There were no further questions or comments from the Board. 

Administrator Bosco stated that Assistant Director Tonarelli would begin planning out the program for 
2025 in order to get it ready to bid out. 

Prior to the agenda item 2 discussion, Trustee Lowery asked about Route 31, and what could be done 
about repairs needed for that road.  It was discussed that Route 31 was a state road and under the 
jurisdiction of IDOT.   

2. Public Works Policy Manual Updates (please note, due to technical difficulties, the 
discussion for this agenda item was delayed until 7:46pm)  

Administrator Bosco spoke about the staff’s efforts to create operational policies pertaining to the Public 
Works department in an effort to formalize the practices for the Public Works operations and services.  
Bosco presented these policies to the Village Board. 

The first policy that Administrator Bosco presented was the Annual Road Program Policy.  He spoke 
about the policy and how it was intended to formalize the process for the selection of the roads chosen to 
be included in any given year’s Annual Road Program.  Bosco explained the policy included three 
policies that had been currently in practice, these related to the sidewalk program, as well as the curb and 
gutter replacement program.  The grass and driveway restoration programs have previously had no 
official policies.  

Bosco touched on the Village’s ADA compliance curb ramping.  He spoke about the way the Village 
approaches the surrounding grassy areas at a corner where ADA compliance curb ramping is installed, 
preferring to grade the grass rather than installing curbs that would create a step down as opposed to a 
gradual decline in grade.   

Bosco moved on to the sidewalk policy.  He stated that the Village had been, for some years, aligning 
sidewalk repairs with the Road Program, this would now become policy.  

The curb and gutter program had been in place but would become policy.  The program offers temporary 
repairs to damaged curbs until a more permanent repair can be made during the Road Program.  The 
discussion included the driveway restoration policy, Administrator Bosco explained that occasionally 
only part of a driveway’s apron is replaced.  The current practice was that if two patches occur within four 
feet of each other, the Village would usually do a single longer patch.  This would become policy.  The 
proposed policy would have a driveway apron completely replaced if more than 50% of the apron would 
need repairs, otherwise the repairs would be done in patches.  Administrator Bosco asked for feedback on 
this.  The approximate cost would be $800-$1,000 per driveway apron replacement.   Assistant Director 
Tonarelli stated that the previous year during the Road Program, the Village had touched approximately 



180 aprons during the Program.  The approximate cost to replace the entire apron would have been 
$150,000 but the Village had spent about $35,000 for repairs.   

There was discussion regarding what measurers could be taken to minimize the damage, with Tonarelli 
explaining under what situations damage might occur.  There were lengthy discussions which included 
what the Village could do to offer residents the option of having their entire driveway apron replaced if 
they would prefer that as well as giving residents advanced notice that their driveway aprons may be cut 
and repaired during the Road Program to avoid patching up newly finished driveways.  There was 
discussion about the heavy staff involvement that would be required for offering residents the option of 
replacement of their driveway aprons. The opinion of the Board was split between offering advanced 
notice of intended roads included on future Road Projects as being adequate, or offering the opportunity 
to pay to have their full aprons replaced.  Administrator Bosco stated that more research would be done to 
determine the potential cost of replacement of aprons within a Road Program contract. 

Administrator Bosco moved on to the grass restoration policy, Bosco stated that the Village had recently 
been utilizing IDOT approved lawn quality grass seeds for the restoration of areas affected by the Road 
Program.  The major complaint received by the Village after restoration, was regarding weed growth.  
There was discussion about what could cause the growth of the weeds, between inferior topsoil or lack of 
watering newly and recently seeded areas.  Staff spoke about the option of utilizing sod instead of 
seeding, Tonarelli spoke about the sod contracts which include the watering for the first 15 waterings, 
however this option would be double the current cost.   

The Village Board came to the consensus that lack of watering is an issue.  They discussed what options 
the Village had for watering, including doing a better job of educating and informing residents that the 
restoration areas need to be watered frequently.   

The presentation turned to the tree trimming policy.  Bosco explained that what the Village had 
previously done was trim trees that fell within the Road Program.  With maturing trees, the Village had 
been falling so far behind on tree trimming that it has become one of the top resident complaints.  Staff 
reevaluated the program and established seven areas that would go into a seven year tree trimming 
rotation.  With more trees being trimmed more frequently, this would increase the tree trimming budged 
from the current $90,000.00 to $150,000.00 per year.  The Village Board were in favor of this idea. 

3. Economic Development Strategy (please note, the discussion for this item began at 7:24pm) 
Administrator Bosco introduced the item reminding the Board that it had been a goal of the Village to 
have incentive policies which was incorporated into the Economic Development Strategy.  Once the 
Board gives approval for the Strategy, it would then be approved by resolution and become policy on how 
the Village attempts to attract certain businesses and which businesses are priority. 

Bosco stated that the Strategic Plan calls for a comprehensive economic policy for the Village.  The 
Comprehensive Plan also has several sub areas with suggestions on how to help rebuild those areas and 
generate economic development and future growth, residential growth, and pedestrian friendly growth.  
During the Strategic Planning workshop, Village Board members offered ideas on what they were looking 
for in economic development.  All of these components were included in the strategy. 

Administrator Bosco offered a presentation regarding the strategy.  Bosco reviewed the incentive types 
offered.  The most common incentives are offered through TIF and sales tax reimbursement.  He then 
went on to speak about what qualified uses have been included in the strategy and qualifying parameters 
that must be met for incentive. 



Bosco explained that the Economic Development Strategy Incentive Policy was developed in an effort to 
make the information easier to reference information in a more easily consumed format, with charts that 
can be updated as needed.   

Administrator Bosco spoke about action item listed in the United TIF District Action Plan under the 
objective "Use Tax Increment Financing as funding mechanism for private redevelopment”.  One of the 
action items reads “Distribute marketing literature to all property and business owners located in the 
United TIF District” “June 1st of each year”.  Bosco explained that a lot of times businesses do not even 
realize that they are in a TIF district, for whatever reason.  Regular reminders work to make owners aware 
of the program in hopes of utilizing the program.   

Bosco then spoke about Business Attraction and Targeted Uses.  He spoke about what uses were included 
on the list and some of what was not.  A couple of the most desired uses were dining options and 
entertainment spaces.   Bosco explained that another use was employment contributors because they assist 
in adding to the daytime population of an area which in turn attracts other businesses such as restaurants. 

Bosco then spoke about the goal of the Strategy to create a listing of all of the acreages that are available 
within the Village.  This aims to aid in easily assessing whether there is available space for a specific use 
and where. 

In addition, staff will keep an ongoing commercial building inventory as well as a commercial property 
inventory.   

Administrator Bosco then spoke about the Outreach Activity aspect of the Strategy, including different 
types of marketing.   

He also spoke about the Village’s website and the upgrades made like including an Economic 
Development page.  The Village also had an advertising campaign that includes social media posts that 
highlight the various businesses located within the Village.   

Administrator Bosco then spoke about Business Retention and the action plans that the Strategy would 
implement, such as a visitation program, surveying, business promotion, and the incorporation of 
economic development partners.   

Bosco went into detail about concept of surveying and what questions could be asked of a business to 
gain a better understanding of how the Village can better assist its businesses.   

Bosco spoke further on the Village’s Business Promotion plan which included social media, print media, 
the Village website, the community sign, and business engagement.  Each of the activities included had 
anticipated frequencies upon which they would occur.   

Bosco spoke about the Economic Development Partners which included local, regional, and national 
organizations.   

Trustee Curtis asked about what happened with the UFC gym space, she was told that there had been 
some interest in the vacated space, however that never developed. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION –  

1. Collective Bargaining 
2. Pending Litigation 

 
ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 



 
Motion to adjourn to Executive Session made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Salazar.  All 
in favor.  Motion approved.   
 
RETURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Gaffino called the meeting to order. 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Mayor Mark Gaffino, Trustee Jason Christiansen, Trustee Laura Curtis, Trustee Mark 
Guethle, Trustee Mike Lowery, Trustee Todd Niedzwiedz, Trustee Carolyn Salazar 
 
Staff in attendance:  Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Jason Paprocki, Community 
Development Director Nathan Darga, Village Attorney Kevin Drendel, Public Works Director Brian 
Richter, Police Chief Joe DeLeo.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion to adjourn made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Niedzwiedz.  All in favor.  Motion 
approved.   
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Jessi Watkins 
Village Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Village of North Aurora   

Memorandum 
 

 
To: 

 
President and Village Board of Trustees 

 
From: 
 
CC: 

 
Jason Paprocki, Finance Director 
 
Steven Bosco, Village Administrator 

 
Date: 

 
October 21, 2024 

 
RE: 

 
IMLRMA Liability, Workers Compensation, and Other Coverage Renewal 

 
 
The Village has received its 2025 coverage renewal from the Illinois Municipal League Risk 
Management Association (IMLRMA).  This policy covers the Village’s workers’ comp, auto 
liability & comprehensive general liability, portable equipment, auto physical damage, and 
property coverage.  The total 2025 contribution is $401,275, which represents an increase of 
$34,814, or 9.5%, compared to the 2024 contribution.  The Village can elect to pay the 2024 
contribution in full by November 15, 2024 and receive a 1% early payment discount.  The 1% 
discount would save $4,012.75, which brings the 2024 contribution to $397,262.25. 
 
Similar to prior years, the Village can elect to participate in the minimum-maximum program.  
This option allows the Village’s contribution to vary based on claims experience.  The Village 
could see a 15% reduction in normal loss fund contributions if claims experience is favorable, 
but could result in a 30% increase in normal loss fund contributions if claims experience is 
unfavorable.  Using the 2025 normal contribution amount, the minimum-maximum program 
could result in a $43,037 savings, or up to $86,073 in additional costs compared to selecting the 
normal annual contribution.  Historically, the Village has not participated in this program due to 
the volatility.  During the last five completed policy years (2019-2023), the minimum-maximum 
program would have resulted in an additional $81,386 in contributions.   
 

#1 #2 #3 #4 #5 #6 #7 #8

YEAR
NORMAL 
ANNUAL 

CONTRIBUTION

EXCESS & 
ADMINISTRATION 
COSTS (28.5% of 
normal annual 
contribution )

NORMAL CLAIM 
LOSS FUND             
(#2 minus #3)

MINIMUM 
CONTRIBUTION (85% 
of normal loss fund 

plus excess & admin 
costs)

MAXIMUM 
CONTRIBUTION (130% 

of normal loss fund 
plus excess & admin 

costs)

POSSIBLE 
SAVINGS           

(#2 minus #5)

POSSIBLE 
ADDITIONAL 

COST                
(#6 minus #2)

2025 401,275 114,363 286,912 358,238 487,348 43,037 86,073

YEAR # CLAIMS PAID CLAIMS OUTSTANDING 
RESERVES TOTAL EXPERIENCE MINIMUM LOSS FUND MAXIMUM LOSS 

FUND

EST. SAVINGS or 
(ADDITIONAL 

COST)
2019 24 1,117,966 0 1,117,966 180,244 275,667 ($63,616)
2020 7 37,144 0 37,144 180,244 275,667 $31,808
2021 22 528,527 114,662 643,189 180,244 275,667 ($63,616)
2022 21 184,739 18,166 202,905 190,517 291,380 $21,233
2023 14 246,523 501 247,024 203,854 311,777 ($7,196)

2019-2023 estimated 5-year savings/(cost) ($81,386)

MINIMUM / MAXIMUM COMPARISON

CLAIMS HISTORY

CONTRIBUTION

 



The staff recommendation is to continue with the normal annual contribution amount for 2025 
and take advantage of the 1% early payment discount.  As noted, this would bring the Village’s 
2025 contribution to $397,262.25.  Based on the unpredictability of recent claims trends, we 
would not recommend participating in the minimum-maximum program. 





 

 
 
Memorandum 
 

To:         Mark Gaffino, Village President & Board of Trustees 

Cc:             Steven Bosco, Village Administrator  

From:  Brian Richter, Public Works Director 

                       Brandon Tonarelli, Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer  

Date:  October 14, 2024 

Re:       Approval of for the Purchase of Road Salt   

 
The Village purchases salt through the Illinois Central Management System’s Bureau 
of Strategic Sourcing. This agency uses a program called BidBuy to leverage the 
purchasing power of many municipalities and counties throughout the state. The 
program provides the Village with some flexibility because it offers the opportunity 
to receive 120% of our requested amount of salt without an increase in the unit price.  
If we have a severe winter season, we have the ability to order additional salt to meet 
the demands of the storm and provide a safe road network for motorists. If the salt 
is not used, the Village still has the option to take advantage of the price and request 
delivery and store salt at the end of winter if there is room in the salt domes. Last 
year the Village requested 2,600 with the option to purchase 3,120 tons and accepted 
approximately 2,100 tons. This year the Village requested 500 tons with the option 
to purchase 600 tons. We were able to decrease our tonnage this year due to the 
large amount of salt we have left over from last season. We also decreased our order 
because we are building a new salt dome with the Public Works Facility and the old 
one will be demolished after April 15, 2025, so we will lose the ability to store a 
portion of any excess salt. 
 
In March of 2024, the Village submitted the amount of salt it would like to order to 
the State to be included in their bid process.  In the past the State would let contracts 
that would have a two-year term with a maximum escalator of 10% when a contract 
expired and needed to be rebid. This allowed Villages to plan in advance for the 
volatility of salt.  However, the program has changed, and the State is now letting the 



contract annually. The State contract received bids from three companies, Cargill, 
Compass, and Morton. Since the Village has two salt dome locations, we must split 
the orders however since we are building a new salt dome on the eastside, we only 
placed an order for the westside salt dome. The low bidder for our rock salt order 
this year came from Morton Salt in the amount of $71.30 per ton. 
 
The table below displays past unit prices for salt, tons ordered, as well as the total 
cost of past years’ programs.  If we have a severe winter season, the Village can 
exercise the contract option to receive up to an additional 20% of its allocation. 
 

 
%100 %100 %120 %100 %120 %100 %120 

Winter 2022-23 
2022-2023 

(Cargil) 
2022-2023 

(Cargil) 
2023-2024 
(Compass) 

2023-2044 
(Compass) 

2024-2025 
(Morton) 

2024-2025 
(Morton) 

[$/Ton] $79.07  $79.65 $79.65  $79.44  $79.65  $71.30 $71.30 
[Tons] 3,000 1,3000 1,560 1,300 1,560 500 600 

 $237,210.00  $103,545.00  $124,254.000  $103,272.00  $124,254.00  $36,650.00 $42,780.00 
 
The Village has an option to purchase an additional 100 tons of salt if needed, raising 
the total purchase price to $42,780.40. The Village has $300,000.00 budgeted in the 
MFT fund for the purchase of salt in the current fiscal year. 
 
Attached is the executed contract from Morton Salt. Staff is requesting the approval 
of a salt purchase in the amount of $36,650.00 with the option of spending 
$42,780.00 if we encounter severe weather conditions. 
 



STATE OF ILLINOIS 
CONTRACT 

Central Management Services 
JPMC Rock Salt Bulk FY25 

24-416CMS-BOSS4-P-71007

1 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Title Page 
V.24.1

The Parties to this contract are the State of Illinois acting through the undersigned Agency (collectively the State) 
and the Vendor.  This contract, consisting of the signature page and numbered sections listed below and any 
attachments referenced in this contract, constitute the entire contract between the Parties concerning the subject 
matter of the contract, and in signing the contract, the Vendor affirms that the Certifications and Financial 
Disclosures and Conflicts of Interest attached hereto are true and accurate as of the date of the Vendor’s execution 
of the contract.  This contract supersedes all prior proposals, contracts and understandings between the Parties 
concerning the subject matter of the contract.  This contract can be signed in multiple counterparts upon 
agreement of the Parties. 

Contract includes BidBuy Purchase Order? (The Agency answers this question prior to contract filing.) 

☐ Yes

☒ No

Contract uses Illinois Procurement Gateway Certifications and Disclosures? 

☐ Yes (IPG Certifications and Disclosures including IPG Active Registered Vendor Disclosure)

☒ No

1. DESCRIPTION OF SUPPLIES AND SERVICES

2. PRICING

3. TERM AND TERMINATION

4. STANDARD BUSINESS TERMS AND CONDITIONS

5. STATE SUPPLEMENTAL PROVISIONS

6. STANDARD ILLINOIS CERTIFICATIONS

7. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

8. CONTRACT SPECIFIC CERTIFICATIONS AND DISCLOSURES – “IPG Active Registered Vendor Disclosure
(formerly called FORMS B)” (IF APPLICABLE)

9. PURCHASE ORDER FROM BIDBUY (IF APPLICABLE)

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in this contract, and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree to the 
terms and conditions set forth herein and have caused this contract to be executed by their duly authorized 
representatives on the dates shown on the following CONTRACT SIGNATURES page 







 

4 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Description of Supplies and Services 
V.24.1 

1. DESCRIPTION OF SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 

1.1. GOAL:  To establish a Joint Purchase Master Contract (JPMC) for bulk rock salt to be 
purchased on a as needed basis during the contract period.       

This JPMC may be utilized by all governmental units as defined in Section 5 of this 
Contract.   

Note:  Participation in this contract is based upon the CY24-25 Illinois Department of 
Central Management Services Joint Participation Agreement Survey that defines the 
BidBuy line items and additional participation in the resultant contract is not allowed. 

1.2. SUPPLIES AND/OR SERVICES REQUIRED:   

1.2.1. The Vendor will provide rock salt based on quantity ordered within the timeframe 
listed herein.  

1.2.2. Rock Salt Specification Requirements: 

a. Rock Salt shall comply with the requirements of The American 
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) 
SPECIFICATION M143, SODIUM CHLORIDE TYPE 1, GRADE 1. 

b. Rock Salt shall be free flowing fresh stock, reclaimed or re-crushed 
rock salt will not be accepted and shall be rejected by delivery site. 

1.2.3. Quantity Commitments:  All participants who complete the annual survey will 
have the option to choose between a minimum of 80% or 100% purchase 
commitment and will be allowed a maximum of 120% purchase commitment as 
defined below.  All minimum purchase commitments will be defined in the line 
item description within BidBuy. 

a. Minimum 80% Commitment: Some participants identified from the 
annual survey have chosen a minimum purchase commitment of 80%.  
That means that if the participant estimates a quantity of 100 ton, the 
participant is only obligated to order 80 ton.  That is 80% of the estimated 
quantity.  The participant shall have no further liability to the Vendor for 
further remaining quantities. 

b. Minimum 100% Commitment: Some participants identified from the 
annual survey have chosen a minimum purchase commitment of 100%.  
That means that if the participant estimates a quantity of 100 ton, the 
participant is obligated to order 100 ton.  That is 100% of the estimated 
quantity.  



 

5 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Description of Supplies and Services 
V.24.1 

c. Maximum 120% Commitment: The Vendor shall agree to provide up to 
120% of the bid quantity estimated tonnage at the same contract price.  
That means that all participants who estimate a quantity of 100 ton can 
order up to 120 ton at the same contract price. 

d. Quantities Exceeding 120% Maximum: In some instances, a participant 
may require quantities that would exceed the maximum commitment of 
the Vendor; in such instances, any delivery shall be made upon the 
mutual agreement of all parties. 

e. Purchase Percentages for IDOT:  The Illinois Department of 
Transportation (IDOT) has provided estimated quantities for individual 
locations.  Quantities purchased from each Vendor shall be computed on 
a District by District basis (not by location).  For example, if a Vendor has 
2 locations in a District with estimated quantities of 100 and 200 tons 
with a minimum 80% commitment. Then the 80% commitment will be 
met once the 300(0.8) = 240 tons has been purchased between the two 
locations.  This may include all 240 tons purchased from one location. 

1.2.4. Weights and Measures Requirements and Adjustments: 

a. Weights and Measures: All measurements for weight shall be from scales 
meeting the requirements of The Weights and Measures Act of the State 
of Illinois (225 ILCS 470).  The Vendor shall provide accurate weights of 
materials delivered to governmental units. These weights shall be 
documented on delivery tickets which shall identify the source of the 
material, type of material, the date and time the material was loaded, the 
release number, the net weight, the tare weight, and the identification of 
the transporting vehicle.  

The State reserves the right to conduct random, independent vehicle 
weight checks for salt deliveries.  This will require that trucks occasionally 
be directed to a scale near the delivery point.   

Should the vehicle weight check result in the net weight of material on 
the vehicle to exceed the net weight of material shown on the Vendor’s 
delivery ticket by 600 pounds or more, the State will document the 
independent vehicle weight check and immediately furnish a copy of the 
results to the Vendor. No adjustment in pay quantity will be made. 

Should the vehicle weight check result in the net weight of material 
shown on the delivery ticket to be less than the net weight of material on 
the vehicle by the tolerance of 600 pounds or more, the State will 



 

6 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Description of Supplies and Services 
V.24.1 

document the independent vehicle weight check (IWC1), immediately 
furnish a copy of the results to the Vendor, and immediately perform a 
second independent weight check (IWC2).  If the second independent 
weight check is within the 600-pound tolerance, then a third independent 
weight check (IWC3) will be performed.  If the third independent weight 
check is within tolerance, no pay adjustments will be made, and random 
independent weight checks will resume.  If the second or third 
independent weight check confirms the net weight of the material shown 
on the Vendor’s delivery ticket is less than the net weight of material on 
the vehicle by 600 pounds or more, the State will adjust the net weight 
shown on the delivery ticket for IWC1 to the checked delivered net 
weight as determined by the independent vehicle weight checks. 

b. Method of Measurement:  The State will also adjust the method of 
measurement for IWC2, IWC3 (when applicable) and subsequent truck 
loads using the same scale based on the out-of-tolerance independent 
weight checks.  The net weight of rock salt delivered to the State from 
this source, will be adjusted by applying a correction factor “A” as 
determined by the following formula:  

A = [1.0 – (B - C) / B]; Where A < 1.0 and B – C > 600 

Where: A = Adjustment factor 
 B = Net weight shown on the delivery ticket from Vendor 
 C = Net weight on the vehicle determined from 

independent weight check from IWC1 
The adjustment factor will be applied as follows: 
 
Adjusted Net Weight = A x Delivery Ticket Net Weight 

The adjustment factor will be imposed until the cause of the deficient 
weight is identified and corrected by the Vendor to the satisfaction of 
the State. If the cause of the deficient weight is not identified and 
corrected within seven calendar days, the State reserves the right to 
immediately, and without notice to Vendor, take action to remedy 
Vendor failure.  This action may include the termination of the order 
and purchase of salt from other sources, or other action to ensure ice 
control availability for public safety purposes.  Note that any or all 
additional costs may be collected from the original Vendor, in addition 
to the applied weight adjustments. 

At the Vendor’s option, the vehicle may be weighed on a second 
independent Department of Agriculture certified scale to verify 



 

7 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Description of Supplies and Services 
V.24.1 

accuracy of the scale used for the independent weight check.  The 
freight for this additional weigh will be charged to the party that is 
proven to be negligent. 

c. Deductions: The State reserves the right to assess, and apply if applicable, 
invoice deductions for the following: 

Moisture Content: Deductions by percentage for moisture content 
based on total weight shall be determined by the following ranges: 

Moisture Content (%) Deduction in Price (Per Truckload) 
0.00 TO 2.00 NO DEDUCTION 
2.01 TO 2.50 10% DEDUCTION 
2.51 TO 3.00 15% DEDUCTION 
3.01 TO 3.50 20% DEDUCTION 
3.51 TO 4.00 25% DEDUCTION 

GREATER THAN 4.01 REJECTION OF LOAD 
 
Sodium Chloride (NACL) Content: The State reserves the right to accept 
delivery of rock salt which, according to the analysis by The Illinois 
Department of Transportation, has a Sodium Chloride (NACL) content 
of less than 95.0 percent, but not less than 90.0 percent.  When such 
reservation is applied, final payment will be made on the following 
basis: 

1) When NACL content is between 94.0 and 94.9 percent, the 
price to be paid shall be the contract price less $5.00 per ton. 

2) When NACL content is between 90.0 and 93.9 percent, the 
price paid shall be contract price less $10.00 per ton. 

3) When the NACL content is less than 90.0 percent, the load will 
be rejected. 

1.2.5.  Ordering 

a. Order Placement: Orders may be placed with the Vendor (Monday-
Friday) via telephone, with a written electronic communication (e-mail) 
to follow.  All State agency orders will contain a purchase order generated 
from BidBuy in addition to an electronic communication (e-mail).  
Vendors shall arrange for immediate shipment upon receipt of order 
from an authorized participating agency representative. All other 
governmental units will use their own purchase order system. 



 

8 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Description of Supplies and Services 
V.24.1 

b. Order Quantities: Orders shall be scheduled in amounts that make up full 
(22-25 tons) truckloads, orders for less than truckload will not be 
accepted. 

c. Initial Orders: The Illinois Department of Transportation requires Vendors 
to ship initial fill-up orders prior to October 31st of the current year.  If 
this date has passed prior to execution, we ask that the Vendor(s) start 
shipping as soon as contract has been executed.  Please see the attached 
file within BidBuy titled “Initial Orders”. Vendor(s) shall notify each 
destination entity when initial shipments are to begin. 

d. Seasonal Orders: Non-State agencies reserve the right to purchase up to 
50% of the estimated order requirements prior to November 30th of the 
current year.  Vendor shall notify each delivery point of when shipment 
is to begin. 

e. Order Timeline: For an order placed prior to 9:00 a.m. on a given day, that 
day would be considered as the first calendar day of the seven (7) day 
delivery period.  For an order placed after 9:00 a.m. on a given day, the 
day following would be considered as the first calendar day of the seven 
(7) day delivery period, or as amended by order guidelines in Section 
1.2.5.f. 

f. Order Guidelines: An agency may order up to 20% of their 100% 
contracted tonnage in any given week and Vendor shall deliver within 7 
working days after receipt of order. Quantities ordered above the 20 
percent threshold shall have an extended delivery time of one-working-
day for each one percentage-point above the 20% guideline.  For 
example, if an agency orders 25% of their awarded total 100 tons, 
delivery of the first 20 tons (20%) shall be within 7 working days after 
receipt of order and the remaining 5 tons shall be delivered within 12 
working days after receipt of the order. 

g. Peak Season Orders: After hours and weekend delivery arrangements are 
encouraged during severe seasonal weather events to provide Vendor 
additional ability to maintain a prompt order delivery schedule.  Orders 
placed during peak season should be in accordance with projected 
requirements and not in excess of the order guidelines, thereby hindering 
a Vendor's ability to maintain a prompt order delivery schedule. 

h. Post Season Orders: All orders for Rock Salt shall be placed by the end of 
July for the previous season’s estimated usage.  If the location does not 



 

9 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Description of Supplies and Services 
V.24.1 

have adequate capacity to hold the rock salt, the Vendor may elect to add 
a storage charge per ton/day. 

1.2.6. The Districts are defined as follows: 

 District 1:  Counties of Cook, DuPage, Kane, Lake, McHenry, and Will. 
  
 District 2:  Counties of Boone, Carroll, Henry, JoDaviess, Lee, Ogle, Rock 

Island, Stephenson, Whiteside, and Winnebago. 
  
 District 3:  Counties of Bureau, DeKalb, Ford, Grundy, Iroquois, 

Kankakee, Kendall, LaSalle, and Livingston. 
  
 District 4:  Counties of Fulton, Henderson, Knox, Marshall, McDonough, 

Mercer, Peoria, Putnam, Stark, Tazewell, Warren, and Woodford. 
  
 District 5:  Counties of Champaign, DeWitt, Douglas, Edgar, McLean, 

Piatt, and Vermilion. 
  
 District 6:  Counties of Adams, Brown, Cass, Christian, Hancock, Logan, 

Macoupin, Mason, Menard, Montgomery, Morgan, Pike, Sangamon, 
Schuyler, and Scott. 

  
 District 7:  Counties of Clark, Clay, Coles, Crawford, Cumberland, 

Edwards, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Lawrence, Macon, Moultrie, 
Richland, Shelby, Wabash and Wayne. 

  
 District 8:  Counties of Bond, Calhoun, Clinton, Greene, Jersey, Madison, 

Marion, Monroe, Randolph, St. Clair and Washington. 
  
 District 9:  Counties of Alexander, Franklin, Gallatin, Hamilton, Hardin, 

Jackson, Jefferson, Johnson, Massac, Perry, Pope, Pulaski, Saline, Union, 
White and Williamson. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

10 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Description of Supplies and Services 
V.24.1 

1.2.7. Map  

 



 

11 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Description of Supplies and Services 
V.24.1 

For procurements conducted in BidBuy, the State may include in this contract the BidBuy 
Purchase Order as it contains the agreed Supplies and/or Services.For procurements 
conducted in BidBuy, the State may include in this contract the BidBuy Purchase Order as 
it contains the agreed Supplies and/or Services. 

1.3. MILESTONES AND DELIVERABLES:   

1.3.1. Stockpile and Order Status Reports:  Vendor shall provide stockpile and order 
status reports upon request and as requested by the CMS Bureau of Strategic 
Sourcing for use in its contract administration effort.  Failure to comply in a timely 
manner may be considered a breach of contract. 

1.3.2. Delivery Invoices:  Vendor invoices shall show the date orders were placed with 
the Vendor and the dates and tonnage amounts of salt delivered. 

1.3.3. The Vendor warrants that all products furnished hereunder will be free from liens 
and encumbrances; defects in design, materials, and workmanship; and will 
conform in all respects to the terms of this Contract including any specifications 
or standards. In addition, Vendor warrants the products/equipment and related 
services are suitable for and will perform in accordance with the ordinary use for 
which they are intended. 

1.3.4. The Vendor shall report to the Department of Central Management Services 
Bureau of Strategic Sourcing (BOSS) an annual Contract Usage Report which 
includes all Governmental Units as defined in Section 5 of this Contract .  This 
report shall be in a tab-delimited text file or an Excel spreadsheet that references 
the BidBuy Purchase Order (PO) number, time period being reported, and must 
include the following: 

PO Line Number, Description, Quantity, Ordering Entity 

  The report will be sent to the following email address:  CMS.BOSS.Sourcing@illinois.gov.   

  A sample of the report’s format is as follows:  

Line Item # Description Quantity Ordering Entity 
1 XXXXXXXXX XXX XXXXXXX 
2 XXXXXXXXX XXX XXXXXXX 

1.4. VENDOR / STAFF SPECIFICATIONS:   

1.4.1. Vendor Meetings: 



 

12 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Description of Supplies and Services 
V.24.1 

a. The Vendor shall participate in a pre-season meeting with IDOT Central 
Bureau of Operations.  This meeting will be scheduled after the execution 
of the contract(s). 

b. The Vendor shall participate in weekly calls with IDOT Central Bureau of 
Operations throughout the winter season.  

c. The Vendor shall participate in a post-season meeting with IDOT Central 
Bureau of Operations that will be scheduled between April to June.  

1.4.2. Stockpile and Delivery Performance: 

a. Delivery Performance: Freezing of waterways and the impact on delivery 
must be reasonably anticipated by the Vendor and is not a cause to claim 
Force Majeure. 

b. STOCKPILE AVAILABILITY:  Successful Vendors shall have stockpiles of 
Rock Salt in Illinois or near its boundaries in quantities that are sufficient 
to satisfy the State of Illinois contractual requirements and stockpile 
staging requirements shall be as follows:  

1.1. 100% at upper MISSISSIPPI RIVER STOCKPILE locations, 
DISTRICT-1, DISTRICT-2, DISTRICT-3, and DISTRICT-4 by 
December 1st. 

1.2. 50% at all other Downstate Stockpile locations by December 
1st and 100% by January 1st. 

  Such stockpiles must be near enough to delivery points to allow for timely 
delivery as required by the State of Illinois contractual requirements.  

  Vendors may also be required to furnish a list of rock salt commitments 
against these stockpiles as a result of other contractual agreements. 

c. STOCKPILE INSPECTIONS:  The State reserves the right to inspect and/or 
test the rock salt provided at the Vendor's stockpile points or at the salt 
storage facility destination, whichever is most convenient to the State. 

1.4.3. Safety Data Sheets:  The Vendor is required to furnish a Safety Data Sheet (SDS) 
for each toxic substance shipped. Submission of Safety Data Sheets is required by 
the Illinois Toxic Substances Disclosure to Employees Act. 820 ILCS 255/1 ET SEQ, 
or subsequent amendment. 



 

13 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Description of Supplies and Services 
V.24.1 

1.4.4. Vendor must be registered in BidBuy before entering into the resulting Contract 
with the State of Illinois. 

1.5. TRANSPORTATION AND DELIVERY:   

1.5.1. Delivery Time:  Delivery will be made F.O.B. Destination with all transportation 
and handling paid by the Vendor to any participating Governmental Unit.  
Deliveries are to be made within seven (7) working days, or as extended by order 
guidelines in Section 1.2.5.f. For all orders placed by contract participants on or 
after December 1 and prior to May 1st of any year, order delivery performance 
shall be subject to application of Liquidated Damages as stated in Section 1.5.10 
below. 

1.5.2. Delivery Schedule:  Salt order deliveries will be accepted only during regular 
workdays (Monday thru Friday) and work hours (7:30 a.m. - 3:30 p.m.) excluding 
state holidays, except where special arrangements are made in advance with an 
appropriate representative at the delivery site. 

1.5.3. Delivery Locations:  All delivery locations are listed within each line item in 
BidBuy.  Specific delivery notes for other governmental units will be given at the 
time of order. 

1.5.4. Payment of Tolls:  The Vendor shall be required to pay the full amount of tolls, if 
any, incurred during the duration of the contract. Said tolls will not be refunded 
by the ordering agency. 

1.5.5. Delivery Tickets:  Each delivery ticket shall be a direct entry (no manual entries) 
certified scale ticket indicating gross, tare, and net weight of each truckload of 
rock salt. Unless otherwise directed, delivery ticket must also be signed by an 
authorized agency representative at the delivery location point to verify that 
agency has accepted the material.  The Vendor shall include the release order 
number and the date of delivery on each delivery ticket. The Vendor shall ensure 
all weights and measures shown on all tickets are correct. 

1.5.6. Delivery Requirements:  All truck loads shall be covered with approved 
weatherproof material. Vendor shall ensure the delivery person inspects the 
inside of the trailer and all salt is removed from the trailer before leaving a 
delivery point.  Pre-loading trucks prior to the date of delivery is not allowed and 
may be rejected at the delivery site.  In the event any agency discovers preloaded 
rock salt already dumped at its location, the salt may be reloaded onto the 
cartage hauler’s truck by the agency and returned for credit and the Vendor shall 
immediately ship a conforming load of replacement Rock Salt, or at agencies’ 
option to issue a refund consistent with the dollar amount of the original order. 



 

14 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Description of Supplies and Services 
V.24.1 

1.5.7. Delivery Method:  All deliveries will be on the basis of the "End-Dumping" 
method. Vendors shall be governed by the specific delivery instructions, as to 
unloading point, issued by an applicable agency when they place their order for a 
particular location. 

1.5.8. Weights and Measures:  Governmental units reserve the right to require that 
trucks may occasionally be directed to a scale in the vicinity of the delivery point 
as a check on delivered truckloads.  The governmental units reserve the right to 
take action to remedy Vendor’s failure to provide accurate weights and 
measures. 

1.5.9. Foreign Materials:  All truck loads shall be free of any foreign material such as 
mud, rocks, grader teeth, wood, tarpaulins, etc. or the load may be rejected. In 
the event any agency discovers foreign material in truckloads of rock salt already 
dumped at its location, the salt and foreign matter may be reloaded onto the 
cartage hauler's truck by the agency and returned for credit and the Vendor shall 
immediately ship a conforming load of replacement Rock Salt, or at agencies’ 
option to issue a refund consistent with the dollar amount of original order. 

1.5.10.  Damages:  Governmental units reserve the right to take action against Vendor 
delivery failure as follows: 

Liquidated Damages: From December 1 through May 1 of the current season, if 
the Vendor is unable to make delivery within the authorized delivery time, the 
governmental units shall assess and have the right to retain as Liquidated 
Damages, and not as a penalty, 5 percent per working day on the undelivered 
portion of the order, but not to exceed 50 percent of the total order.  
Governmental units and Vendor agree that at the time of contracting, the amount 
of actual damages is uncertain.  Governmental units and Vendor further agree 
that the amount of Liquidated Damages in this Section is reasonable and bears 
relation to the damages which may be sustained in the event of a breach.  

Delivery Failure Damages:  If after seven (7) days’ assessment of Liquidated 
Damage claims, a Vendor has still failed to deliver as required, governmental units 
reserve the right to immediately, and without notice to Vendor, take action to 
remedy Vendor failure.  This may include the termination of the order and 
purchase of salt from other sources, or other action to ensure ice control 
availability for public safety purposes. Note that any or all additional costs may 
be collected from the original Vendor, in addition to the applied Liquidated 
Damages. 

1.6. SUBCONTRACTING 







17 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Pricing 
V.24.1

2. PRICING

2.1 FORMAT OF PRICING: 

2.1.1 Vendor shall submit pricing in the line items on BidBuy, based on the terms and 
conditions set forth in section 1 of this Contract. 

2.1.2 Pricing shall be submitted in the following format:  Per the Unit of Measure on 
the line items in BidBuy. 

Pricing shall be submitted by entering the cost per unit of measure based on 
minimum order quantities on each line item in BidBuy.  Prices must include all 
costs shipped F.O.B. Destination and may not include any additional costs due to 
taxes (federal or otherwise) unless accompanied by proof the State is subject to 
the tax. 

2.2 TYPE OF PRICING:  The Illinois Office of the Comptroller requires the State to indicate 
whether the contract price is firm or estimated at the time it is submitted for obligation. 
The total price of this contract is estimated.  

2.3 EXPENSES ALLOWED:  Expenses are not allowed. 

2.4 DISCOUNT:  The State may receive a 0 % discount for payment within 0 days of receipt of 
correct invoice.  This discount will not be a factor in making the award. 

2.5 VENDOR’S PRICING:  For procurements conducted in BidBuy, the State may include in 
this Contract the BidBuy Purchase Order as it contains the agreed pricing. 

2.6 MAXIMUM AMOUNT:  This Joint Purchase Master Contract is an indefinite quantity 
contract. 



 

18 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Term and Termination 
V.24.1 

3. TERM AND TERMINATION 

3.1 TERM OF THIS CONTRACT:  This contract has an initial term commencing upon the last 
dated signature of the Parties to September 30, 2025. 

3.1.1 In no event will the total term of the contract, including the initial term, any 
renewal terms and any extensions, exceed ten (10) years. 30 ILCS 500/20-60 

3.1.2 Vendor shall not commence billable work in furtherance of the contract prior to 
final execution of the contract except when permitted pursuant to 30 ILCS 
500/20-80. 

The State may include in this contract the BidBuy Purchase Order as it contains the agreed 
term. 

3.2 RENEWAL: N/A 

3.3 TERMINATION FOR CAUSE:  The State may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, 
immediately upon notice to the Vendor if: (a) the State determines that the actions or 
inactions of the Vendor, its agents, employees or subcontractors have caused, or 
reasonably could cause, jeopardy to health, safety, or property, or (b) the Vendor has 
notified the State that it is unable or unwilling to perform the contract. 

If Vendor fails to perform to the State’s satisfaction any material requirement of this 
contract, is in violation of a material provision of this contract, or the State determines 
that the Vendor lacks the financial resources to perform the contract, the State shall 
provide written notice to the Vendor to cure the problem identified within the period of 
time specified in the State’s written notice. If not cured by that date the State may either: 
(a) immediately terminate the contract without additional written notice or (b) enforce 
the terms and conditions of the contract. 

For termination due to any of the causes contained in this Section, the State retains its 
rights to seek any available legal or equitable remedies and damages. 

3.4 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:  The State may, for its convenience and with thirty 
(30) days prior written notice to Vendor, terminate this contract in whole or in part and 
without payment of any penalty or incurring any further obligation to the Vendor. 

Upon submission of invoices and proof of claim, the Vendor shall be entitled to 
compensation for supplies and services provided in compliance with this contract up to 
and including the date of termination. 

3.5 AVAILABILITY OF APPROPRIATION:  This contract is contingent upon and subject to the 
availability of funds.  The State, at its sole option, may terminate or suspend this contract, 



 

19 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Term and Termination 
V.24.1 

in whole or in part, without penalty or further payment being required, if (1) the Illinois 
General Assembly or the federal funding source fails to make an appropriation sufficient 
to pay such obligation, or if funds needed are insufficient for any reason (30 ILCS 500/20-
60), (2) the Governor decreases the Agency’s funding by reserving some or all of the 
Agency’s appropriation(s) pursuant to power delegated to the Governor by the Illinois 
General Assembly, or (3) the Agency determines, in its sole discretion or as directed by 
the Office of the Governor, that a reduction is necessary or advisable based upon actual 
or projected budgetary considerations.  Contractor will be notified in writing of the failure 
of appropriation or of a reduction or decrease. 



 

20 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Standard Business Terms and Conditions 
V.24.1 

4. STANDARD BUSINESS TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

4.1 PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

4.1.1 Late Payment:  Payments, including late payment charges, will be paid in 
accordance with the State Prompt Payment Act and rules when applicable.  30 
ILCS 540; 74 III. Adm. Code 900.  This shall be Vendor’s sole remedy for late 
payments by the State.  Payment terms contained in Vendor’s invoices shall have 
no force or effect. 

4.1.2 Minority Contractor Initiative:  Any Vendor awarded a contract of $1,000 or more 
under Section 20-10, 20-15, 20-25 or 20-30 of the Illinois Procurement Code (30 
ILCS 500) is required to pay a fee of $15. The Comptroller shall deduct the fee 
from the first check issued to the Vendor under the contract and deposit the fee 
in the Comptroller’s Administrative Fund.  15 ILCS 405/23.9. 

4.1.3 Expenses:  The State will not pay for supplies provided or services rendered, 
including related expenses, incurred prior to the execution of this contract by the 
Parties even if the effective date of the contract is prior to execution. 

4.1.4 Prevailing Wage:  As a condition of receiving payment Vendor must (i) be in 
compliance with the contract, (ii) pay its employees prevailing wages when 
required by law, (iii) pay its suppliers and subcontractors according to the terms 
of their respective contracts, and (iv) provide lien waivers to the State upon 
request.   Examples of prevailing wage categories include public works, printing, 
janitorial, window washing, building and grounds services, site technician 
services, natural resource services, security guard and food services.  The 
prevailing wages are revised by the Illinois Department of Labor (DOL) and are 
available on DOL’s official website, which shall be deemed proper notification of 
any rate changes under this subsection.  Vendor is responsible for contacting DOL 
at 217-782-6206 or (https://labor.illinois.gov) to ensure understanding of 
prevailing wage requirements. 

4.1.5 Federal Funding:  This contract may be partially or totally funded with Federal 
funds.  If Federal funds are expected to be used, then the percentage of the 
good/service paid using Federal funds and the total Federal funds expected to be 
used will be provided to the awarded Vendor in the notice of intent to award.  

4.1.6 Invoicing:  By submitting an invoice, Vendor certifies that the supplies or services 
provided meet all requirements of this contract, and the amount billed and 
expenses incurred are as allowed in this contract.  Invoices for supplies 
purchased, services performed, and expenses incurred through June 30 of any 
year must be submitted to the State no later than July 31 of that year; otherwise 
Vendor may have to seek payment through the Illinois Court of Claims.  30 ILCS 
105/25.  All invoices are subject to statutory offset.  30 ILCS 210. 

4.1.6.1 Vendor shall not bill for any taxes unless accompanied by proof that the 
State is subject to the tax.  If necessary, Vendor may request the 



 

21 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Standard Business Terms and Conditions 
V.24.1 

applicable Agency’s Illinois tax exemption number and Federal tax 
exemption information. 

4.1.6.2 Vendor shall invoice at this completion of the contract unless invoicing is 
tied in this contract to milestones, deliverables, or other invoicing 
requirements agreed to in the contract. 

Send invoices to: 

Agency: Requesting Agency / Entity 

Attn: Requesting Agency / Entity 

Address: Requesting Agency / Entity 

City, State Zip Requesting Agency / Entity 

For procurements conducted in BidBuy, the Agency may include in this contract the 
BidBuy Purchase Order as it contains the Bill To address. 

4.2 ASSIGNMENT:  This contract may not be assigned or transferred in whole or in part by 
Vendor without the prior written consent of the State.   

4.3 SUBCONTRACTING:  For purposes of this section, subcontractors are those with contracts 
with an annual value exceeding $100,000 and who are specifically hired to perform all or 
part of the work covered by this contract.  Vendor must receive prior written approval 
before use of any subcontractors in the performance of this contract.  Vendor shall 
describe, in an attachment if not already provided, the names and addresses of all 
authorized subcontractors to be utilized by Vendor in the performance of this contract, 
together with a description of the work to be performed by the subcontractor and the 
anticipated amount of money that each subcontractor is expected to receive pursuant to 
this contract.  If required, Vendor shall provide a copy of any subcontracts within fifteen 
(15) days after execution of this contract.  All subcontracts must include the same 
certifications that Vendor must make as a condition of this contract.  Vendor shall include 
in each subcontract the Standard Illinois Certification form available from the State.  If at 
any time during the term of the Contract, Vendor adds or changes any subcontractors, 
then Vendor must promptly notify, by written amendment to the Contract, the State 
Purchasing Officer or the Chief Procurement Officer of the names and addresses, the 
expected amount of money that each new or replaced subcontractor will receive 
pursuant to the Contract, and the general type of work to be performed. 30 ILCS 500/20-
120. 

4.4 AUDIT/RETENTION OF RECORDS:  Vendor and its subcontractors shall maintain books 
and records relating to the performance of this contract and any subcontract necessary 
to support amounts charged to the State pursuant this contract or subcontract.  Books 
and records, including information stored in databases or other computer systems, shall 
be maintained by the Vendor for a period of three (3) years from the later of the date of 
final payment under the contract or completion of the contract, and by the subcontractor 



 

22 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Standard Business Terms and Conditions 
V.24.1 

for a period of three (3) years from the later of final payment under the term or 
completion of the subcontract.  If Federal funds are used to pay contract costs, the Vendor 
and its subcontractors must retain their respective records for five (5) years.  Books and 
records required to be maintained under this section shall be available for review or audit 
by representatives of  the procuring Agency, the Auditor General, the Executive Inspector 
General, the Chief Procurement Officer, State of Illinois internal auditors or other 
governmental entities with monitoring authority, upon reasonable notice and during 
normal business hours.  Vendor and its subcontractors shall cooperate fully with any such 
audit and with any investigation conducted by any of these entities.  Failure to maintain 
books and records required by this section shall establish a presumption in favor of the 
State for the recovery of any funds paid by the State under this contract or any 
subcontract for which adequate books and records are not available to support the 
purported disbursement. The Vendor or subcontractors shall not impose a charge for 
audit or examination of the Vendor’s or subcontractor’s books and records. 30 ILCS 
500/20-65. 

4.5 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence with respect to Vendor’s performance 
of this contract.  Vendor shall continue to perform its obligations while any dispute 
concerning this contract is being resolved unless otherwise directed by the State. 

4.6 NO WAIVER OF RIGHTS:  Except as specifically waived in writing, failure by a Party to 
exercise or enforce a right does not waive that Party’s right to exercise or enforce that or 
other rights in the future. 

4.7 FORCE MAJEURE:  Failure by either Party to perform its duties and obligations will be 
excused by unforeseeable circumstances beyond its reasonable control and not due to its 
negligence, including acts of nature, acts of terrorism, riots, labor disputes, fire, flood, 
explosion, and governmental prohibition.  The non-declaring Party may cancel this 
contract without penalty if performance does not resume within thirty (30) days of the 
declaration. 

4.8 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION:  Each Party to this contract, including its agents and 
subcontractors, may have or gain access to confidential data or information owned or 
maintained by the other Party in the course of carrying out its responsibilities under this 
contract.  Vendor shall presume all information received from the State or to which it 
gains access pursuant to this contract is confidential.  Vendor information, unless clearly 
marked as confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Illinois Freedom of 
Information Act, shall be considered public.  No confidential data collected, maintained, 
or used in the course of performance of this contract shall be disseminated except as 
authorized by law and with the written consent of the disclosing Party, either during the 
period of this contract or thereafter.  The receiving Party must return any and all data 
collected, maintained, created or used in the course of the performance of this contract, 
in whatever form it is maintained, promptly at the end of this contract, or earlier at the 
request of the disclosing Party, or notify the disclosing Party in writing of its destruction.  
The foregoing obligations shall not apply to confidential data or information lawfully in 



 

23 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Standard Business Terms and Conditions 
V.24.1 

the receiving Party’s possession prior to its acquisition from the disclosing Party; received 
in good faith from a third Party not subject to any confidentiality obligation to the 
disclosing Party; now is or later becomes publicly known through no breach of 
confidentiality obligation by the receiving Party; or that is independently developed by 
the receiving Party without the use or benefit of the disclosing Party’s confidential 
information. 

4.9 USE AND OWNERSHIP:  All work performed or supplies created by Vendor under this 
contract, whether written documents or data, goods or deliverables of any kind, shall be 
deemed work for hire under copyright law and all intellectual property and other laws, 
and the State of Illinois is granted sole and exclusive ownership to all such work, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing.  Vendor hereby assigns to the State all right, title, and interest 
in and to such work including any related intellectual property rights, and/or waives any 
and all claims that Vendor may have to such work including any so-called "moral rights" 
in connection with the work.  Vendor acknowledges the State may use the work product 
for any purpose.  Confidential data or information contained in such work shall be subject 
to the confidentiality provisions of this contract. 

4.10 INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY:  The Vendor shall indemnify and hold harmless the 
State of Illinois, its agencies, officers, employees, agents and volunteers from any and all 
costs, demands, expenses, losses, claims, damages, liabilities, settlements and judgments, 
including in-house and contracted attorneys’ fees and expenses, arising out of: (a) any 
breach or violation by Vendor of any of its certifications, representations, warranties, 
covenants or agreements; (b) any actual or alleged death or injury to any person, damage 
to any real or personal property, or any other damage or loss claimed to result in whole 
or in part from Vendor’s negligent performance; (c) any act, activity or omission of Vendor 
or any of its employees, representatives, subcontractors or agents; or (d) any actual or 
alleged claim that the services or goods provided under this contract infringe, 
misappropriate, or otherwise violate any intellectual property (patent, copyright, trade 
secret, or trademark) rights of a third party.  In accordance with Article VIII, Section 
1(a),(b) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, the State may not indemnify private 
parties absent express statutory authority permitting the indemnification.  Neither Party 
shall be liable for incidental, special, consequential, or punitive damages. 

4.11 INSURANCE:  Vendor shall, at all times during the term of this contract and any renewals 
or extensions, maintain and provide a Certificate of Insurance naming the State as an 
additionally insured for all required bonds and insurance.  Certificates may not be 
modified or canceled until at least thirty (30) days’ notice has been provided to the State.  
Vendor shall provide: (a) General Commercial Liability insurance in the amount of 
$1,000,000 per occurrence (Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage) 
and $2,000,000 Annual Aggregate; (b) Auto Liability, including Hired Auto and Non-owned 
Auto (Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage), in amount of 



 

24 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Standard Business Terms and Conditions 
V.24.1 

$1,000,000 per occurrence; and (c) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in the amount 
required by law.  Insurance shall not limit Vendor’s obligation to indemnify, defend, or 
settle any claims. 

4.12 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  Vendor shall act as an independent contractor and not an 
agent or employee of, or joint venturer with the State.  All payments by the State shall be 
made on that basis. 

4.13 SOLICITATION AND EMPLOYMENT:  Vendor shall not employ any person employed by 
the State during the term of this contract to perform any work under this contract.  
Vendor shall give notice immediately to the Agency’s director if Vendor solicits or intends 
to solicit State employees to perform any work under this contract. 

4.14 COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW:  The Vendor, its employees, agents, and subcontractors 
shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, rules, ordinances, 
regulations, orders, Federal circulars and all license and permit requirements in the 
performance of this contract.  Vendor shall be in compliance with applicable tax 
requirements and shall be current in payment of such taxes.  Vendor shall obtain at its 
own expense, all licenses and permissions necessary for the performance of this contract. 

4.15 BACKGROUND CHECK:  Whenever the State deems it reasonably necessary for security 
reasons, the State may conduct, at its expense, criminal and driver history background 
checks of Vendor’s and subcontractor’s officers, employees or agents.  Vendor or 
subcontractor shall immediately reassign any individual who, in the opinion of the State, 
does not pass the background check. 

4.16 APPLICABLE LAW:  

4.16.1 PREVAILING LAW:  This contract shall be construed in accordance with and is 
subject to the laws and rules of the State of Illinois. 

4.16.2 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY: The Department of Human Rights’ Equal Opportunity 
requirements are incorporated by reference.  44 Ill. Adm. Code 750. 

4.16.3 COURT OF CLAIMS; ARBITRATION; SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY:  Any claim against 
the State arising out of this contract must be filed exclusively with the Illinois Court of 
Claims.  705 ILCS 505/1.  The State shall not enter into binding arbitration to resolve any 
dispute arising out of this contract.  The State of Illinois does not waive sovereign 
immunity by entering into this contract.   

4.16.4 OFFICIAL TEXT:  The official text of the statutes cited herein is incorporated by 
reference.  An unofficial version can be viewed at (www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs.asp). 

4.17 ANTI-TRUST ASSIGNMENT:  If Vendor does not pursue any claim or cause of action it has 
arising under Federal or State antitrust laws relating to the subject matter of this contract, 



 

25 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Standard Business Terms and Conditions 
V.24.1 

then upon request of the Illinois Attorney General, Vendor shall assign to the State all of 
Vendor’s rights, title and interest to the claim or cause of action. 

4.18 CONTRACTUAL AUTHORITY:  The Agency that signs this contract on behalf of the State of 
Illinois shall be the only State entity responsible for performance and payment under this 
contract.  When the Chief Procurement Officer or authorized designee or State Purchasing 
Officer signs in addition to an Agency, he/she does so as approving officer and shall have 
no liability to Vendor.  When the Chief Procurement Officer or authorized designee or 
State Purchasing Officer signs a master contract on behalf of State agencies, only the 
Agency that places an order or orders with the Vendor shall have any liability to the 
Vendor for that order or orders.  

4.19 EXPATRIATED ENTITIES:  Except in limited circumstances, no business or member of a 
unitary business group, as defined in the Illinois Income Tax Act, shall submit a bid for or 
enter into a contract with a State agency if that business or any member of the unitary 
business group is an expatriated entity. 

4.20 NOTICES:  Notices and other communications provided for herein shall be given in writing 
via electronic mail whenever possible.  If transmission via electronic mail is not possible, 
then notices and other communications shall be given in writing via registered or certified 
mail with return receipt requested, via receipted hand delivery, via courier (UPS, Federal 
Express or other similar and reliable carrier), or via facsimile showing the date and time 
of successful receipt.  Notices shall be sent to the individuals who signed this contract 
using the contact information following the signatures.  Each such notice shall be deemed 
to have been provided at the time it is actually received.  By giving notice, either Party 
may change its contact information. 

4.21 MODIFICATIONS AND SURVIVAL:  Amendments, modifications and waivers must be in 
writing and signed by authorized representatives of the Parties.  Any provision of this 
contract officially declared void, unenforceable, or against public policy, shall be ignored 
and the remaining provisions shall be interpreted, as far as possible, to give effect to the 
Parties’ intent.  All provisions that by their nature would be expected to survive, shall 
survive termination. In the event of a conflict between the State’s and the Vendor’s terms, 
conditions and attachments, the State’s terms, conditions and attachments shall prevail. 

4.22 PERFORMANCE RECORD / SUSPENSION:  Upon request of the State, Vendor shall meet 
to discuss performance or provide contract performance updates to help ensure proper 
performance of this contract.  The State may consider Vendor’s performance under this 
contract and compliance with law and rule to determine whether to continue this 
contract, suspend Vendor from doing future business with the State for a specified period 
of time, or whether Vendor can be considered responsible on specific future contract 
opportunities. 



 

26 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Standard Business Terms and Conditions 
V.24.1 

4.23 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT:  This contract and all related public records 
maintained by, provided to, or required to be provided to the State are subject to the 
Illinois Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) notwithstanding any provision to the contrary 
that may be found in this contract. 5 ILCS 140. 

4.24 SCHEDULE OF WORK:  Any work performed on State premises shall be performed during 
the hours designated by the State and performed in a manner that does not interfere with 
the State and its personnel. 

4.25 WARRANTIES FOR SUPPLIES AND SERVICES: 

4.25.1. Vendor warrants that the supplies furnished under this contract will: (a) conform 
to the standards, specifications, drawing, samples or descriptions furnished by 
the State or furnished by the Vendor and agreed to by the State, including but 
not limited to all specifications attached as exhibits hereto; (b) be merchantable, 
of good quality and workmanship, and free from defects for a period of twelve 
months or longer if so specified in writing, and fit and sufficient for the intended 
use; (c) comply with all federal and state laws, regulations and ordinances 
pertaining to the manufacturing, packing, labeling, sale and delivery of the 
supplies; (d) be of good title and be free and clear of all liens and encumbrances 
and; (e) not infringe any patent, copyright or other intellectual property rights of 
any third party.  Vendor agrees to reimburse the State for any losses, costs, 
damages or expenses, including without limitations, reasonable attorney’s fees 
and expenses, arising from failure of the supplies to meet such warranties. 

4.25.2. Vendor shall ensure that all manufacturers’ warranties are transferred to the 
State and shall provide to the State copies of such warranties.  These warranties 
shall be in addition to all other warranties, express, implied or statutory, and shall 
survive the State’s payment, acceptance, inspection or failure to inspect the 
supplies. 

4.25.3. Vendor warrants that all services will be performed to meet the requirements of 
this contract in an efficient and effective manner by trained and competent 
personnel.  Vendor shall monitor performances of each individual and shall 
immediately reassign any individual who does not perform in accordance with 
this contract, who is disruptive or not respectful of others in the workplace, or 
who in any way violates the contract or State policies. 

4.26 REPORTING, STATUS AND MONITORING SPECIFICATIONS:  Vendor shall immediately 
notify the State of any event that may have a material impact on Vendor’s ability to 
perform this contract. 



 

27 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  Standard Business Terms and Conditions 
V.24.1 

4.27 EMPLOYMENT TAX CREDIT:  Vendors who hire qualified veterans and certain ex-
offenders may be eligible for tax credits.  35 ILCS 5/216, 5/217.  Please contact the Illinois 
Department of Revenue (telephone #: 217-524-4772) for information about tax credits. 

The Vendor will be required to report to Central Management Services – Bureau of 
Strategic Sourcing (BOSS) an annual report on the hiring of Veterans and Ex-Offenders, 
this report must be sent by September 30th of every year. The report shall be attached 
and sent to the following email address: CMS.BOSS.Sourcing@illinois.gov.



 

28 
State of Illinois IFB 
Contract:  State Supplemental Provisions 
V.24.1 

5. STATE SUPPLEMENTAL PROVISIONS 

 Agency Definitions 

5.1. “Chief Procurement Officer” means the chief procurement officer appointed pursuant to 
30 ILCS 500/10-20(a)(4). 

5.2. “Governmental unit” means State of Illinois, any State agency as defined in Section 1-
15.100 of the Illinois Procurement Code, officers of the State of Illinois, any public 
authority which has the power to tax, or any other public entity created by statute.  In 
addition, the governmental unit must have participated in the CY24-25 Illinois 
Department of Central Management Services Joint Participation Agreement Survey and 
additional participation in the resultant contract is not allowed.  

  Required Federal Clauses, Certifications and Assurances  

 Public Works Requirements (construction and maintenance of a public work) 820 ILCS 
130/4. 

 Prevailing Wage (janitorial cleaning, window cleaning, building and grounds, site 
technician, natural resources, food services, security services, and printing, if valued at 
more than $200 per month or $2,000 per year) 30 ILCS 500/25-60. 

 Agency Specific Terms and Conditions 

5.3. The Chief Procurement Officer for General Services makes this contract available to all 
governmental units. 

5.4. Vendor agrees to extend all terms and conditions, specifications, and pricing or discounts 
specified in this contract for the items in this contract to all governmental units. 

5.5. The supplies or services subject to this Contract shall be distributed or rendered directly 
to each governmental unit. 

5.6. Vendor shall bill each governmental unit separately for its actual share of the costs of the 
supplies or services purchased. 

5.7. The credit or liability of each governmental unit shall remain separate and distinct. 

5.8. Disputes between vendors and governmental units shall be resolved between the 
affected parties. 

5.9. All terms and conditions in this Contract apply with full force and effect to all purchase 
orders. 

 Other (describe) 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

June 19, 2024 

 

 

Subcontractor Work 
 

• Subcontractor Name: Matias Trucking, Inc. 
Amount to Be Paid: ~$3,000,000.00 
Address: 8755 W 82nd Pl, 2nd Floor, Justice, IL 60458 
Description of Work: hauling of bulk road salt 

 
• Subcontractor Name: Z Force Transportation, Inc. 

Amount to Be Paid: ~$2,000,000.00 
Address: 700 E Joe Orr Rd, Chicago Heights, IL 60411 
Description of Work: hauling of bulk rock salt 

 
• Subcontractor Name: Portland Trucking 

Amount to Be Paid: ~$400,000.00 
Address: 2061 S Harbor Dr., Milwaukee, IL 53207 
Description of Work: hauling of bulk rock salt 

 
• Subcontractor Name: Wiesbrock Trucking, Inc. 

Amount to Be Paid: ~$1,200,000.00 
Address: 1748 E 950th Rd, Leonor, IL 61332 
Description of Work: hauling of bulk rock salt 

 
• Subcontractor Name: N.E. Finch Co 

Amount to Be Paid: ~$1,900,000.00 
Address: 148 S Bloomingdale Rd, Suite 105, Bloomingdale, IL 60108 
Description of Work: hauling of bulk rock salt 

 
• Subcontractor Name: Starline Trucking 

Amount to be Paid: $400,000.00 
Address: 18480 W Lincoln Ave, New Berlin, WI 53146 
Description of Work: hauling of bulk road salt 

 
 
 
 

444 West Lake Street, Suite 2900 
Chicago, IL 60606 

 

TEL 312.807.2000  
WEB mortonsalt.com 



 

• Subcontractor Name: Regina Cartage LLC 
Amount to be Paid: ~$100,000.00 
Address: 1133 South State Street, Unit 403B, Chicago, IL 60605 
Description of Work: hauling of bulk road salt 

 
• Subcontractor Name: All Seasons Trucking 

Amount to be Paid: ~$350,000.00 
Address: 7750 Windy Ridge, Dubuque, IA 52003 
Description of Work: hauling of bulk road salt 

 
• Subcontractor Name: Beelman Logistics, LLC 

Address: 1 Racehorse Dr, Venice, IL 62205 
Amount to be Paid: $1,100,000.00 
Description of Work: hauling of bulk road salt 

 

WHERE SERVICES ARE TO BE PERFORMED – STOCKPILE LOCATIONS 
 

• Location where services will be performed: Calumet, IL 
Value of services performed at this location: ~$29,100,000.00 

 
• Location where services will be performed: Milwaukee, WI 

Value of services performed at this location: ~$4,325,000.00 
 

• Location where services will be performed: Ottawa, IL 
Value of services performed at this location: ~$7,650,000.00 

 
• Location where services will be performed: Peoria, IL 

Value of services performed at this location: ~$7,500,000.00 
 

• Location where services will be performed: Dubuque, IA 
Value of services performed at this location: ~$1,900,000.00 

 
• Location where services will be performed: Venice, IL 

Value of Service to be performed at this location: $4,725,000.00 
 
 
 
 

2 

 
444 West Lake Street, Suite 2900 
Chicago, IL 60606 

TEL 312.807.2000  
WEB mortonsalt.com 



 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
BOARD REPORT 

TO:  VILLAGE PRESIDENT & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
  CC: STEVE BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR  
FROM: NATHAN DARGA, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
SUBJECT: SEASONS SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
AGENDA: OCTOBER 21, 2024 REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

 

ITEM 
A Resolution Acknowledging Substantial Completion Triggering the One-Year Maintenance 
Period and Reduction of the Surety for Public Improvements for the Seasons at North Aurora 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
The Seasons Apartment project on the north / west side or Orchard Road developed by Fiduciary 
Real Estate is now substantially complete.  This project was approved as a PUD in ORD 22-07-
18-03.  The developer is requesting the reduction of the development security from $1,483,326 
to $247,221.12 as determined by the Village Engineer.  This will begin the one-year maintenance 
period.   
 



 

 RESOLUTION No. _____________________ 
 

RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
TRIGGERING THE ONE-YEAR MAINTENANCE PERIOD 

AND REDUCTION OF THE SURETY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR 
SEASONS AT NORTH AURORA 

 
 
 WHEREAS, FRED-North Aurora HC, LLC (the “Developer”) has substantially completed 
the public improvements associated with the Seasons of North Aurora apartment project (the 
“Public Improvements”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Developer has requested that the Village acknowledge substantial 
completion of the Public Improvements, authorize a reduction of the associated surety to the one-
year maintenance amount, and trigger the beginning of the one-year maintenance period; and 
 
 WHEREAS, WBK Engineering, LLC, the Village engineers overseeing the Development 
(the “Village Engineer”), confirms the substantial completion of the public improvements, the 
punch-list items, and the record drawings and recommends initiation of the one-year maintenance 
period.  
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and the Board of Trustees 
of the Village of North Aurora, as follows: 
 
 
 1. Recital set forth above and incorporated herein as the material findings of fact of the 
President and the Board of Trustees. 
 
 2. The Village hereby acknowledges substantial completion of the Public Improvements.   
 
 3. The surety for the Public Improvements is hereby authorized to be reduced from 
$1,483,326 to $247,221.12 as determined by the Village Engineer. 
 
 4. The one-year maintenance period shall begin from and after the passage and approval of 
this Resolution, during which time the Developer shall complete any punch-list items identified 
by the Village Engineer and satisfy all of the one-year maintenance obligations established by the 
North Aurora Code as a condition of acceptance of the Public Improvements, which acceptance 
and release of cash surety must be approved by the North Aurora Village Board after the one-year 
maintenance obligations have been satisfied. 
 
 5. This Resolution shall take immediate force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval as provided by law. 
 
 
 
 



 

 Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
this ____ day of ___________, 2024, A.D. 
 
 
 Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 
____ day of ___________, 2024, A.D. 
 

Jason Christiansen  _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
 

Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 
 

  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
  
 
 
 
 Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North 
Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this ____ day of __________, 2024, A.D. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
ATTEST:     Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jessi Watkins, Village Clerk 
 
 



 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
BOARD REPORT 

TO:  VILLAGE PRESIDENT & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
  CC: STEVE BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR  
FROM: NATHAN DARGA, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
SUBJECT: SEASONS (ZEPELAK DRIVE) SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
AGENDA: OCTOBER 21, 2024 REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

 

ITEM 
A Resolution Acknowledging Substantial Completion Triggering the One-Year Maintenance 
Period and Reduction of the Surety for Public Improvements for the Seasons at North Aurora 
(Zepelak Drive) 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
The Seasons Apartment project on the north / west side or Orchard Road developed by Fiduciary 
Real Estate is now substantially complete.  As part of this project, the developer completed 
Zepelak Drive connecting Deerpath to Orchard.  This project was approved as a PUD in ORD 22-
07-18-03.  The developer is requesting the reduction of the development security from 
$625,866.60 to $104,311.10 as determined by the Village Engineer.  This will begin the one-year 
maintenance period.   
 



 

 RESOLUTION No. _____________________ 
 

RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
TRIGGERING THE ONE-YEAR MAINTENANCE PERIOD 

AND REDUCTION OF THE SURETY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR 
SEASONS AT NORTH AURORA (ZEPELAK DRIVE) 

 
 
 WHEREAS, FRED-North Aurora HC, LLC (the “Developer”) has substantially completed 
the public improvements associated with Zepelak Drive (the “Public Improvements”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Developer has requested that the Village acknowledge substantial 
completion of the Public Improvements, authorize a reduction of the associated surety to the one-
year maintenance amount, and trigger the beginning of the one-year maintenance period; and 
 
 WHEREAS, WBK Engineering, LLC, the Village engineers overseeing the Development 
(the “Village Engineer”), confirms the substantial completion of the public improvements, the 
punch-list items, and the record drawings and recommends initiation of the one-year maintenance 
period.  
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and the Board of Trustees 
of the Village of North Aurora, as follows: 
 
 
 1. Recital set forth above and incorporated herein as the material findings of fact of the 
President and the Board of Trustees. 
 
 2. The Village hereby acknowledges substantial completion of the Public Improvements.   
 
 3. The surety for the Public Improvements is hereby authorized to be reduced from 
$625,866.60 to $104,311.10 as determined by the Village Engineer. 
 
 4. The one-year maintenance period shall begin from and after the passage and approval of 
this Resolution, during which time the Developer shall complete any punch-list items identified 
by the Village Engineer and satisfy all of the one-year maintenance obligations established by the 
North Aurora Code as a condition of acceptance of the Public Improvements, which acceptance 
and release of cash surety must be approved by the North Aurora Village Board after the one-year 
maintenance obligations have been satisfied. 
 
 5. This Resolution shall take immediate force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval as provided by law. 
 
 
 
 



 

 Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
this ____ day of ___________, 2024, A.D. 
 
 
 Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 
____ day of ___________, 2024, A.D. 
 

Jason Christiansen  _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
 

Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 
 

  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
  
 
 
 
 Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North 
Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this ____ day of __________, 2024, A.D. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
ATTEST:     Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jessi Watkins, Village Clerk 
 
 



 
Village of North Aurora   

Memorandum 
 

 
To: 

 
President and Village Board of Trustees 

 
From: 
 
CC: 

 
Jason Paprocki, Finance Director 
 
Steven Bosco, Village Administrator 

 
Date: 

 
October 21, 2024 

 
RE: 

 
IMLRMA Liability, Workers Compensation, and Other Coverage Renewal 

 
 
The Village has received its 2025 coverage renewal from the Illinois Municipal League Risk 
Management Association (IMLRMA).  This policy covers the Village’s workers’ comp, auto 
liability & comprehensive general liability, portable equipment, auto physical damage, and 
property coverage.  The total 2025 contribution is $401,275, which represents an increase of 
$34,814, or 9.5%, compared to the 2024 contribution.  The Village can elect to pay the 2024 
contribution in full by November 15, 2024 and receive a 1% early payment discount.  The 1% 
discount would save $4,012.75, which brings the 2024 contribution to $397,262.25. 
 
Similar to prior years, the Village can elect to participate in the minimum-maximum program.  
This option allows the Village’s contribution to vary based on claims experience.  The Village 
could see a 15% reduction in normal loss fund contributions if claims experience is favorable, 
but could result in a 30% increase in normal loss fund contributions if claims experience is 
unfavorable.  Using the 2025 normal contribution amount, the minimum-maximum program 
could result in a $43,037 savings, or up to $86,073 in additional costs compared to selecting the 
normal annual contribution.  Historically, the Village has not participated in this program due to 
the volatility.  During the last five completed policy years (2019-2023), the minimum-maximum 
program would have resulted in an additional $81,386 in contributions.   
 

#1 #2 #3 #4 #5 #6 #7 #8

YEAR
NORMAL 
ANNUAL 

CONTRIBUTION

EXCESS & 
ADMINISTRATION 
COSTS (28.5% of 
normal annual 
contribution )

NORMAL CLAIM 
LOSS FUND             
(#2 minus #3)

MINIMUM 
CONTRIBUTION (85% 
of normal loss fund 

plus excess & admin 
costs)

MAXIMUM 
CONTRIBUTION (130% 

of normal loss fund 
plus excess & admin 

costs)

POSSIBLE 
SAVINGS           

(#2 minus #5)

POSSIBLE 
ADDITIONAL 

COST                
(#6 minus #2)

2025 401,275 114,363 286,912 358,238 487,348 43,037 86,073

YEAR # CLAIMS PAID CLAIMS OUTSTANDING 
RESERVES TOTAL EXPERIENCE MINIMUM LOSS FUND MAXIMUM LOSS 

FUND

EST. SAVINGS or 
(ADDITIONAL 

COST)
2019 24 1,117,966 0 1,117,966 180,244 275,667 ($63,616)
2020 7 37,144 0 37,144 180,244 275,667 $31,808
2021 22 528,527 114,662 643,189 180,244 275,667 ($63,616)
2022 21 184,739 18,166 202,905 190,517 291,380 $21,233
2023 14 246,523 501 247,024 203,854 311,777 ($7,196)

2019-2023 estimated 5-year savings/(cost) ($81,386)

MINIMUM / MAXIMUM COMPARISON

CLAIMS HISTORY

CONTRIBUTION

 



The staff recommendation is to continue with the normal annual contribution amount for 2025 
and take advantage of the 1% early payment discount.  As noted, this would bring the Village’s 
2025 contribution to $397,262.25.  Based on the unpredictability of recent claims trends, we 
would not recommend participating in the minimum-maximum program. 





Memorandum 
 
To:   Steve Bosco, Village Administrator   

From:   Natalie Stevens, Community Relations Coordinator  

Date:    10/15/2024 

Re:       Animal Control Services Contract Renewal 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Village’s animal control services agreement with Kane County is set to expire. 
The Village entered into a previous intergovernmental agreement with Kane County 
for Animal control services on April 18, 2022 for one-year and approved a one-year 
renewal. The animal control services agreement allows the Village to contact Kane 
County regarding animals running at large, sick or injured dogs, small wild mammals 
such as skunks, raccoons, and bats, and provide housing and adoption services for 
animals in its custody. The costs for all services remain the same as the previous 
agreement. The agreement would be for two-years with a one one-year renewal 
option. 
 
Attached is a resolution, agreement, and the fee comparison/schedule for animal 
control services with Kane County. 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
 

RESOLUTION NO._________________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH 
THE COUNTY OF KANE FOR ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of North Aurora previously entered into an Intergovernmental 
Agreement with the County of Kane for Animal Control Services dated April 18, 2022 
(“Agreement”), and 
 
WHEREAS, the current agreement and renewals have expired and the Village of North Aurora 
has determined that it is in the best interests of the citizens of the Village to enter into a two- year 
agreement with an option to renew for one additional year. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village President and Board of Trustees of 
the Village of North Aurora as follows: 
 

Section 1.  The Village of North Aurora hereby acknowledges that it has been actively 
participating in animal control services with the County of Kane. 
 
Section 2.  The Village President is authorized to execute an Agreement for Animal 
Control Services. 
 
Section 3.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval as provided by law. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall take immediate effect from and after 
its approval. 
 
Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 
_______ day of __________________, 2024 
 
Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 
_______ day of __________________, 2024 
 

Jason Christiansen __________  Laura Curtis          __________ 

Mark Guethle   __________  Michael Lowery __________                 

Todd Niedzwiedz __________  Carolyn Bird Salazar __________ 

 
Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, 

Kane County, Illinois this ______ day of _________________, 2024, A.D. 
 
 

______________________________________ 
      Mark Gaffino, Village President 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Jessi Watkins, Village Clerk  
 



1 

 

AGREEMENT FOR ANIMAL CONTROL HOUSING AND SERVICES 

 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 

_____ day of _______________, 2025  by and between the COUNTY OF KANE, a body politic 

and corporate, and the __________________________, an Illinois municipal corporation. 

 

WHEREAS, the County of Kane ("Kane County") is a body politic and corporate, duly 

organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Illinois; and 

 

WHEREAS, the __________________________ ("Municipality") is an Illinois municipal 

corporation; and 

 

WHEREAS, Kane County pursuant to the Animal Control Act, 510 ILCS 5/1 et seq. (the "Act") 

has certain rights, duties and obligations with respect to rabies control and registration of dogs 

and cats on a county-wide basis, and also has primary responsibility for animal control activities 

within unincorporated Kane County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Municipality has the right, but not the obligation to control animal activities in 

its corporate limits, and has historically taken the primary responsibility for animal control 

activities within its corporate limits; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Kane County Board Ordinance 07-254, passed July 10, 2007, Kane 

County is ready, willing and able to contract with the municipalities of Kane  County to provide 

them with select animal control services, including but not limited to pick-up and housing of 

straying dogs running at large, sick or injured dogs and small, wild mammals such as skunks, 

raccoons, and bats and providing housing and adoption services for animals in its custody to the 

best of its ability at Kane County Animal Control (“Animal Control”), located at 4060 Keslinger 

Road, Geneva, IL, (the "Facility") the Kane County; and 

 

WHEREAS, All cruelty or animal related investigations are the responsibility of the municipality 

in incorporated areas and Kane County Animal Control agrees to provide advice for such cases 

where requested.  Kane County Animal Control is tasked with the primary responsibility for any 

and all handling of these types of cases in unincorporated Kane County; and 

 

WHEREAS, all requests for service must be made to the Animal Control Administrator or its 

designee from the Municipality’s police department or Municipal Official authorized to request 

service on behalf of the Municipality.  All Municipalities without police at all hours will provide 

Kane County Animal Control with an after-hours person to be contacted for approval; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties have a mutual interest in long term planning for straying animal control 

services in Kane County; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VII Section 10 of the Constitution of the State of Illinois and 

Section 3 of the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/3, units of local 

government are authorized and empowered to enter into agreements to obtain and share services 

and to exercise jointly or transfer any powers or functions not prohibited  by law; and 



2 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Chairman of the Kane County Board has heretofore been authorized pursuant to 

Resolution to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the 

Municipality as herein provided; 

 

NOW, THERFORE the COUNTY OF KANE and the __________________________ do 

hereby agree as follows: 

 

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. 

The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Agreement are hereby incorporated 

herein as if fully set forth. 

 

Section 2. Pickup Service Provided. 

Upon a request made to the Animal Control Administrator or its designee from the 

Municipality’s police department or Municipal Official authorized to request service on behalf of 

the Municipality, Animal Control will provide pickup service for straying dogs found within the 

limits of the Municipality, and for pickup of animals from locations where a forcible entry and 

detainer action results in an eviction conducted by the Kane County Sheriff, and shall transport 

them to the Facility or another County designated animal shelter for a service fee to be paid to 

the County as provided in Section 5-49(a) of the Kane County Code. 

 

Section 3. Complaint Calls - Response. 

The Kane County Animal Control Department will respond to complaint calls, as provided in 

Section 5-49(a) of the Kane County Code, to assist the Municipality's police department (or 

appropriate Municipal officials if no police department exists), for dogs running at large, and 

sick or injured wildlife outside of a building or structure within the limits of the Municipality and 

shall transport them to the Facility or another County designated animal shelter. The service fee 

to be paid to the County shall be that shown on Exhibit A.  In the event that a call is placed to 

the Kane County Animal Control Department for pickup services after the hours of 8 pm on 

weekdays and all day on weekends, the Municipality shall make its best effort to contact the 

Kane County Animal Control Department to advise of any call offs as soon as possible in the 

event of an owner reclaiming a lost animal or other similar event.  The foregoing is meant to 

eliminate the need for Kane County Animal Control Department staff to travel and incur 

unnecessary expenses during non-working hours.  Additionally, in the event the Municipality 

does not have a police department, the Municipality shall provide Kane County Animal Control 

with contact information for individuals who may be contacted outside of normal business hours 

who shall have authority to make determinations concerning the use of services under this 

Agreement.  Should the Kane County Animal Control Department face unexpected budgeting 

concerns rendering the services described herein impossible to provide at the fees described 

herein, upon formal written notice by the Kane County Animal Control Administrator, the 

parties may renegotiate the financial terms of this Agreement.  If the parties are unable to reach 

an agreement as to such renegotiation, any party may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days' 

written notice. 

 

 

 



3 

 

Section 4. Vicious or Dangerous Dogs. 

The Kane County Animal Control Department shall cooperate with the police department of the 

Municipality in responding to complaints relating to vicious or dangerous dogs at the 

Municipality’s request. The Municipality agrees to release all documents related to the pending 

investigation to Animal Control via fax or email.  All complaints and proceedings shall be 

handled as provided in Sections 15 and 15.2 of the Act. 

 

Section 5. Invoices for Services. 

Kane County shall invoice the Municipality for services provided at the end of each month and 

the Municipality shall remit payment to Kane County in full within thirty (30) days. The County 

invoice shall, at a minimum, specify the dates of service, particulars regarding the animal 

serviced and the types of services rendered.  The County shall retain the right to limit, suspend, 

or terminate services to the Municipality if it shall omit to pay any fees within sixty (60) days of 

receipt of the County's invoice therefore. All fees for services shall be deposited by the County 

as set forth in Resolution 06-330. 

 

Section 6. Termination of prior Agreements; Waiver of Fees. 

Upon the effective date of this Agreement, any and all prior agreements between Kane County 

and the Municipality are hereby terminated and abrogated. 

 

 

Section 7. Fees and Charges to Individual Owners. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit the right of Kane County or the 

municipality to increase or impose any fees or charges to individual owners as permitted or 

provided by law. 

 

Section 8. Effective Date; Termination. 

This Agreement shall commence upon the affixing of the last signature of any officer required to 

sign this Agreement, which date shall be deemed the "Effective Date." This Agreement shall 

remain in full force and in effect until ________________ (2 years from date approved) with a 

one one-year renewal option. The Municipality shall notify the County in writing, not less than 

60 days prior to the expiration date, of its intent to exercise each renewal option. 

 

Section 9. Additional Agreements. 

The Parties agree to meet to work towards a long-term solution to the regional issues of animal 

control.  To that end, the County will assist the Municipality cooperatively with Metro West to 

participate in developing a plan to meet specific anticipated demand for animal control services 

due to municipal growth.  Failure by the Municipality to participate in good faith in said 

meetings shall be a breach of the terms of this agreement by the Municipality.  The Municipality 

must provide the Administrator of Kane County Animal Control with the names and telephone 

contact information of no fewer than two individuals at the Municipality who shall serve as the 

point of contact for issues relating to this Agreement, logistical issues, and billing concerns.   

 

In order to best educate the public about the procedures for reporting straying animals and 

in an effort to reduce time or confusion associated with such calls for assistance, the parties 

agree to publish a statement on their respective websites explaining the correct steps for 



4 

 

members of the public to take when reporting a straying animal.  Each Party shall provide 

a hyperlink to the website of the other, in order to direct users to the proper point of 

contact.  The statement posted must contain the following language:  

 

Depending on where you live in Kane County, you may be served by your local 

animal control facility, your police department, a state agency, or Kane County 

Animal Control.  In order to handle your concern in the most efficient manner, first 

determine whether you live in an incorporated or unincorporated area of Kane 

County to make sure you contact the appropriate agency. 

 

 

If you live in an incorporated village, town, or city: 

For concerns, complaints, and stray animals, contact your police department or 

town hall first.  The police will handle the matter, and will contact Kane County 

Animal Control for assistance when necessary.  If you are a resident of Elgin or 

Aurora, please contact your city’s animal control facility first.   

 

If you live in an unincorporated area of Kane County: 

Your concerns, complaints and stray animal control are handled by Kane County 

Animal Control.  Please call 630-232-3555.    

 

Section 10. Service Provision Subject to Shelter Capacity. 

The County shall reserve 30% of the animal shelter capacity for the exclusive use of the County 

for provision of services to residents of unincorporated Kane County and for its use for provision 

of County-wide animal bite investigation services. If, at any time, in the opinion of the Kane 

County Animal Control Administrator, animals in the shelter from the Municipality and other 

municipal contract-holders constitute more than 60% but less than 70% of total shelter capacity, 

the Administrator shall notify the Municipality as provided for in Section 12 of this Agreement. 

If, at that time, in the opinion of the Kane County Animal Control Administrator, animals in the 

shelter from the Municipality and other municipal contract-holders has reached 70% of the total 

shelter capacity, the Administrator shall notify the Municipality that Animal Control services for 

new additional animals are being suspended and for what time period they shall be suspended to 

the Municipality and to all other municipal contract-holders. In the event of service suspension, 

the County shall work with the Municipality to identify and obtain animal control services from 

other service providers in the geographic area, but it shall be the sole responsibility of the 

Municipality to secure such services for its residents during the service suspension period, and 

the County shall have no obligation, responsibility or liability to the Municipality for animal 

control services except as provided by other applicable law. Animal Control services shall be 

reinstated when the Animal Control Administrator determines that the unused shelter capacity 

has exceeded 30% for two consecutive weeks. 

 

  

Section 11. Indemnification. 

The Municipality shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Kane County and its 

officers, agents, and employees of and from any and all claims, demands, suits at law or in 

equity, of any kind and manner, which in any way occur or arise in connection with Kane 



5 

 

County's services or facilities provided pursuant to this Agreement, except as to claims of 

negligence, intentional, willful or wanton acts committed by the County and its officers, agents 

and, employees and/or to the extent prohibited by law or public policy. In the event of a claim 

being made by the County under this Section, the County shall be entitled to be defended by 

counsel of its own choosing, and the Municipality shall pay any reasonable attorneys' fees and 

expenses incurred by the County in connection therewith. 

 

Section 12. Mutual Respect Adherence and Penalties. 

Kane County Animal Control (KCAC) and Municipality agree that mutual respect between the 

KCAC director and personnel, and Municipal officers and personnel, is integral to the intended 

and productive effectuation of the Animal Housing Contract.  Behaviors that contribute to a 

hostile, humiliating and/or intimidating work environment, including abusive language or 

behavior, or denigration via any type of media source (including social media), are unacceptable 

and will not be tolerated.  An employee who believes they he/ she/ they were subjected to such 

behavior shall raise his/ her/ their concerns with an appropriate manager or supervisor as soon as 

possible, but no later than eight (8) days from the most recent occurrence(s). An employee who 

seeks to formally pursue the matter must file a written complaint which identifies the behaviors, 

including specific examples believed to cause the hostile, humiliating, and/or intimidating work 

environment.  This must also include time and date of occurrence and the name of person spoken 

with, including badge or other identification number if appropriate.  An investigation will be 

conducted and reviewed by the Administrator or other approved representative of KCAC, with 

assistance from the State’s Attorney,  who will provide a recommendation whether disciplinary 

actions are warranted and the level of severity taken.  The Municipality will then be notified of 

the determination.   The three levels of disciplinary action are: 1) written warning to the head of 

the department/municipality; 2) suspension of Animal Control services for a time of no less than 

one (1) month; or, in extreme cases, 3) termination of the Animal Housing Contract. Progressive 

discipline will be used unless the event is egregious and warrants an immediate cancelation of 

the contract. 

 

Section 13. Notices. 

Any notices permitted or required to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed given if 

sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by personal delivery to the person to who it is 

addressed, to the following: 

 

Main To 

 Animal Control Administrator  

 Kane County Animal Control 

 4060 Keslinger Rd. 

 Geneva, IL 60134 

 

 With a copy to: 

 County of Kane 

 

 Kane County Government Center 

 719 South Batavia Avenue - Building A - 2nd Floor Geneva, IL 60134 

 Attention: County Board Chairwoman 



6 

 

 

 With a copy to: 

 States Attorney, Chief of the Civil Division  

 100 South Third Street, 4th Floor 

 Geneva, IL 60134 

 

 If to the Municipality: 

 

 PLEASE ADD REQUIRED CONTACT HERE 

 

After Hours (8pm – 6:59am weekdays and weekends) Contact for Municipality: 

 

 PLEASE ADD REQUIRED CONTACT HERE 

 

Until notice of change of address is given in the manner provided. Notice by fax transmission or 

email communication shall not be sufficient unless required by an applicable statute. 

 

Section 14. Severability. 

If any provision, clause or section of this Agreement shall be ruled or held invalid by any Court 

of competent jurisdiction, then and in such event such finding of invalidity shallnot affect the 

remaining provisions of this Agreement which can be given effect without such invalid 

provisions and to that end to provisions of this Agreement are Severable. 

 

Section 15. Entire Agreement of the Parties. 

This Agreement, and any ordinances or resolutions incorporated herein by reference or by 

operation of law constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and no modifications by course of 

conduct or oral agreement shall be valid unless reduced to writing and duly adopted by the Kane 

County Board and the Municipality. 

 

Section 16. Binding Effect; Successors' Assignment. 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the respective parties hereto, and their lawful successors 

in interest, except that Kane County shall not assign performance of this Agreement to another 

unit of local government without the written consent of the Municipality. 

 

WHEREFORE, the parties have caused this Agreement to be signed as of the date and year first 

above written. 

 

COUNTY OF KANE 

 

By:_________________ 

Corinne Pierog County Board Chairman 

 

 

ATTEST:__________________ 

John A. Cunningham 

Kane County Clerk 



7 

 

 

MUNICIPALITY 

 

Municipality: ____________________ 

Signature:_____________________ 

Date:_________________________ 



Appendix A

Service Fee

Pick up per animal (7:00am - 7:59pm) $20.00

Boarding per animal/per day/Maximum charge $70 $12.00

Vaccination for distemper per animal $12.00

Euthanasia per dog/cat animal ≤ 30 pounds $35.00

Euthanasia per dog/cat animal ˃ 30 pounds $55.00

Rabies observation (includes euthanasia fee) ≤ 30 pounds $150.00

Rabies observation (includes euthanasia fee) ˃ 30 pounds $175.00

Specimen pick up $50.00

Specimen prep $60.00

Eviction - cost includes pickup charges and 7 Day MAX boarding (Per Animal) $110.00

After Hours Pick up (8:00pm - 6:59am) $175.00

After Hours Call Out with NO PICKUP (8:00pm - 6:59am) $100.00

Average cost per stray animal impounded $116.00

2025 Kane County Fee Schedule for Municipalities



 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

BOARD REPORT 

TO:  VILLAGE PRESIDENT & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

  CC: STEVE BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR  

FROM:  MIKE TOTH, BUSINESS SERVICES MANAGER 

SUBJECT: TOBACCO CODE UPDATES  

AGENDA: OCTOBER 21, 2024 REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING  

 

ITEM 

An Ordinance amending Chapter 5.40 of the North Aurora Municipal Code regarding the 
Regulation and Inspection of Tobacco in the Village of North Aurora 
 
DISCUSSION 

 

The Village routinely revisits code provisions to ensure the policies and procedures in 
place are aligned with current practice and with that of other regulatory agencies.  The 
following list is a summation of the changes:  
 

• Create a definition for Alternative Tobacco Products and regulate them in the 
same manner as tobacco products.  

• Increase the tobacco license fee from $105.00 to $150.00. This fee has remained 
the same since 2008. 

• Increase the age to purchase and possess tobacco products and alternative 
tobacco products from eighteen (18) to twenty-one (21) years of age to align with 
state law. 

 
Staff presenting the draft amendments for feedback at the August 19, 2024 Committee of 
the Whole meeting. The Village Board was supportive of the proposed amendments to 
the Tobacco Code.  
 

 



 

 
  

 

 
 

 

 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

Ordinance No. ___________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________  

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 5.40 OF THE NORTH AURORA 

MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE REGULATION AND INSPECTION OF  

TOBACCO IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Adopted by the 

Board of Trustees and President 

of the Village of North Aurora 

this ____ day of __________, 2024 

 

 

 

Published in Pamphlet Form 

by authority of the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, 

this ____ day of __________, 2024 

by ________________________________. 

 

 

 

Signed _____________________________________ 

 

 

 



 

 
  

ORDINANCE No.__________________ 

  

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 5.40 OF THE NORTH AURORA 

MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE REGULATION AND INSPECTION OF  

TOBACCO IN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

1. Chapter 5.40 of Title 5 of the North Aurora Municipal Code is hereby amended to 

read as follows: 

  

5.40.010 Definitions. 

The following definitions shall apply to this chapter:  

“Alternative Tobacco Product” means any "alternative nicotine product" as defined under 

the Illinois Prevention of Tobacco Use by Minors and Sale and Distribution of Tobacco Products 

Act (“the Act”), as amended from time to time, specifically including electronic cigarettes or e-

cigarettes. 

"Licensee" means any person who has filed a duly completed application for a license to 

sell tobacco products or alternative tobacco products in the village, which application is 

approved, on behalf of the individual applicant or any person desiring to sell tobacco products in 

the village, and the term shall include, if the applicant has applied for the license on behalf of 

another person, that person on whose behalf the license application has been filed.  

“Nicotine” means any form of the chemical nicotine, including any salt or complex, 

regardless of whether the chemical is naturally or synthetically derived. 

"Self-service display" means a display that permits a consumer to remove a tobacco product 

without the retailer's direct assistance. Self-service displays are also sometimes known as 

merchandisers and appear in many different shapes and sizes and are usually placed near cash 

registers and provide direct access to tobacco products by the consumer.  

"Tobacco product" means any product containing or made from tobacco as defined in the 

Act. 

"Vending machine" means any mechanical, electric or electronic, self-service device which, 

upon insertion of money, tokens or any other form of payment, dispenses tobacco products.  

5.40.020 License required—Expiration and renewal. 

A. No person shall sell or offer for sale at retail, give away, deliver or keep with the intention 

of selling at retail, giving away or delivering tobacco products or alternative tobacco 

products within the village without having first obtained a valid tobacco license from the 

village for each location in which tobacco products or alternative tobacco products are sold.  



 

 

 

     

 
  

B. The license shall expire each year and shall be renewed annually on or before June 1st and 

must be renewed on or before that date annually.  

5.40.030 License application—Issuance—Fee. 

A. Any person desiring to sell, have for sale, offer for sale, give away, or deliver tobacco 

products or alternative tobacco products shall make application or cause an application to be 

made for a license for that purpose to the village administrator.  

B. No license shall be issued or renewed to or on behalf of the following:  

1. A person who is indebted to the village or other governmental entity for payment of 

any fees, charges, bills or taxes that are due and have remained unpaid for more than 

forty-five (45) days;  

2. A person who has been convicted of a felony under federal or state law;  

3. A person who has been convicted of a violation of any federal, state, or local law 

concerning the possession or sale of tobacco or tobacco products or has forfeited a 

bond to appear in court to answer any charges for such a violation;  

4. A person who, within one year of application for a tobacco license, has been convicted 

of, pled guilty to, or been placed on supervision for any tobacco related offense;  

6. A person who does not own the premises for which a license is sought or who does not 

have a valid, signed lease thereon for the full period for which the license is to be 

issued.  

C. Any licensee who has been convicted of a felony under any federal or state law, any 

misdemeanor in which tobacco products were involved or any violation listed in subsections 

(1) through (6) above shall notify village administrator of such conviction within thirty (30) 

days after the sentencing for the conviction.  

D. The tobacco license shall be in addition to any other license required by the village.  

E. An annual fee of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) shall be charged for each tobacco 

license to offset the cost of the administration of this chapter.  

F. Any person making an application on behalf of a person selling tobacco products or 

alternative tobacco products in the Village of North Aurora shall be presumed to have 

authority to make such application to sell tobacco products and alternative tobacco products.  

5.40.040 Inspection of tobacco products. 

It shall be the duty of all persons selling or offering for sale any tobacco products or 

alternative tobacco products to permit inspection of the premises where the tobacco products or 

alternative tobacco products are sold at reasonable times during normal business hours as a 

condition of any license issued pursuant to this Chapter. The village shall have the authority to 

inspect as to the placement and control of vending machines pursuant to Section 5.40.120, and 

the placement and control of self-service displays pursuant to Section 5.40.130.  



 

 

5.40.050 Sales to minors prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful for any person, including any licensee, to sell, offer for sale, give away 

or deliver tobacco products or alternative tobacco products to any person under the age of 

twenty-one (21) years.  

Each licensee, or his or her agent, is responsible to determine that all sales of tobacco 

products or alternative tobacco products comply with this section by requesting of any person 

desiring to purchase tobacco products or alternative tobacco products are checking an 

identification document issued by a governmental agency which contains the date of birth and 

picture of the purchaser and which states that the person purchasing the tobacco or alternative 

tobacco product is not less than twenty-one (21) years of age.  

5.40.060 Purchase by minors prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of twenty-one (21) years to purchase 

tobacco products or alternative tobacco products or to misrepresent their identity or age, or to use 

any false or altered identification for the purpose of purchasing tobacco or tobacco products.  

5.40.070 Sales by persons under the age of eighteen (18). 

It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of eighteen (18) or for any person to 

permit any person under eighteen (18) years to sell tobacco products in the village unless the 

cash register electronically prompts the cashier to input the purchaser's date of birth. 

5.40.080 Possession by minors prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of twenty-one (21) years to possess or use 

any tobacco products or alternative tobacco products; provided that the possession or use of 

tobacco products or alternative tobacco products by a person under the age of twenty-one (21) 

years under the direct supervision of the parent or guardian of such person in the privacy of the 

parent's or guardian's home shall not be prohibited.  

5.40.090 Fines for possession and purchase by minor. 

Fines for possession and/or purchase of tobacco products or alternative tobacco products by 

a person under twenty-one (21) years of age shall be:  

A. Not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than seven hundred and fifty dollars 

($750.00) for violation of Section 5.40.060.  

B. Not less than twenty-five dollars ($25.00) nor more than seven hundred and fifty 

dollars ($750.00) for violation of Section 5.40.080.  

5.40.100 Signs required 

Signs informing the public of the age restrictions provided for herein shall be posted by 

every licensee at or near every display of tobacco products and on or upon every vending 

machine which offers tobacco products for sale in the village.  



 

 
  

Each sign shall be plainly visible and shall state:  

"THE SALE OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS TO PERSONS UNDER TWENTY-ONE 

YEARS OF AGE IS PROHIBITED BY LAW."  

The text of such signs shall be in red letters on a white background, said letters to be at 

least one inch.  

5.40.110 Sale of individual cigarettes prohibited. 

It shall be unlawful for any licensee or person to sell cigarettes individually.  

5.40.120 Vending machines. 

Tobacco products or alternative tobacco products may be sold through a vending machine 

only if such products are not placed together with any non-tobacco product, other than matches 

or lighters, in the vending machine, the vending machine is equipped with a manual, electric or 

electronic locking device controlled by the licensee so as to prevent its operation by persons 

under the age of twenty-one (21) years and the vending machine is in any of the following 

locations: 

A. Within line of sight of a licensee or person who has authority and responsibility to sell 

tobacco products or alternative tobacco products for the licensee;  

B. Places to which persons under 21 years of age are not permitted access at any time; 

C. Places where alcoholic beverages are sold and consumed on the premises and vending 

machine operation is under the direct supervision of the owner or manager.  

5.40.130 Self-service displays. 

Self-service displays of tobacco products or alternative tobacco products are prohibited, 

except where no one under the age of twenty-one (21) years is permitted to enter the room on the 

premises where a self-service display is located.  

5.40.140 Free samples. 

No person may distribute to or cause to be distributed, anywhere within the village any free 

samples of tobacco products or alternative tobacco products.  

5.40.150 Restriction on the location of licensed premises. 

No license shall be issued to sell, have for sale, offer for sale, give away, deliver or keep 

with the intention of selling at retail or giving away, any tobacco or tobacco products, nor shall 

any person sell, offer to sell, give away, or deliver tobacco or tobacco products to any person, 

regardless of age, on any premises located within one hundred (100) feet of a school, child care 

facility, or other recreational or educational facility used primarily by or for persons under the 

age of eighteen (18) years as measured from building to building. This subsection shall not be 

applicable to any business selling at retail any tobacco or tobacco products within one hundred 



 

 
  

(100) feet of a school, child care facility, or recreation or educational facility prior to the 

enactment of this chapter, or to any business that was licensed to sell tobacco or tobacco 

products prior to the construction of a school, child care facility, or recreational or educational 

facility within one hundred (100) feet of the licensee's premises.  

5.40.160 Penalty. 

Any person who is found to have violated any of the provisions of this chapter, unless 

otherwise indicated in this chapter, may be subject to any combination of the following:  

A. A fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than seven hundred fifty dollars 

($750.00) plus costs, which include but are not limited to, court reporter's fees, 

transcripts or records, attorney's fees, preparing and mailing notices and orders, and all 

other miscellaneous expenses incurred by the village; or  

B. Suspension of the license with or without conditions; or  

C. Revocation of the license.  

D.      Each day on which a violation continues shall constitute a separate violation.  

5.40.170 Additional cause for suspension or revocation. 

In addition to any violation of the requirements or prohibitions of this chapter, a license may 

be subject to suspension or revocation if:  

A. The licensee is in violation of applicable federal, state or local laws or regulations 

affecting the health and safety of the patrons or of the public generally.  

B. The licensee gave any materially false, fraudulent or untruthful information on the 

original or renewal application form.  

C. The business for which the license was obtained has been closed for business for a 

period of thirty (30) consecutive days, unless such closure is due to circumstances 

beyond the control of the licensee and the licensee is proceeding with due diligence, 

given all attendant circumstances, to reopen the business.  

D. The licensee becomes ineligible to obtain or hold a license.  

E. The licensee is delinquent on any fee, tax or other debt owed to the Village of North 

Aurora and the delinquency continues for 45 days or more.  

F. The licensee has engaged in any other act or omission which demonstrates the 

Licensee's inability to operate the business in accordance with applicable law.  

5.40.180 Revocation or suspension procedures. 

No suspension, or revocation shall be imposed except after a public hearing held by the 

village administrator or designee in accordance with the following:  

A. Notice of Revocation or Suspension. If reason to believe that a violation of any 

provision of this chapter exists the village administrator shall notify the licensee in 



 

 

     

 
  

writing by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the mailing address supplied by 

the licensee in the application, stating:  

1. The particular violation(s) of this chapter or other cause believed to have 

occurred;  

2. That suspension or revocation of the license is being considered; and  

3. The time, date and place that a hearing shall be held to determine whether a 

violation of this chapter or cause for suspension or revocation has occurred and, if 

so, whether the license shall be suspended or terminated.  

B. Hearing Procedure. The hearing shall be conducted by the village president or 

designee. The hearing shall be held not less than ten (10) business days after the notice 

of revocation or suspension has been mailed. At the hearing the village president or 

designee shall receive oral and written testimony. The hearing shall be conducted 

pursuant to the rules adopted in Illinois Administrative Procedure Act, Section 10-40 

(5) ILCS 100/10-40, and any other rules adopted by the village president which are not 

inconsistent therewith. A written record may be made of the hearing at the option of 

the licensee.  

C. Determination of Violation and/or Cause. The village president shall render a written 

decision and issue notice thereof to the licensee within five business days after the 

conclusion of the hearing either denying the suspension or revocation of license, 

upholding the suspension or revocation of license, or upholding the suspension or 

revocation of license upon modified terms and conditions. In case of suspension, the 

written order shall specify the period of suspension and/or the terms and conditions on 

which the suspension order shall be lifted upon remedial action taken by the licensee. 

The determination and order of the village president shall be final unless a timely 

appeal is filed.  

D. Notice of Appeal. A licensee may appeal a decision to revoke or suspend a license by 

filing a written notice of appeal with the village administrator within five business days 

after the licensee is given notice of the determination of revocation or suspension. A 

timely notice of appeal shall stay the suspension or revocation of the license. The 

licensee's notice of appeal shall set forth the grounds on which the suspension or 

revocation is challenged.  

E. Filing of Record on Appeal. The licensee shall have ten (10) business days from the 

notice of decision in which to file with the village administrator any written transcript 

and any and all documentation entered into evidence. The licensee may also file a 

written agreement or position statement within the same time period in which the 

record must be filed.  

F. Decision on Appeal. The appeal shall be considered by the corporate authorities of the 

village at the next regular board meeting after the record on appeal is filed. No 

additional evidence or testimony shall be heard. The appeal shall be decided on the 

basis of the written record alone. A written decision shall be made by the corporate 

authorities no later than the next regular board meeting following the board meeting at 

which the appeal is first considered.  



 

 

     

 
  

G. Deliberations. All deliberations on appeal shall be closed to the public unless otherwise 

required by law.  

H. Costs. The licensee shall pay the costs of these proceedings within thirty (30) days of 

notification of the costs. Failure to pay the costs within thirty (30) days of notification 

is a violation of this chapter and may be cause for fine, suspension, or revocation.  

5.40.190 Use of premises after revocation. 

When any license issued under this chapter is revoked, no license shall be granted to any 

person for the same business for a period of twelve (12) months thereafter.  

5.40.200 Publication. 

This chapter shall be published by the village clerk in pamphlet form.  

 

2.   No other portion of the Village of North Aurora Municipal Code is amended or 

modified by this Ordinance. 

 

3. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance or any part thereof is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid or ineffective 

by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness 

of the remaining portions of this Ordinance, or any part thereof. The Village Board of Trustees 

hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that anyone or more sections, subsections, 

subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases be declared unconstitutional, invalid or 

ineffective. 

 

4. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately after approval and publication 

as required by law.  

 

Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 

this _____ day of _______________, 2024, A.D. 

 

Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 

______ day of ________________, 2024, A.D.  

 

 

Jason Christiansen  _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 

 

Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 

 

Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 

 

 



 

 

 
 

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North 

Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _____ day of ___________, 2024, A.D. 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Mark Gaffino, Village President 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________   

Jessi Watkins, Village Clerk 

 

 



 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

BOARD REPORT 

TO:  VILLAGE PRESIDENT & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

  CC: STEVE BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR  

FROM:  MIKE TOTH, BUSINESS SERVICES MANAGER 

SUBJECT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY  

AGENDA: OCTOBER 21, 2024 REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING  

 

ITEM 
 
Resolution approving the Economic Development Strategy 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
As part of the 2022-2023 Strategic Plan, the Village Board identified the creation of an 
economic development plan as a key goal for the strategic facilitation of economic and 
business development activities.  The plan is to identify specific actions, priorities, and 
programs to enable the Village of North Aurora to achieve its economic development 
goals by building upon the Village’s economic assets and identifying new opportunities.   
In 2024, the Village held the 2024-2025 strategic planning workshop to specifically solicit 
the current Village Board’s status on economic development related issues with the 
intent of using this information to initiate the Economic Development Strategy. While the 
Comprehensive Plan and the 2022-2023 Strategic Plan declare the need for an 
economic development strategy and cite various plan objectives.  
 
At the July 15, 2024 Committee of the Whole meeting, staff presented information on the 
economic development incentive portion of the strategy for feedback. The Village Board 
provided comments on the draft of the economic development incentive portion and 
those comments were subsequently integrated into the draft document. Additional 
feedback on the economic development incentive policy and feedback on the remainder 
of the Economic Development Strategy would later be solicited from the Village Board at 
the October 7, 2024 Committee of the Whole meeting. The Village Board was supportive 
of the draft Economic Development Strategy. Only minor edits and formatting are 
reflected in the final draft.  
 
 



THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY  

 

 WHEREAS, the Village Board of Trustees has identified the creation of an economic 

development strategy as a key goal for the strategic facilitation of economic and business development 

activities; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the Village’s Comprehensive Plan and the 2022-2023 Strategic Plan have also 

declared the need for an economic development strategy; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the economic development strategy is to identify specific actions, priorities, and 

programs to enable the Village of North Aurora to achieve its economic development goals by building 

upon the Village’s economic assets and identifying new opportunities. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

North Aurora as follows: 

 

 1. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made material part of this 

resolution as the findings of the President and the Board of Trustees. 

 

 2. That the Village Board approves the Economic Development Strategy (attached hereto 

and referenced herein as Exhibit A) for the strategic facilitation of economic and business development 

activities.  

 

 3.  Staff is hereby approved to remove and replace any time sensitive information as 

needed. Any new goals or objectives will require approval from the Village Board.  

 

 4. This Resolution shall take immediate full force and effect from and after its approval. 

 

 Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 

_____ day of __________________, 2024, A.D. 

 

 Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 

_______ day of _________________, 2024, A.D. 

 

 Jason Christiansen  _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 

 Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 

 Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 

  

 Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North 

Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this   day of   , 2024 A.D. 

 

 

              

       Mark Gaffino, Village President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jessica Watkins, Village Clerk 

 



THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 

Exhibit ‘A’  

Economic Development Strategy 



 



 
Introduction 

 
The Village of North Aurora is in the heart of Chicago’s western suburbs in southeast Kane County, only 30 
minutes west of Chicago city limits. Coined “The Crossroads on the Fox”, North Aurora is located on the 
Fox River and enjoys direct access to I-88, IL Route 31, IL Route 25, IL Route 56, Randall Road, and Orchard 
Road. The proximity of these major suburban routes makes for easy access to Chicago’s metropolitan 
center and has created a hub for commerce. While supporting over 330 registered businesses, the Village 
of North Aurora still offers numerous opportunities for continued economic growth.  
 
The Village Board identified the creation of an economic development plan as a key goal for the strategic 
facilitation of economic and business development activities.  The plan is to identify specific actions, 
priorities, and programs to enable the Village of North Aurora to achieve its economic development goals 
by building upon the Village’s economic assets and identifying new opportunities.  
 
Additionally, the Village’s Comprehensive Plan recommends the Village establish a comprehensive 
economic development strategy that addresses marketing, financing, regulations and development 
review, incentives, and other factors as described in the Comprehensive Plan. The Economic Development 
Strategy was carefully crafted to fulfill recent economic development goals, while also being mindful that 
the Village has already adopted economic development policies included in the following documents:  
 

➢ Comprehensive Planning 
o 2023 Comprehensive Plan Update 

 
➢ Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Planning 

o Lincoln Highway/Route 31 TIF Redevelopment Plan (2002/2005/2009) 
o North Aurora United TIF Redevelopment Plan (2021) 

 
In 2024, the Village held an economic development workshop as part of the 2024-2025 strategic planning 
process to specifically solicit the current Village Board’s status on economic development related issues 
with the intent of using this information to initiate the Economic Development Strategy.  
 
 

Create and maintain a thriving economic environment for businesses and 

residents by attracting and maintaining a wide range of businesses throughout 

the community with an emphasis on targeted business uses. 

 
 



 

Contents 
          
 

Economic Development Incentive Policy       

  
Economic Incentive Requests – Funding Types…………………………………………………………………..1 
 
Economic Incentive Requests – Qualified Uses of Funding………………………………………………..2 
 
Economic Incentive Requests – Funding Policy………………………………………………………………….3 
 
Economic Incentive Requests – Request Process……………………………………………………………….3 
 

Tax Increment Financing Districts 
 
United TIF District……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..4 
 
Route 31/Lincolnway TIF District……………………………………………………………………………………….6 
 

Business Attraction 
 
Targeted Uses……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………8 
 
Available Properties Inventory………………………………………………………………………………………….8 
 
Available Building Space…………………………………………………………………………………………………..9  
 
Outreach Strategy…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….9 
 
Outreach Activity……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..9 
 
Economic Development Website……………………………………………………………………………………..10 
 
Advertising Campaign………………………………………………………………………………………………………10 
 

Business Retention 
 
Visitation Program………………………………………………………………………………………………………….11 
 
Surveying……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….12 
 
Business Promotion………………………………………………………………………………………………………..12 
 
Economic Development Partners……………………………………………………………………………………13 

 



1 
 

Economic Development Incentive Policy 
 
The goal of any economic incentive provided by the Village is to demonstrate a substantial public benefit in 
support of developments that create new jobs, eliminate blight, strengthen the employment and economic 
base of the Village, increase property values and tax revenues, create economic stability and attract 
businesses that the Village deems to be desirable.  
 

Economic Incentive Requests – Funding Types 
 
Sales Tax Reimbursement 
The Village receives 1% of the 6.25% State sales tax on general merchandise (or 1% of gross sales). The Village 
can use sales tax as an incentive to promote new growth through the reimbursement of the sales tax 
generated by the specific project.  
 
Amusement Tax Forgiveness 
A 3% amusement tax is levied on patrons of amusement places in the Village of North Aurora for admission 
to any facility and/or the use or rental of any facility, device, or equipment.  The Village can reduce, eliminate 
or reimburse the amusement tax to provide future financial stability to amusement businesses. 
 
Village Fee Reduction 
Building Permits. The Village collects fees for building permits, which are documents issued by the Village 
when an individual or company wants to engage in construction in the Village. The Village can reduce or 
eliminate building permit fees to reduce the upfront cost of a development project. 
 
Impact/Connection Fees. As a matter of policy, the Village collects payment of impact fees to defray the initial 
cost of public infrastructure. The Village can reduce or eliminate certain impact and/or connections fees to 
reduce the upfront cost of a development project. Some examples of Village impact and connections fees 
include water and sewer connection fees, traffic impact fees, public works fee or other fees associated with 
annexation agreements.  
 
Business License Fees. Although the Village generally cannot license a business (as a non-home rule entity), 
businesses in the Village are required to register their business annually. Additionally, some businesses are 
required to obtain a license for their business activities, such as liquor sales, tobacco sales and tattooing. 
These fees could be eliminated or reduced. Liquor license fees and business registration fees were waived 
during the pandemic.  
 
Property Tax Rebate 
Property tax is a tax based on the assessed value of real property, which the Village collects its proportionate 
share of annually from properties located in the Village. Other taxing districts also collect their proportionate 
share of property taxes based upon their respective tax rate. The Village’s proportionate share of property 
taxes is typically around 5%.  The Village can eliminate or reduce its property tax share or broker discussions 
with other respective taxing districts with higher shares of property taxes to incentivize certain development 
projects.  
 
Tax Increment Financing 
The Village’s Comprehensive Plan encourages the use of Tax Increment Financing to help accomplish the 
Village’s economic development objectives. When a TIF district is created, the property values for all parcels 
within the district are frozen, creating a base value. As development occurs and property values increase, the 



2 
 

overall value of the district increases as well. This new value that is created is called the increment, which is 
the difference between the current total value and the base value. The increment can be used as a financial 
incentive to encourage private investment and development by providing needed improvements, such as 
new roads and sewers, to attract private development, to assist existing businesses expand or improve their 
properties and for beautification efforts. The Village of North Aurora currently has two Tax Increment 
Financing Districts: the United TIF District and the Route 31/Lincolnway TIF District. 
 
Tax Increment Financing Grant Program (Façade Grant Program) 
The Village of North Aurora Tax Increment Financing Grant Program (NATIFGP) is designed to provide financial 
assistance for building and signage improvements to ultimately achieve visual improvement to properties 
located in the Route 31/Lincolnway TIF District and the United TIF District. Examples of eligible improvements 
include: 
 

• Brick cleaning, tuck pointing and restoration of original architectural features 

• Site landscaping and parking area improvements 

• Windows, doors, awnings and signage 
 

Qualified applicants are eligible to apply for grant funds equal to fifty (50) percent of the cost of improving 
their properties up to $20,000.00 and up to $10,000.00 (no match required) for sign improvements.  If funding 
for a desired project exceeds the qualified amount of NATIFGP funding, the Village may review the request as 
a general TIF incentive request.  
 

Economic Incentive Request – Qualified Uses of Funding 
 

Qualified Uses Qualified Expenses 

• General Retail 

• Automobile Sales 

• Places for Eating & Drinking 

• Entertainment Venues & Event Complexes 

• Lodging/Resorts 

• Mixed Use Development 

• Beautification Projects 

• Vacant Commercial Site Enhancement 

• New Construction  

• Existing Space Buildout  

• Property Acquisition  

• Property Assemblage 

• Infrastructure Improvements 

• Site Preparedness 

• Façade Improvements 

• Signage 

• Demolition 

Unqualified Uses Unqualified Expenses 

• Liquor Stores  

• Tobacco Shops 

• Gas Stations 

• Cannabis Dispensing Organizations 

• Convenience Stores 

• Establishments hosting video gaming 

• Residential* 

• Warehousing/Industrial* 

• Business Equipment  

• Payroll 

• Office Supplies 

• Furniture 

 

*Unqualified unless approved by Village Board by resolution waiving the requirements of this policy. 

 
 



3 
 

Economic Incentive Request - Funding Policy 
 

• Economic incentive requests for qualified expenses via this policy must be approved by the Village Board 
prior to the issuance of a building permit. Should a building permit not be required, the request must be 
approved prior to project commencement. 

 

• Economic incentive requests involving any rebate or share of the retailer’s occupational taxes received by 
the Village must adhere the to the statutory findings included in 65 ILCS 5/8-11-20 of the Illinois Municipal 
Code, all other State Statutes, federal regulations and Village Codes. 

 

• TIF incentive requests shall only apply to properties located in a TIF district and must adhere to the Illinois 
TIF Act, all other State Statutes, federal regulations and Village Codes. 

 

• All applications made requesting funds under the Tax Increment Financing Grant Program shall adhere to 
the grant guidelines.  

 

• Taxes or revenues historically received by the Village will not be reduced below the base year of an 
incentive. The Village shall reserve the right to consider historic averages when formulating the base year.  

 

• The Village will not accept requests made for front-loaded debt prior to a project starting. All TIF incentive 
funding shall only occur on a reimbursement basis from funds derived from net increases in tax increment 
associated with the project. 

 

• The Village Board has the right to refuse any incentive request regardless of the use, if deemed undesirable.  
 

• The Village Board may consider warehousing and industrial requests after formal presentation of incentive 
request and concept plan review. 

 

• All applicants shall be in good standing with the Village of North Aurora, having no open Village Ordinance 
violations or defaults in payments to the Village.  Any open Ordinance violations or defaults in payment will 
result in automatic disqualification.  

 

• Video Gaming may be allowed once incentive terms are complete or the incentive has been forfeited.   
 

• An unqualified use or development project seeking an incentive, where the terms of the policy do not allow 
for an incentive, may be reviewed by the Village Board.  Should the Village Board choose to grant the 
incentive, the Village Board may only do so by resolution waiving the requirements of this policy. 

 

Economic Incentive Request – Request Process 
 

Step # Action 

1 Financial incentive requests shall be submitted to Village staff. The request shall include 
documentation that identifies the nature of the request, rationale and justification for the 
request and the source of funding that is intended to be utilized as part of the project. 

2 Staff shall conduct an initial review of the submittal information to ensure the request 
qualifies for an incentive and the request meets the policy requirements. 

3 Staff shall follow up with further instructions or questioning. 
4 After review is completed by staff, the request is forwarded to the Village Board for review 

at a Committee of the Whole meeting for initial discussion. A formal presentation of the 
incentive request may be required of the applicant. 

5 If the Village Board agrees with the request, it shall be brought back to a future Village 
Board meeting for final consideration. 

 



4 
 

 
Tax Increment Financing Districts 

 
The Village of North Aurora currently has two Tax Increment Financing Districts; the United TIF District, 
which compromises of the TIF properties north of I-88 and the Route 31/Lincolnway District comprising of 
TIF properties south of I-88.  
 

United TIF District 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

United TIF District 

Established: 2021  
End Year: 2044 
Land Area: 267 Acres 
# of Parcels: 183  
Equalized Assessed Value: $28,886,996 (2023) 
Annual Incremental Revenue: $995,077 (2023) 



5 
 

 
 
United TIF District Action Plan 
 

Objective Action(s) Time Frame 

Assemble Block One 
properties to provide for 
the site's redevelopment. 

Acquire necessary properties for Block One development. 
Immediate/ 

Ongoing 

Facilitate redevelopment 
of the Block One site into 
a high-quality mixed-use 
development, as planned 

in the Comprehensive 
Plan, that capitalizes on 
access to the Fox River, 

Fox River Trail and 
Monroe Street. 

Explore opportunities for a business incubation program intended 
to promote entrepreneurialism and foster business growth. 

Initial 
development 

and/or 
developer 

negotiations 

Reserve space for pedestrian-oriented businesses to leverage local 
foot traffic and the Fox River Trail.  

Plan and promote outdoor special events to draw people to the 
Block One site. 

Once the Block 
One site is 
developed  

Encourage and support 
redevelopment of 

underutilized commercial 
properties adjacent to 

and near the Block One 
site and the intersection 
of IL Routes 31 and 56. 

Continue to monitor the local real estate market for property 
acquisition opportunities adjacent to and near the Block One site, 

primarily near the intersection of IL Routes 31 and 56 between 
Oak Street and John Street.  

Ongoing 

Solicit Village Board feedback on the acquisition of available 
properties adjacent to and near the Block One site, primarily near 

the intersection of IL Routes 31 and 56 between Oak Street and 
John Street. 

As needed 

Use Tax Increment 
Financing as a funding 

mechanism for:  
 

Private Redevelopment  

Update marketing literature highlighting TIF incentive 
opportunities intended for prospective developers and businesses. 

As needed 

Distribute marketing literature to all property and business owners 
located in the United TIF District. 

June 1st of each 
year 

Public Improvements & 
Beautification   

Evaluate use of Village-owned properties for public parking.  
Immediate/ 

Ongoing 

Work with the Fox Valley Park District to evaluate the use of Island 
Park, the Berman Tower site and the Sperry property to increase 

public parking and event space.   Ongoing 

Promote the proactive beautification of public property, right-of-
way and private property.    

Promote the availability 
and use of the Village’s 

TIF façade improvement 
program. 

Evaluate North Aurora Tax Increment Financing Grant Program 
(NATIFGP) to determine the program’s effectiveness of enhancing 

the character of commercial corridors. 

During Annual 
Budget 

planning 

Work with utility 
providers to coordinate 

the burying or relocation 
of overhead lines as 

roadway improvements 
or redevelopment occurs. 

 

Work with ComEd to determine comprehensive list of properties 
where powerlines can be buried.  

Ongoing 
Determine feasibility to bury or relocate overhead lines whenever 

a property develops or redevelops.  

Determine feasibility to bury or relocate overhead lines whenever 
an infrastructure project is planned. 

Budget for the burial of overhead powerlines. 
During Annual 

Budget 
planning 



6 
 

 
 

Route 31/Lincolnway TIF District 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Route 31 Lincolnway TIF District 

Established: 2002 
End Year: 2025 
Land Area: 152 Acres 
# of Parcels: 58 
Equalized Assessed Value: $13,324,916 (2023) 
Annual Incremental Revenue: $431,904 (2023) 



7 
 

 
Route 31/Lincolnway TIF District Action Plan 
 

Objective Action(s) Time Frame 

Prepare for the closeout 
of the                            

Route 31/Lincolnway TIF 
ahead of the August 2025 

expiration.  

Notice businesses and property owners of upcoming TIF 
expiration and provide literature highlighting TIF incentive 

opportunities. 
Immediately  

Create a TIF closeout report, which includes a summation of the 
remaining TIF funds. 

When 
needed 

Send notice to other taxing bodies and engage discussion 
regarding TIF funds. 

Complete any other mandatory TIF program closeout 
responsibilities.  

 



8 
 

Business Attraction  
 

The Village will prioritize a targeted approach to attracting private business investment in the community 
by following business attraction strategies and tactics to create awareness of the Village and what the 
community offers. 
 

Targeted Uses 
 

Staff will focus primarily on attracting businesses in the dining, lodging and entertainment sectors while 
also continuing efforts to attract retail businesses, car dealerships, anchor tenants and employment 
contributors. The following is a breakdown of the uses included in the dining, lodging and entertainment 
sectors: 
 

Dining Lodging Entertainment 
Employment 
Contributors 

Fast Food Restaurants Chain Hotels Sports Complexes 
Corporate 

Headquarters 

Fast Casual Restaurants Resorts 
Event Centers/Banquet 

Facilities 
Regional 

Headquarters 

Casual Dining 
Restaurants 

Boutique Hotels/Inns Venues Medical Centers/Uses 

High End Restaurants All-Suites 
Indoor Leisure Family 

Activities 
Call Centers 

Brewery/Brewpubs 
Conference Center 

Hotels 
Outdoor Leisure Family 

Activities 
Manufacturers 

 

The following table depicts high-level information used to classify each available commercial property:   
 

Use Property Size Zoning 

Fast Food Restaurant +0.5 – 1.0 Acres Permitted Use - All Business Districts 

Fast Casual Restaurant +1.0 – 1.5 Acres Permitted Use - All Business Districts 

Casual Dining Restaurant +1.5 – 2.0 Acres Permitted Use - All Business Districts 

Lodging +1.5 – 2.0 Acres Permitted Use – B-2, Special Use B-3 

Car Dealership +5 Acres Special Use – B-2 

Indoor Entertainment Facility  Varies Permitted Use – B-2, Special Use B-3 

Outdoor Entertainment Facility Varies Special Use – B-2, Special Use B-3 

 

 
Available Properties Inventory 

 

Staff will create an inventory map of all available commercial properties to help determine where the 
Village can accommodate targeted uses.  To identify appropriate properties, the inventory will utilize GIS 
parcel data, Illinois Department of Transportation traffic data and/or Village zoning information. The 
inventory will become a real-time inventory of properties with staff updating the information as the 
properties transact or when the underlying data changes.  
 

 



9 
 

Available Building Space 
 

Staff will maintain a subscription with a commercial real estate information provider for their real estate 
listing information and analytics to assist developers and potential businesses when evaluating space in 
the Village.   
 

Outreach Strategy 
  

 
 

Outreach Activity 
 

Staff will develop a list of targeted businesses by using relevant databases, association membership lists, 
and information obtained through networking activities.  The goal will be to promote the economic 
incentive opportunities and convey the unique benefits of locating their business in North Aurora. 

 

Cold Calling In Person Local Networking Marketing 

Regional Business 
Solicitation 

Business Walk-Ins 
Local Chambers of 
Commerce Events 

International Council of 
Shopping Centers 

Profile 

National Business 
Solicitation 

Local Lender 
Appointments 

Aurora Area 
Convention & Visitors 

Bureau Events 

Direct Mail – Marketing 
Literature 

Commercial Lenders 
Regional Lender 
Appointments 

Kane County EDO  
Email Blasts – 

Marketing Literature 

Development 
Companies 

Scheduled Corporate 
Appointments 

International Council of 
Shopping Centers 

Events 

North Aurora Economic 
Development Website 

Outreach Activity

Cold Calling In Person Networking Marketing

Identify Available Property or Space

Available Properties Inventory

Undeleveloped Commercial Land

Available Building Space

Commercial Real Estate Database Listings

Identify Targeted Use

Board Identified Uses

Dining, Lodging, Entertainment

General

Retail, Anchor Tenants, Employment Contributors



10 
 

 
Economic Development Website 

 

Staff will create an economic development website as an effective means to convey the information 
contained in the Economic Development Strategy. The website will be a positive first impression of the 
Village and provide accurate and relevant information. The information will be easily shared with a QR 
code.  
 

Advertising Campaign 
 

Staff will evaluate opportunities to advertise North Aurora as a positive place to do business on a local, 
regional and national platform. Staff will explore different local, regional and national means of advertising 
the Village and whether an advertisement campaign could prove to be a cost-effective means to highlight 
the business community, North Aurora as a community and as hub for commerce.  Staff will also explore 
the use of marketing firms to assist the Village with advertising efforts.  
 
The Aurora Area Convention and Visitors Bureau (AACVB) is a private, nonprofit organization dedicated 
to marketing and promoting the region as a premier overnight destination. The goal of the AACVB is to 
enhance the economic and environmental well-being of the region comprised of ten communities, 
including North Aurora. The Village contributes 90% of the 3% Hotel Tax collected from North Aurora hotel 
stays to the AACVB. Staff will maximize the marketing capacity of the AACVB to promote North Aurora as 
a destination on a local, regional and national platform.  
 
Lastly, staff will create profiles for the purposes of marketing North as a positive place to do business with 
companies whose digital media platforms reach an international/professional audience, such as LinkedIn 
and the International Council of Shopping Centers.  



 

11 
 

 
Business Retention 

 

The Village recognizes the value and importance of a strong and varied business community; as such, staff 
will take a multifaceted approach to business retention to preserve and enhance the Village’s business 
environment.  
 

Visitation Program 
 

The goal of the business visitation program will be to find ways to better assist the business community 
and learn more about their operations, products, and services so the Village can properly convey their 
value.  Staff will utilize the following guiding principles when targeting and meeting with the Village’s 
business community: 

 

 

Prioritize outreach efforts.

•Staff will prioritize targeted business meeting based upon predetermed criteria, such as: number 
of employees, business sector or location.

Meet with high level individuals.

•Staff will engage the Mayor and establish meetings with individuals with knowledge of local 
operations and have the ability to clearly effectuate change. 

Dont just survey.

•Staff will be conducting a seperate business survey program so the business visitation meetings 
should be productive and benecial to both the Village and the business.  

Be the Village's ambassador.

•Staff will be ready to educate and offer solutions to topics that might arise during the business 
visitation meetings and also be ready to share opportunities to connect them with other members 
of the business community, Village staff and other outside government agencies. 

Utilize economic development partners.

•Staff will be ready to convey opportunities offered by other outside economic development and 
goverment agencies. 

Convey positivity. 

•The future of North Aurora is bright so staff will convey positivity when highlighting the Village's 
accomplishments and provide direction on it's future.  



 

12 
 

Surveying 
 

Staff will survey North Aurora businesses with the intent of better assisting the business community. The 
businesses being surveyed, and the frequency of surveying will be planned prior to each release and be 
reevaluated afterwards for maximum program effectiveness. Some of the survey questions can also be 
used as an icebreaker during the business visits. The following is a list of sample questions that could be 
posed to the businesses:  
 

Survey Questions 

Are you satisfied with North Aurora’s public infrastructure (road condition, water quality, street lighting, 
stormwater/flood control, etc.)? 

Are you satisfied with Village service delivery (policing, snow removal, customer service, license fees, 
etc.)? 

Are there any additional services or infrastructure the Village could provide to assist you? 

Are you satisfied with the infrastructure and service delivery of non-Village entities (cellular/data service, 
road condition, trash removal, etc.)? 

Are there any businesses or service providers (currently not located in the area) that would be beneficial 
to you being in closer proximity (suppliers, etc.)? 

What programs or services do the city/county/state currently offer to help to make your company more 
competitive? 

What programs or services should the city/county/state offer to help make your company more 
competitive? 

 
Business Promotion 

 
Staff will engage the proper personnel and resources needed to proactively promote North Aurora’s 
business community. Most promotional activities can be executed rather quickly and are meant to be fun, 
engaging, and informative.  The following is a list of ideas that could be implemented:  

 
Resources Activities Anticipated Frequency 

Social Media 
(Facebook, Instagram & 

LinkedIn) 

National ‘Food or Product’ Day Posts Weekly - Biweekly 

New Business Spotlight Quarterly 

Business Awards & Anniversaries As Presented 

Holiday Posts Weekly - Monthly 

Generic Posts As Desired 

Print Media 
(Village Newsletter) 

New Business Spotlight Bi-Monthly 

Business Awards & Anniversaries As Presented 

Generic As Desired 

Village Website 
New Business Spotlight As Presented 

Business Awards & Anniversaries As Presented 

Community Sign 

National              Day Posts Weekly - Monthly 

New Business Spotlight Quarterly 

Business Awards & Anniversaries As Presented 

Holiday Posts Monthly 

Generic Posts As Desired 

Business Engagement 
Business Passport  As Desired 

Business Scavenger Hunts As Desired 



 

13 
 

 
Economic Development Partners 

 
The Village will continue to leverage existing resources of local, regional and national organizations to 
support commerce. Benefits may include access to capital through various grant opportunities, economic 
incentive programs and the promotion of tourism. 

 
Involvement Organizations 

Local 

Aurora Area Chamber of Commerce  

Batavia Chamber of Commerce  

Aurora Regional Hispanic Chamber of Commerce 

Aurora Area Convention and Visitors Bureau 

Kane County Economic Development 

Valley Industrial Association 

Waubonsee Community College Small Business Development 
Center 

Regional 

Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity  

Illinois Economic Development Association  

Illinois Tax Increment Association  

Intersect Illinois 

Illinois Small Business Development Centers 

National 
United States Department of Commerce 

United States Small Business Administration 

 
 



 

Memorandum 
 
To:         Mark Gaffino, Village President & Board of Trustees 

Cc:     Steven Bosco, Village Administrator  

From:  Brandon Tonarelli, Assistant Public Works Director / Village Engineer 

Date:  October 16, 2024 

Re:         Public Works Policy Manual Update 

 
 
The Public Works Department has been developing policies and formalizing past 
practices for public works operations and services.  Included in the update of the 
Public Works Policy Manual are programs related to the annual road program and 
tree trimming.   
 
Village Staff has created an annual road program policy to formalize the process for 
the selection of the roads to include in the annual program.  The policy references 
two additional new policies pertaining to grass and driveway restoration.  A 
significant amount of the Village’s annual grass and driveway restoration efforts 
occur during the annual road program.  The three new policies are essentially current 
practice.  With the creation of an annual road program policy, two existing policies 
related to curb and gutter replacement and sidewalk repair and replacement were 
updated as they also often coincide with the Village annual road program as well. 
 
In addition to the policies related to the annual road program, staff significantly 
revised the existing tree trimming policy as parkway tree trimming requests have 
been on the rise over the past few years.  Staff revised the current policy to create a 
long-term trimming program that can effectively address tree trimming on a more 
aggressive yet sustainable basis. Per the revised policy, the Village’s goal is to trim 
almost all parkway trees in subdivision/neighborhood on a seven-year cycle with 
individual trees trimmed when they are reported by citizens or identified by staff. 
Staff will evaluate trees scheduled for subdivision and/or neighborhood trimming on 
an annual basis and may adjust the areas scheduled for trimming as needed. 
 
There is a current budget of $90,000.00 for contracted tree trimming services in the 
2024-25 fiscal year.  The staff has estimated that the parkway tree trimming budget 



will have to be increased anywhere from $55,000.00 to $98,000.00 per year 
depending on which areas are scheduled to be trimmed. This can change year to 
year depending on the prices we receive from the contractors. 
 
Attached is the Public Works Policy Manual, which includes the updated and new 
policies being reviewed.  The Village Board reviewed the updated policies at the 
October 7th Committee of the Whole Meeting. 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE PUBLIC WORKS POLICIES MANUAL FOR THE 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of North Aurora has adopted by resolution a Public Works Policy Manual 

which provides direction for delivery of Public Works services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Village Board reviewed the policy at the October 7, 2024 Committee of the Whole 
meeting pertaining to the annual road program, curb and gutter replacement, sidewalk replacement, grass 
restoration, driveway restoration, and tree trimming policies; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and the Board of Trustees as follows: 
 

1. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein as the material findings of the President and 
the Board of Trustees. 

 
2. The Annual Road Program, Curb and Gutter Replacement, Sidewalk Replacement, 

Grass Restoration, Driveway Restoration, and the Tree Trimming Policy, summarized 
in the document attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A” is hereby approved by 
the corporate authorities and added to the Public Works Policy Manual. 

 
3. This Resolution shall take immediate full force and effect from and after its passage and 

approval. 
 

Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this day 
of________________________, 2024, A.D. 

 
Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this day 
___________________________, 2024, A.D. 

 
Jason Christiansen _________   Laura Curtis         _________ 
Mark Guethle _________   Mike Lowery        _________ 
Todd Niedzwiedz _________   Carolyn Bird Salazar        _________ 

 

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of trustees of the Village of North Aurora, 
Kane County, Illinois this day of _____________________________, 2024 A.D. 
 
 

 
Mark Gaffino, Village President 

ATTEST: 
  

Jessica Watkins, Village Clerk 
 

 
 



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Public Works Policy Manual 

 
 

 



1 
 

Exhibit A    

 

Public Works Policies 
 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

  

  

 

 

 

  

  

  



2 
 

Last Updated: 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  

              Section         Page #  

• Complete Streets                                       3-5  
• Lawn Mowing And Right Of Way Maintenance                                    6  
• Leaf Pick-Up Program               7-8  
• Mailbox Replacement                              9  
• Sidewalk Replacement                10-11  
• Tree Replacement                 12  
• Curb And Gutter Replacement           13  
• Tree Trimming                14-16  
• Overhead Sewer Grant            17-18 
• Green Infrastructure        19-20 
• Grass Restoration        21-22  
• Driveway Restoration       23-24 
• Annual Road Program       25-27 

  



3 
 

  
  

Village of North Aurora Complete Streets Policy  
  

PURPOSE  

The Village of North Aurora seeks to create a comprehensive, integrated, connected multi-
modal transportation network for all roadway users to encourage accessibility, inclusiveness, 
and safety. Complete Streets principles and best practices should be considered when 
planning, designing, operating, and maintaining the street network to determine if an 
appropriate context sensitive solution can achieve this purpose.   

  

DEFINITION   

Complete Streets are facilities designed, operated, and maintained to assure safe and 
comfortable mobility appropriate to the function and context of the facility for users of all 
ages and abilities, including pedestrians, bicyclists, and transit passengers as well as truck, 
bus, and automobile drivers.  

 

BENEFITS  

Complete Streets provide the following benefits:  

1. Increases Accessibility: Streets that provide travel choices can give people the option 
to avoid traffic congestion and increase the overall capacity of the transportation 
network.  

2.  Improves Safety: Design and accommodation for bicyclists and pedestrians reduces 
crashes.  

3. Creates a Sense of Place: Increased bicycling and walking are indicative of vibrant and 
livable communities, offering economic, social, and recreational opportunities for 
everyone.  

4. Generates Community Vitality and Economic Development: Complete streets can 
reduce transportation costs and travel time while increasing property values and job 
growth in communities.  



4 
 

5. Advances Efficient, Quality, and Responsive Services: Integrating sidewalks, bike 
lanes, transit amenities, and safe crossings into the initial design of a project spares 
the expense of retrofits later.  

6. Improves Public Health: Public health experts are encouraging walking and bicycling 
as a response to the obesity epidemic. Streets that provide room for bicycling and 
walking help people of all ages get physical activity and gain independence.  

  

POLICY GOALS  

1. The Village’s Complete Streets policy will consider the needs of all users through the 
planning, design, and implementation processes for construction, reconstruction, or 
retrofit of streets, if the safety and convenience of users can be improved within the 
scope of the work.   

2. Create a comprehensive, integrated, connected multi-modal network by providing 
connections to bicycling and walking trip generators such as employment, education, 
residential, recreational, and public facilities, as well as retail and transit centers.  

3. Collaborate with the neighboring municipalities and the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning (CMAP) to work with regional 
partners to ensure that jurisdictional boundary conditions are considered as a part of 
infrastructure projects.  

4. Provide safe and accessible accommodations for existing and future pedestrian, 
bicycle, and transit facilities.  

5. Establish a checklist of pedestrian, bicycle, and transit accommodations, such as 
accessible sidewalks curb ramps, crosswalks, countdown pedestrian signals, 
pedestrian scale lighting, median refuges, curb extensions, bike lanes, shoulders, and 
bus shelters, for consideration in street improvement projects.   

6. Establish a procedure to evaluate resurfacing projects for complete streets inclusion 
according to length of project, local support, environmental constraints, total 
available right-of-way, funding resources and bicycle and/or pedestrian compatibility.  

7. Evaluate the interaction of distinct modes of transportation along and at the 
intersection of transportation corridors.  

8. Design bicycle and pedestrian facilities to the best currently available standards and 
practices including the American Association of State Highway Transportation 
Officials (AASHTO) Guide for the Development of Bicycle Facilities, the AASHTO Guide 
for the Planning, Design, and Operation of Pedestrian Facilities, the AASHTO Green 
Book: A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets, the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) Highway Capacity Manual (HCM), the FHWA Manual of 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), the Americans with Disabilities Act 
Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG), and others as related. Methods for providing 



5 
 

flexibility within safe design parameters, such as context sensitive solutions and 
design, will be considered.  

9. Research, develop, and support best practices in improving safety and mobility. 9) 
Implement training for Engineers and Planners on Bicycle/Pedestrian/Transit policies 
and integration of non-motorized travel options into transportation systems.   

10. Make provisions for pedestrians and bicyclists when closing roads, bridges or 
sidewalks for construction projects.  

11. Consider connections for Safe Routes to Schools, trail crossings, and areas or 
population groups with limited transportation options.  

12. Comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  
13. Complement the context of the surrounding community.  
14. Update all necessary and appropriate codes, standards, and ordinances to ensure 

that design components for all modified streets follow the intent of the policy.  
15. Identify all current and potential future sources of funding, including grant 

opportunities, for Complete Streets improvements.  

  

EXEMPTIONS  

The most context sensitive solution for street projects should be incorporated into the 
design to evaluate if Complete Streets Policy goals are appropriate. Exemptions include the 
following:  

1. Non-motorized users are prohibited on the roadway.  
2. The cost of accommodations for a particular mode is excessively disproportionate to 

the need and potential benefit of a project.  
3. The project involves ordinary maintenance activities designed to keep assets in 

acceptable condition, such as cleaning, sealing, spot repairs, patching, and surface 
treatments, such as micro-surfacing.  

  

EVALUATION GOALS  

The following measures document the success of Complete Streets Policy goals:  

1) Number of new miles of on-street bicycle routes defined by streets with clearly marked 
or signed bicycle accommodations. 

2) Number of linear feet of new or reconstructed pedestrian accommodations.  
3) Number of new or reconstructed accessible curb ramps.  
4) Total number of funded bicycle and pedestrian projects and new facilities.  
5)  A periodic review of performance measures will evaluate their effectiveness in achieving 

outcomes and modified as necessary to accomplish policy goals.  



6 
 

 
Right of Way Maintenance and Mowing Policy  
 

PURPOSE 

The Village is responsible for maintaining turf areas to the standards outlined in Village 
ordinances, the standards in the approved contract, and as defined in this policy.  

 

DESCRIPTION 

 This policy identifies parties responsible for right of way maintenance.    

 

POLICY 

The Village is responsible for maintaining turf areas through its lawn maintenance mowing 
contract.  The Village’s mowing contract primarily includes areas such as; SSAs (Special 
Service Areas), welcome signs, medians and village owned facilities/properties.   

The contract also includes right of way areas abutting other governmental agency properties 
and public utility company properties. Staff will use its discretion to identify these areas. 
Rights of way that abut residentially owned properties will be mowed if an SSA is not 
established to fund the mowing.    

Rights of way that abut non-residential properties will not be mowed under the Village 
contract and shall be maintained by the abutting property owner. In circumstances where 
an undeveloped non-residential property abuts a natural area such as a wetland or prairie, 
property owners will be required to mow the right of way between the curb and sidewalk, or 
within 15 feet of the curb if not sidewalk exists.  Additionally these properties will have the 
option of mowing the remainder of the property to a depth of 12 inches as opposed to the 
8 inch standard established for all other areas.  

 The lawn mowing program runs for approximately 32 weeks (32 cuts) between April and 
November.  The mowing contract also includes a spring and fall clean up in areas that are 
being maintained.  

  



7 
 

 

 Leaf Pick-Up Policy  
  

PURPOSE   
This policy is established to explain the leaf collection program schedule and procedure.  

  

DESCRIPTION  

There are two Leaf collection services available to North Aurora residents.   The Village of 
North Aurora provides a curb-side leaf collection service and the Village’s contracted waste 
hauler provides a bagged leaf program.  

  

CURB-SIDE LEAF COLLECTION PROGRAM  

The Village of North Aurora offers a free leaf pickup service to residents. The leaf pickup 
program runs from mid-October through late November.  The start date is dependent on 
weather and when the leaves begin to fall.  The start date will typically be the third week of 
October.  The starting location will alternate between the east and west sides of town 
annually.  

During the designated east/west weeks residents must place leaves at the curb 6:30 a.m. 
Monday of the specific week, to ensure pickup in case your street is serviced first.  It is the 
Village’s goal to provide the residents with three opportunities to have their leaves collected. 
The leaf collection program is weather dependent and can potentially overlap with snow 
removal operations.  In the event that weather prevents residents from receiving three 
opportunities for leaf collection, the Village may have to suspend or cancel the leaf collection 
program.  If the program is either suspended or cancelled the Village will notify residents.  

 

BAGGED LEAF PROGRAM  

The Village’s waste hauler provides a leaf bagged leaf program. Leaves can be placed in Kraft 
paper bags for pick-up and will not require a sticker during the months of October and 
November. Bagged leaves and yard waste will be picked up by the waste hauler on day of 



8 
 

regular pick-up of until the end of November.  Yard waste pick-up ends the last full week of 
November and resumes in April.  

  



9 
 

 

  

     

Mailbox Replacement Policy            

 

PURPOSE 

Maintain mail service for residents   

  

DESCRIPTION 

Describes the circumstances in which the Village replaces mailboxes.  

  

During snow removal operations it is not uncommon during some snow events that 
mailboxes are damaged. In snow events where there is a high-water content creating a 
heavier snow damage is more likely to occur.  Mailboxes are typically damaged by the snow 
that is being cleared from the roadway.  In these circumstances the Village does not replace 
the resident’s mailbox.  However, if damaged to the point where mail will not be delivered, 
then the Village will provide a temporary mailbox until the damaged one is replaced by the 
resident.  

 If the mailbox is struck by the plow, and was installed properly according to the United States 
Postal Services guidelines the Village will provide a temporary mailbox and reimburse the 
resident up to $100 for the replacement and installation of the new mailbox.   

  



10 
 

 

  

Sidewalk Repair and Replacement Policy  
PURPOSE 

Maintaining and building safe and accessible sidewalks for pedestrians throughout North 
Aurora.  

 

DESCRIPTION 

This policy is composed to establish how hazardous sidewalks are identified, repaired or 
replaced. 

 

POLICY    

1. Identification 

Resident Request – Upon receiving a request from a resident, Public Works Staff will visit the 
location and evaluate the hazard.  Based on the nature of the hazard, staff will utilize the 
appropriate method identified below for repair and replacement. 

Employee Observation – Village employees are routinely working outdoors collecting data, 
enforcing ordinances, and performing maintenance.  When employees identify a hazardous 
sidewalk, the location shall be conveyed to the Public Works Department to determine the 
appropriate method of repair. 

Annual Road Program – Every year Village staff determines roads to be included in the 
upcoming annual street maintenance program.  Once the roads for the annual street 
maintenance program are selected, Public Work staff will evaluate the adjacent sidewalks to 
the selected roads to determine the appropriate method of repair.  

High Priority Areas – Each year after the roads for the annual street maintenance program are 
selected, Public Work staff will evaluate sidewalks adjacent to schools, public facilities, 
recreational facilities and other areas generating significant amounts of pedestrian traffic. 

 



11 
 

2. Methodology    

Sidewalk Repair (Leveling/Shaving) – Generally, this type of repair is utilized when a sidewalk 
exhibits a surface distress and/or a trip hazard has been identified as small enough to be 
leveled as opposed to fully replaced.  Sidewalks in this category are added to a list to be cut 
during an upcoming sidewalk leveling program. 

Sidewalk Replacement – Generally, this type of repair is utilized when a sidewalk exhibits 
surface distress and/or a trip hazard larger in scope than what can be rectified through 
sidewalk leveling.  Sidewalks in this category are added to a list to be replaced during an 
upcoming annual road program.  Sidewalk removal and replacements are done within the 
street resurfacing area of the annual road, as well as a Village-wide miscellaneous concrete 
replacement program.   

Emergency Sidewalk Replacement – Generally, this type of repair is utilized when a sidewalk 
exhibits surface distress and/or a trip hazard larger in scope than what can be rectified 
through sidewalk leveling and pose a more immediate threat to public safety.  In these 
instances, the sidewalk square(s) are added to a list to be replaced as soon as possible and 
may be replaced by Village Public Works staff to expedite the replacement. 

In the event the Village receives a complaint regarding a sidewalk square(s) which exhibits a 
surface distress such as “pitting”, it shall be the determination of the Public Works 
Department as to whether the sidewalk(s) square shall be deemed a hazard or cosmetic 
issue.  In the event that the sidewalk square(s) is deemed a hazard or potential hazard in the 
near future, the Public Works Department shall determine the appropriate method of repair. 

If the list of sidewalks earmarked for sidewalk repair or replacement exceeds the amount of 
funds budgeted in a fiscal year, staff will prioritize which sidewalks should be repaired or 
replaced immediately.  Sidewalks not repaired or replaced during the fiscal year will be kept 
on the list to be reprioritized each subsequent fiscal year until they have been repaired or 
replaced. 

 

 

    

  

  

    

  



12 
 

   

  

Tree Replacement Policy  
PURPOSE 

Maintain a healthy urban forest.   

  

DESCRIPTION 

Describe the process for tree replacement in parkway and public properties  

Typically trees are replaced because the tree has been identified by a resident or staff 
member that the tree is dead or dying. The request is then included on a tree replacement 
list.  Public Works or arborist inspects the tree and confirms it is dead or dying the tree then 
the list is updated to indicate the tree is scheduled for removal by Public Works staff.     

 As time permits throughout spring and summer Village staff will remove trees up to 15 
inches in diameter. Trees larger than 15” will typically be removed by a contractor.  When the 
trees have been removed the list is updated once again and now the remaining stump is 
scheduled for stump grinding.  Stump grinding is an operation performed by a contractor.    

After stump grinding staff will inspect all proposed locations for trees to confirm the location 
has the space requirements to thrive. The Village will select a diverse species of trees from 
the list in Municipal Code section 12.17.010. Staff will visit the nursery to select the trees the 
contractor will be planting to confirm the appropriate diameter.  If the trees are not available 
for inspection they will be measured upon delivery.  Trees that do not meet the minimum 
diameter will be returned and replaced with one that meets specification.  

The trees planted in the annual program are guaranteed for one year.  Prior to the end of 
this one year warranty period, public works staff inspects the health of the trees.  Any trees 
that are deemed to be in poor quality are identified for replacement by the contractor 
responsible for planting the trees.    

  

  

  



13 
 

  

 Curb and Gutter Replacement Policy 
 

PURPOSE 

This policy is composed to establish how curb and gutter is replaced throughout the Village. 

 

DESCRIPTION 

Curb and gutter functions to collect and convey storm water to storm structures in the curb 
line.  It also delineates the roadway and acts as a barrier to the parkway. If the curb and 
gutter fails to perform either of these functions it becomes a candidate for replacement. 

 

POLICY 

Curb and Gutter is evaluated on streets included in the annual Road Program in the design 
phase of the project.  Curb and gutter that is identified to be in poor condition by the design 
engineers will be included in the Road Program.  It will be removed and replaced within the 
project. 

 

When staff receives requests to replace curb and gutter on streets outside the limits of the 
annual Road Program, Public Works Staff will determine if the curb and gutter is still 
functional.  More specifically if its condition has deteriorated to the point where it no longer 
functions as an effective barrier, may cause property damage, or no longer conveys 
stormwater and creating a hazardous condition on the pavement.  In such cases staff will 
use asphalt to patch the curb and gutter temporarily, if necessary, until it can be addressed 
in an upcoming road program..  Curb and gutter will not be removed and replaced by Public 
Works staff.  

 

  



14 
 

 

Tree Trimming Policy 
PURPOSE 

This policy is composed to establish how parkway trees are selected for trimming. Tree 
trimming is done to improve overall health, structure, aesthetic appearance, and for safety 
reasons. 

 

DESCRIPTION 

The Village trims parkway trees at various times throughout the year using in-house labor 
and private contractors.  Below is a description of how trees are selected for trimming.  As 
part of the tree trimming policy, trees found in poor condition, obstructing the Village’s right-
of-way, obstructing signage, obstructing streetlights or planted in the Village’s right-of-way 
without permission may be removed.   

 

OBSTRUCTION TRIMMING 

When Public Works identifies a tree that is obstructing regulatory signs, the effectiveness of 
a streetlight or obstructing line of sight at an intersection, Public Works staff will trim the tree 
to eliminate the obstruction.  In some cases, Public Works may remove the tree if necessary. 
There can be times when trees on private property obstruct signs and sidewalks and thus 
pose a safety hazard.  In these instances, the Village will communicate with the property 
owner to come to a resolution to get the tree trimmed.  

 

STREET MAINTENANCE TRIMMING 

Prior to the beginning of the annual street maintenance project, the parkway trees will be 
evaluated to identify trees that are in need of trimming. If needed the crown of these trees 
will be trimmed to a height that will prevent damage from the paving contractors’ machinery.  
This operation is performed by a private contractor or Village crews in advance of the annual 
street maintenance program. If trees are damaged during the construction process crews 
will trim those trees after the project is completed. However, if the timing of the tree 
trimming work interferes with the street maintenance program, then the trimming will be 
done after project is completed. 

  



15 
 

 

SUBDIVISION/NEIGHBORHOOD TRIMMING 

The Village’s goal is to perform necessary parkway trimming in subdivisions and 
neighborhoods within a seven-year cycle.  This tree trimming would typically be performed 
by a private contractor, but also may be done by Public Works staff as needed.  Staff will 
create and maintain a schedule for each subdivision and/or neighborhood to be trimmed.  
Staff will evaluate trees scheduled for subdivision and/or neighborhood trimming on an 
annual basis and depending on need in other areas or financial resources, may adjust the 
trimming schedule. 

 

STORM OR DISASTER RELATED TRIMMING 

Periodically, weather events occur that have can damage parkway trees.  Depending on the 
scale of the damage, a private contractor may be enlisted to assist staff in the removal of 
branches and trimming of the remaining branches. Trees that are severally damaged will be 
assessed at that time and determined if removal is needed. 

In cases where weather is deemed to have caused significant damage to trees within a 
neighborhood or throughout the community, the Village may choose to provide collection of 
any non-parkway trees provided that a property owner follows any guidelines provided by 
the Village to prepare their private trees for collection. 

 

INDIVIDUAL TREE TRIMMING 
Public Works staff will respond to staff and resident requests for tree trimming when these 
requests are received. Trees will NOT be trimmed or removed outside of the normal 7-year 
cycle unless one or more of the following is present. 

1. A broken or hanging branch. 
2. A branch that is hanging lower than six feet off the ground that is over a sidewalk, 

street, or driveway. 
3. A dead branch that is over 2” in diameter. 
4. A branch that is causing a site obstruction or is blocking a street sign. 
5. A tree or portion of the tree is deemed to be in poor health or presents a safety 

concern 
 

Non-cycle trimming deemed necessary and non-hazardous by the Village will be placed on a 
list for trimming and/or removal.  Trees on this list will be addressed as quickly as possible 
depending on staffing and department priority of available resources.  Incoming requests 



16 
 

will be handled in the order they are received unless it is deemed necessary to expedite a 
tree on the list. 

Residents may hire a tree trimming contractor, at their own expense, to trim their parkway 
tree if they do not want to wait for the next trimming cycle. 

 

 

  

 

 

  



17 
 

 

  

Overhead Sewer Grant Program  
PURPOSE 

To prevent flooding in basements associated with sanitary sewer back-ups.  

 

DESCRIPTION 

This program is designed to help eligible residents offset the cost of plumbing improvements 
needed to prevent future flooding associated with sanitary sewer back-ups.  

POLICY 

The Village will offer eligible residents a percentage of the project costs to transition the 
existing plumbing system into an overhead sewer system.  The Village will offer 75% of the 
cost of the project up to $6,000 to all residents   

This grant is specific to the improvements necessary to convert the existing plumbing into 
an overhead sewer system.  While there are other alternatives to prevent flooding including, 
but not limited to: plugs, caps, standpipes, and backflow prevention devices (check valves); 
they are NOT eligible for grant funding under this program. Restoration costs are not eligible 
for reimbursement.  This would include costs for carpet, tile, dry wall etc.  

This program is for residential properties only. It is first come first served until the funds 
budgeted for the program are used. The Village of North Aurora will cover all costs derived 
through administrative time and inspections by Village staff.  Each property is only eligible to 
participate in the program one time. If the property changes ownership and the property has 
participated in the program in the past they the new owners are not eligible to participate 
again.  

Residents qualify for the program by meeting the below criteria:  

  

1) Have a basement inspection performed by the Village Plumbing Inspector to confirm the 
residence qualifies for the program.  The Village will cover the cost of this inspection.  

2) Comply with inflow and infiltration inspection at time of Plumbing Inspection and bring 
the home into compliance prior to qualification.  

  



18 
 

3) At the time of inspection the homeowner must also pass an Inflow and Infiltration 
Inspection. If a violation exists, such as an illegal sump pump connection, the resident 
must correct the sources of inflow and infiltration at their own expense prior to 
qualifying for this program.  

4) Submit two quotes from contractors outlining the scope of work to be performed.  The 
Village would typically pay 75% of the lowest quoted price.  If the resident chose to select 
a quote from a higher priced contractor, the Village would still pay the agreed percentage 
of the lowest quote.    

The homeowner is required to secure a Building Permit from the Village of North Aurora for 
which the fee will be waived.  A permit is also required from Fox Metropolitan Reclamation 
District.  

At completion of the project the work performed must pass a plumbing inspection 
performed by the Village and Fox Metro Reclamation District.  After passing inspections the 
Village will then reimburse the resident the agreed percentage of cost.   

The Village of North Aurora assumes no responsibility for any defective work or other 
damage, injury or loss resulting from any act of negligence by the contractor or property 
owner while installing, operating, or maintaining the sewerage ejector system with overhead 
plumbing. An unexpected sewer collapse or obstruction, power failure, extreme weather 
conditions or other unforeseen factors could cause a backup. Therefore, the Village of North 
Aurora does not guarantee that a sanitary sewer backup will never occur.  

  



19 
 

 

Green Infrastructure 

PURPOSE 

The Village of North Aurora seeks to improve water quality by strategically implementing 
Green Infrastructure principles into infrastructure projects. 

 

DEFINITION 

Section 502 of the Clean Water Act defines green infrastructure as "...the range of measures 
that use plant or soil systems, permeable pavement or other permeable surfaces or 
substrates, stormwater harvest and reuse, or landscaping to store, infiltrate, or 
evapotranspiration stormwater and reduce flows to sewer systems or to surface 
waters. Green infrastructure is a patchwork of natural areas that provides habitat, flood 
protection, cleaner air, and cleaner water. At the neighborhood or site scale, stormwater 
management systems that mimic nature soak up and store water. 

 

BENEFITS 

Green Infrastructure principles can lead to a cleaner environment and reduce flooding by 
encouraging infiltration that will recharge acquirers, filter out pollutants, and reduce the 
volume of runoff. 

  

POLICY GOALS 

The Village’s Green Infrastructure policy will consider implementing green infrastructure 
principles through the planning, design, and implementation processes for construction, 
reconstruction, or retrofit of public infrastructure projects and private development.  
Implementing green infrastructure throughout the Village can demonstrate the Village’s 
commitment to a cleaner environment and influence citizens to be more environmentally 
conscious. 

 

 

 



20 
 

EXEMPTIONS 

Green Infrastructure strategies are intended to be implemented where they are context 
sensitive and financially appropriate.  Retrofitting historic properties to include green roofs 
may not be an appropriate green infrastructure strategy.  Similarly, it is not the intent of this 
policy to impose strategies that would limit the ability to develop a property or complete a 
project.  Rather the intent is to consider how green infrastructure can enhance a project and 
improve the environment in a responsible manner within the context of the project.  

 

EVALUATION GOALS 

Success of this project will be measured by the number of projects that plan for, design, and 
construct projects that include green infrastructure principles.  

 

 

  



21 
 

 

  

Grass Restoration Policy 
 

PURPOSE 

This policy is composed to establish how grass restoration is performed in the Village. 

 

DESCRIPTION 

Grass areas within the Village’s rights-of-way or on private property may be disturbed or 
removed due to removal and replacement of various Village infrastructure, repairs to Village 
infrastructure, or due to Village operations.   

 

POLICY 

VILLAGE PROJECTS 

When the Village has a planned, designed project for replacing or installing new Village 
infrastructure, the Village will include grass restoration within the project’s contract.   Grass 
restoration of all areas that are removed or disturbed by the work will be restored. Examples 
of Village projects would include the annual road program, water main replacement, new 
sidewalk installation, sewer installation or replacements, etc.   

The restoration of the areas requires the placement of topsoil, erosion control blanket, grass 
seed, and fertilizer all meeting the Illinois Department of Transportation Standard 
Specifications.  The typical grass seed mixture used for these projects is a Lawn Mixture, 
unless special conditions of the area to be restored requires a different seed mixture to be 
specified.   

 

VILLAGE MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS 

When the Village disturbs grass areas due to maintenance or operations outside of a 
Village project, Village staff will normally perform the grass restoration.   

  



22 
 

 

Village staff will restore the areas with topsoil, grass seed, and fertilizer.  On smaller 
restorations, staff may also place straw.  On large restoration areas, staff may use erosion 
control blanket.  The typical grass seed mixture used for these projects is a Lawn Mixture, 
unless special conditions of the area to be restored requires a different seed mixture.   

  



23 
 

 

Driveway Restoration Policy 
 

PURPOSE 

This policy is composed to establish how driveway restoration is performed in the Village. 

 

DESCRIPTION 

Driveways within the Village’s rights-of-way or on private property may be disturbed or 
removed due to removal and replacement of various Village infrastructure, repairs to Village 
infrastructure, or due to Village operations.  The apron of the driveway is the portion of the 
driveway located in the Village’s right-of-way, which typically is between the curb and 
sidewalk. 

 

POLICY 

VILLAGE PROJECTS 

When the Village has a planned, designed project for replacing or installing new Village 
infrastructure, the Village will include driveway restoration within the project’s contract.   
Driveway restoration of all areas that are removed or disturbed by the work will be restored. 
Examples of Village projects would include the annual road program, water main 
replacement, new sidewalk installation, sewer installation or replacements, etc.   

Only the portion of the driveway impacted by the work is replaced, unless the following 
criteria is met.  If over 50% of the driveway apron is disturbed, a full apron replacement will 
be completed.  When two patches on the same driveway are within 4 feet of each other, the 
patches will be connected to form one patch.  An apron may be fully replaced to avoid 
causing a new drainage issue that would have occurred due to the Village project altering 
adjacent grades within the project.  Damage due to Contractor mistakes would be completed 
at the Contractor’s cost and depending on the extent of the damage may include up to a full 
apron replacement.    

 

  



24 
 

The driveway restoration will be done with the same type of material and thickness as the 
existing driveway.  Brick Paver driveways will have the original bricks reused when possible.   

Where curb or sidewalk is replaced through an asphalt driveway or apron, the repair will 
have an approximately two feet wide patch adjacent to the replaced curb or sidewalk.   

VILLAGE MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS 

When the Village disturbs driveways due to maintenance or operations outside of a Village 
project, Village staff may perform the driveway restoration or may contract out the 
restoration work depending on the size and complexity of the driveway area to be 
restored.   

Only the portion of the driveway impacted by the work is replaced, unless the following 
criteria is met.  If over 50% of the driveway apron is disturbed, a full apron replacement will 
be completed.  When two patches on the same driveway are within 4 feet of each other, the 
patches will be connected form one patch.  The driveway restoration will be done with the 
same type of material and thickness as the existing driveway.  Brick Paver driveways will have 
the original bricks reused when possible.   

  



25 
 

 

Annual Road Program Policy 
PURPOSE 

This policy is composed to determine how the streets in the annual road program are 
selected and other aspects of programs associated with the road program our administered.  

 

POLICY 

ROAD SELECTION PROCESS 

The Village desires to maximize the return on the capital resources expended on the road 
infrastructure.  In order to do so the streets are selected based on several criteria including 
a pavement condition index study and staff analysis of this data.  Every three to five years a 
pavement condition index study completed by a pavement management consultant is 
completed to provide new data that scores each street segment.   

Village staff uses this data to geographically group streets in poor conditions into areas.  
These areas consist of a group of streets that require maintenance.  Each area is evaluated 
by staff to determine the order they will be addressed in the future years of the annual road 
program.   

When evaluating these areas, the factors that are considered include but are not limited to:  
pavement condition, resident feedback, traffic volume on the street, project impact on the 
neighborhood, if any utilities (water main, storm, or sanitary) need to be replaced, curb and 
sidewalk condition, American Disabilities Act compliance, and cost of the project.  Based on 
this analysis an area is then selected for the current year’s maintenance program typically in 
the fall of each year.  The remaining areas are then programmed for future years.   

After the current year’s street maintenance project has been completed in the summer, 
Village staff will re-assess the areas identified for maintenance.  This provides the Village with 
the flexibility to re-order the areas if one area may have experienced significant deterioration 
over the winter and needs more immediate attention.   

  

  



26 
 

 

CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT 

All streets that are included for road resurfacing within the Village’s annual road program 
have all the concrete sidewalk and curb and gutter inspected and evaluated by Village staff.  
Replacement is completed per the Village’s Sidewalk Replacement Policy and Curb and 
Gutter Replacement Policy.    

 

SIDEWALK ADA CURB RAMPS 

When the Village resurfaces in front of any existing sidewalk curb ramp, the Village is 
required to bring the curb ramp into compliance with the latest Americans with Disabilities 
Act standards.  The Village follows the latest design standards, which includes Illinois 
Department of Transportation standard details and the Pedestrian Facilities in Public Right-
of-Way guidelines.   

Typical improvements of the curb ramps include bringing the sidewalk curb ramps into 
compliance with the maximum allowable running and cross slopes and installing a 
detectable warning tile.   

To comply with the maximum allowable running slopes, the sidewalk corner may need to be 
lowered.  When lowering the sidewalk corner, the Village utilizes grading along the sidewalk 
edge to meet ADA requirements.  When there is a more significant drop in elevation of the 
sidewalk corner, barrier curb may be utilized along the edge of sidewalk in conjunction with 
grading.  

 

GRASS RESTORATION 

When sidewalk or curb is removed and replaced adjacent to grass areas, restoration of the 
grass areas will be necessary.  Any excavation or damage done by the road program 
contractor, is restored per the Village’s Grass Restoration Policy.    

 

DRIVEWAY RESTORATION 

When sidewalk or curb is removed and replaced adjacent to driveways, restoration of the 
driveway is typically required.  Any removal or damage to the existing driveway done as a 
part of the road program, will be restored per the Village’s Driveway Restoration Policy.   

 



27 
 

Once the road program has been presented to the Village Board in the fall, the Community 
Development Department is notified of the streets within the following year’s road program.   
They will advise residents that submit for driveway building permits within the road program 
area, of the upcoming project to try to avoid any restorations to new driveways.     

 

 
 

 

 

 
 



 
 
Memorandum 
 
To:                Mark Gaffino, Village President & Board of Trustees 

Cc:            Steven Bosco, Village Administrator 

From:  Brian Richter, Public Works Director  

Date:  October 14, 2024 

Re:         Award of the Soil Testing Contract with Testing Services Corporation 

 

 
The Villages construction management company for the new Public Works Facility, 
Federick Quinn Corporation (FQC), solicited proposals from qualified firms for material 
testing services. Material testing is needed to ensure that clay used for the site 
construction will support the new building and the heavy trucks that will be using the 
parking lots. Material testing also includes testing the asphalt, concrete, mortar for the 
masonry work, trench backfill, reinforcing steel, and structural steel. Material testing is 
considered a professional service and FQC reached out to five firms for proposals. 
Material testing services fees are usually billed on a time and expense basis. Proposals 
were evaluated for billing rates, number of site visits, and proximity to the job. Material 
testing firms all charge for travel time so proximity was factored into the proposals.  
 
FQC narrowed the five proposals down to two companies, Rubino Engineering and 
Testing Services Corporation (TSC). TSC offered lower unit pricing and is located closer 
to the new Public Works site which will lower the transportation costs. The total budget 
amount proposed by TSC is $88,800.00. This is a not to exceed price and staff believes 
that we will not use the total amount of the proposal. TSC previously performed the soil 
borings for the new Public Works Facility project. 
 
FQCs recommendation letter and the contract is attached for you to review. Staff is 
recommending awarding the material testing services to Testing Services Corporation in 
the amount of $88,800.00. This was not previously budgeted for as part Public Works 
Facility project but is necessary. There are sufficient funds in the capital fund. 
 
 
  































 
NORTH AURORA VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 21, 2024 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Gaffino called the meeting to order. 
 
SILENT PRAYER - MEDITATION – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Mayor Mark Gaffino, Trustee Jason Christiansen, Trustee Laura Curtis, Trustee Mark 
Guethle, Trustee Todd Niedzwiedz, Trustee Carolyn Salazar 
 
Staff in attendance:  Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Jason Paprocki, Community 
Development Director Nathan Darga, Village Attorney Ed Boula, Public Works Director Brian Richter, 
Police Chief Joe DeLeo.  
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS –  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Village Board Minutes Dated 10/07/2024; Committee of the Whole Minutes Dated 10/07/2024 
2. Bills List Dated 10/21/2024 in the Amount of $944,419.13 
3. Approval of Salt Purchase from Morton Salt in the Amount of $36,650.00 with the Option to 

Spend up to $42,780.00 
4. Approval of Resolution Acknowledging Substantial Completion Triggering the One-Year 

Maintenance Period of Reduction of the Surety for Public Improvements for Seasons at North 
Aurora 

5. Approval of Resolution Acknowledging Substantial Completion Triggering the One-Year 
Maintenance Period of Reduction of the Surety for Public Improvements for Seasons at North 
Aurora (Zepelak Drive) 

6. Approval of 2025 Annual Contribution to IMLRMA in the Amount of $397,262.25 
7. Approval of Resolution Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with the County of Kane for 

Animal Control Services 
 

Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Salazar. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Guethle – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee Christiansen – yes, Trustee 
Curtis –yes. Motion approved (5-0). 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Approval of Ordinance Amending Chapter 5.40 of the North Aurora Municipal Code 
Regarding the Regulation and Inspection of Tobacco in the Village of North Aurora 

Administrator Bosco stated that the agenda item was before the Committee of the Whole at a previous 
meeting.  The highlights of the item were that the Village was updating the code to include vaping, which 
it had not previously done.   The annual license fee was raised from $105.00 to $150.00, this had not been 
updated in 16 years.  The age to purchase was updated from 18 to 21 to align with the state law.   



Motion for approval made by Trustee Salazar and seconded by Trustee Curtis. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Salazar – yes, Trustee Christiansen – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz 
– yes. Motion approved (5-0). 
 

2. Approval of Resolution Approving the Economic Development Strategy  
Administrator Bosco explained that this strategy had gone before the Committee of the Whole, beginning 
with the incentive policy, followed by several sections that were discussed at the last Committee of the 
Whole meeting.  The Economic Development Strategy was essentially a strategic plan for economic 
development. 
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Curtis and seconded by Trustee Niedzwiedz. Roll Call Vote:   
Trustee Curtis –yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee 
Christiansen – yes. Motion approved (5-0). 
 

3. Approval of Resolution to Amend the Public Works Policies Manual for the Village of 
North Aurora  

Public Works Director Richter stated that the Public Works Department worked on updating the policy 
for the annual road program curb and gutter replacement, driveway restoration, and tree trimming.  It was 
discussed at the Committee of the Whole on October 7th. 
  
Motion for approval made by Trustee Niedzwiedz and seconded by Trustee Curtis. Roll Call Vote:  
Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Niedzwiedz – yes, Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee Christiansen – yes, 
Trustee Curtis –yes. Motion approved (5-0). 
 

4. Approval to Award Contract for Material Testing Services at New Public Works Facility 
Site to Testing Services Corporation in the Amount of $88,800.00 

Director Richter stated that the construction management company for the new Public Works Facility, 
Frederick Quinn Corporation, solicited proposals from five qualified firms for material testing.  They 
received five back and narrowed it down to two.  The total amount proposed by TSC was $88,800.00, 
which was a “not to exceed” price.   
 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Salazar and seconded by Trustee Niedzwiedz. Roll Call Vote:  
Trustee Salazar – yes, Trustee Christiansen – yes, Trustee Curtis –yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee 
Niedzwiedz – yes. Motion approved (5-0). 
 
VILLAGE PRESIDENT – None 
 
TRUSTEES COMMENTS – None 
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – None 
 
VILLAGE DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Finance – None 
2. Community Development – None 
3. Police – None 
4. Public Works – None 
5. Village Attorney- None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



Motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Curtis and seconded by Trustee Niedzwiedz. All in favor.  
Motion approved. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Jessi Watkins 
Village Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 21, 2024 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Gaffino called the meeting to order. 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Mayor Mark Gaffino, Trustee Jason Christiansen, Trustee Laura Curtis, Trustee Mark 
Guethle, Trustee Todd Niedzwiedz, Trustee Carolyn Salazar 
 
Staff in attendance:  Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Jason Paprocki, Community 
Development Director Nathan Darga, Village Attorney Ed Boula, Public Works Director Brian Richter, 
Police Chief Joe DeLeo.  
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS – None 
 
TRUSTEE COMMENTS - None 
 
DISCUSSION 
 

1. 302 Mitchell Road 
Administrator Bosco explained that the agenda item was in regard to 302 Mitchell Road.  He stated that 
the Board looked at the site plan a while back, one of the concerns was regarding a fence as well as issues 
about access to the facility.  Director Darga had been working with the developer to come up with a plan.  
The Board had asked about fencing options and the related costs in the event the Village would be 
interested in a cost share.   

Director Darga reminded the Board that the proposed Prologis warehouse to be located at 302 Mitchell, 
would sit next to an existing Prologis warehouse at 300 Mitchell.  The new development had been 
discussed and approved by the Plan Commission on February 6, 2024 and presented to the Board at the 
Committee of the Whole meeting on February 19, 2024.  At that time there was a lot of discussion 
regarding the southern access point and truck staging at the north end.  The item was back before the 
Committee of the Whole in August, at that time the developer was able to update everyone that the new 
tenant for the existing building, Bimbo Bakery, would be investing in a lot of improvements.  They were 
able to make the southern entrance a full access, and they were able to do the truck staging on the south 
side of the building.  These were two big concerns.  The final piece in question was regarding fencing or 
screening along the northern property line.  At that time Prologis asked if the Village would be able to 
participate in cost sharing for fencing, to extend the fence across the existing warehouse, given that that 
building was not up for approval but included in the discussion.  The Board asked for an idea of what 
pricing might look like.  The developer provided pricing for fencing along the north of the building at 300 
Mitchell Rd.  The cost for an 8’ Trex Fence would be $141,544, 10’ $180,886, and additional landscaping 
of evergreen and maple trees would be $35,000.   Prologis was seeking a cost sharing agreement for the 
installation of a fence or additional landscaping.  The staff recommended, should the Board want to cost 
share, it be done in the form of a permit fee discount for the new building.  Darga stated that it could be 
done as a percentage of the permit fee or a flat dollar amount.  The building permit fee would be 
approximately $150,000.   



Trustee Curtis asked if the new building would have a fence included in the project.  Darga stated that the 
building up for approval at 302 Mitchell Rd did have a fence included in the project plans.   

Trustee Curtis expressed a concern that the situation forces the hand of the Village to participate in 
constructing a fence for uniformity sake.  She suggested that having the Village pay for part of the fence 
could set a negative precedent for any homes within the Village that back to an industrial property.  She 
stated that residents should inform themselves of the zoning around the home prior to purchasing a 
property as properties are priced to reflect adverse conditions.   

Director Darga stated that if the Village Board chose to provide for additional landscaping instead of 
fencing, the new building would be revisited and be made install additional landscaping opposed to the 
proposed fencing.  

Trustee Niedzwiedz asked if the height of the fence along 302 Mitchell had been decided yet, Darga 
stated that the Board’s decision would dictate the height.   

Trustee Guethle stated that while the Village Board followed the code during the approval of the building 
at 300 Mitchell, he felt that the Village should participate in cost sharing for an 8’ fence to run the length 
of both buildings. 

Trustee Curtis expressed her disagreement asking why the Village feels they have to do anything in the 
situation since the Board followed the code while initially approving the building at 300 Mitchell Rd.   

There was discussion regarding whose responsibility it was for any changes and why the Village may 
want to participate in the addition of landscaping or fencing installation.   

There was discussion about what amount of financial participation was expected from the Village, Darga 
stated that staff was thinking 50% of the cost.   

The Board discussed what size of fencing might be appropriate while reviewing site plans and elevation 
renderings.   

There was further discussion about what the Village’s role should be in construction of a new fence and 
what responsibility the Village had to provide screening for residents backing to the site.  

Trustee’s Niedzwiedz and Christiansen stated that they were in favor of a 10’ fence with the Village 
sharing 50% of the cost.   

Trustee Salazar stated that she saw both sides of the argument but felt that this could be a lesson learned 
for the Village.  She felt that reducing the permitting fee by half to contribute to a fence and landscaping 
was appropriate.   

The Board decided to move forward with a 10’ fence, contributing to the cost by reducing the permitting 
fees by 50%.   

Darga stated that he would include it as a section in the PUD ordinance.  

2. 2024 Tax Levy Estimate  
Administrator Bosco stated that this agenda item was the opening discussion on the preliminary tax levy.  
Finance Director Paprocki would guide the Village Board through the presentation.  Bosco reminded the 
Board that this would be the opening conversation in what happens, between the current meeting and the 
first meeting in December when the tax levy is finalized.  There were numbers included in the 
presentation that could be refined by the December meeting. 



Finance Director Paprocki stated that during the current meeting, he would go through the preliminary 
estimates, at the next meeting the tax levy estimates would go before the Board for approval for the 
purpose of issuing the notice for the newspaper and holding public hearings.  On December 2nd the levy 
would go before the Board for approval to send to the County for final approval.   

Paprocki provided a quick overview of property taxes.  He stated that they make up about 16.7% of the 
Village’s General Fund budgeted revenues.  It is the third largest revenue behind sales and income tax.  
The 2023 property tax levy brought in $2,891,206.00 to the General Fund.  Much of that, 65.2%, goes to 
the Police Pension funding.  The levy discussed currently would fund the 2025-2026 budget.   

Paprocki discussed the Property Tax Levy Statute, he stated that the Village was subject to the Property 
Tax Extension Limitation Law, which meant that the Village could only increase the levy by whatever 
CPI has been determined or 5%, whichever is lower.  Taxing districts could also receive an additional 
allowance for new property to add to the levy, therefore it is CPI or 5%, plus new property.  Paprocki 
stated that with PTELL the Village could not catch up, whatever the CPI is, if the Village chooses not to 
take it, it cannot be taken in a subsequent year.   

Paprocki gave an overview of CPI.  He stated that over the past 10 years, the CPI has averaged 2.8%, with 
the years of 2022 and 2023 raising the average with 7.0% and 6.5% CPIs.  The Village chose not to take 
an increase in 2018 as well as 2022, in 2023 the Village had the option of taking 5% due to the 6.5% CPI, 
but elected to go with 2.5%.   The current CPI for 2024 was 3.4%, the numbers included in the 
presentation were based on capturing 3.4%.   

Paprocki explained that a big part of the levy was the EAV, the total EAV was projected at $811 million, 
the Kane County preliminary estimates.  The numbers would likely come down a bit, the final numbers 
expected in the spring.  The residential portion of the EAV was projected to be $616 million and new 
construction $13.2 million.  The new construction was expected to add $47,000 in new revenue to the tax 
levy this year.  The Village has historically increased its levy for the new construction, even in years 
where the Village did not take any CPI increases.   

Paprocki explained that the main park of the levy was the Police Pension Valuation.  The numbers used 
were based on the Village’s most recent valuation, which was June 1, 2024.  The Village’s policy was to 
fund the pensions at 100% by 2040, which is more ambitious than the state law to have the pension 90% 
funded by 2040.  The Fully funded recommendation was $1,955,000 which was up from last year’s 
$1,825,000.  Paprocki explained that some of the reasons it has risen was due to the investment return 
coming a little under the assumed 6.5% at 5.97%.  There were also more retirements than expected.  The 
pension was currently funded at 61.9%.  The Village holds a $17.5 million net pension liability as of the 
Village’s last fiscal year. 

Paprocki stated that adding a 3.4% CPI increase would add $95,200 to the levy, and the estimated new 
construction would add $47,981 resulting in a $2,944,000 levy.  Paprocki also stated that the EAV was 
currently estimated to significantly increase, decreasing the Village’s tax rate 9%.   

Trustee Curtis and Director Paprocki discussed Trustee Curtis’ concern that the EAV would actually 
increase more than anticipated.   

Director Paprocki spoke about the SSA for Waterford Oaks, Oak Hill, Timber Oaks, Pinecreek II, Willow 
Lakes, and the North Aurora Towne Center.  He stated that the Village was looking at increases to the 
SSAs due to maintenance contract cost increases.  Some of the SSAs had not changed in years despite 
price increases.  The Oak Hill SSA would see a more significant increase due to pond restoration costs.   



Administrator Bosco explained that once the estimates for the pond restoration for the Oak Hill 
subdivision came back, it would be presented to the Board and would be followed up with a meeting 
inviting residents of Oak Hill to discuss any questions that they might have. 

 Paprocki wrapped up his presentation stating that past practice of the Village had been to levy for CPI 
and new construction, excluding the years 2018, 2022, 2023.  He said that some of the budget 
considerations were the police pension that had been going up significantly each year, the normal salary 
and benefit increases, the rising costs for goods and services, and the state grocery tax elimination on 
1/1/2026.  Staff recommended the 3.45 CPI with new construction, a $2,944,500 tax levy request.  This 
would be brought back to the next Village Board Meeting for approval, which would then be sent to 
newspapers and a public hearing, the final approval happening in December. 

Trustee Curtis asked about the sales tax increase and how it fits in to this.  Director Paprocki explained 
that the sales tax goes to the Village’s Capital Projects Fund to pay for debt payments on capital projects. 

Trustee Curtis asked if taking the 2.5% last year, no levy or partial levy previous years have had negative 
impact on the Village.  Paprocki stated that staff was attempting to be proactive with their suggestion, 
bearing in mind future budget items and issues.  Curtis stated that she would prefer to take a year-by-year 
approach to the tax levy in an effort to curb excessive financial burden to property owners.  Paprocki 
stated that staff can bring back different amounts at the next meeting.  He said that he does not currently 
see any negative effects but staff was looking toward the future and did not want to miss an opportunity to 
capture the CPI.   

Trustee Niedzwiedz stated that he would like to see the Village capture the minimum necessary along 
with new construction.  He said ideally that number would be zero but understands that that likely would 
not be the case. 

Trustee Salazar stated that knowing that the grocery tax will go away, it would be short sighted to not take 
anything.  She stated that she may be willing to agree to capture the 3.4%, but something would need to 
be taken.   

Trustee Christiansen said that the Village had fifteen years to get the Police Pension fully funded and the 
Village needed to start somewhere, adding a little extra to the pension each year would not be impactful.   

Administrator Bosco explained the Village’s financial position and why staff made their suggestion. 

After a discussion, Administrator Bosco advised that the staff could come back to the next meeting with a 
breakdown of different options for the Village Board, in an effort for them to make a more informed 
decision that they could be comfortable with.  The Village Board agreed. 

3. Veterans Memorial Concept  
Administrator Bosco reminded the Board that the Veterans Memorial began sometime between 2005 and 
2009 when donations were taken to build a memorial, and was constructed sometime between 2010 and 
2012.  Within the Strategic Plan there are a couple of items related to the Veterans Memorial.  The first 
was to review enhancing the memorial, and the second was bringing awareness to the Memorial.  The 
Village holds a service there each Veterans Day, which is the only time people congregate there.  The 
thought of staff was to enhance the Memorial and bring more attention to it by holding more events there 
through the year, possibly in conjunction with organizations like the library and schools.   

The Village hired Teska and Associates, with whom the Village had worked with numerous times, along 
with a group of residents and employees, some who are veterans, to drive the conversation regarding 
enhancements.  Originally, the idea was to expand on the Memorial, however when the group went to 



view the site, it was decided that the existing Memorial should be enhanced.  A lot of the existing 
Memorial had been done through fundraising, including the sale of memorial bricks.  Many of the 
inscribed bricks that were installed now have wear and damage.  The wall that encircles the Memorial as 
well as the plaques that are installed on it could use updating and beautification as well.  After that visit 
and discussion, Teska’s Jodi Mariano redesigned the concept from the perspective of growth of the 
Memorial to one of enhancement of what was currently there.   

Jodi Mariano of Teska and Associates was on hand to present the collaborative plans for the Memorial.  
She explained that the purpose of the effort was to define a high level concept for the area, this would 
include high level budget costs.   

Ms. Mariano began her presentation outlining the area of focus, stating that it could serve as an area of 
greater connectivity from Oak Street to John Street and the neighborhood at large.  Mariano stated that the 
areas that the Committee really focused in on were the areas along Willow Way, the Veterans Memorial 
Plaza at Farview Drive, which was singled out as the priority project, Artillery Plaza at State Street, and 
the sidewalk and crossing areas.   

Ms. Mariano spoke about the existing Memorial at Memorial Plaza, the features that are in good condition 
as well as what could be upgraded and/or replaced.   

She then spoke about the Artillery Plaza and Sidewalk expansion, again speaking about the features that 
would be replaced and those that would stay.   

Mariano then spoke, in greater detail, about all three aspects of the Veterans Memorial, including the 
Memorial Plaza, Artillery Plaza, and the sidewalk expansion and the proposed plans for them.   

Mariano spoke about the existing memorial pieces that had been donated, specifically the inscribed 
bricks.  She stated that the Village would catalog the bricks and incorporate the names of the 
memorialized in the enhanced version of the Memorial in some way. 

Mariano presented a budget analysis for each of the three areas of focus.  She spoke about the estimated 
costs and how they were established with the assumption that the Village would hire a general contractor 
to oversee the project.  She gave suggestions on where the Village could save by doing the work itself, 
rather than having outside vendors or creating sub-phases to break down the cost of the project in smaller 
increments.     

Administrator Bosco circled back to the memorial bricks that already exist within the memorial.  He 
stressed how important they were and that the Village planned on returning the bricks to the families and 
incorporating the names of the memorialized within the updated Veterans Memorial.   

Bosco spoke about the Committee’s desire to attract more children to the area and the possibility of 
installing more interactive displays to add interesting educational elements for children.   

Bosco spoke about the effort that the Village will make to reach out to other groups to bring more people 
to the area, as well as the outreach to residents to draw more attention to the Memorial.   

Bosco spoke about next steps and cost saving measure the Village could take for the project.  He also 
mentioned that when there is a concept plan, applying for grants becomes easier.   

Trustee Guethle stated that he liked the concept. 

Trustees Niedzwiedz and Christiansen liked the concept and would like to move toward the next step. 



Trustee Curtis expressed concern about the costs associated with the project but liked the idea of working 
with other civic groups and schools to bring more people, specifically children, to the Memorial.   

Mayor Gaffino stated that was a discussion within the committee, about plans to reach out to the library 
and schools to bring more children and educational events to the Memorial.  However, he stated, the first 
step would be to get the ball rolling on improvements to the site.   

Trustee Salazar would like to move forward to the next step and agreed that she would like to see more 
attention brought to the Memorial.   

Administrator Bosco stated that he would meet with Ms. Mariano and get a scope for phase two of the 
project.   

EXECUTIVE SESSION – None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion to adjourn made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Salazar.  All in favor.  Motion 
approved.   
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Jessi Watkins 
Village Clerk 
 

 



To Be Paid Proof List

10/30/2024 -  1:58PM

ablaser

Printed:

User:

Accounts Payable

Batch: 00501.11.2024

Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Ace Hardware

000030

 106.40  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No09302024

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Fabric, Hooks

09302024 Total:  106.40

Ace Hardware Total:  106.40

Alarm Detection Systems of IL

000060

 833.94  0.00 11/04/2024  010/6/2024 No183240-1030

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint Alarm Monitoring- TPs

183240-1030 Total:  833.94

 1,386.33  0.00 11/04/2024  010/6/2024 No98501-1034

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Alarm Monitoring- VH, PD, PW Garage

98501-1034 Total:  1,386.33

Alarm Detection Systems o  2,220.27

Allegiant Fire Protection LLC

467757

 2,850.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/18/2024 NoSO075676

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 5 Year Interval Inspection- PD

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 1

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000030
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000030
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cbf1b4ce-fb87-46a8-90a1-becb72b1d1ed
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000060
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000060
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c61fba01-6e39-4d7c-a536-cc5ecf60e6ba
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1b1318d1-3efd-4237-94e1-29c00a41c062
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467757
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467757
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=74117b0b-f1d6-4fe4-ab6b-4c07fd53cdad
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

SO075676 Total:  2,850.00

Allegiant Fire Protection LL  2,850.00

Amundsen Davis, LLC

039030

 210.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No785330

  01-430-4260 Legal Sept 2024 Legal

785330 Total:  210.00

 1,400.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No785332

  01-430-4260 Legal Sept 2024

785332 Total:  1,400.00

Amundsen Davis, LLC Tot  1,610.00

Anderson Pest Solutions

019770

 103.95  0.00 11/04/2024  010/6/2024 No68811265

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Pest Control- VH

68811265 Total:  103.95

 108.30  0.00 11/04/2024  010/6/2024 No68812564

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Pest Control- PD

68812564 Total:  108.30

 101.15  0.00 11/04/2024  010/6/2024 No68812738

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint Pest Control- TPs

68812738 Total:  101.15

Anderson Pest Solutions T  313.40

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 2

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039030
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039030
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fd1fc3d0-7355-4ac1-8b2d-50040aa413cf
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4260
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=71fd211f-f136-438b-a87b-7689dc52ee3b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4260
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=019770
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=019770
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7f794f41-8c3a-40e8-94c2-0b4bafaad1c8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9ea25b1b-74a3-49e9-a5ba-1fa551cbff12
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2636fa40-997b-4b22-83e0-060e01c4fb45
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Aurora Area Convention

003770

 3,612.63  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No09302024

  15-430-4752 90% Tourism Council NA Lodging Hotel Tax/ August 2024

09302024 Total:  3,612.63

 5,218.54  0.00 11/04/2024  010/5/2024 No10052024

  15-430-4752 90% Tourism Council Akshar Hotel Tax/ August 2024

10052024 Total:  5,218.54

 3,939.39  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No10142024

  15-430-4752 90% Tourism Council Akshar Hotel Tax/ September 2024

10142024 Total:  3,939.39

Aurora Area Convention To  12,770.56

Aurora Fastprint

029610

 765.68  0.00 11/04/2024  010/21/2024 No46420

  01-445-4411 Office Expenses Envelopes (2000)- Water Dept

46420 Total:  765.68

Aurora Fastprint Total:  765.68

Beary Landscaping, Inc.

044300

 14,928.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No298223

  01-445-4532 Tree Service Windstone Tree Trimming- Oak Hill

298223 Total:  14,928.00

 600.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No298226

  17-007-4280 Professional/Consulting Fees SSA Tree Trimming- Oak Hill

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 3

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=003770
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=003770
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=174653dc-2e9f-4bf7-9f14-149eb911b6fb
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4752
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ec3d378e-e9b4-4bc5-a420-76cdfb145db4
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4752
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9e4b9c02-c652-4598-a92c-ca6a26768940
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4752
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029610
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029610
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b8ace86f-d468-4a8a-ab0c-031d4ee6fc7b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044300
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044300
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5c444313-08b5-464f-8ac5-91d26709a61e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4532
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1bd1b58e-85b6-4f05-ad37-96fab5fdaeef
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:17-007-4280


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

298226 Total:  600.00

Beary Landscaping, Inc. To  15,528.00

Buckeye Power Sales Co., Inc.

468441

 370.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 NoPSV390282

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Generator Repair- VH

PSV390282 Total:  370.00

Buckeye Power Sales Co.,  370.00

Cass Information Systems

468877

 16.36  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

10152024 Total:  16.36

 27.27  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024-02

  18-320-3350 Sewer Collection Sewer Maintenance Credit Refund

10152024-02 Total:  27.27

 3.30  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024-03

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

10152024-03 Total:  3.30

Cass Information Systems  46.93

Certified Laboratories Division

048600

 643.66  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No8878048

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Aerosol

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 4

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468441
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468441
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a51edd36-5dcd-461a-b2bf-5a5fac405d8b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468877
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468877
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5c03fb18-fa8f-4848-9018-9b635380a0d2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-320-3340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bba3ee5c-0915-4382-8f84-3b79e9cacf71
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:18-320-3350
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b55853ca-d888-4071-bab7-2b565e3c191c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-320-3340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=048600
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=048600
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cb75d780-e73b-47e5-91d4-4c1244d1e539
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

8878048 Total:  643.66

Certified Laboratories Divi  643.66

Cintas Corporation

041590

 105.87  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No4206067726

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Towel & Rug Cleaning- PW Garage

4206067726 Total:  105.87

 105.87  0.00 11/04/2024  010/8/2024 No4207666629

  01-445-4422 Safety Supplies Towel & Rug Cleaning- PW Garage

4207666629 Total:  105.87

 46.79  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No5232290506

  01-445-4422 Safety Supplies First Aid Supplies- PD

5232290506 Total:  46.79

 169.18  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No5234622010

  01-445-4422 Safety Supplies First Aid Supplies- PW Garage

5234622010 Total:  169.18

 57.63  0.00 11/04/2024  010/16/2024 No5235034505

  60-445-4422 Safety Supplies First Aid Supplies- ETP

5235034505 Total:  57.63

 57.63  0.00 11/04/2024  010/16/2024 No5235034506

  60-445-4422 Safety Supplies First Aid Supplies- WTP

5235034506 Total:  57.63

Cintas Corporation Total:  542.97

City of Aurora

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 5

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041590
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041590
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5b123415-2dde-471c-8401-b8fe364fb8b1
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9f270e00-285e-4c60-b24e-2da97ae30906
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4422
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e01c68c7-fb97-4900-80e5-ccb62044391c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4422
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ebac9424-3e32-4fa3-a9ed-d710f9b325c3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4422
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b2182289-2ad2-4bc5-a003-01952888d132
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4422
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=45e6d86d-cdc8-478a-88ef-1800e8d9200d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4422
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=027870


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

027870

 758.50  0.00 11/04/2024  010/7/2024 No236435

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) Water Testing- Sept 2024

236435 Total:  758.50

City of Aurora Total:  758.50

Clean Soils Consulting

468855

 2,475.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No19699

  60-445-4255 Engineering Soil Testing- Old Water Tower District

19699 Total:  2,475.00

Clean Soils Consulting Tota  2,475.00

Cody Klingberg

468444

 50.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024

  01-410-4015 Pension Board-Mtgs Per Diem Police Pension Board Meeting 10/15/24

10152024 Total:  50.00

Cody Klingberg Total:  50.00

Coffman Truck Sales, Inc.

000320

 59.50  0.00 11/04/2024  09/24/2024 No592635

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Safety Test- Truck #150

592635 Total:  59.50

 40.00  0.00 11/04/2024  09/24/2024 No592642

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Safety Test- Truck #166

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 6

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=027870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a3db915a-5cb7-4f13-84e4-ba7501bde6c9
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468855
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468855
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9142efc6-119b-4605-8127-bbc3375c42ca
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468444
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468444
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3792777c-63de-49c4-81c9-1c3fc1fc232e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-410-4015
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000320
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000320
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=47cb486f-1b52-4634-a5be-3b189e8cd70c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=195ec874-548e-4e43-ad0b-b45464f6c553
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

592642 Total:  40.00

 40.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/24/2024 No592688

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Safety Test- Truck #192

592688 Total:  40.00

 40.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/16/2024 No599754

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Safety Test- Truck #165

599754 Total:  40.00

Coffman Truck Sales, Inc. T  179.50

Comcast

040740

 851.62  0.00 11/04/2024  010/1/2024 No219872668

  01-440-4652 Phones and Connectivity Circuit Police LEADS

219872668 Total:  851.62

Comcast Total:  851.62

Commonwealth Edison

000330

 87.94  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No004825222

  60-445-4662 Utility Water Tower Electric

004825222 Total:  87.94

 49.62  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No*** 1100211222

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ Deerpath & Orchard Gateway

1100211222 Total:  49.62

 105.29  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No*** 1715162000

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ Orchard & Whiteoak

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 7

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cb4a2af4-c08a-4976-8e95-b485e181b4ae
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f2009c2f-4d5f-4c36-a794-dcaba8e653d2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=040740
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=040740
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9716dc83-87ad-44f7-bbc5-ddd0f5db6c56
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000330
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000330
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=542c3485-78e9-4330-8209-f45fbdd56b30
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4662
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c6f4a248-277b-40cf-b8d7-5d52cf0887e2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=518f40bd-e4f8-478c-aebb-b8da15c3209d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

1715162000 Total:  105.29

 9.42  0.00 11/04/2024  09/17/2024 No*** 1982048000

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlights/ 355 Moorfield

1982048000 Total:  9.42

 82.73  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No*** 2223921222

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ Orchard & Oak

2223921222 Total:  82.73

 140.62  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No*** 2640852222

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ 1200 Orchard Gateway

2640852222 Total:  140.62

 81.52  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No*** 3059412222

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ 8 W State

3059412222 Total:  81.52

 120.45  0.00 11/04/2024  010/11/2024 No*** 4475962222

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ Rt56 & Rt25

4475962222 Total:  120.45

 9.42  0.00 11/04/2024  09/17/2024 No*** 4479349000

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlights/ 1197 Comiskey

4479349000 Total:  9.42

 101.74  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No*** 4966085000

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ 1802 Orchard Gateway

4966085000 Total:  101.74

 9.42  0.00 11/04/2024  09/17/2024 No*** 5673211222

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlights/ 1193 Comiskey Ave

5673211222 Total:  9.42

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 8

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=30680d74-f7c4-4d13-8a85-c26595366476
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=107388c0-2c56-40e7-9dc2-69cdb931166e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cc916a28-93e7-446b-bbeb-55ce6800646a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3cb81333-058a-4b65-8d91-23a680838c66
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=59dda0be-08c0-40b5-8052-4e9f6e72c94d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=828ae77b-fe9b-4b17-96ca-9005a13e5065
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=86aeb99c-2012-465d-b12a-3d180870228c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2e1c87fa-c406-490d-8e46-5359d56c2c46
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 45.42  0.00 11/04/2024  010/8/2024 No*** 5818778000

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ 1901 Orchard Gateway

5818778000 Total:  45.42

 56.16  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No*** 6292668000

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ 19 N. Lincolnway

6292668000 Total:  56.16

 2,072.93  0.00 11/04/2024  09/17/2024 No*** 6997063000

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlights

6997063000 Total:  2,072.93

 16.24  0.00 11/04/2024  010/8/2024 No*** 7192223333

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ 1051 Kettle Ave

7192223333 Total:  16.24

 110.94  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No*** 7866272222

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ 4 S. Willowway

7866272222 Total:  110.94

 121.88  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No*** 8845681222

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ Orchard & Comiskey

8845681222 Total:  121.88

 101.05  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No*** 9669222000

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ 1600 Orchard Gateway

9669222000 Total:  101.05

 125.77  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No*** 9954382000

  10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles Streetlight/ Orchard & Orchard Gateway

9954382000 Total:  125.77

Commonwealth Edison Tot  3,448.56

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 9

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7e8891f8-659f-4680-8d8e-1034db480bab
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d1ead200-e5e6-4e2d-b8d1-4f201eef1fb7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6e44b9df-6014-4b9c-b7e4-9c804e904373
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=133b6b32-1a74-435f-b54f-16db47cefd0e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4f139ae7-14e2-419b-8761-93bd9bcad108
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=35fbabc8-97ef-4622-ad4a-fa46b1078a7d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=607d1559-6c60-4501-b489-79c2773c1d4d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=54694590-f512-49af-8fff-5a5f20f5ce8d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:10-445-4660


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Constellation NewEnergy, Inc.

034130

 4,547.19  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No69184554901

  60-445-4662 Utility Well #4/ WTP 8/9 - 9/10

69184554901 Total:  4,547.19

 1,879.26  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No69184554901-02

  60-445-4662 Utility Well #6 7/9 - 8/7

69184554901-02 Total:  1,879.26

 7,094.19  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No69184554901-03

  60-445-4662 Utility Well #6 8/7 - 9/6

69184554901-03 Total:  7,094.19

 6,999.54  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No69184554901-04

  60-445-4662 Utility Well #7 8/12 - 9/11

69184554901-04 Total:  6,999.54

 8,476.48  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No69184554901-05

  60-445-4662 Utility Well #9 8/20 - 9/19

69184554901-05 Total:  8,476.48

 11,225.20  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No69184554901-06

  60-445-4662 Utility Well #5/ETP 8/12 - 9/11

69184554901-06 Total:  11,225.20

Constellation NewEnergy,  40,221.86

Creekside Compost, LLC

467909

 30.00  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No24-09-6790

  01-445-4532 Tree Service Log Disposal

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 10

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=034130
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=034130
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=71e2fa65-7c4e-4b0c-8c06-2c972d5f8647
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4662
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b1f68a95-a0ca-4fbe-bfa8-4beb0fd2f683
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4662
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bf516e00-9e39-471e-ac9f-080b1e0d94a0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4662
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b0beec50-1a88-4e24-8cf7-c009f3aab6a8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4662
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c07bce12-7b29-409b-ab7e-7caec9ebe1f3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4662
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9e2eb6da-7731-4b11-844a-95a864cbcbbc
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4662
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467909
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467909
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b4c23969-e45d-4250-98aa-f4cf6a4c12d0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4532


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

24-09-6790 Total:  30.00

 197.04  0.00 11/04/2024  010/8/2024 No24-10-6832

  01-445-4540 Streets & Alleys Rpr & Mtce Dirt

24-10-6832 Total:  197.04

Creekside Compost, LLC T  227.04

DACRA Adjudication Systems

467842

 123.24  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 NoDT 2024-09-112

  01-440-4505 Postage Postage- Adjudication

DT 2024-09-112 Total:  123.24

DACRA Adjudication Syst  123.24

David Parr

467701

 203.40  0.00 11/04/2024  010/17/2024 No10172024

  01-440-4498 Community Service Trunk Or Treat Candy Reimbursement

10172024 Total:  203.40

David Parr Total:  203.40

Douglas Zubka

468887

 6.37  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

10152024 Total:  6.37

 0.41  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024-02

  18-320-3350 Sewer Collection Sewer Maintenance Credit Refund

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 11

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=55cb1962-0023-4b53-a7c9-af9828029fa2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4540
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467842
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467842
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=39dfdfd7-a5a1-4191-9da7-906c24721651
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4505
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467701
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467701
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=29678569-fe82-43ca-8f7c-b9acf487a69f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4498
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468887
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468887
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=58fcefc1-4b9b-45d9-8fd7-9c744829cdb7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-320-3340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e0fdf7d7-613a-46ab-80ba-6a4d2b40cd5d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:18-320-3350


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

10152024-02 Total:  0.41

Douglas Zubka Total:  6.78

Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

467917

 4,164.13  0.00 11/04/2024  010/24/2024 No81637

  19-438-4255 Engineering Airport Rd & Rt31 Engineering

81637 Total:  4,164.13

 4,660.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/24/2024 No81638

  60-445-4255 Engineering Water System Master Plan

81638 Total:  4,660.00

 20,301.25  0.00 11/04/2024  010/24/2024 No81639

  60-445-4255 Engineering Water Tower Design

81639 Total:  20,301.25

 2,304.50  0.00 11/04/2024  010/24/2024 No81640

  60-445-4255 Engineering LSLR Project Plan

81640 Total:  2,304.50

 297.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/24/2024 No81641

  60-445-4255 Engineering SCADA System 2 EPA Permitting

81641 Total:  297.00

 1,205.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/24/2024 No81642

  60-445-4255 Engineering Connection Fee Analysis- Aurora Pack

81642 Total:  1,205.00

Engineering Enterprises, In  32,931.88

Euclid Managers

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 12

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467917
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467917
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d42528e1-6540-498a-9d15-66508f1746f4
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:19-438-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=94fc9364-a9a9-417d-a022-2005d67a840b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8e72cf66-75e7-422a-a564-cf745b65bcae
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a6a9c009-b135-468a-acf3-45e0770a1aaa
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2431fed2-e735-44b0-b591-8ceb973a471b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=12266ffe-31ce-4aba-b69f-a763b5df2e88
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=049670


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

049670

 468.71  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No10142024

  01-000-2057 Short-Term Disability Short-Term Disability- Nov 2024

10142024 Total:  468.71

Euclid Managers Total:  468.71

Feece Oil

031060

 1,632.40  0.00 11/04/2024  09/19/2024 No2237315

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Engine Oil

2237315 Total:  1,632.40

 445.50  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 No2241175

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Coolant Diesel

2241175 Total:  445.50

 4,200.47  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 No4115203

  71-000-1340 Gas/Diesel Escrow Mid-Grade Fuel

4115203 Total:  4,200.47

Feece Oil Total:  6,278.37

Fifth Third Bank

028450

 5.07  0.00 11/04/2024  08/5/2024 NoAH08272024-01

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) ICE For Samples/ Speedway

AH08272024-01 Total:  5.07

 27.96  0.00 11/04/2024  08/1/2024 NoBR08272024-01

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses Ice- NA Days/ Walmart

BR08272024-01 Total:  27.96

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 13

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=049670
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c12fa1f0-2348-44d3-9236-82c60fe11706
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-000-2057
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031060
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031060
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ae91a084-6439-488e-a024-52e27cffef45
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=811e83fd-90b2-4d57-a1a2-eaf7be723b65
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3e2963e4-cc64-43e4-a700-17fe61dc1299
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:71-000-1340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028450
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028450
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1d08765e-6f4b-4ede-b785-5589e2f11c47
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4c8df59d-74cd-44b5-acfa-00a3c4c0d3f0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 55.86  0.00 11/04/2024  08/1/2024 NoBR08272024-02

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses Ice- NA Days/ Jewel

BR08272024-02 Total:  55.86

 29.49  0.00 11/04/2024  08/1/2024 NoBR08272024-03

  01-490-4761 Beautification Committee Insecticide/ Amazon

BR08272024-03 Total:  29.49

 55.92  0.00 11/04/2024  08/3/2024 NoBR08272024-04

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses Ice- NA Days/ Walmart

BR08272024-04 Total:  55.92

 212.27  0.00 11/04/2024  08/3/2024 NoBR08272024-05

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses Ice- NA Days/ Jewel

BR08272024-05 Total:  212.27

-103.42  0.00 11/04/2024  08/6/2024 NoBR08272024-06

  01-490-4761 Beautification Committee Fertilizer/ Amazon

BR08272024-06 Total: -103.42

 8.56  0.00 11/04/2024  08/7/2024 NoBR08272024-07

  60-445-4799 Misc. Expenditures Ice For Water Samples/ Shell Gas Station

BR08272024-07 Total:  8.56

 889.54  0.00 11/04/2024  08/8/2024 NoBR08272024-08

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Waterproof Endwall/ Amazon

BR08272024-08 Total:  889.54

 2,300.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/14/2024 NoBR08272024-09

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Container Canopy Shelter/ Amazon

BR08272024-09 Total:  2,300.00

 332.85  0.00 11/04/2024  08/16/2024 NoBR08272024-10

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Repairs- Truck #183/ Reds Garage

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 14

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b831abf3-ef15-4e41-984a-48a7f5a6b8ff
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b3ed1c19-058b-4428-89c1-78ecdf1bd193
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-490-4761
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=99bd7bf6-ea3b-4d77-89eb-73e824f48cfe
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9ed99d78-17fe-497e-92d7-883ec9b010f8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7fc64886-ec45-46c7-903f-55a684e57e74
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-490-4761
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=90487045-ab20-4cfe-972b-af5fed712cb5
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cc55f071-f495-4866-b490-42fe81a7abee
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f0efbe91-3204-456f-a4d0-0dde951a2c8f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=feae05f5-e1bb-4fa1-8da1-58df21c5e6e7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

BR08272024-10 Total:  332.85

 87.28  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 NoBR08272024-11

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint GPS Antenna- PD Car/ TASCA Automotive Group

BR08272024-11 Total:  87.28

 238.19  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 NoBR08272024-12

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Bumper- Truck #169/ TASCA Automotive Group

BR08272024-12 Total:  238.19

 3,914.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 NoBR08272024-13

  01-445-4799 Misc. Expenditures High Cube Containers/ Integrated Equipment

BR08272024-13 Total:  3,914.00

 397.98  0.00 11/04/2024  08/27/2024 NoBR08272024-14

  01-490-4759 Community Events Arch For Christmas Decorations/ Amazon

BR08272024-14 Total:  397.98

 2,619.78  0.00 11/04/2024  07/29/2024 NoCW08272024-01

  01-440-4498 Community Service Comm Picnic Entertainment/ Funtime Services

CW08272024-01 Total:  2,619.78

 25.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/2/2024 NoCW08272024-02

  01-435-4506 Publishing/Advertising Police Testing Ad Boost/ The Blue Line

CW08272024-02 Total:  25.00

 116.23  0.00 11/04/2024  08/15/2024 NoCW08272024-03

  01-440-4460 Comfort Dog Supplies Veterinarian- Zelda/ Partners & Paws

CW08272024-03 Total:  116.23

 56.98  0.00 11/04/2024  07/31/2024 NoDA08272024-01

  01-430-4420 IT Supplies Canon Maintenance Cartridge/ Amazon

DA08272024-01 Total:  56.98

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 15

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=42ab994b-44c1-4e49-a751-8617cc9b0545
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a4709ec5-da18-4a06-b33f-94c66584cfb7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=82af92b2-f7f5-400a-9018-f614894af7c2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=170c674e-1059-4bd1-a2db-2e685e8a0726
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-490-4759
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a6e36078-839f-4e83-9dc7-532fcdc1fa5e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4498
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4c2e8af6-5443-40a7-aa1b-1b4c823c58c3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-435-4506
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cce4163c-154e-42b3-a45c-ba0d2d7bb159
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4460
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0b22221a-fe6a-417a-b08f-126f2564a760
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4420


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 69.85  0.00 11/04/2024  08/1/2024 NoDA08272024-02

  01-430-4420 IT Supplies Canon Maintenance Cartridge/ Amazon

DA08272024-02 Total:  69.85

 71.98  0.00 11/04/2024  07/31/2024 NoDA08272024-03

  01-430-4420 IT Supplies UPS Battery/ Amazon

DA08272024-03 Total:  71.98

 59.94  0.00 11/04/2024  08/1/2024 NoDA08272024-04

  01-430-4420 IT Supplies Apple & USB Extension Cables/ Amazon

DA08272024-04 Total:  59.94

 1,079.70  0.00 11/04/2024  08/5/2024 NoDA08272024-05

  01-430-4513 Software Maintenance Annual Zoom Subscription/ Zoom.us

DA08272024-05 Total:  1,079.70

 250.99  0.00 11/04/2024  08/16/2024 NoDA08272024-06

  01-430-4870 Equipment iPad & Case- PD Investigations/ Amazon

DA08272024-06 Total:  250.99

 270.99  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 NoDA08272024-07

  01-430-4870 Equipment Printer Jewel Resource Officer/ Amazon

DA08272024-07 Total:  270.99

 9.92  0.00 11/04/2024  08/22/2024 NoDA08272024-08

  01-430-4420 IT Supplies iPhone Screen Protectors/ Amazon

DA08272024-08 Total:  9.92

 225.99  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 NoDA08272024-09

  01-430-4870 Equipment iPad & Case For PD Investigations/ Amazon

DA08272024-09 Total:  225.99

 75.90  0.00 11/04/2024  08/23/2024 NoDA08272024-10

  01-430-4420 IT Supplies Phone Case/ Amazon

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 16

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=117eee34-d38d-459a-b6e6-3af485d209ed
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4420
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=913bd442-7c02-40ad-a88e-40c66ba254dc
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4420
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6f4f107a-d2cc-4229-b925-dcc16e64703a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4420
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9c430616-1c80-42a8-9cfc-0819aed6b9d0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4513
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1d760561-5dc8-466f-a7f0-415be8a6d473
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8687f441-4ac7-43a7-b47c-68f002913dee
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7ce80b6a-746d-4b4e-89cc-705877bb8ec8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4420
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=259656fa-2431-49a7-9793-5049fddf772d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4b28641e-6bc3-4e5c-bf72-47c570801e1c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4420


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

DA08272024-10 Total:  75.90

 99.99  0.00 11/04/2024  08/23/2024 NoDA08272024-11

  01-430-4870 Equipment Computer Monitor/ Amazon

DA08272024-11 Total:  99.99

 151.90  0.00 11/04/2024  08/26/2024 NoDA08272024-12

  01-430-4420 IT Supplies USB GPS Dongle/ Amazon

DA08272024-12 Total:  151.90

 1,980.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/1/2024 NoJD08272024-01

  01-440-4390 Dues & Meetings Courtsmart Yearly Fee/ Courtsmart

JD08272024-01 Total:  1,980.00

 16.35  0.00 11/04/2024  08/1/2024 NoJD08272024-02

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies/ Office Depot

JD08272024-02 Total:  16.35

 394.41  0.00 11/04/2024  08/6/2024 NoJD08272024-03

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies/ Office Depot

JD08272024-03 Total:  394.41

 37.50  0.00 11/04/2024  08/14/2024 NoJD08272024-04

  01-440-4799 Misc. Kitchen Supplies/ Uline

JD08272024-04 Total:  37.50

 43.98  0.00 11/04/2024  08/15/2024 NoJD08272024-05

  01-440-4383 Firearm Training Tactical Bag/ Eberlestock

JD08272024-05 Total:  43.98

 126.73  0.00 11/04/2024  08/23/2024 NoJD08272024-06

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies/ Office Depot

JD08272024-06 Total:  126.73

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 17

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1f29cf1b-296f-4680-bd8e-591fa1fb98e7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=729d4b26-9481-4329-8962-9a7ee9087ba5
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4420
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d049b67b-91e1-491f-88d2-20025d4ee18b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4390
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=33000651-f26d-47c0-b493-a510a0491369
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6980c450-7664-4f86-8a16-df1f6df7b576
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7461bffd-c8ad-4e23-a806-b4f6564fb733
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=934661c3-b453-47a7-9b85-53f58ecc1fd4
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4383
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3eb87536-be11-4e45-b3d2-914ba628754e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 183.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/1/2024 NoJG08272024-01

  01-440-4555 Investigations Investigations App/ TLO TransUnion

JG08272024-01 Total:  183.00

 116.63  0.00 11/04/2024  08/12/2024 NoJG08272024-02

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Laminate Maps For IC/ UPS Store

JG08272024-02 Total:  116.63

 690.21  0.00 11/04/2024  08/12/2024 NoJG08272024-03

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Command Boards For IC/ IMT Gear Brand Of EMSI

JG08272024-03 Total:  690.21

 109.32  0.00 11/04/2024  08/13/2024 NoJG08272024-04

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Supplies For IC Maps Dry Erase/ Amazon

JG08272024-04 Total:  109.32

 10.79  0.00 11/04/2024  08/14/2024 NoJG08272024-05

  01-440-4555 Investigations Investigations App/ Apple.com

JG08272024-05 Total:  10.79

 27.17  0.00 11/04/2024  08/15/2024 NoJG08272024-06

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Supplies For UC Maps-Pot Magnets/ Amazon

JG08272024-06 Total:  27.17

 10.79  0.00 11/04/2024  08/22/2024 NoJG08272024-07

  01-440-4555 Investigations Investigations App/ Apple.com

JG08272024-07 Total:  10.79

 31.78  0.00 11/04/2024  08/26/2024 NoJG08272024-08

  01-440-4799 Misc. Coat Hanger For Offices/ Amazon

JG08272024-08 Total:  31.78

 41.61  0.00 11/04/2024  07/31/2024 NoKL08272024-01

  01-440-4160 Uniform Allowance Uniform Shirt/ Galls

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 18

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=de35ed7c-c5f1-4da3-8dfd-3c5be3e88c59
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4555
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=df81aad1-b7fd-49df-86e2-f010983c6336
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c3608dfe-2dbe-4298-89de-9bf854668fd5
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e0931ef2-2f77-451b-a4e5-0068a780cb9e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=40b119d5-4b21-4e79-8b72-65fe6ae0c913
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4555
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b72112ac-1d28-446a-b9b9-b310e9714de8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a2f2f800-c762-49cd-89f9-a47424aa447d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4555
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f8466588-841b-46f8-92a2-63c7cf3f13a5
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b77aff16-b3bd-4996-a960-c9d90006f9ad
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4160


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

KL08272024-01 Total:  41.61

 75.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/9/2024 NoKL08272024-02

  01-440-4160 Uniform Allowance Embroidery/ Initial Impressions

KL08272024-02 Total:  75.00

 2,065.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/14/2024 NoKL08272024-03

  01-440-4370 Conferences & Travel Conference Fees/ ILHIA

KL08272024-03 Total:  2,065.00

 4.75  0.00 11/04/2024  08/20/2024 NoKL08272024-04

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies/ Amazon

KL08272024-04 Total:  4.75

 37.62  0.00 11/04/2024  08/20/2024 NoKL08272024-05

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies/ Amazon

KL08272024-05 Total:  37.62

 175.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/25/2024 NoKL08272024-06

  01-440-4370 Conferences & Travel Conference Fees/ 100 Club

KL08272024-06 Total:  175.00

 325.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/23/2024 NoKL08272024-07

  01-440-4370 Conferences & Travel Conference Fees/ ICNA

KL08272024-07 Total:  325.00

 20.97  0.00 11/04/2024  08/25/2024 NoKL08272024-08

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies/ Amazon

KL08272024-08 Total:  20.97

 65.24  0.00 11/04/2024  08/2/2024 NoMF08272024-01

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses Ice- NA Days/ Walmart

MF08272024-01 Total:  65.24

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 19

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2ead7ac6-8084-4f94-a7de-7f96190fa26a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4160
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=68cbde1a-e4b4-49b5-aed7-bd4f7e4fa1a6
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4370
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=beafb5de-2f15-4b59-aeff-ff115b4f0922
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=08e01937-9e60-4035-ac7c-fa70aec33a13
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=43457a7e-d4fa-484c-9fd6-57d8d88d2d2c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4370
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d3f9c38e-e672-4499-8d47-5d578d768c48
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4370
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=18cbee6f-c65c-4658-b580-de5b80feec32
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=667e8bf7-42b3-445b-a90f-c4636c0c4ef5
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 79.22  0.00 11/04/2024  08/2/2024 NoMF08272024-02

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses Ice- NA Days/ Walmart

MF08272024-02 Total:  79.22

 40.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/11/2024 NoMF08272024-03

  01-430-4799 Misc. Auto Fresh Tolls/ iPass

MF08272024-03 Total:  40.00

 129.79  0.00 11/04/2024  08/26/2024 NoMF08272024-04

  01-430-4799 Misc. Sympathy Flowers/ Hello Flowers

MF08272024-04 Total:  129.79

 116.64  0.00 11/04/2024  08/1/2024 NoMQ08272024-01

  01-440-4498 Community Service Propane Tanks/ Menards

MQ08272024-01 Total:  116.64

 114.77  0.00 11/04/2024  08/7/2024 NoMQ08272024-02

  01-440-4557 Evidence Processing Evidence Processing/ Amazon

MQ08272024-02 Total:  114.77

 117.78  0.00 11/04/2024  08/7/2024 NoMQ08272024-03

  01-440-4870 Equipment Equipment/ Amazon

MQ08272024-03 Total:  117.78

 607.09  0.00 11/04/2024  08/7/2024 NoMQ08272024-04

  01-440-4931 Vehicle Equip Fund Charges Squad Flares/ Global Industry

MQ08272024-04 Total:  607.09

 1,152.64  0.00 11/04/2024  08/5/2024 NoMQ08272024-05

  01-440-4557 Evidence Processing Evidence Processing/ Peavey

MQ08272024-05 Total:  1,152.64

 164.50  0.00 11/04/2024  08/7/2024 NoMQ08272024-06

  01-440-4450 Prisoner Mtce & Supplies Jail Supplies/ Intoximeters

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 20

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ca7337a9-3590-4162-a91a-c26c6ad8f04a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=aeae56d0-56cb-4a15-a55d-29d8897c5e5d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d9cd4c45-98bf-41b1-82df-9571b4044257
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1da71481-d6da-4575-8560-dfef149a1045
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4498
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=572086d8-1651-4acc-a460-0f83fb992311
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4557
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4282be72-229b-4c81-b82c-b0eae83dec71
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2dd6242a-9440-4576-84a2-81494436aebb
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4931
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0e553fe0-af21-41dd-bb19-d39647bf2a73
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4557
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=70b348d6-657b-4f9c-b710-7dbfb3264dd3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4450


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

MQ08272024-06 Total:  164.50

 394.86  0.00 11/04/2024  08/14/2024 NoMQ08272024-07

  01-440-4931 Vehicle Equip Fund Charges Side By Side Repair/ Ron's Auto

MQ08272024-07 Total:  394.86

 5.99  0.00 11/04/2024  08/20/2024 NoMQ08272024-08

  01-440-4870 Equipment Equipment/ Amazon

MQ08272024-08 Total:  5.99

 8.85  0.00 11/04/2024  08/20/2024 NoMQ08272024-09

  01-440-4870 Equipment Equipment/ Amazon

MQ08272024-09 Total:  8.85

 16.59  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 NoMQ08272024-10

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies/ Amazon

MQ08272024-10 Total:  16.59

 281.23  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 NoMQ08272024-11

  01-440-4557 Evidence Processing Evidence Processing/ Uline

MQ08272024-11 Total:  281.23

 254.25  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 NoMQ08272024-12

  01-440-4380 Training Training/ Holiday Inn

MQ08272024-12 Total:  254.25

 254.25  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 NoMQ08272024-13

  01-440-4380 Training Training/ Holiday Inn

MQ08272024-13 Total:  254.25

 5.99  0.00 11/04/2024  08/27/2024 NoMQ08272024-14

  01-440-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies/ Amazon

MQ08272024-14 Total:  5.99

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 21

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=45b83b1d-dc29-49f8-988e-2c683c3cc90f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4931
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=86ddb647-90ae-4895-b760-7c3341d3134c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=773a5cca-35d6-45b7-9758-e7cd870ffd0f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=470cc9a9-678c-44cc-a932-bcfeef564dab
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4d4b0b54-fbc9-42fb-ba16-17bf416e81f7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4557
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0af47a25-f1e2-4b95-8683-a5ea4b3c41d0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=80b2e736-6b4a-4490-9524-4e23f4c71c6f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=42d30399-cb62-438d-892b-baf509d44f35
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4411


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 38.99  0.00 11/04/2024  07/30/2024 NoMT08272024-01

  01-430-4799 Misc. Subscription/ Wall Street Journal

MT08272024-01 Total:  38.99

 38.99  0.00 11/04/2024  08/27/2024 NoMT08272024-02

  01-430-4799 Misc. Subscription/ Wall Street Journal

MT08272024-02 Total:  38.99

 613.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/2/2024 NoND08272024-01

  01-441-4390 Dues & Meetings Yearly Dues/ ILAPA

ND08272024-01 Total:  613.00

 420.00  0.00 11/04/2024  08/15/2024 NoND08272024-02

  01-441-4370 Conferences & Travel State Conference/ ILAPA

ND08272024-02 Total:  420.00

 44.94  0.00 11/04/2024  07/29/2024 NoNS08272024

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses Softballs- NA Days/ Walmart.com

NS08272024 Total:  44.94

 976.97  0.00 11/04/2024  07/30/2024 NoNS08272024-02

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses Tents- NA Days/ Midwest Tents & Events

NS08272024-02 Total:  976.97

 44.37  0.00 11/04/2024  07/31/2024 NoNS08272024-03

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses Water & Gatorade- NA Days/ Target

NS08272024-03 Total:  44.37

 44.02  0.00 11/04/2024  08/6/2024 NoNS08272024-04

  01-410-4799 Misc. Expenditures Billing Stamp- Hake/ RS Warehouse

NS08272024-04 Total:  44.02

 16.74  0.00 11/04/2024  08/7/2024 NoNS08272024-05

  01-410-4799 Misc. Expenditures Birthday Cards/ Dollar Tree

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 22

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3ae33d5e-16fa-499f-b46b-b1051b1c55be
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=236785ec-f719-461a-bdc4-31b20966e4ce
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c24cf866-147e-4721-9e79-5130c3217120
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4390
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=21551e2d-7694-4cf3-bcbe-c157b29d0b08
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4370
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1104cbf3-f8a3-4528-84ac-6cac6bcefc6c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1ba1d4f1-4ee9-4e80-96a6-0cce8276485c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=42773f3f-d0ea-41f3-89bc-0ff410cbd478
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=67646c62-5f51-4a1d-91d6-763c17295bdf
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-410-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6b72ddf7-7b0b-49ee-a444-40c1a9208644
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-410-4799


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

NS08272024-05 Total:  16.74

 23.96  0.00 11/04/2024  08/13/2024 NoNS08272024-06

  01-430-4411 Office Expenses Chicago Tribune Subscription/ Chicago Tribune

NS08272024-06 Total:  23.96

 519.25  0.00 11/04/2024  08/26/2024 NoNS08272024-07

  01-490-4759 Community Events Beach Balls- Trunk Or Treat/ 4 All Promos

NS08272024-07 Total:  519.25

 85.96  0.00 11/04/2024  08/17/2024 NoSB08272024

  01-410-4799 Misc. Expenditures Coffee & Donuts- Meet With Mayor/ Dunkin

SB08272024 Total:  85.96

Fifth Third Bank Total:  26,837.17

Force Science

468891

 1,490.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 NoFSI-32451

  01-440-4370 Conferences & Travel Force Science Conference

FSI-32451 Total:  1,490.00

Force Science Total:  1,490.00

Frank Marshall Electric

028510

 673.12  0.00 11/04/2024  09/26/2024 No92176

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Light Pole Receptacles

92176 Total:  673.12

Frank Marshall Electric To  673.12

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 23

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=47e271ef-d5cc-4164-89c9-40c99bd3c89d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1de17f0c-00e6-4710-be46-6e4409fe70cc
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-490-4759
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=37a7a927-eb09-4d0e-9488-4ca6b1d10c07
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-410-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468891
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468891
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2e83ecd8-68fa-49f6-b2c2-610aeb64745c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4370
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=028510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4c27198d-fca1-4c70-875c-0b74dee214f6
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Global Water Technology, Inc.

467862

 226.90  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No130401

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Water Treatment- VH, PD

130401 Total:  226.90

Global Water Technology, I  226.90

GPM Truck Center, Inc

468885

 8,326.68  0.00 11/04/2024  09/27/2024 No35756AD

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Leak Repair- 2010 Int'l

35756AD Total:  8,326.68

GPM Truck Center, Inc To  8,326.68

Griswold Feed & Seed Store

001770

 422.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/1/2024 No15667

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Seed & Straw- Riverfront Park

15667 Total:  422.00

Griswold Feed & Seed Stor  422.00

Hach Company

014100

 26.40  0.00 11/04/2024  010/11/2024 No14220709

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) Reagents

14220709 Total:  26.40

Hach Company Total:  26.40

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 24

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467862
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467862
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8ac5ceaf-b446-46b3-b642-735300f0883b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468885
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468885
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9027f70c-f7d8-48fa-8e7a-2a133dd54186
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001770
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001770
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=95a08816-197f-46d6-9ce4-decb598582c5
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=014100
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=014100
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c4c66773-64f7-4d1f-939d-89ed5b7484eb
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Heartland Business Systems, LLC

468486

 390.00  0.00 11/04/2024  09/24/2024 No732952-H

  01-430-4280 Professional/Consulting Fees DMS

732952-H Total:  390.00

 7,630.40  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No736275-H

  01-430-4513 Software Maintenance Email & 0365 Back-Up

736275-H Total:  7,630.40

Heartland Business System  8,020.40

High Star Traffic

021520

 441.00  0.00 11/04/2024  09/27/2024 No8198

  01-445-4545 Traffic Signs & Signals School Parking Signs

8198 Total:  441.00

High Star Traffic Total:  441.00

Hydrox Laboratories

468419

 42.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No0245770-IN

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint Hydrogen Peroxide

0245770-IN Total:  42.00

Hydrox Laboratories Total:  42.00

Illinois Section American WWA

025350

 144.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/23/2024 No200092561

  60-445-4380 Training Meter Training- Cook, Schwickerath

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 25

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468486
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468486
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=385357e5-ab77-472c-abd4-09543461d498
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4280
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9a2bd19e-3afa-4b55-bf65-005859f6a23b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4513
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=021520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=021520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7c334d7d-e41d-4784-825d-3efee8ce30da
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4545
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468419
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468419
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c2032dc9-d2c9-4564-be36-e9ae1d62e2a5
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=025350
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=025350
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f2abec3e-f619-4281-b66f-6902e47481c7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4380


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

200092561 Total:  144.00

 72.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/23/2024 No200092562

  60-445-4380 Training Valve Seminar- Schwickerath

200092562 Total:  72.00

Illinois Section American W  216.00

Illinois State Police Bureau of

041810

 28.25  0.00 11/04/2024  09/1/2024 No20240906111

  01-445-4799 Misc. Expenditures Fingerprints For Employee

20240906111 Total:  28.25

Illinois State Police Bureau  28.25

IML Risk Management Association

003210

 397,262.25  0.00 11/04/2024  010/1/2024 No10012024

  14-430-4944 Liability Coverage 2025 IML RMA Contribution

10012024 Total:  397,262.25

 1,500.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/1/2024 No10012024-02

  01-410-4390 Dues & Meetings 2025 IML Dues

10012024-02 Total:  1,500.00

IML Risk Management As  398,762.25

Industrial Door Company

044430

 844.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/27/2024 No384

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Sally Port Door Repair

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 26

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bac93139-e4b0-4160-83a9-9c1394870b74
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041810
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041810
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0d2882c5-5337-4611-a0e7-3544c0dec1d4
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=003210
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=003210
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=977dfd74-bcaf-40ee-b817-fa59eb038765
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:14-430-4944
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d320dd9c-403b-4a5f-987f-c0b4809f8cb2
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-410-4390
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044430
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044430
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=32e66c94-7684-4ed4-83a5-ef6090f78036
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

384 Total:  844.00

 2,156.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/16/2024 No495

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Garage Door Repair- PD

495 Total:  2,156.00

Industrial Door Company T  3,000.00

International Association of Crime Analysts, Inc

468892

 445.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No14380

  01-440-4380 Training Analyst Class- Wagner

14380 Total:  445.00

International Association o  445.00

JSN Contractors Supply

041440

 57.00  0.00 11/04/2024  09/26/2024 No87387

  18-445-4570 Sewers Rpr & Mtce Green Marking Paint

87387 Total:  57.00

JSN Contractors Supply T  57.00

Kimball Midwest

467916

 195.12  0.00 11/04/2024  010/17/2024 No102711014

  01-445-4422 Safety Supplies Ear Plugs, Safety Glasses

102711014 Total:  195.12

Kimball Midwest Total:  195.12

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 27

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9a8a177b-32dc-40d8-9e8c-7f08d886c18c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468892
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468892
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=24bf7741-5102-4c6d-a163-a04f180a3e83
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041440
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041440
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f793d648-ae98-4388-9007-dc4eb9f227b3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:18-445-4570
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467916
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467916
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=78555b70-ae17-43cb-935e-eb6ed51f5663
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4422


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Konica Minolta

024860

 71.15  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No296135385

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- PD

296135385 Total:  71.15

 71.15  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No296135591

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- PD

296135591 Total:  71.15

 123.56  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No296135691

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- PD

296135691 Total:  123.56

 177.46  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No296136019

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- PD

296136019 Total:  177.46

 71.72  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No296140392

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- PD

296140392 Total:  71.72

 43.11  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No296141380

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Copier Maintenance- PD

296141380 Total:  43.11

 71.15  0.00 11/04/2024  010/20/2024 No9010116961

  01-445-4411 Office Expenses Copier Maintenance- PW Garage

9010116961 Total:  71.15

 10.99  0.00 11/04/2024  010/27/2024 No9010125274

  01-430-4411 Office Expenses AP Printer Maintenance 9/21 - 10/20

9010125274 Total:  10.99

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 28

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024860
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024860
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=acbf7aa5-9fe5-426b-9d63-df9d14a02e58
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f07269a6-1ca6-4df9-ba7b-3d039b0caf5a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d1d21f70-9904-435b-a343-ce98c5f4ddcf
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d6083739-1c0b-4590-bc44-4b475ba8be7b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=256143fa-2a2e-43a1-9f52-f53abc5e4503
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cce4e50d-73b3-43d8-ad82-662eb38499d3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=398b8e7f-dead-46c4-91f0-993f33fcbc81
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9bef1e1f-0c92-4100-91c2-b1d09cade700
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4411


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 71.39  0.00 11/04/2024  010/31/2024 No9010141366

  01-445-4411 Office Expenses Copier Maintenance- PW Garage

9010141366 Total:  71.39

Konica Minolta Total:  711.68

Lenovo Inc

468409

 10,275.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No6469495867

  71-430-4870 Equipment Desktop Computers (15)

6469495867 Total:  10,275.00

Lenovo Inc Total:  10,275.00

Li Xia Shao

468886

 45.27  0.00 11/04/2024  010/21/2024 No10212024

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

10212024 Total:  45.27

Li Xia Shao Total:  45.27

Mason Brant

468841

 50.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024

  01-410-4015 Pension Board-Mtgs Per Diem Police Pension Board Meeting 10/15/24

10152024 Total:  50.00

Mason Brant Total:  50.00

Matt & Amanda Van Gyseghem

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 29

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=97f44774-831d-4dde-8eb6-80c704fc0843
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468409
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468409
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=94436008-5bb3-432b-8318-4dc32e5c2740
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:71-430-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468886
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468886
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=66ec6e8a-07d6-4f2e-9a5b-1b572e02a40d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-320-3340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468841
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468841
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=40c7d3fc-eac2-4805-b28a-3b32eaa7bf79
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-410-4015
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468890


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

468890

 25.71  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

10152024 Total:  25.71

 0.62  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024-02

  18-320-3350 Sewer Collection Sewer Maintenance Credit Refund

10152024-02 Total:  0.62

Matt & Amanda Van Gyse  26.33

Meade Electric Company, Inc.

027140

 84.71  0.00 11/04/2024  010/11/2024 No710349

  01-445-4545 Traffic Signs & Signals Traffic Light Repair- Orch Gateway & Target

710349 Total:  84.71

Meade Electric Company,  84.71

Menards

016070

 377.30  0.00 11/04/2024  08/1/2024 No33292

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses 5 Gal Pails (28), Pop Up Tent (2)

33292 Total:  377.30

 24.99  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 No34422

  60-445-4423 Tools Screw Extractor

34422 Total:  24.99

 10.98  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 No34422-02

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) Distilled Water

34422-02 Total:  10.98

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 30

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468890
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c7482f67-7949-4282-aa78-cc5a2dd80dc9
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-320-3340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c3b1a9b5-a497-4a1d-a100-976789437c71
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:18-320-3350
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=027140
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=027140
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3d65b028-47ec-4ef5-a2c2-dc7867c66e7d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4545
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=016070
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=016070
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4649a585-dd06-4d8e-a885-afe6296365c7
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=db2a11ed-19e6-4632-8ae9-8fc0776e62a1
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4423
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bddce430-afa1-422f-8378-365615d806c6
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 26.64  0.00 11/04/2024  08/21/2024 No34422-03

  60-445-4870 Equipment Pressure Guage, Fittings, Bag

34422-03 Total:  26.64

 23.92  0.00 11/04/2024  08/26/2024 No34708

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) Bleach For Water Sampling

34708 Total:  23.92

 85.71  0.00 11/04/2024  08/26/2024 No34708-02

  60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. Pipe Storage Supplies

34708-02 Total:  85.71

 29.63  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 No36870

  01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce Mouse Traps

36870 Total:  29.63

 9.78  0.00 11/04/2024  010/7/2024 No37045

  60-445-4870 Equipment Supplies For Marking Traffic Cones

37045 Total:  9.78

 23.85  0.00 11/04/2024  010/11/2024 No37280

  60-445-4563 Fire Hydrant Repair/maint Cola (5) For Hydrant Repair

37280 Total:  23.85

 35.98  0.00 11/04/2024  010/11/2024 No37280-02

  60-445-4480 New Meters,rprs. & Rplcmts. Wire Nuts

37280-02 Total:  35.98

 257.34  0.00 11/04/2024  010/11/2024 No37292

  01-445-4870 Equipment Shop Vacs

37292 Total:  257.34

 82.94  0.00 11/04/2024  010/11/2024 No37292-02

  01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies Cleaner, Garbage Can

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 31

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c282ae83-db70-44ce-ab93-7d5b724d98b0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9488e96c-689e-44d7-bf6e-b2f1ae9f2143
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1e6bfb77-9f69-4bda-a710-56c6a784e130
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4568
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=86eba84e-a48a-47f2-a92a-caad6b11f156
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d2c86896-8071-4388-8863-9176dd802609
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6f8318f8-7492-4dc8-8675-6b01a8939a82
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4563
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=546e7adc-b11d-48d1-a138-70a44eecc8af
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4480
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3461b11d-30d4-431d-b283-1ca70a4260bb
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d716089f-4177-4080-8ede-5ef4b101fe5d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4421


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

37292-02 Total:  82.94

 111.63  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No37406

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint PVC Pipe, Couplers

37406 Total:  111.63

 67.15  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No37406-02

  01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies Mouse Trap, Paper Towels

37406-02 Total:  67.15

 1.97  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No37407

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Pipe Coupler

37407 Total:  1.97

 61.85  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No37506

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Conduit, 4" Drain Pipe

37506 Total:  61.85

 19.08  0.00 11/04/2024  010/16/2024 No37543

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Couplers

37543 Total:  19.08

Menards Total:  1,250.74

Metro West COG

032210

 1,070.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No5622

  01-410-4390 Dues & Meetings Metro West Golf Outing (6)

5622 Total:  1,070.00

 350.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/14/2024 No5622-02

  01-430-4390 Dues & Meetings Metro West Golf Outing (2)

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 32

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=143f41d6-670f-4dc4-8024-c728efa0939f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=44b0ba21-1637-401c-81d8-9579344e856e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4421
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=212d6761-5825-441b-a465-095c38fa085f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=822c2ce4-81df-4d18-84c8-0e4785a61135
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9eb51b75-d723-4ced-90a4-5090233b7e56
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032210
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032210
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e849bee0-1e61-4490-a712-a54177bf1d2d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-410-4390
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6633248a-33aa-4ddd-8a6f-29641db27afa
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4390


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

5622-02 Total:  350.00

Metro West COG Total:  1,420.00

Midwest Occupational Health M.S.

051110

 65.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No212539

  60-445-4799 Misc. Expenditures Random Screening (1)

212539 Total:  65.00

 300.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No212539-02

  01-445-4799 Misc. Expenditures Random Screening (4)

212539-02 Total:  300.00

Midwest Occupational Hea  365.00

Midwest Trading

029150

 811.02  0.00 11/04/2024  09/18/2024 NoI533310

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Potting Soil For Planters

I533310 Total:  811.02

Midwest Trading Total:  811.02

Monroe Truck Equipment, Inc.

031330

 30,737.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/23/2024 No81538

  71-430-4870 Equipment Truck Work- Water

81538 Total:  30,737.00

Monroe Truck Equipment,  30,737.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 33

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=051110
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=051110
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=502004f5-048b-4098-b765-2d06a2c5b554
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f910e8fc-4191-4ccb-9ec2-2b98bca5e63f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4799
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029150
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029150
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9b13d1ce-d9bf-4796-a24c-63c5400e7db0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031330
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031330
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c1ed5f72-6726-4cfd-8205-5f2d84ed0aa3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:71-430-4870


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Mooney & Thomas, Pc

001040

 850.00  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No9218513

  01-435-4267 Finance Services Payroll Processing- Sept 2024

9218513 Total:  850.00

 75.00  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No9218515

  80-430-4581 Banking Services/Fees Police Pension- October 2024

9218515 Total:  75.00

Mooney & Thomas, Pc To  925.00

Motorola Solutions- STARCOM21

002980

 734.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/1/2024 No8810020240903

  01-440-4652 Phones and Connectivity STARCOM21- Oct 2024

8810020240903 Total:  734.00

Motorola Solutions- STAR  734.00

MSAB Inc.

052550

 4,305.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/16/2024 No14919-X3Q6C7

  01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Forensic Software

14919-X3Q6C7 Total:  4,305.00

MSAB Inc. Total:  4,305.00

Municipal Electronics Division, LLC

020440

 655.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/2/2024 No070946

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Radar Re-Cert

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 34

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001040
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001040
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1ccfb2bc-b5cb-4e9f-b667-1e0d5ecdc281
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-435-4267
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9c0f8331-1b1b-423b-a2c7-f4768506d915
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:80-430-4581
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=002980
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=002980
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7b81a1b2-06bc-4cb4-b564-4c2ac03787ec
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=052550
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=052550
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a24d9ac5-a20f-4237-a1de-2a4299f5d760
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=020440
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=020440
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bb9dbb64-5956-403b-a898-deaec4e5ccdf
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

070946 Total:  655.00

Municipal Electronics Divi  655.00

North Aurora NAPA, Inc.

038730

 592.97  0.00 11/04/2024  09/17/2024 No474333

  60-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Rad Hose, Radiator- Truck #183

474333 Total:  592.97

 198.12  0.00 11/04/2024  010/3/2024 No475542

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Filters- Truck #181

475542 Total:  198.12

 282.83  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 No475610

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Parts

475610 Total:  282.83

 190.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 No475623

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Air Filters

475623 Total:  190.00

 50.07  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 No475625

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Fuel Filters- Truck #128

475625 Total:  50.07

 432.96  0.00 11/04/2024  010/7/2024 No475745

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Adapter & Hitch

475745 Total:  432.96

 63.01  0.00 11/04/2024  010/7/2024 No475747

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Capsules- Truck #191

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 35

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038730
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038730
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b8e34459-5e2c-46f6-a0d0-7874533c5af5
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=de6ab5c3-7c76-49b8-afe2-c734ee8ae229
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0090a214-e0bb-48f9-8180-e83d045d5e22
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=66654f19-dff8-496c-973a-256fa6523762
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3d463550-2496-452d-a4cc-781a377d5693
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=530adf64-2e7b-4c4f-9941-107bae5c15b3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=118c98c7-c5ee-4af5-ac26-c70ef7095da1
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

475747 Total:  63.01

 20.22  0.00 11/04/2024  010/7/2024 No475749

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Tools

475749 Total:  20.22

 89.78  0.00 11/04/2024  010/7/2024 No475792

  01-445-4870 Equipment Fuel Can Hitch Pins

475792 Total:  89.78

 357.99  0.00 11/04/2024  010/7/2024 No475793

  01-445-4870 Equipment Pressure Test Kit

475793 Total:  357.99

 66.15  0.00 11/04/2024  010/8/2024 No475831

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Squad Parts

475831 Total:  66.15

 12.86  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No475901

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Sockets

475901 Total:  12.86

 270.90  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No475909

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Battery

475909 Total:  270.90

 23.10  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No475913

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Fuel Filter

475913 Total:  23.10

North Aurora NAPA, Inc. T  2,650.96

North East Multi-Regional Training, Inc.

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 36

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d17669b6-2437-42c5-bca7-8644195952a0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1a027583-cbf3-45c3-9459-31563868bbd8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ef89ced2-2bf7-4998-baf2-5d18b0430486
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4870
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6e14edf4-dafc-48d3-bfdc-60c7d3fb3c16
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6ded8248-99d3-43a9-b2d6-f54acbdce1df
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=87237390-712c-4f78-aaea-df61f8f29e97
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8aa65357-d0a2-456a-8525-92f3b56bbc6f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001520


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

001520

 80.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/16/2024 No363417

  01-440-4380 Training Training- Majerus

363417 Total:  80.00

North East Multi-Regional  80.00

Office Depot

039370

 28.34  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 No389579788001

  01-430-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

389579788001 Total:  28.34

 28.34  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 No389579788001-02

  01-445-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

389579788001-02 Total:  28.34

 28.34  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 No389579788001-03

  60-445-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

389579788001-03 Total:  28.34

 28.34  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 No389579788001-04

  01-441-4411 Office Expenses Office Supplies

389579788001-04 Total:  28.34

Office Depot Total:  113.36

Ottosen DiNolfo Hasenbalg & Castaldo, Ltd.

031590

 253.50  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 No9776

  01-430-4260 Legal September 2024 Legal

9776 Total:  253.50

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 37

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001520
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b6595b42-ad38-416e-b7dd-4eac0dce35fd
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039370
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039370
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=035a6d3e-d29c-4b36-b43a-59185ed9e339
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=088d7edb-538f-4064-8f55-3bd3a0af46c3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=10d908cc-2231-48ce-a527-880d8477d7cd
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1b8ab6b3-0138-4bb0-9866-3230d0be998f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4411
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031590
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031590
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=56bad670-06d6-4404-89ff-54616c984a5e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4260


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Ottosen DiNolfo Hasenbal  253.50

Pace Analytical Services, LLC

031940

 275.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No247220938

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) Water Samples

247220938 Total:  275.00

Pace Analytical Services, L  275.00

Padron Enterprises

468889

 25.58  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

10152024 Total:  25.58

 0.75  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024-02

  18-320-3350 Sewer Collection Sewer Maintenance Credit Refund

10152024-02 Total:  0.75

Padron Enterprises Total:  26.33

Performance Construction & Engineering, LLC

468556

 125,646.94  0.00 11/04/2024  010/18/2024 NoPay 6

  21-456-4875 Capital Improvements Storm Sewer Construction- Tanner/ Remington

Pay 6 Total:  125,646.94

Performance Construction  125,646.94

Premier Tint Pros Corp.

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 38

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031940
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031940
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=da790b49-a62b-4212-958b-d9a933e07451
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468889
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468889
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d302dcf6-7feb-428b-98e6-bbd8ba46fa04
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-320-3340
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4e4bb405-70dc-42ed-9e8c-363bcc5124df
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:18-320-3350
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468556
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468556
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5b53889a-d8f0-42c4-bba6-b0dc4d7ff04c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:21-456-4875
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=052510


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

052510

 180.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/11/2024 No2457

  01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Tint For Squads- #74, #75, #79

2457 Total:  180.00

Premier Tint Pros Corp. To  180.00

ProFlow Pumping Solutions

039420

 1,871.03  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 NoINV29880

  60-445-4567 Treatment Plant Repair/Maint Hydro Pump Parts

INV29880 Total:  1,871.03

ProFlow Pumping Solution  1,871.03

Randy Voss

468317

 50.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024

  01-410-4015 Pension Board-Mtgs Per Diem Police Pension Board Meeting 10/15/24

10152024 Total:  50.00

Randy Voss Total:  50.00

RAY O'HERRON Co., INC

044220

 818.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/17/2024 No2371981

  01-440-4160 Uniform Allowance New Vest

2371981 Total:  818.00

RAY O'HERRON Co., INC  818.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 39

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=052510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8870de84-95ad-4a80-b599-6d9c2fb31ccb
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039420
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039420
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8f56bcd1-de45-46ae-8813-de3760cfe0fe
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4567
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468317
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468317
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b08a45e7-6e2d-4123-aed6-42325ba4d727
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-410-4015
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044220
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=044220
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8b97132c-e70a-4131-b17d-4c37a0d4d1aa
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4160


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Robyn Stecklein

022080

 50.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024

  01-410-4015 Pension Board-Mtgs Per Diem Police Pension Board Meeting 10/15/24

10152024 Total:  50.00

Robyn Stecklein Total:  50.00

Sebert Landscaping

032840

 780.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/1/2024 No281190

  17-007-4533 Maintenance SSA Grass Cutting- Oak Hill

281190 Total:  780.00

 1,207.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/30/2024 No282326

  17-004-4533 Maintenance Mowing- SSA4

282326 Total:  1,207.00

 1,115.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/30/2024 No282326-02

  17-008-4533 Maintenance Mowing- SSA8

282326-02 Total:  1,115.00

 381.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/30/2024 No282326-03

  17-009-4533 Maintenance Mowing- SSA9

282326-03 Total:  381.00

 63.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/30/2024 No282326-04

  17-011-4533 Maintenance Mowing- SSA11

282326-04 Total:  63.00

 4,142.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/30/2024 No282326-05

  01-445-4531 Grass Cutting Public Mowing

282326-05 Total:  4,142.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 40

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=022080
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=022080
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8a9bee63-d334-4bd4-86f4-dbfe168d6b93
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-410-4015
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032840
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032840
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f0f3237c-1f03-42c6-9e2e-0b2459f485b0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:17-007-4533
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=71f9c31e-77ad-4aa2-9cf5-a74500060381
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:17-004-4533
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=483af798-0071-4e7e-9351-85b021be509b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:17-008-4533
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=320407f4-de00-4325-86c2-bf43a8915597
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:17-009-4533
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1321f85b-a230-4172-8aad-289408c6104c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:17-011-4533
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=badebd4d-eab3-4da4-9b73-b48d3846e47f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4531


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Sebert Landscaping Total:  7,688.00

Skyline Tree Service & Landscaping

467665

 3,300.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/18/2024 No16695

  01-445-4532 Tree Service WMB Tree Removal- 323 Hill Ave

16695 Total:  3,300.00

Skyline Tree Service & Lan  3,300.00

Springbrook Software LLC

467920

 144.00  0.00 11/04/2024  09/30/2024 NoINV-018578

  60-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint IVR Payments- Sept 2024

INV-018578 Total:  144.00

Springbrook Software LLC  144.00

St. Charles Trading, Inc.

033210

 2,824.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/2/2024 NoIN2426242

  60-445-4438 Salt - Treatment Salt- MIOX

IN2426242 Total:  2,824.00

St. Charles Trading, Inc. To  2,824.00

Steve Kish

468888

 30.37  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024

  60-320-3340 Water Collections Water Credit Refund

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 41

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467665
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467665
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=806a28bc-e126-40df-abe2-e39ff20173be
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4532
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467920
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467920
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9a827238-0fff-4f3e-a8ed-c2400f9026b3
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033210
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033210
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4525802f-c74f-4751-a150-f2db71bfe11f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4438
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468888
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468888
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4e18e14d-20c0-451f-8c49-af44c8998a8f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-320-3340


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

10152024 Total:  30.37

 0.90  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No10152024-02

  18-320-3350 Sewer Collection Sewer Maintenance Credit Refund

10152024-02 Total:  0.90

Steve Kish Total:  31.27

Suburban Accents

026710

 461.50  0.00 11/04/2024  010/8/2024 No35535

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Village Logos (10)

35535 Total:  461.50

 260.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/8/2024 No35536

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Village Logos (26)

35536 Total:  260.00

Suburban Accents Total:  721.50

Sunbelt Rentals, Inc.

043800

 476.38  0.00 11/04/2024  08/5/2024 No157402539-0005

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses Light Tower- NA Days

157402539-0005 Total:  476.38

 233.64  0.00 11/04/2024  08/5/2024 No157584001-0001

  15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses Light Tower- NA Days

157584001-0001 Total:  233.64

Sunbelt Rentals, Inc. Total:  710.02

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 42

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0321b806-b19e-4266-a5bb-ad3166e651ba
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:18-320-3350
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=026710
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=026710
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b0cf80f3-a8e9-4b87-99c9-f67b251fe70d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e844df24-bbda-47c1-b675-014186f8f0e1
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=043800
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=043800
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b6fe187c-2024-495a-9cc1-c7d3b1468858
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=703c18c8-58ea-4427-bf4b-48e3281ad77c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:15-430-4751


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Superior Asphalt Materials LLC

031440

 190.57  0.00 11/04/2024  09/13/2024 No20241286

  01-445-4540 Streets & Alleys Rpr & Mtce Asphalt

20241286 Total:  190.57

 179.84  0.00 11/04/2024  010/3/2024 No20241447

  01-445-4540 Streets & Alleys Rpr & Mtce Asphalt

20241447 Total:  179.84

Superior Asphalt Materials  370.41

Technology Management Rev Fund

007390

 517.01  0.00 11/04/2024  09/23/2024 NoT2504740

  01-440-4652 Phones and Connectivity LEADS

T2504740 Total:  517.01

Technology Management R  517.01

The Sherwin Williams Co.

043550

 60.76  0.00 11/04/2024  010/7/2024 No4118-0

  01-445-4540 Streets & Alleys Rpr & Mtce White Marking Paint

4118-0 Total:  60.76

The Sherwin Williams Co.  60.76

Third Millennium Assoc. , Inc.

033470

 604.71  0.00 11/04/2024  09/27/2024 No31973

  60-445-4507 Printing Late/ Final Bills

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 43

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031440
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031440
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8d705ac9-c4bc-47cf-a9a9-06cbe0979cd5
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4540
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=372209b2-ceab-47f1-9178-c8d8eb3d49ae
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4540
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=007390
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=007390
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=79814182-3a4d-4590-a503-ab5f37d1824d
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4652
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=043550
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=043550
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1bec9ddd-8ad0-4935-977d-e34927dd7164
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4540
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033470
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033470
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=15ddb733-66ee-4890-8b69-04e51139e320
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4507


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

31973 Total:  604.71

Third Millennium Assoc. ,  604.71

TRI-R Systems Incorporated

468416

 510.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/21/2024 No006208

  60-445-4564 SCADA Repair & Maintenance SCADA Maintenance

006208 Total:  510.00

 2,125.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/21/2024 No006209

  60-445-4564 SCADA Repair & Maintenance SCADA Maintenance

006209 Total:  2,125.00

 9,000.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/22/2024 No006224

  60-445-4875 Capital Improvements SCADA Upgrade- Pay Req #1

006224 Total:  9,000.00

TRI-R Systems Incorporat  11,635.00

Uline, Inc

468220

 206.77  0.00 11/04/2024  09/25/2024 No183532545

  01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint Tarp For Salt

183532545 Total:  206.77

 404.38  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No184391805

  01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies Custodial Supplies- PD

184391805 Total:  404.38

Uline, Inc Total:  611.15

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 44

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468416
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468416
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0d21b53f-12c1-4f4f-bb6c-5637a437b55c
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4564
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fe6eafa6-83a8-41a5-b9ae-08b53e87c0f8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4564
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2d1813c4-b2c1-41c1-adba-b12054304985
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4875
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468220
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468220
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=08d9e03e-f54e-4559-bcd8-9e44abfd2f7f
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4530
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=06254878-f9a2-4a79-8deb-349bdf971810
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4421


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

University of Illinois

002780

 525.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 NoUPI12771

  01-440-4383 Firearm Training Training Class- McGrath

UPI12771 Total:  525.00

University of Illinois Total  525.00

USABlueBook

035680

 1,928.26  0.00 11/04/2024  09/26/2024 NoINV00495852

  60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. Water Filters- Lead

INV00495852 Total:  1,928.26

 359.74  0.00 11/04/2024  09/26/2024 NoINV00496038

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) Deionized Water

INV00496038 Total:  359.74

 666.95  0.00 11/04/2024  010/1/2024 NoINV00500808

  60-445-4562 Testing (water) Reagents/ Chemicals

INV00500808 Total:  666.95

USABlueBook Total:  2,954.95

Van's Lock & Key Service, Inc.

005070

 30.00  0.00 11/04/2024  09/16/2024 No103095

  60-445-4799 Misc. Expenditures Duplicate Keys (10)

103095 Total:  30.00

Van's Lock & Key Service,  30.00

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 45

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=002780
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=002780
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=35cf7bac-20b7-4f85-a5f4-126ee21bbc62
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-440-4383
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035680
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035680
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=903824cd-4f64-47d5-ae6f-13d17938e866
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4568
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=21c764f4-9a48-4bce-acae-a147fd612159
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=34c2b687-1bff-4189-aa31-bc50b16ee68b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4562
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=005070
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=005070
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ff27f306-2cc4-40c2-a899-1c2d8ed79bab
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4799


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

Vermeer Midwest

031800

 404.77  0.00 11/04/2024  09/23/2024 NoPM3979

  01-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Choker Assembly

PM3979 Total:  404.77

Vermeer Midwest Total:  404.77

Water Products Company

001170

 147.75  0.00 11/04/2024  010/8/2024 No0325378

  60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 2" Repair Clamp

0325378 Total:  147.75

 1,785.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/15/2024 No0325459

  60-445-4563 Fire Hydrant Repair/maint Hydrant Parts

0325459 Total:  1,785.00

Water Products Company T  1,932.75

Water Resources

010380

 10,940.50  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No37623

  60-445-4480 New Meters,rprs. & Rplcmts. Meter Order

37623 Total:  10,940.50

Water Resources Total:  10,940.50

WBK Engineering, LLC

467655

 6,511.12  0.00 11/04/2024  010/9/2024 No26090

  19-438-4255 Engineering Pole Engineering- IL31 & Oak

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 46

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031800
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031800
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4c14bcf0-674f-435b-bc22-9c7795ad06d0
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4510
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001170
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001170
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5fde063f-f897-40e6-b2e5-0d142a891483
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4568
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7d141e7a-7936-47f1-8caf-1ccf933f5150
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4563
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=010380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=010380
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e00ee396-e513-49c2-af3c-17be3f315a47
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:60-445-4480
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467655
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467655
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cf15f932-196f-46d7-985e-647aee50d416
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:19-438-4255


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

26090 Total:  6,511.12

 625.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26119

  01-441-4255 Engineering Site Review- 553 Quail

26119 Total:  625.00

 625.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26120

  01-441-4255 Engineering Site Review- 529 Quail

26120 Total:  625.00

 625.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26121

  01-441-4255 Engineering Site Review- 569 Quail

26121 Total:  625.00

 423.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26122

  01-441-4255 Engineering Engineering Consult

26122 Total:  423.00

 2,502.68  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26123

  90-000-E279 ESI Constructors - Aurora Pack Site Review- Aurora Packing

26123 Total:  2,502.68

 14,132.19  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26124

  90-000-E110 NW Corner Randall & Oak(Lot 6) Site Inspection- Randall Square

26124 Total:  14,132.19

 292.50  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26125

  90-000-E274 Randall Terrace LLC - Next Gen Engineering Consult

26125 Total:  292.50

 32.50  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26126

  90-000-E275 NICOR Project - Weaver Site Review- Nicor Gas Trans Central Station

26126 Total:  32.50

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 47

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=296bffca-8ace-4bdf-b15a-b5577bee8e45
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a00f9e9f-2da2-4d81-80e8-37bb2a007e2a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=97b952a7-f6ca-48cd-a461-21d0d48d1a26
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ff22389d-ea98-4a57-9333-901bf5f5736e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-441-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=00fbeaae-f2d5-45ea-8275-0813f1313d03
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E279
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=35ba3fd7-66ad-4844-90be-04214b18691b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E110
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9f759f97-1b94-471c-add9-1235ebf77877
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E274
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=019048e4-2110-4766-aa82-62c7309ade78
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E275


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

 6,575.23  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26127

  90-000-E288 NA Fire Department Site Inspection- NAFD Station No 1

26127 Total:  6,575.23

 2,161.79  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26128

  90-000-E273 Phelan Development - Park 88 Site Close Out- Park 88 Logistic Center

26128 Total:  2,161.79

 235.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26129

  90-000-E232 DR Horton - FV Golf Course Site Close Out- Lincoln Valley Ph2 & Ph3

26129 Total:  235.00

 6,500.06  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26130

  90-000-E264 McCue - Mooselakes Site Inspection- Moose Lake Estates- Unit 3

26130 Total:  6,500.06

 1,746.87  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26131

  90-000-E286 River Front RAM Truck Facility Site Inspection- River Front Ram

26131 Total:  1,746.87

 3,443.63  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26132

  90-000-E293 Opus - Euclid Expansion Site Inspection- Euclid Beverage

26132 Total:  3,443.63

 6,312.41  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26133

  90-000-E296 300 Mitchell Rd - Liberty IL Site Inspection- 300 Mitchell Road

26133 Total:  6,312.41

 539.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26134

  90-000-E299 Towne Centre Senior Apartments Site Review- Clover Development

26134 Total:  539.00

 1,423.50  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26135

  90-000-E142 Fortunato Restaurant Site Close Out- Fortunato

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 48

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7aac96c3-10c7-4494-802f-8112acbb26ce
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E288
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6ea63e30-331d-4b74-b407-45d5ad1d1722
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E273
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ddfc8470-bced-4a35-97cc-dc06f8da27ef
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E232
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=739cba54-0d78-4b53-ab8d-b5b2f7ca0f2a
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E264
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=56b29864-c5dd-4ad8-ae18-159d2b160324
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E286
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e4a6c41c-e30f-4d3e-996e-e69351a37439
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E293
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=48009c14-b169-42b3-978b-ece9f9ab7c73
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E296
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4a80bf5c-3830-4b80-b8cd-4c1494802828
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E299
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=db961c33-17e5-422f-97c2-dd77c69a31ea
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E142


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

26135 Total:  1,423.50

 839.69  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26136

  90-000-E260 200 Poplar Parking Lot Site Inspection- 200 Poplar Place Bldg Addition

26136 Total:  839.69

 3,462.45  0.00 11/04/2024  010/10/2024 No26137

  90-000-E270 Seasons at North Aurora Site Inspection- Seasons

26137 Total:  3,462.45

 13,813.77  0.00 11/04/2024  010/11/2024 No26148

  21-452-4255 Engineering Site Design- PW Facility

26148 Total:  13,813.77

WBK Engineering, LLC To  72,822.39

Weblinx Incorporated

031420

 200.00  0.00 11/04/2024  010/3/2024 No34453

  01-430-4512 Website Maintenance Website Maintenance- October 2024

34453 Total:  200.00

Weblinx Incorporated Total  200.00

Weldstar Company

014090

 264.96  0.00 11/04/2024  010/23/2024 No0002329917

  01-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint Cylinder Rental

0002329917 Total:  264.96

Weldstar Company Total:  264.96

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 49

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a5e6a4c4-771c-4068-9f94-0a2c2659346e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E260
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c4171146-1b58-4a03-9356-87a6f847da8b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:90-000-E270
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fb5ef73f-31fc-43a9-8529-2f1861a3da5b
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:21-452-4255
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031420
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031420
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=82f08147-1daf-433c-9b6e-a60131b1d58e
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-430-4512
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=014090
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=014090
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=cdb96ee1-68e7-4036-a538-24fa072c6755
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4510


Invoice Number Invoice Date Amount Quantity Payment Date

Description Reference

Type PO # Close PO Line #Task Label

Account Number

West Side Tractor Sales

001180

 593.16  0.00 11/04/2024  010/4/2024 NoN59226

  01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint Filter Kit/ Element

N59226 Total:  593.16

West Side Tractor Sales To  593.16

Whispering Pines Reindeer Ranch, LLC

468421

 1,167.50  0.00 11/04/2024  010/24/2024 No10242024

  01-490-4759 Community Events Reindeer- Making Spirits Bight (Final Pay)

10242024 Total:  1,167.50

Whispering Pines Reindeer  1,167.50

Report Total:  880,666.30

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/30/2024 -  1:58 PM) Page 50

*** means this invoice number is a duplicate.

https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001180
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=001180
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4eeaa589-a0ee-48e0-b340-5955a8a76cff
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-445-4511
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468421
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468421
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d27124a0-fd88-4f4b-9402-4a7a2e4dcaa8
https://cirrus3070.springbrooksoftware.com/home?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:01-490-4759


4-Nov-24 Village Board Meeting

NAME EVENT
EXPENSE or 

REIMBURSEMENT
DATE  AMOUNT 

Mark Gaffino Metro West Golf Outing Expense 9/25/2024  $   175.00 

Todd Niedzwiedz Metro West Golf Outing Expense 9/25/2024  $   175.00 

Mark Guethle Metro West Golf Outing Expense 9/25/2024  $   175.00 

Mike Lowery Metro West Golf Outing Expense 9/25/2024  $   175.00 

Jason Christiansen Metro West Golf Outing Expense 9/25/2024  $   185.00 

Carolyn Bird Salazar Metro West Golf Outing Expense 9/25/2024  $   185.00 

 TOTAL  $1,070.00 

Travel and Expenses for Business Purposes





 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
BOARD REPORT 

TO:  VILLAGE PRESIDENT & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
  CC: STEVE BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR  
FROM: NATHAN DARGA, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
SUBJECT: FORTUNATO SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
AGENDA: NOVEMBER 4, 2024 REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

 

ITEM 
A Resolution Acknowledging Substantial Completion Triggering the One-Year Maintenance 
Period and Reduction of the Surety for Public Improvements for Fortunato 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
The Fortunato Restaurant on the west side of Orchard Road developed by Landware LLC (Parker 
Grabowski) is now open.  This is on lot 13 of the Orchard Commons Subdivision and was 
approved as a PUD.  The developer is requesting the reduction of the development security.  The 
original security was $293,631.60.  This was reduced to $55,506.00 in May 2024.  The Village 
Engineer has determined that the project is now substantially complete so the security can be 
reduced further to the 20% maintenance level which is $48,938.60.  This will begin the one-year 
maintenance period.   
 



 

 RESOLUTION No. _____________________ 
 

RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 
TRIGGERING THE ONE-YEAR MAINTENANCE PERIOD 

AND REDUCTION OF THE SURETY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR 
FORTUNATO 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Landware LLC represented by Parker Grabowski (the “Developer”) has 
substantially completed the public improvements associated with the Fortunate Restaurant located 
on Lot 13 of the Orchard Commons Subdivision (the “Public Improvements”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Developer has requested that the Village acknowledge substantial 
completion of the Public Improvements, authorize a reduction of the associated surety to the one-
year maintenance amount, and trigger the beginning of the one-year maintenance period; and 
 
 WHEREAS, WBK Engineering, LLC, the Village engineers overseeing the Development 
(the “Village Engineer”), confirms the substantial completion of the public improvements, has 
created a one-year maintenance punch-list and recommends initiation of the one-year maintenance 
period.  
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and the Board of Trustees 
of the Village of North Aurora, as follows: 
 
 
 1. Recital set forth above and incorporated herein as the material findings of fact of the 
President and the Board of Trustees. 
 
 2. The Village hereby acknowledges substantial completion of the Public Improvements.   
 
 3. The surety for the Public Improvements is hereby authorized to be reduced to 20% of the 
original estimate which equals $48,938.60 as determined by the Village Engineer. 
 
 4. The one-year maintenance period shall begin from and after the passage and approval of 
this Resolution, during which time the Developer shall complete any punch-list items identified 
by the Village Engineer and satisfy all of the one-year maintenance obligations established by the 
North Aurora Code as a condition of acceptance of the Public Improvements, which acceptance 
and release of cash surety must be approved by the North Aurora Village Board after the one-year 
maintenance obligations have been satisfied. 
 
 5. This Resolution shall take immediate force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval as provided by law. 
 
 
 
 



 

 Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
this ____ day of ___________, 2024, A.D. 
 
 
 Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 
____ day of ___________, 2024, A.D. 
 

Jason Christiansen  _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
 

Mark Guethle  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 
 

  Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
  
 
 
 
 Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North 
Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this ____ day of __________, 2024, A.D. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
ATTEST:     Mark Gaffino, Village President 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jessi Watkins, Village Clerk 
 
 





BOSS811-Village of North Aurora,
IL

Quote created: October 29, 2024 Reference: 20241029-084829296

Village of North Aurora

55 North Randall Road

North Aurora, IL 60542

United States

David Arndt

darndt@northaurora.org

6308978228

Products & Services

BOSS811 Base Subscription

Cloud-Based Ticket Management System; includes all out of box features such as util‐

ity map integration, mobile apps, unlimited users, etc. Includes up to 6,000 tickets. 

Excess tickets are billed at $.30 per ticket

1 x  $2,000.00 / year

BOSS811 Implementation & Training

One Time Configuration & Training 

Additional professional services billed at $150/hr as requested.

5 x  $150.00

BOSS811 SMS Texting Capability-OPTIONAL

Add-On: SMS/Text Notifications

0 x  $300.00 / year

Comments

No charge for ACH payments or checks. All estimates good for 90 days. No data migration is
included in this estimate.

Brad Keeter - Business Development Director BOSS



BOSS811 IVR/Voice Call Capability-OPTIONAL

Add-On: Voice Call Notifications to Assigned Locator

0 x  $600.00 / year

BOSS811 Base Annual Subscription Renewal-EXCLUDING OPTIONS

Cloud-Based Ticket Management System; includes all out of box features such as util‐

ity map integration, mobile apps, unlimited users, etc. Includes up to 6,000 tickets. 

Excess tickets are billed at $.30 per ticket

0 x  $2,000.00 / year

Annual subtotal $2,000.00

One-time subtotal $750.00

Total $2,750.00

Total contract value $2,750.00

Signature

Signature Date

Printed name

This quote expires on January 27, 2025

Questions? Contact me

Brad Keeter

Purchase terms

The purchase and use of the services, licenses and products described herein are subject
solely to the standard terms and conditions ofthe BOSS811 software Subscription
Agreement, and is incorporated herein by reference (the " Terms of Service"). By signing this
Quote/Order Form you are agreeing that you have read and agreed to the terms and
conditions of the Terms of Service. The terms of the Terms and conditions of service may
only be modified as provided therein.



Business Development Director

bradk@boss-solutions.com

5128707538

BOSS

350 Research Ct Suite 110

Norcross GA 30092

US



 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
BOARD REPORT 

TO:  VILLAGE PRESIDENT & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
  CC: STEVE BOSCO, VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR  
FROM:  NATHAN DARGA, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
SUBJECT: PETITION #24-01: 302 MITCHELL ROAD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
AGENDA: NOVEMBER 4, 2024 BOARD MEETING 

 

ITEM 
An Ordinance Approving a Special Use as an Industrial Planned Unit Development for 24 Acres 
of Property in the Liberty Business Center at 302 Mitchell Road in the Village of North Aurora 
 
DISCUSSION 
The petitioner (Prologis) is proposing to establish the property as an industrial planned unit 
development (“PUD”). The petitioner intends to construct a 439,380 square-foot industrial 
office/warehouse building on Lot 3, which consists of 23.96 acres in the Liberty Business Center.  
Lot 3 is located immediately west of the existing building at 300 Mitchell Road (lot 2).   
 
The Plan Commission reviewed the proposal at their February 6, 2024 meeting.  The Village 
Board reviewed Petition #24-01 at the February 19, 2024, August 5, 2024, and October 16, 2024 
Committee of the Whole meetings.  Based on the feedback from these meetings, staff is 
recommending approval of the PUD with the following conditions: 
 

a) The existing tree line / landscaping on the north end of subject property shall be maintained 
and any dead or missing landscaping shall be replaced so that the continuous landscape 
screen is always in place. 

b) All outdoor lighting shall follow the Village’s Outdoor Lighting Ordinance (Chapter 8.32).  
Additionally, any light poles located along the northern drive aisle shall be limited to 20 feet 
in height from surrounding grade. 

c) On-site management shall effectively monitor and regulate all on-site trucking activities in 
order to minimize any light, sound and odor emissions as well as any other performance 
standards per Section 12.5 of the Zoning Ordinance.  Specifically, the drive aisle on the 
northern side of the building shall be kept free and clear and shall have no truck parking, 
standing, idling, or stacking.   

d) A ten foot (10’) tall solid fence shall be installed between the northern property line and the 
northern drive aisle along the length of the norther property line.   

e) Any other fencing on the property shall be black, vinyl coated chain link construction and 
limited to eight (8) feet in height.   

f) All business activities shall be conducted completely within the confines of the buildings. 

g) The keeping of any goods, material, merchandise or equipment outside of the building(s) 
shall be prohibited.  

h) All dumpsters located on the subject property shall be screened per Section 14.11.A of the 
Zoning Ordinance.  



2 

i) All mechanical equipment located on the subject property shall be screened per Section 
12.3.D of the Zoning Ordinance. 

j) The petitioner shall have the right to land bank parking stalls at any time.  Future installation 
of land banked parking stalls shall be subject to building permit approval.  

k) A separate building permit shall be required for any guardhouses or gates so the Village 
can validate the optimal location in order to avoid any potential impact on site access and 
circulation.  

l) Any large water user (over 5,000 gallons per day) must provide information for a water 
impact study and pay an impact fee per section 13.24.060. 

 
The PUD will also include a section for off-site improvements.  This will require a fence on the 
300 Mitchell Road property to match what is being built on 302.  The result will be a continuous 
10’ screen along the northern property line.  It will also grant the developer a permit fee credit in 
the amount of 50% of the cost of the fence for the 300 Mitchell property.  The 10’ fence on 300 
Mitchel was estimated to be Approximately $180,000.  The language states we will grant a permit 
fee discount for 50% of the cost of the fence up to a maximum of $100,000.  This caps the Village’s 
cost while allowing some room for inflation.  This language along with all the exhibits are included 
int the ordinance in the packet.  
  



  
 
 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
Ordinance No. ___________________ 

 
______________________________________________________________________________  
 

APPROVING A SPECIAL USE AS AN 
INDUSTRIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR 24 ACRES OF 

PROPERTY IN THE LIBERTY BUSINESS CENTER AT 302 MITCHELL ROAD IN 
THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

______________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 

Adopted by the 
Board of Trustees and President 
of the Village of North Aurora 

this ____ day of __________, 2024 
 

 
Published in Pamphlet Form 

by authority of the Board of Trustees of the 
Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, 

this ____ day of __________, 2024 
by ________________________________. 

 
 

Signed _____________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _____________________ 
 

APPROVING A SPECIAL USE AS AN 
INDUSTRIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR 24 ACRES OF 

PROPERTY IN THE LIBERTY BUSINESS CENTER AT 302 MITCHELL ROAD IN 
THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
WHEREAS, an application has been filed for a Special Use as a Planned Development for 

certain real estate described herein (the “Petition”) in the Village of North Aurora, an Illinois 
municipal corporation (“Village”) by Liberty Illinois, LP (“Developer”) as described in the 
application materials attached as Exhibit B; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the parcels of land located at 302 Mitchell Road and legally described in the 
document attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A (“Subject Property”) are currently, 
zoned O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial District; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the North Aurora Plan Commission (“Plan Commission”) held a public 
hearing on February 6, 2024 on the Petition for Special Use – Planned Unit Development for the 
Subject Property as a warehousing, storage and distribution facility and site plan review in 
accordance with State and local laws, including the notice requirements for the public hearings; 
and, 
 

WHEREAS, the North Aurora Village Board (“Village Board”) has received and reviewed 
the favorable recommendation of the Plan Commission with certain conditions in keeping with all 
the factors required to be considered for Special Use/PUDs and has determined that granting the 
Special Use/PUD and site plan requests is warranted and in the best interests of the Village. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the President and Trustee of the Village of North 
Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

 
SECTION 1: DEVELOPMENT OF SUBJECT PROPERTY  
 

Development of the Subject Property shall be in conformity with all applicable ordinances 
of the Village as now in effect, including the provisions for O-R-I Office, Research and Light 
Industrial District zoning, except as otherwise provided or specifically varied in this PUD 
Ordinance, including the additional procedures, definitions, uses, and restrictions contained herein.   
 

A. ZONING AND LAND USE REQUIREMENTS  
 

The Subject Property shall be developed in compliance with the terms and conditions of 
the O-R-I Office, Research and Light Industrial District and other applicable zoning, subdivision, 
building and other provisions of the North Aurora Code as the same exist on the effective date 
hereof. 

 
(1) Conditions. The following conditions of the Special Use/PUD are hereby imposed: 

 



a) The existing tree line / landscaping on the north end of subject property shall be 
maintained and any dead or missing landscaping shall be replaced so that the 
continuous landscape screen is always in place. 

b) All outdoor lighting shall follow the Village’s Outdoor Lighting Ordinance 
(Chapter 8.32).  Additionally, any light poles located along the northern drive aisle 
shall be limited to 20 feet in height from surrounding grade. 

c) On-site management shall effectively monitor and regulate all on-site trucking 
activities in order to minimize any light, sound and odor emissions as well as any 
other performance standards per Section 12.5 of the Zoning Ordinance.  
Specifically, the drive aisle on the northern side of the building shall be kept free 
and clear and shall have no truck parking, standing, idling, or stacking.   

d) A ten foot (10’) tall solid fence shall be installed between the northern property line 
and the northern drive aisle along the length of the norther property line.   

e) Any other fencing on the property shall be black, vinyl coated chain link 
construction and limited to eight (8) feet in height.   

f) All business activities shall be conducted completely within the confines of the 
buildings. 

g) The keeping of any goods, material, merchandise or equipment outside of the 
building(s) shall be prohibited.  

h) All dumpsters located on the subject property shall be screened per Section 14.11.A 
of the Zoning Ordinance.  

i) All mechanical equipment located on the subject property shall be screened per 
Section 12.3.D of the Zoning Ordinance. 

j) The petitioner shall have the right to land bank parking stalls at any time.  Future 
installation of land banked parking stalls shall be subject to building permit 
approval.  

k) A separate building permit shall be required for any guardhouses or gates so the 
Village can validate the optimal location in order to avoid any potential impact on 
site access and circulation.  

l) Any large water user (over 5,000 gallons per day) must provide information for a 
water impact study and pay an impact fee per section 13.24.060.   
 

(2) Exceptions.  The following exceptions to Village code are hereby granted. 
a) The fence along the northern property line of both 300 and 302 Mitchell shall be 

allowed to be ten (10) feet in height.  
 

B. OFF SITE IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 The Developer shall install a ten foot (10’) tall solid fence between the northern property 
line and the northern drive aisle along the length of the northern property line of 300 Mitchell 
Road.  This fence shall match the size and style of the fence being constructed at 302 Mitchell.  
In consideration of the cost of this off-site improvement, the Village hereby approves a credit of 
50% of the cost of the fence up to $100,000 towards the otherwise due and owing building permit 



fees for 302 Mitchell.  Such credit shall be deducted from the permit fee owed for 302 Mitchell 
at time of issuance.  Completion of the fence on both 300 and 302 Mitchell Road shall be a 
condition of the permit that must be completed before the Certificate of Occupancy for the 302 
Mitchell Road property will be issued.   

 
C. SITE PLAN, PLAT OF SUBDIVISION, ELEVATIONS, AND LANDSCAPE 

PLANS 
 

The Preliminary Plan and Landscape Plan for the Subject Property, and other supporting 
and explanatory development documents are attached hereto, marked as Exhibits as hereinafter 
shown, and are incorporated herein.  Such Exhibits have been reviewed by the Plan Commission 
and are hereby approved by the Village Board.   
 

(1) The Preliminary Site Plan for the Subject Property prepared by Pinnacle 
Engineering Group dated August 1, 2024 is attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit C (“Preliminary Site Plan”). 

 
(2) The building elevations for the Subject Property prepared by Ware 

Malcomb dated November 16, 2023 are attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 
D (“Preliminary Building Elevations”);   

 
(3) The Preliminary Landscape Plan, Renderings, Cross Sections, and fence 

details for the Subject Property prepared by Pinnacle Engineering Group are attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit E (“Preliminary Landscape Plan”) 

 
D. PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PLANS 

 
The Preliminary Engineering Improvement Plans for the Subject Property prepared by 

Pinnacle Engineering Group dated November 13, 2023 is attached hereto and incorporated herein 
as Exhibit F (“Preliminary Engineering Plans”) and is incorporated herein.  All engineering plans 
are subject to final approval by the Village Engineer.   
 

E. DEVELOPMENT PLANS 
 

Exhibits B through F inclusive, are sometimes referred to collectively herein as the 
“Preliminary Plans”, and the development shall be completed in keeping with the Development 
Plans.   
 
 
SECTION 2: CHANGES TO THE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 

The Preliminary Plans shall be submitted to the Community Development Director for 
review and may be approved as the “Final Development Plans” without the need for more formal 
approval as long as the revisions, if any, are substantially consistent with the Preliminary Plans. If 
the Final Development Plans are not substantially consistent with the Preliminary Plans, they must 
be approved based upon the following provisions. 
 



A. Major Changes. Major changes shall include any changes that require a formal 
amendment of this Ordinance, or any other change for which a public hearing is required by law 
or by the North Aurora Municipal Code, except as specifically provided herein. Whether a change 
is major or minor shall first be determined by the Community Development Director. If a developer 
or landowner disagrees with the Community Development Director's decision, appeal may be 
taken to the Village Board. Major changes must be approved by the Village Board after such 
hearing and recommendation by the Plan Commission as required by statute or Village Ordinance 
pursuant to submittal and processing of a petition filed by the applicant, as set forth in the North 
Aurora Municipal Code. 

 
B. Minor Changes. Minor changes shall include any change not defined herein as a 

major change or a technical change. Minor changes may be approved by the Village Board without 
Plan Commission review or public hearing. 

 
C. Technical Changes. Technical changes may be approved by the Community 

Development Director, and shall include any change to the engineering plans and specifications, 
any change to the building plans or changes in the Preliminary Plans which are determined by the 
Community Development Director as: 

 
(1)  In substantial compliance with the Preliminary Plans or other plans or plats 

as approved by the Village Board; 
 
(2)  In compliance with the North Aurora Municipal Code, as amended, except 

as specifically varied herein; and 
 
(3)  In compliance with good engineering practice. 

 
 
SECTION 3: GUARANTY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
 

After approval of the final plat and prior to signature by the President, Developer shall 
present a letter of credit to guarantee completion of water distribution lines, sanitary sewer lines, 
storm water sewer lines, detention and retention facilities, and other applicable subdivision 
improvements identified in the Final Development Plans to be dedicated to the Village or other 
governmental body (“Public Improvements”) for the development so platted as required by this 
Ordinance (guaranteeing completion and payment of the Public Improvements), herein sometimes 
collectively referred to as the “Guarantee for Completion”, naming the Village as beneficiary or 
obligee, as required and in keeping with the Village Code requirements.   
 
 
SECTION 4: BUILDING CODE AND SUBDIVISION CONTROL ORDINANCE 
 

Developer shall comply in all respects with the generally applicable provisions of Village 
of North Aurora Subdivision provisions, Building Code provisions, and other provisions of the 
North Aurora Municipal pertaining to the development and construction. 
 
 
 SECTION 5:  MAINTENANCE OF COMMON FACILITIES 



 
Developer shall provide for the maintenance of the following improvements in the Liberty 

Business Park development after completion by Developer and future owners and approval by the 
Village: stormwater detention and retention basins, stormwater sewer lines directly serving such 
basins, and surface drainage facilities; the landscaping located on the perimeter and common areas, 
including trees; any entry monuments; and any sidewalks (“Common Facilities”).  Developer 
shall either establish covenants or some other mechanism designed, at a minimum, to ensure that 
future owners of the property in the Liberty Business Park maintain the Common Facilities in 
keeping with applicable local, county and state requirements. The Village shall establish a back-
up special service area for the purpose of maintaining the Common Facilities in the event the 
current or future property owners fail to do so.  The covenant or other mechanism for providing 
for the maintenance of the Common Facilities benefitting a particular parcel shall be established 
and submitted to the Community Development Director for confirmation of compliance with this 
provision before the first occupancy permit for that parcel shall be approved.  Any parcels added 
to the PUD in the future shall be subject to the same requirements. The cost to maintain such 
common facilities by way of the back-up special service area shall be determined by the cost of 
contracted services approved by the Village pursuant to a public bidding process.   

 
 
SECTION 6: COMPLIANCE WITH STATE STATUTES 
 

In the event that any one or more provisions of this Ordinance do not comply with any one 
or more provisions of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, the Village and Developer, and all of their 
respective successors and assigns, agree to cooperate to comply with said provisions which shall 
include, but not limited to, the passage of resolutions and ordinances to accomplish such 
compliance.  
 
 
SECTION 7: CONFLICT IN REGULATIONS AND ORDINANCES 
 

The provisions of this Ordinance shall supersede the provisions of any ordinance, code, or 
regulation of the Village which may be in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance.   
However, all ordinances which are not inconsistent with or contrary to this Ordinance shall be 
applicable to the Subject Property.   
 
 
SECTION 8: INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS 
 

All exhibits attached to this Ordinance are hereby incorporated herein and made a part of 
the substance hereof. 

 
 
SECTION 9: EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and approval in 
accordance with law. 



Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 

this ____ day of _____________, 2024, A.D. 

 

Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 

this ____ day of _____________, 2024, A.D. 

  
 Jason Christiansen _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
 
 Todd Niedzwiedz _________  Mark Guethle  _________ 
  
 Michael Lowery _________  Carolyn Bird Salazar _________ 
 
 

Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane 

County, Illinois this                 day of ______________ 2024, A.D. 

 
 
 
             
      Mark Gaffino, Village President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jessica Watkins, Village Clerk 
  



Exhibit A 
 

302 MITCHELL ROAD 
 
LOT 3 IN LIBERTY BUSINESS CENTER - NORTH AURORA, BEING A SUBDIVISION 
OF PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 8 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 
RECORDED DECEMBER 28, 2007, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2007K125658, IN KANE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
  
CONTAINING 1,043,866 SQUARE FEET OR 23.9639 ACRES 
 
PIN: 15-03-401-003  



Exhibit B  
 

Application Materials  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Exhibit C  

 
Preliminary Site Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
Exhibit D  

 
Preliminary Building Elevations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 

Exhibit E  
 

Preliminary Landscape Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Exhibit F 
 

Preliminary Engineering Plans 
 



24-01

302 Mitchell Rd PUD

12.21.2023 @ 10am















302 Mitchell Road, North Aurora, IL 

Development Narrative: 

Existing Parcel Overview (Lot 3): Lot 3 is located in Liberty Business Center and consists of 

23.963 acres of partially improved land. Per the current North Aurora Zoning Map (revision 

date 4/16/2021) the subject properties are zoned ORI Office research Industrial District. The 

subject properties are located at the southeastern limits of the Village of North Aurora. The 

properties to the immediate east and south are also located within the Liberty Business Center 

and zoned ORI. Lot 3 is bound by the Northern Illinois Gas Company right of way to the north 

and the properties to the east (across Mitchell Road) lie within the City of Aurora and are zoned 

ORI Office/Research/Light Industrial. The previous owner of Lot 3 (Liberty) partially developed 

the property. The completed improvements include mass grading, sanitary sewer and water 

main and service extensions throughout the site, installation of a fire loop and installation of 

storm sewer, which drains to the existing stormwater detention pond on Lot 5. 

 
Applicant intends to develop an approximately 439,380 square‐foot industrial 

office/warehouse building, having a maximum building façade height of 50‐feet with internal 

clear heights of 40‐feet. The building’s anticipated use is logistics/warehousing. Applicant 

anticipates the building to consist of 23,760 square‐feet of office space and the remaining 

415,620 square‐feet to be used for warehousing and auxiliary uses.  The building is anticipated 

to include 88 dock positions and 4 overhead drive‐in doors. The site is anticipated to supply 252 

vehicle parking spaces (including 7 ADA parking spaces and 52 future land banked parking 

spaces), and 118 trailer parking spaces. The specific end user, detailed engineering and 

architectural design may lead to minor variations to the office/warehouse square‐footage, 

parking counts, site plan and building facade. 

 
Applicant intends to develop the property for a to be determined end user or as a speculative 

development. In either case, the site could potentially be a data center, which falls into the ORI 

zoning designation. The site plan layout for data center would be determined based on 

available power and end user requirements. 

 
Applicant has completed a Traffic Impact Study for the proposed development which estimated 

passenger vehicle and truck trips. As part of the Traffic Impact Study, applicant diligently 

reviewed the neighboring parcels, anticipated traffic volumes and routes, and the potential for 

effects upon neighboring properties. This review has shown that the neighboring parcels are 

industrial in nature and utilized in a similar manner as the proposed development. Additionally, 

the proposed Development’s north access drive will be 1300 feet north of Corporate Boulevard 

and the south access drive will be 415 feet north of Corporate Boulevard. The majority of the 

site’s traffic is anticipated to utilize Corporate Boulevard (45%), south Mitchell Road (30%), and 

north Mitchell Road (25%). This is in alignment with the Village’s Comprehensive Plan. The 

property’s operating hours, employee vehicle traffic, and truck traffic volumes will be dictated by 

the ultimate end user of the property and are anticipated to be typical to that of other logistics 

and warehousing facilities in the area. The Traffic Impact Study has been included with the 



submission. 

 
Potable water usage and sanitary effluents generated are expected to be in‐line with logistics 

buildings of a similar size and it is anticipated that the in‐place services will be sufficient to supply 

the building.  

 
The proposed development complies with the property’s current ORI zoning and aligns with the 

Village of North Aurora’s Comprehensive Plan. The vision for this property is defined within the 

Comprehensive Plan on Page 6 which states “Support further industrial development on 

Mitchell Road such as completion of the Liberty Business Center.” This property is identified 

within Commercial and Industrial Character Area 20 on pages 12 and 13 of the Comprehensive 

Plan, which states “The Village should encourage the development of new office or light 

industrial uses”. 



Special Use Standards Conformance 
302 Mitchell Road, North Aurora, IL 

 
Attach hereto a statement with supporting data that the proposed special use will conform 
to the following standards: 

 
1. The proposed special use is, in fact, a special use authorized in the zoning district in which 
the property is located. 

Yes, the site is currently zoned ORI Office Research Industrial District. The proposed 
special use is authorized in the zoning district in which the property will be located 
pursuant to Chapter 10.2 of the Village Zoning Code. 

 
2. The proposed special use is deemed necessary for the public convenience at that location. 

Yes. The proposed special use is necessary for the public convenience at the location and 
required by Chapter 5.4 of the Village Zoning Code. 

 
3. The proposed special use does not create excessive additional impacts at public expense for 
public facilities and services, and will be beneficial to the economic welfare of the 
community. 

The proposed special use does not create additional impacts at public expense for public 
facilities and services. All required public services such as roads and utilities are already 
in-place. The proposed development will increase property tax revenue while 
diversifying the tax base, create employment opportunities and help support local 
businesses with future employees frequenting local businesses. 

 
4. The proposed use is in conformance with the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, 
and all Village codes and regulations. 

Yes, the proposed use is in conformance with the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan 
and all Village codes and regulations. The vision for this property is defined within the 
Comprehensive Plan on Page 6 which states “Support further industrial development on Mitchell 
Road such as completion of the Liberty Business Center”; this parcel is located within Liberty 
Business Center. This property is identified within Commercial and Industrial Character Area 20 
on pages 12 and 13 of the Comprehensive Plan, which states “The Village should encourage the 
development of new office or light industrial uses”. 

 
5. The proposed special use will be designed, located, operated, and maintained so as to be 
harmonious and compatible in use and appearance with the existing or intended character of 
the general vicinity. 

The proposed special use will be designed, located, operated, and maintained so as to be 
harmonious and compatible in use and appearance with the existing or intended character 
of the general vicinity. The surrounding properties are industrial in nature and the 
proposed development aligns with the Village’s Comprehensive Plan. The proposed 
development will feature an aesthetically pleasing architectural design as shown in the 
provided architectural renderings and elevations. 

 
6. The proposed special use will not significantly diminish the safety, use, enjoyment, and value 



of other property in the neighborhood in which it is located. 
Yes. The proposed special use will not significantly dimmish the safety, use, enjoyment 
and value of other properties in the neighborhood in which it is located. The surrounding 
properties are mostly industrial in nature and developing the property from vacant land to 
a Class A industrial/logistics facility would be expected to increase the value of nearby 
property. Furthermore, the development follows the Village’s Comprehensive Plan to 
“Attract and retain industry, capitalizing on North Aurora’s desirable location within the 
Fox Valley Region and along the I-88 Corridor, to provide employment opportunities 
while maintaining a diversified community tax base.” 

 
7. The proposed special use is compatible with development on adjacent or neighboring 
property. 

The proposed special use is compatible with development on adjacent properties. The site 
is currently zoned ORI Office Research Industrial District. The neighboring properties 
are industrial in nature and the proposed development aligns with the Village’s 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 
8. The proposed special use minimizes potentially dangerous traffic movements, and provides 
adequate and safe access to the site. 

The proposed special use minimizes potentially dangerous traffic movements, and 
provides adequate and safe access to the site. The majority of the site’s traffic is 
anticipated to proceed directly east to the Farnsworth Road I-88 interchange via 
Corporate Boulevard; thereby not significantly increasing traffic volumes on Mitchell 
Road. This is in alignment with the Village’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 
9. The proposed special use provides the required number of parking spaces and maintains 
parking areas, in accordance with the requirements of this Ordinance. 

The proposed special use provides the required number of parking spaces and maintains 
parking areas in accordance with the requirements of this Ordinance. The site is 
anticipated to supply 252 vehicle parking spaces (including 7 ADA parking spaces and 
52 future land banked parking stalls) and 118 trailer parking spaces. 

 
10. The proposed special use is served by adequate utilities, drainage, road access, public safety, 
and other necessary facilities. 

Yes. The proposed special use is served by adequate utilities, drainage, road access, 
public safety and other necessary facilities. The previous owner of Lot 3 (Liberty) 
partially developed the property. ; The improvements completed include mass grading, 
sanitary sewer and water main and service extensions throughout the site, installation of 
a fire loop and installation of storm sewer, which drains to the existing stormwater 
detention pond on Lot 5. Potable water usage and sanitary effluents generated are 
expected to be in-line with logistics buildings of a similar size and it is anticipated that 
the in-place services will be sufficient to supply the building. 



The majority of the site’s traffic is anticipated to proceed directly east to the Farnsworth 
Road I-88 interchange via Corporate Boulevard; thereby not significantly increasing 
traffic volumes on Mitchell Road. This is in alignment with the Village’s Comprehensive 
Plan. 

 
11. The proposed special use conforms with the requirements of this Ordinance and other 
applicable regulations. 

Yes, the site is currently zoned ORI Office Research Industrial District. The proposed 
special use confirms with the requirement of this Ordinance and other applicable 
regulations. 



Created: 2022‐09‐08 11:39:35 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 75) 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

Chapter 5 ‐ PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS 

… 

5.6 Procedure. 
 

… 

The Plan Commission shall forward its ultimate findings and recommendation for approval or denial of the 
preliminary plan and special use in writing to the Village Board. 

b. The Plan Commission's recommendation to the Village Board shall set forth in what 
respects the planned unit development is or is not in the public interest including, but not 
limited to, findings of fact on the following: 

i. Is the site or zoning lot upon which the planned unit development is to be 
located adaptable to the unified development proposed? 
Yes, the site is currently zoned ORI Office Research Industrial District. The vision 
for this property is defined within the Comprehensive Plan on Page 6 which 
states “Support further industrial development on Mitchell Road such as 
completion of the Liberty Business Center”; this parcel is located within Liberty 
Business Center.  This property is identified within Commercial and Industrial 
Character Area 20 on pages 12 and 13 of the Comprehensive Plan, which states 
“The Village should encourage the development of new office or light industrial 
uses”. 

 
ii. Will the proposed planned unit development not have the effect of 

endangering the public health, safety, comfort or general welfare of any 
portion of the community? 
No, there will be no negative impacts upon public health, safety or general 
welfare of the community. The surrounding properties are mostly industrial in 
nature and developing the property from vacant land to a Class A 
industrial/logistics facility will follow the Village’s Comprehensive Plan to 
“Attract and retain industry, capitalizing on North Aurora’s desirable location 
within the Fox Valley Region and along the I‐88 Corridor, to provide employment 
opportunities while maintaining a diversified community tax base.” 

 
iii. Will the proposed planned unit development not be injurious to the use and 

enjoyment of other property in the vicinity for the purposes already permitted? 

The proposed PUD will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other 

properties in the vicinity. The site is currently zoned ORI Office Research 
Industrial District. The neighboring properties are mostly industrial in nature and 
the proposed development aligns with the Village’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 
 

iv. Will the proposed planned unit development not diminish or impair property 
values within the neighborhood? 

No, the proposed PUD will not diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood. The surrounding properties are mostly industrial in nature and 
developing the property from vacant land to a Class A industrial/logistics facility 
would be expected to increase the value of nearby property. Furthermore, the 



Created: 2022‐09‐08 11:39:35 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 75) 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

development follows the Village’s Comprehensive Plan to “Attract and retain 
industry, capitalizing on North Aurora’s desirable location within the Fox Valley 
Region and along the I‐88 Corridor, to provide employment opportunities while 
maintaining a diversified community tax base.” 

v. Will the proposed planned unit development not impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of surrounding property for uses 
permitted in the zoning district? 
No, the proposed PUD will not impede the normal and orderly development or 
improvement of the surrounding properties. The surrounding parcels are mostly 
industrial in nature and the proposed development aligns with the Village’s 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 

vi. Is there provision for adequate utilities, drainage, off‐street parking and 
loading, pedestrian access and all other necessary facilities? 
The previous owner of Lot 3 partially developed the property i; The completed 
improvements include: mass grading, sanitary sewer and water main and 
service extensions throughout the site, installation of a fire loop and installation 
of storm sewer, which drains to the existing stormwater detention pond on Lot 
5. Potable water usage and sanitary effluents generated are expected to be in‐
line with logistics buildings of a similar size and it is anticipated that the in‐place 
services will be sufficient to supply the building. 
The site has been designed to include accessible parking spaces, accessible 
routes, and all applicable ADA requirements. 

 

vii. Is there provision for adequate vehicular ingress and egress designed to 
minimize traffic congestion upon public streets? 
Yes, provisions are in‐place for adequate vehicular ingress and egress designed 
to minimize traffic congestion upon public streets. The majority of the site’s 
traffic is anticipated to proceed directly east to the Farnsworth Road I‐88 
interchange via Corporate Boulevard; thereby not significantly increasing traffic 
volumes on Mitchell Road. This is in alignment with the Village’s 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 

viii. Are the location and arrangement of structures, parking areas, walks, lighting 
and appurtenant facilities, compatible with the surrounding neighborhood and 
adjacent land uses? 
Yes, the location and arrangement of structures, parking areas, walks, lighting 
and appurtenant facilities, compatible with the surrounding neighborhood and 
adjacent land uses. The surrounding properties are mostly industrial in nature 
and the proposed site plan demonstrates the proposed development’s 
compatibility with and similarity to the adjacent parcels. A proposed 
photometric plan has also been completed which demonstrates minimal light 
intensity in footcandles at all property lines. In order to minimize noise and light 
from the uses to the north, we have planned landscape screening along the 
northern property line boundary.  

 

ix. Are the areas of the proposed planned unit development which are not to be 
used for structures, parking and loading areas, or access ways, suitably 
landscaped? 
Yes, the areas of the proposed PUD which are not used for structures or parking 
and loading areas are suitably landscaped as demonstrated by the landscape 



Created: 2022‐09‐08 11:39:35 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 75) 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

rendering and preliminary landscape plans which are included as part of this 
submission. 

 

x. Is the planned unit development in the specific location proposed consistent 
with the spirit and intent of this Ordinance and the adopted Comprehensive 
Plan? 
Yes, the proposed PUD is consistent with the spirit and intent of this Ordinance 
and the adopted Comprehensive Plan. The proposed development complies 
with the property’s current ORI zoning and aligns with the Village of North 
Aurora’s Comprehensive Plan. The vision for this property is defined within the 
Comprehensive Plan on Page 6 which states “Support further industrial 
development on Mitchell Road such as completion of the Liberty Business 
Center”; this parcel is located within Liberty Business Center. This property is 
identified within Commercial and Industrial Character Area 20 on pages 12 and 
13 of the Comprehensive Plan, which states “The Village should encourage the 
development of new office or light industrial uses”. 

 
xi. Are there benefits or amenities in the proposed planned unit development that 

are unique and/or which exceed the applicable zoning requirements? 
No, there are no benefits or amenities in the proposed PUD that are unique 
and/or which exceed the applicable zoning requirements. 



EXISTING STORMWATER
FACILITY

R60'

R10'

R50'

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R15'
R15'

R3'
(TYP.)R10'

R10'

R10'

R15'

R10'

R60'

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R10'

R50'

R10'

R50'R50'

R3'
(TYP.)

R3'
(TYP.)

R10'

R10'

R15'

R50'
R50'

R10'

R10'

R5'

R5'

R30'

R5'

R5'

R30'R30'

R5'

R5'

R5'

R5'

18
.0

'

24
.0

'

18
.0

'

30
.0

'
25

.6
'

40.0'

85
5.

0'

30.0' 40.0' 85.6'

30.1'

24
.0

'

30.0'40.0'81.0'

70.0'55.0' 70.0' 55.0'

70.0' 55.0'

70.0'55.0' 70.0' 55.0'

70.0'55.0'

70.0' 55.0'

85
5.

0'

500.0'

4.
5'

5.
5'

30
.0

'
15

.3
'

18
.0

'

24
.0

'

18
.0

'

500.0'

13
3.

0'

30.1'

9.0' (TYP.)9.0' (TYP.) 9.0' (TYP.)

5.
5'

9.0' (TYP.)

12
.0

'

30.0'40.0'

12
.0

'
12

.0
'

12
.0

'

9.0' (TYP.)
9.0' (TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)

12
.0

'
12

.0
'

12
.0

'
12

.0
'

24
.0

'

24
.0

'

60.0'

60.0' 60.0'

20
.0

'

49
.5

'

49
.5

'

49
.5

'

49
.5

'

25.5'

25.5'

13
.0

'

13
.0

'
13

.0
'

13
.0

'

11
.0

'

13
.8

'
13

.8
'

13
.8

'

30
.1

'

13
.8

'

19
.7

'

60.0'60.0' 500.0'

60.0'

60.0'

60.0'

60.0'60.0'

60.0'

29
.9

'

20
.0

'

155.6'

13
5.

0'

151.0'

13
5.

0'

151.0'

13
6.

6'

13
6.

6'

155.6'

300 MITCHELL ROAD

EXISTING NORTHERN
ILLINOIS GAS MAIN

NORTHERN ILLINOIS
GAS MAIN EASEMENT

CORPORATE BOULEVARD

8" DECORATIVE
PRIVACY FENCE

8" DECORATIVE
PRIVACY FENCE

8' DECORATIVE PRIVACY FENCE.
EXTEND EAST TO MAIN ENTRY

PROPOSED BUILDING
±439,380 SF
FF=705.50

PROPOSED BUILDING
±439,380 SF
FF=705.50

PROPOSED BUILDING
±439,380 SF
FF=705.50

515.4'

839.8'

839.8'

828.4'

50.0' 50.0' 50.0' 50.0'50.0'

125.0' 125.0'

53.8'

18.0'

27.2' 63.2'

125.0' 125.0'

12.0'

17.9'

R8'

R4'

R8'

R3'

R3'

R3'

R6' R25'

265.0'

15.0'

75.2'87.4'109.9'119.4'
4.5'

152.0'

12.0'

398.0'
34.0'10.0'

10.0'

55.0'

34.0'10.0'

10.0'

70.0'

70.0'

55.0'

11.1'

10.8'

12.6'

11.2'

3.0'

9.7'

85.0'

62.6'
5.0'

5.0'

6.
0'

56.1'

55.0'1.2'

32.0'

CONCRETE
PAVEMENT (TYP.)

SIDEWALK (TYP.)

 HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT
PAVEMENT (TYP.)

 HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT
PAVEMENT (TYP.)

CONCRETE
PAVEMENT (TYP.)

 HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT
PAVEMENT (TYP.)

830 LF OF NEW 8 FT HIGH CHAIN
LINK FENCE TO BE PUT IN 10 FT
FROM NEW EDGE OF PAVEMENT

12" SPECIAL
CURB AND

GUTTER

12" SPECIAL
CURB AND

GUTTER

B-6.12 CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.)

B-6.12 CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.)

B-6.12 CURB AND
GUTTER (TYP.)

NEW PAVEMENT
DIMENSION

11.1 LF OF NEW
PAVEMENT

DEPRESSED B-6.12 CURB
AND GUTTER (TYP.)

DEPRESSED B-6.12 CURB
AND GUTTER (TYP.)

CONCRETE
PAVEMENT (TYP.)

CONCRETE
PAVEMENT

(TYP.)

LOCATION OF NEW
PAVEMENT SHOULD

MATCH UP WITH
SAW CUT LINE
ALONG JOINTS

3' TRANSITION FROM
B6.12 C&G TO 12"
SPECIAL C&G

STRIPE
DIMENSION

B-6.12 REVERSE CURB
AND GUTTER (TYP.)

PEDESTAL POLE

PEDESTAL POLE

BOLLARD

98 LF OF NEW 8
FT HIGH CHAIN

LINK FENCE

M
IT

CH
EL

L 
RO

AD

©
 C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

20
18SHEET

PE
G 

JO
B 

N
o.

PE
G 

PM

ST
AR

T 
D

AT
E

SC
AL

EPINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.p

in
n

ac
le

-e
n

g
r.c

o
m

CHICAGO OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN ST. | SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m
REVISIONS

SITE PLAN

30
2 

M
IT

CH
EL

L 
R

O
A

D
 -

 S
IT

E 
PL

A
N

19
60

.2
0-

IL

BD
J

11
/9

/2
3

1"
 =

 8
0'

1
1

1" = 80'0 160'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

NORTH

SITE AREA:  23.963 ACRES
BUILDING FOOTPRINT: 439,380 SF.
OFFICE: 23,760 SF.
WAREHOUSE: 415,620 SF.

PARKING REQUIRED
WAREHOUSE (1/5000 SF): 84 STALLS
OFFICE (3/1000 SF): 72 STALLS
TOTAL:         156 STALLS

PARKING PROVIDED
TRAILER: 119 STALLS
AUTO: 200 STALLS

(INCLUDING 7 ADA STALLS)

TRUCK DOCKS
DOCK-HIGH DOORS: 88
GRADE-LEVEL DOORS:         4

302 MITCHELL SITE DATA TABLE

302 MITCHELL ROAD
NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
TF

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/1/2024 3:03 PM - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\SITE PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\SITE PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\EXHIBITS\SITE PLAN.dwg



PAGE

3
1 1 . 1 6 . 2 0 2 3302 MITCHELL ROAD CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

MITCHELL ROAD, NORTH AURORA, IL - CHI23-0075-00

CONCEPTUAL RENDERING | REPRESENTATIVE
This conceptual design is based upon a preliminary review of entitlement requirements 
and on unverified and possibly incomplete site and/or building information, and is 
intended merely to assist in exploring how the project might be developed.  Signage 
shown is for illustrative purposes only and does not necessarily reflect municipal 
code compliance. All colors shown are for representative purposes only. Refer to 
material samples for actual color verification.



Conceptual Long Elevation

Conceptual Dock Elevation

Conceptual Short Elevation

Enlarged Office Elevation - A

Conceptual Short Elevation

CLEAR HEIGHT

40’-0”

F.F.E.

0’-0”

T.O.P.

50’-0”

T.O.P.

49’-0”
T.O.P.

48’-0”

A

PAGE

4
1 1 . 1 6 . 2 0 2 3302 MITCHELL ROAD CONCEPTUAL DESIGN

MITCHELL ROAD, NORTH AURORA, IL - CHI23-0075-00

CONCEPTUAL ELEVATIONS | REPRESENTATIVE
This conceptual design is based upon a preliminary review of entitlement requirements 
and on unverified and possibly incomplete site and/or building information, and is 
intended merely to assist in exploring how the project might be developed.  Signage 
shown is for illustrative purposes only and does not necessarily reflect municipal 
code compliance. All colors shown are for representative purposes only. Refer to 
material samples for actual color verification.



10'



W
W

70
6

705

70
1

70
2

70
3

70
4

70
5

(2) PCG
(3) JSP

(1) JSG
(6) IVH
(7) HE
(3) HB

(6) HB
(6) TFC

(6) DS
(10) DLR (3) SS

(6) DP
(3) JB2

(7) EMS

(14) HE
(6) HB

(2) CA2
(3) JSG

(3) DS

(5) CFO
(10) EL
(3) CA2

(5) DP
(7) NPB

(3) JSG
(14) EL
(3) CA2

(6) DS
(2) JB2
(6) IVH
(6) DP
(14) BJF

(7) EMS
(3) JB2
(6) DP
(3) SS

(3) DS
(4) CA2

(10) HE
(6) HB
(3) DLR

(6) JSG

(3) DS

(3) SS
(3) PN2

(3) CW2

(8) NPB
(3) SS
(13) EL
(3) CW2

(6) CB
(3) DS

(6) ABC

(6) DS
(3) IVH
(1) JB2

(3) PNW
(3) SBM

(3) CA
(6) ML
(3) JB2
(5) NPB

(5) NPB
(3) JB2
(6) ML
(3) CA

(3) SBM
(3) PNW

(5) DP
(3) CA2
(14) EL
(3) JSG
(2) SS

(3) CSB
(5) PNW(5) PNW

(3) CSB

(2) SS
(3) JSG
(14) EL
(3) CA2
(5) DP

70
2

70
3

70
4 (2) PCG

(3) JSP

(1) RPP
(6) ML
(10) PLS

(3) JSP
(2) PCG

(1) RPP
(10) PLS

(6) PB

(1) HBO
(6) CA
(8) ML

(3) PMS
(5) SO3 (3) PMS

(2) HBO

(6) ML
(10) ASB

(6) SS
(6) TFC

(2) HBO
(14) EL
(6) PB

(3) CA
(5) TFC

(6) ML
(2) JGO
(6) SO3
(2) SS
(16) CV

(6) SS
(6) TFC
(18) EL
(6) PB

(5) PLS
(5) CA

(5) ML (5) ASB
(5) SO3
(10) CA
(3) HVS

(6) PMS

(3) PNW
(3) SBM

(3) CA
(6) ML
(3) JB2
(7) NPB

(3) PNW
(3) CSB

(2) SS
(3) JSG
(14) EL
(3) CA2
(5) DP

(5) DP
(3) CA2
(14) EL
(3) JSG
(2) SS

(3) PNW
(3) CSB

(5) DP
(3) HBO
(14) SA4
(3) JSG
(2) SS

(3) CSB
(3) PNW

(3) SBM
(3) PNW

(3) CA
(6) ML

(3) JB2
(5) NPB

(7) EMS
(3) JB2
(6) DP
(3) SS

(3) SS
(6) DP

(3) JB2
(7) EMS

(3) JSG
(10) SA4
(3) HBO

(3) JSG
(14) EL
(3) CA2

(3) JSG
(10) SA4
(3) HBO

SHRUBS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
ABC Aronia melanocarpa `Elata` Glossy Black Chokeberry
CA2 Cornus sanguinea 'Cato' Arctic Sun® Bloodtwig Dogwood
CSB Cornus sericea `Baileyi` Red Twig Dogwood
CB Cornus sericea 'Bergeson's Compact' Bergeson's Red Twig Dogwood
CW2 Cotinus coggygria 'Lilla' Lilla Dwarf Smoke Tree
DLR Diervilla x 'G2X88544' Kodiak Orange Diervilla
HVS Hydrangea p `Vanilla Strawberry` Vanilla Strawberry Hydrangea
HBO Hydrangea paniculata `Bobo` Bobo Hydrangea
IVH Itea virginica `Little Henry` Little Henry Sweetspire
PCG Physocarpus opulifolius `Center Glow` Center Glow Ninebark
RPP Rosa rugosa `Purple Pavement` Purple Pavement Rugosa Rose
SBM Syringa vulgaris 'Beauty of Moscow' Beauty of Moscow Common Lilac
SO3 Syringa x 'SMNJRPI' Bloomerang Dwarf Pink Lilac

EVERGREEN SHRUBS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
JSP Juniperus chinensis `J.N. Select Blue` Star Power Juniper
JSG Juniperus chinensis `Sea of Gold` Sea of Gold Juniper
JB2 Juniperus horizontalis 'Blue Forest' Blue Forest Creeping Juniper
JGO Juniperus virginiana `Grey Owl` Eastern Redcedar Juniper
PN2 Picea abies `Nidiformis` Nest Spruce
PMS Pinus mugo `Slowmound` Slowmound Mugo Pine
TFC Thuja occidentalis 'Congabe' Fire Chief Arborvitae

SHRUB/PERENNIAL PLANT KEY ORNAMENTAL GRASSES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
CFO Calamagrostis x a `Overdam` Overdam Reed Grass
CA Calamagrostis x acutiflora 'Avalanche' Avalanche Feather Reed Grass
DP Deschampsia cespitosa `Pixie Fountain` Pixie Fountain Tufted Hair Grass
DS Deschampsia cespitosa 'Schottland' Schottland Tufted Hair Grass
HB Hakonechloa macra 'Beni-kaze' Beni-kaze Japanese Forest Grass
ML Miscanthus sinensis 'Little Kitten' Little Kitten Eulalia Grass
PNW Panicum virgatum `Northwind` Northwind Switch Grass
PB Pennisetum alopecuroides `Burgundy Bunny` Burgundy Bunny Dwarf Fountain Grass
SS Schizachyrium scoparium 'Standing Ovation' Standing Ovation Little Bluestem

PERENNIALS BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
ASB Allium x `Summer Beauty` Summer Beauty Allium
BJF Brunnera macrophylla `Jack Frost` Jack Frost Brunnera
CV Coreopsis verticillata `Moonbeam` Moonbeam Tickseed
EMS Echinacea purpurea `Magnus Superior` Magnus Superior Coneflower
EL Echinacea x 'Balsomemyim' Sombrero® Lemon Yellow Improved Coneflower
HE Heuchera x 'Pink Panther' Pink Panther Coral Bells
NPB Nepeta x faassenii `Purrsian Blue` Purrsian Blue Catmint
PLS Perovskia atriplicifolia 'Little Spire' Little Spire Russian Sage
SA4 Sedum x 'Autumn Fire' Autumn Fire Sedum

TURF BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

Turf Broadcast Seed Reinders - Cadet 70/30 Fescue/Blue Mix

Turf Broadcast Seed Low Grow Reinders No Mow/Low Grow Mix

© 
CO

PY
RI

GH
T 

20
18SHEET

PE
G 

JO
B 

N
o.

PE
G 

PM

ST
AR

T 
D

AT
E

SC
AL

EPINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.p

in
n

ac
le

-e
n

g
r.c

o
m

CHICAGO OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN ST. | SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m
REVISIONS302 MITCHELL ROAD

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT

30
2 

M
IT

CH
EL

L 
R

O
A

D
 -

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PE
 E

N
LA

R
G

EM
EN

T

19
60

.0
0-

IL

BD
J

6/
09

/2
3

1"
 =

 2
0'

L-2
L-5

NORTH

1" = 20'0 40'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

ENLARGEMENT L-2A

SCALE: 1"=20'

ENLARGEMENT L-2B

SCALE: 1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DJB



W

W W W

701

704

712

713

713712710
709707

701705704702702701700

705704702702701700699698

702702701700699698698

701
70

0

69
9

69
8

69
7

69
6

70
0

69
9

69
8

69
7

69
7

69
7

69
6

69
6

698

69
8

69
7

69
8

69
7

69
6

69
8

69
7

69
6

69
6

69
7

69
8

70
6

705

70
2703704705

70
1

70
2 70

3
70

4

70
5

PROPOSED BUILDING
±439,380 SF
FF=705.50

703

705

706

707

708

709

710

711

702

(3) TMG
(1) AFS

(3) PSS
(5) GTIS

(3) TMG

(3) GTIS
(3) ACF
(3) AFS

(3) TMG

(3) UP2

(3) CCH
(2) UP2

(5) POS
(3) GTIS

(5) AFS
(3) UP2

(3) ACF

(2) AFS (3) TCG

(2) CFK

(2) APQ

(4) TCG (3) APQ

(3) UP2

(3) PGD2
(9) CCH

(6) ACF

(3) AFS
(3) POS

(3) QM
(4) UP2

(2) AFS

(3) PSS

(3) GTIS

(4) AFS

(1) UP2

(1) TCG

(5) PGD2

NORTH

1" = 40'0 80'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

© 
CO

PY
RI

GH
T 

20
18SHEET

PE
G 

JO
B 

N
o.

PE
G 

PM

ST
AR

T 
D

AT
E

SC
AL

EPINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.p

in
n

ac
le

-e
n

g
r.c

o
m

CHICAGO OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN ST. | SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m
REVISIONS302 MITCHELL ROAD

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

LANDSCAPE TREE PLAN
ENLARGEMENT

 -
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 T
R

EE
 P

LA
N

 E
N

LA
R

G
EM

EN
T

19
60

.2
0-

IL

BD
J

6/
09

/2
3

1"
 =

 4
0'

L-3
L-5

1 REVISED BUILDING 11/13/23

TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
APQ Acer platanoides 'Emerald Queen' Emerald Queen Maple
AFS Acer x freemanii 'Sienna' Sienna Glen Maple
CCH Celtis occidentalis 'Chicagoland' Chicagoland Hackberry
GTIS Gleditsia triacanthos inermis 'Sunburst' Sunburst Common Honeylocust
QM Quercus muehlenbergii Chinkapin Oak
TCG Tilia cordata 'Greenspire' Greenspire Littleleaf Linden
TMG Tilia mongolica 'Harvest Gold' Harvest Gold Linden
UP2 Ulmus x 'Morton Glossy' Triumph Elm

EVERGREEN TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
ACF Abies concolor White Fir
PGD2 Picea glauca 'Densata' Black Hills Spruce
POS Picea omorika Serbian Spruce
PSS Pinus cembra Swiss Stone Pine

ORNAMENTAL TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
CFK Carpinus caroliniana 'JN Strain' Fire King Musclewood

TREE PLANT KEY

SHEET L-3
SHEET L-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DJB



W W W

69
5

69
6

69
7

69
8

69
9

70
0

695 696 697
698

693 694 695 696
693 694 695 696

692 693 694 695696
694 695 696 697 698 699 700 701 702 703 704

705

701

702

701
702

69
8

69
7

69
6

69
8

69
7

69
6

69
8

69
7

69
6

69
4

69
5

69
5

695 695 694 693

70
2

70
3

70
4

70
5

705704703702

PROPOSED BUILDING
±439,380 SF
FF=705.50

(5) AFS

(3) QM

(3) PSS
(4) UP2

(3) PSS

(3) APQ

(4) CCH

(4) TCG
(3) APQ

(3) TCG

(3) PSS

(3) GTIS

(3) AFS

(5) ACF

(4) UP2

(2) UP2

(3) CCH

(3) POS

(3) ACF

(1) AFS

(6) GTIS

(3) TMG

(1) TCG

(3) GTIS

(2) UP2
(3) POS

NORTH

1" = 40'0 80'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

© 
CO

PY
RI

GH
T 

20
18SHEET

PE
G 

JO
B 

N
o.

PE
G 

PM

ST
AR

T 
D

AT
E

SC
AL

EPINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.p

in
n

ac
le

-e
n

g
r.c

o
m

CHICAGO OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN ST. | SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m
REVISIONS302 MITCHELL ROAD

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

LANDSCAPE TREE PLAN
ENLARGEMENT

 -
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 T
R

EE
 P

LA
N

 E
N

LA
R

G
EM

EN
T

19
60

.2
0-

IL

BD
J

6/
09

/2
3

1"
 =

 4
0'

L-4
L-5

1 REVISED BUILDING 11/13/23

TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
APQ Acer platanoides 'Emerald Queen' Emerald Queen Maple
AFS Acer x freemanii 'Sienna' Sienna Glen Maple
CCH Celtis occidentalis 'Chicagoland' Chicagoland Hackberry
GTIS Gleditsia triacanthos inermis 'Sunburst' Sunburst Common Honeylocust
QM Quercus muehlenbergii Chinkapin Oak
TCG Tilia cordata 'Greenspire' Greenspire Littleleaf Linden
TMG Tilia mongolica 'Harvest Gold' Harvest Gold Linden
UP2 Ulmus x 'Morton Glossy' Triumph Elm

EVERGREEN TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
ACF Abies concolor White Fir
PGD2 Picea glauca 'Densata' Black Hills Spruce
POS Picea omorika Serbian Spruce
PSS Pinus cembra Swiss Stone Pine

ORNAMENTAL TREES BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME
CFK Carpinus caroliniana 'JN Strain' Fire King Musclewood

TREE PLANT KEY

SHEET L-4
SHEET L-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DJB



SOIL PLACEMENT NOTES

1. LOOSEN SUBGRADE TO A MINIMUM DEPTH INDICATED IN PLANTING NOTES USING A
CULTI-MULCHER OR SIMILAR EQUIPMENT, AND REMOVE STONES MEASURING OVER 1-1/2
INCHES IN ANY DIMENSION, STICKS, RUBBISH AND OTHER EXTRANEOUS MATTER.  AREAS
ADJACENT TO WALKS AND PAVEMENT SHALL BE FREE OF EXCESS STONE AND PAVING
MATERIALS SO AS TO PROVIDE AN UNINTERRUPTED CROSS SECTION OF SOIL.   INTERNAL
PARKING ISLANDS SHALL BE LOOSENED TO A DEPTH OF 30".

2. THOROUGHLY BLEND PLANTING SOIL MIX FOR PLANTING BED AREAS.  (1 PART EXISTING
SOIL, 1 PART TOPSOIL, 1 PART ORGANIC SOIL AMENDMENT, 2.9 POUNDS PER CUBIC YARD
OF 4-4-4 ANALYSIS SLOW-RELEASE FERTILIZER)

3. TREE AND SHRUB HOLES SHALL BE FILLED WITH A PREPARED PLANTING MIXTURE OF 1
PART TOPSOIL, 2 PARTS PLANTING SOIL MIX.

4. SPREAD SOIL AND SOIL AMENDMENTS TO DEPTH INDICATED ON DRAWINGS, BUT NOT
LESS THAN REQUIRED TO MEET FINISH GRADES AFTER NATURAL SETTLEMENT. (FINISH
GRADE OF PLANTING BEDS SHALL BE 3" BELOW ALL ADJACENT SURFACES. FINISH GRADE
OF TURF SEEDING AREAS SHALL BE 1" BELOW ALL ADJACENT HARD SURFACES, WALKS,
AND CURBS.)

5. PLACE APPROXIMATELY 1/2 OF TOTAL AMOUNT OF SOIL REQUIRED. WORK INTO TOP OF
LOOSENED SUBGRADE TO CREATE A TRANSITION LAYER, THEN PLACE REMAINDER OF
THE SOIL.  SOIL TRANSITION LAYER SHALL BE TILLED TO A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 6" BELOW
THE DEPTH OF NEWLY PLACED SOIL. PARKING LOT ISLANDS SHALL BE CROWNED TO A
HEIGHT OF 6" TO PROVIDE PROPER DRAINAGE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

6. DO NOT SPREAD IF PLANTING SOIL OR SUBGRADE IS FROZEN, MUDDY, OR EXCESSIVELY
WET.

7. FINISH GRADING: GRADE SOIL TO A SMOOTH, UNIFORM SURFACE PLANE WITH A LOOSE,
UNIFORMLY FINE TEXTURE.

8. ROLL AND RAKE, REMOVE RIDGES, AND FILL DEPRESSIONS TO MEET FINISH GRADES.

9. RESTORE PLANTING BEDS IF ERODED OR OTHERWISE DISTURBED AFTER FINISH
GRADING AND BEFORE PLANTING.

1. THE LAYOUT OF ALL PLANTING BEDS AND INDIVIDUAL TREES AND SHRUBS SHALL BE
STAKED BY THE CONTRACTOR IN ADVANCE OF INSTALLATION.  FLAGGING, STAKES, OR
PAINT MAY BE USED TO DELINEATE LOCATIONS AS SCALED FROM THE PLANS.  AN
APPROVED REPRESENTATIVE WILL REVIEW THESE LOCATIONS WITH THE CONTRACTOR
AND MAKE MINOR ADJUSTMENTS AS NECESSARY.  BED LAYOUT SHALL ALSO INCLUDE
PERENNIAL GROUPINGS BY SPECIES.

2. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR INDEPENDENTLY DETERMINING THE PLANT
MATERIAL QUANTITIES REQUIRED BY THE LANDSCAPE PLANS.  REPORT ANY
DISCREPANCIES TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

3. NO PLANT MATERIAL OR PLANT SIZE SUBSTITUTIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED  WITHOUT
APPROVAL BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.  ANY CHANGES SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IN WRITING PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

4. ALL BNB STOCK SHALL BE NURSERY GROWN IN A CLAY LOAM SOIL FOR A MINIMUM OF
THREE GROWING SEASONS WITHIN 200 MILES OF PROJECT LOCATION, IN A ZONE
COMPATIBLE WITH USDA HARDINESS ZONE 5B.  SEED SHALL BE PROVIDED FROM A
NURSERY (WITHIN 200 MILES) WITH A SIMILAR PLANT HARDINESS ZONE AS PROJECT
LOCATION.  EXISTING SOIL SHALL BE AMENDED PER SOIL ANALYSIS REPORT TO ENSURE A
PROPER GROWING MEDIUM IS ACHIEVED.

5. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY WITH STANDARDS DESCRIBED IN AMERICAN
STANDARD OF NURSERY STOCK  - Z60.1 ANSI.  LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNERS
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO INSPECT AND POTENTIALLY
REJECT ANY PLANT MATERIAL DEEMED TO NOT MEET THE REQUIRED STANDARDS.

6. ALL STOCK SHALL BE FREE OF DISEASES AND HARMFUL INSECTS, DAMAGE, DISORDERS
AND DEFORMITIES.

7. TREES SHALL HAVE SINGLE, STRAIGHT TRUNKS AND WELL BALANCED BRANCH SYSTEMS.
MUTLI-STEM TREES SHALL HAVE 3-4 STRAIGHT TRUNKS AND WELL BALANCED BRANCH
SYSTEMS.  HEIGHT-TO-CALIPER RATIOS SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE LATEST EDITION
OF ANSI Z60.1.

8. ROOT SYSTEMS SHALL BE LARGE ENOUGH TO ALLOW FOR FULL RECOVERY OF THE TREE,
AND SHALL CONFORM TO STANDARDS AS THEY APPEAR IN THE MOST CURRENT REVISION
OF THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN'S AMERICAN STANDARD OF NURSERY
STOCK ANSI Z60.1.

9. BNB TREES SHALL BE DUG WITH A BALL OF SOIL, NOT SOFT BALLED OR POTTED AND
SHALL BE FIRM IN THEIR ROOTBALL. ROOT BALL SHALL BE WRAPPED (WITH
BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL).  THE TREE ROOT FLARE, OR COLLAR, SHALL BE AT OR
WITHIN THE TOP THREE INCHES OF GRADE.

10. ALL SPRING TREES MUST BE FRESHLY DUG IN THE MOST RECENT SPRING.

11. ALL AUTUMN TREES MUST BE FRESHLY DUG IN THE MOST RECENT AUTUMN.

12. TREES SHALL BE ALIVE, HEALTHY AND APPROPRIATELY MOIST, AT TIME OF DELIVERY.
TREES SHALL BE SUBJECT TO INSPECTION FOR CONFORMITY TO SPECIFICATION
REQUIREMENTS AND APPROVAL BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNERS
REPRESENTATIVE.  THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY TREES THAT DO NOT MEET THE SPECIFICATIONS
OR THAT HAVE BEEN DAMAGED DURING SHIPMENT.  THE LANDSCAPE INSTALLER MUST
RECEIVE APPROVAL FROM LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR ANY SUBSTITUTIONS OR
ALTERATIONS.

13. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PLANTING DETAILS.

14. ALL PLANTING BEDS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM 10" DEPTH OF PREPARED SOIL.  WITH
APPROVAL, EXISTING SOIL MAY BE UTILIZED PROVIDED THE PROPER SOIL AMENDMENTS
ARE TILLED THOROUGHLY INTO THE TOP 10" OF SOIL.  REFER TO SOIL PLACEMENT NOTES.

15. WHILE PLANTING TREES AND SHRUBS, BACKFILL 23 OF PLANTING HOLE AND WATER TREE
THOROUGHLY BEFORE INSTALLING THE REMAINDER OF SOIL MIXTURE.  AFTER ALL SOIL
HAS BEEN PLACED INTO THE PLANTING HOLE WATER THOROUGHLY AGAIN.

16. THE CONTRACTOR MUST LABEL ALL TREES WITH THE COMMON AND BOTANICAL NAMES
PRIOR TO FINAL INSPECTION.

17. OAK TREES SHALL BE TREATED FOR TWO-LINE CHESTNUT BORER BOTH AT THE TIME OF
INSTALLATION AND DURING THE SECOND GROWING SEASON.

18. ALL PLANTING BEDS SHALL BE MULCHED WITH 3" DEEP SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH,
AND ALL TREES PLANTED IN TURF AREAS SHALL RECEIVE A 3" DEEP SHREDDED
HARDWOOD MULCHED RING AS SHOWN IN PLANTING DETAILS.

19. ALL PLANTING BEDS AND TREE RINGS SHALL HAVE A 4" DEEP TRENCHED BED EDGE
CREATED BY EITHER A FLAT LANDSCAPE SPADE OR MECHANICAL EDGER.  BED EDGES
ARE TO BE CUT CLEAN AND SMOOTH AS SHOWN ON LANDSCAPE PLANS WITH A CLEAN
DEFINITION BETWEEN TURF AND PLANTING AREAS.

20. ALL TURF SEED AREAS SHALL RECEIVE A MINIMUM OF 6" DEPTH OF TOPSOIL.  WITH
APPROVAL, EXISTING SOIL MAY BE UTILIZED PROVIDED THE PROPER SOIL AMENDMENTS
ARE TILLED THOROUGHLY INTO THE TOP 6" OF SOIL AS INDICATED IN THE SOIL
PLACEMENT NOTES. REQUIRED AMENDMENTS SHALL BE DETERMINED BASED ON A SOIL
ANALYSIS TO BE PERFORMED.  ALL TOPSOIL AMENDMENT SHALL BE AGED WEED FREE
MANURE OR CLASS 1 ORGANIC MATTER.

21. FOR LAWN SEEDING, APPLY A STARTER FERTILIZER AND SEED UNIFORMLY AT THE RATE
RECOMMENDED BY MANUFACTURER, AND PROVIDE A MULCH COVERING THAT IS SUITABLE
TO PROMOTE SEED GERMINATION AND TURF ESTABLISHMENT.  CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE
FERTILIZER, SEED, AND MULCH SPECIFICATIONS TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR
APPROVAL PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ARE TO BE
INSTALLED IN THOSE AREAS REQUIRING STABILIZATION ( SWALES, SLOPES EXCEEDING 1:3,
AND THOSE LOCATIONS INDICATED IN CIVIL DRAWINGS).

22. THE CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE A SMOOTH, UNIFORM QUALITY TURF IS ACHIEVED WITH NO
BARE SPOTS LARGER THAN 6" X 6".  ANY BARE SPOTS LARGER THAN 6" X6" AT THE END OF
ESTABLISHMENT PERIOD SHALL BE RESEEDED AT THE CONTRACTORS EXPENSE TO
OBTAIN A DENSE, UNIFORM LAWN.

23. ALL FINISH GRADING AND LAWN AREAS TO BE INSTALLED BY LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR.

24. ALL DISTURBED AREAS WITHIN THE PROJECT SHALL BE RESTORED TO ORIGINAL OR
BETTER CONDITION.

25. ALL DISTURBED AREAS OUTSIDE THE LIMITS OF WORK SHALL BE RESTORED TO ORIGINAL
OR BETTER CONDITION AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

26. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING UTILITIES, INCLUDING  ANY IRRIGATION
LINES, PRIOR TO DIGGING.  CONSULT J.U.L.I.E.

27. TREES SHALL BE INSTALLED NO CLOSER THAN:

-10 FEET FROM ANY FIRE HYDRANT
- 7 FEET FROM STORM SEWER, SANITARY SEWER LATERALS, AND WATER SERVICE

28. ANY TREE SHOWN TO BE INSTALLED CLOSER TO UTILITIES THAN LISTED ABOVE SHALL
HAVE TREE ROOT BARRIER INSTALLED PER DETAIL (7/L-4).  CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE
ROOT BARRIER SPECIFICATIONS TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR APPROVAL PRIOR
TO INSTALLATION.

29. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THAT SOIL CONDITIONS AND COMPACTION ARE
ADEQUATE TO ALLOW FOR PROPER DRAINAGE AROUND THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.
UNDESIRABLE CONDITIONS SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT PRIOR TO BEGINNING OF WORK. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY TO ENSURE PROPER SURFACE AND SUBSURFACE DRAINAGE IN ALL
AREAS

30. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL PERMITS, FEES, AND LICENSES NECESSARY
FOR THE INSTALLATION OF THIS PLAN.

31. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO REVIEW ALL SITE ENGINEERING DOCUMENTS PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION.  ANY CONFLICTS MUST BE REPORTED TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.
THESE LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS ARE FOR THE INSTALLATION OF PLANT MATERIALS ONLY
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

32. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE WATERING AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR A
PERIOD OF 60 DAYS TO ENSURE VEGETATIVE ESTABLISHMENT.  UPON COMPLETION OF
THE PROJECT, CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY THE OWNER IN WRITING WITH ONGOING
WATERING AND MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS.

33. PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE GUARANTEED FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR FROM TIME OF
OWNER ACCEPTANCE. ONLY ONE REPLACEMENT PER PLANT WILL BE REQUIRED DURING
THE WARRANTY PERIOD EXCEPT IN THE EVENT OF FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE
SPECIFIED REQUIREMENTS.

34. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO CONDUCT A FINAL WALK THROUGH WITH THE
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND OR OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE TO ANSWER QUESTIONS,
PROVIDE INSTRUCTIONS, AND ENSURE THAT PROJECT REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET.

GENERAL PLANTING NOTES

TREE ROOT BARRIER- UTILITY
1/2" = 1'-0"

SECURE ROOT BARRIER PER
MANUFACTURE INSTALLATION
INSTRUCTIONS

EXISTING OR FUTURE
PLANT ROOT STRUCTURE

ROOT BARRIER VERTICALLY
PLACED TO STOP LATERAL
ROOT GROWTH

UTILITY TO BE PROTECTED

EXISTING SOIL

EXTEND ROOT BARRIER TO
CORRECT ROOT DEPTH PER
MANUFACTURE  INSTALLATION
INSTRUCTIONS

7
329413-15

LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENT TABLE    REQUIRED PROVIDED

ON LOT LANDSCAPING 205,624 SQ FT
· TREE 1/1000 SQ FT 206 206

PARKING INTERIOR TREES
· TREES 12 32

SECTION 14.5

SECTION 14.9

* NOTE: PARKING AREA INCLUDED

BUFFER YARD
930' @ 1 TREE / 20' 47 47

SECTION 14.10

© 
CO

PY
RI

GH
T 

20
18SHEET

PE
G 

JO
B 

N
o.

PE
G 

PM

ST
AR

T 
D

AT
E

SC
AL

EPINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.p

in
n

ac
le

-e
n

g
r.c

o
m

CHICAGO OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN ST. | SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m
REVISIONS302 MITCHELL ROAD

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

LANDSCAPE NOTES &
DETAILS

 -
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 N
O

TE
S 

&
 D

ET
A

IL
S

19
60

.2
0-

IL

BD
J

6/
09

/2
3

VA
R

IE
S

L-5
L-5

1 REVISED BUILDING 11/13/23

TREE WITH STRONG CENTRAL LEADER (DO NOT CUT LEADER)

PRUNE ONLY TO REMOVE DAMAGED OR BROKEN BRANCHES.

TREE STAKING IF REQUIRED (ONLY 1 OF 3 @ 120 DEG. SHOWN
FOR CLARITY).  STEEL STAKES & FLEXIBLE GUYING MATERIAL.
FLAG GUYS FOR SAFETY

TREE WRAP TO FIRST BRANCH (MAPLES AND OTHER THIN BARKED
DECIDUOUS TREES).  PLACE WRAP IN LATE FALL AND REMOVE
EARLY SPRING.

4' X 4" A.M. LEONARD RIGID PLASTIC MESH TREE GUARD, BG48

TREE WATERING BAG.  INSTALL SAME DAY TREE IS PLANTED.  BAG
SHALL BE FILLED ONCE PER WEEK THROUGH THE MAINTENANCE
PERIOD.

CROWN OF ROOT BALL 1" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE LEAVING
TRUNK FLARE VISIBLE AT TOP OF ROOT BALL.

3" DEEP SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH IN 6'-0" DIAMETER RING.  DO
NOT PLACE MULCH IN CONTACT WITH TREE TRUNK.  NO MOUNDING.
PROVIDE MULCH WEEDING ONCE PER MONTH THROUGH
MAINTENANCE PERIOD.

ROUGHEN EDGES OF PLANTING PIT.

PLANTING MIXTURE BACKFILL TAMP PLANTING MIX AROUND BASE
TO STABILIZE TREE.  INSTALL (1) SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER
PACKET FOR EVERY CALIPER INCH OF TREE.  INSTALL AGAINST
ROOT BALL.

REMOVE ALL TWINE, ROPE, WIRE, BURLAP AND PLASTIC WRAP FROM
TOP HALF OF ROOT BALL.  IF WIRE BASKET, CUT IN (4) PLACES
AROUND THE ROOT BALL AND FOLD DOWN 8" INTO PLANTING PIT.

ROOT BALL ON UNEXCAVATED OR COMPACTED PEDESTAL TO
PREVENT SETTLING

(1/2 - 2/3)
OF TREE
HEIGHT

DEPTH OF
ROOT BALL

6"

ROOT BALL

EXCAVATE TREE PIT TO BE AT
LEAST 2 TIMES WIDER THAN ROOT BALL

TREE PLANTING
1/4" = 1'-0"

1
329343-01

IF NEEDED, PRUNE TO REMOVE DAMAGED, BROKEN, OR OVERLAPPING
BRANCHES ONLY AFTER PLANTING.  PRUNING IS SUBJECT TO TIME OF YEAR
FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL SPECIES.

TREE STAKING (ONLY 1 OF 3 @ 120 DEG. SHOWN FOR CLARITY).
3" DIAMETER CEDAR WOOD STAKES & FLEXIBLE GUYING
MATERIAL.  FLAG GUYS FOR SAFETY.  STAKES SHALL NOT TOUCH
THE SIDES OF ROOT BALL WHEN INSTALLED.

CROWN OF ROOT BALL 2" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE LEAVING
TRUNK FLARE VISIBLE AT TOP OF ROOT BALL.

3" DEEP SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH IN 6'-0" DIAMETER RING.  DO
NOT PLACE MULCH IN CONTACT WITH TREE TRUNK.  NO MOUNDING.
PROVIDE MULCH WEEDING ONCE PER MONTH THROUGH
MAINTENANCE PERIOD.

ROUGHEN EDGES OF PLANTING PIT.

PLANTING MIXTURE BACKFILL.  TAMP PLANTING MIX AROUND
BASE TO STABILIZE TREE.  INSTALL (1) SLOW RELEASE FERTILIZER
PACKET FOR EVERY 24" OF TREE HEIGHT.  INSTALL PACKET
AGAINST ROOT BALL.

REMOVE ALL TWINE, ROPE, WIRE, BURLAP AND PLASTIC WRAP
FROM TOP HALF OF ROOT BALL.  IF WIRE BASKET, CUT IN (4)
PLACES AROUND THE ROOT BALL AND FOLD DOWN 8" INTO
PLANTING PIT.

ROOT BALL ON UNEXCAVATED OR COMPACTED PEDESTAL TO
PREVENT SETTLING

(1/2)
OF TREE
HEIGHT

DEPTH OF
ROOT BALL

6"

ROOT BALL

EXCAVATE TREE PIT TO BE AT
LEAST 2 TIMES WIDER THAN ROOT BALL

EVERGREEN TREE PLANTING
1/4" = 1'-0" 329343-03

2

SCARIFY 4" AND  RECOMPACT
SUBGRADE

SHRUB PLANTING
PRUNE ONLY TO REMOVE DEAD
OR BROKEN BRANCHES

3" MULCH

TOPSOIL

REMOVE ALL TWINE, ROPE, WIRE,
BURLAP AND PLASTIC WRAP
FROM TOP HALF OF ROOT BALL

HAND LOOSEN AND PULL ROOTS
OUT OF CONTAINER MATERIAL TO
PREVENT PLANT FROM
BECOMING ROOT BOUND

10"
MIN.

PER PLANT SPACING

BALLED
AND
BURLAPPED

BARE ROOT
OR
CONTAINER

BOTTOM OF ROOT FLARE FLUSH
WITH FINISHED GRADE

BAREROOT PLANTING NOTES:
1. SOAK ROOTS IN WATER FOR AT LEAST ONE HOUR BUT NOT MORE THAN 24 HOURS PRIOR TO PLANTING.
2. SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOMS OF HOLE.
3. PROCEED WITH CORRECTIVE PRUNING OF THE TOP AND BOTTOM ROOTS.
4. TRANSFER PLANT DIRECTLY FROM WATER TO HOLE. SET PLANT SO THE ROOT FLARE IS

APPROXIMATELY AT THE FINISHED SOIL ELEVATION. SPREAD ROOTS OUT EVENLY. PLUMB AND
IMMEDIATELY BACKFILL WITH PLANTING SOIL MIX.

5. WATER THOROUGHLY WITHIN 2 HOURS TO SETTLE PLANTS AND FILL VOIDS.
6. BACKFILL VOIDS AND WATER SECOND TIME.
7. PLACE MULCH WITHIN 48 HOURS OF THE SECOND WATERING UNLESS SOIL MOISTURE IS EXCESSIVE.

SHRUB PLANTING
1/2" = 1'-0" 329333-02

3

PERENNIAL PLANTING

3" MULCH
FINISHED GRADE TOP OF MULCH

HAND LOOSEN AND PULL ROOTS
OUT OF CONTAINER MATERIAL TO
PREVENT PLANT FROM BECOMING
ROOT BOUND

PLANTING MIX

SUBGRADE

PER PLANT
SPACING

10"

PERENNIAL PLANTING
1" = 1'-0"

4
3293-01

SHRUB OR
PERENNIAL

(*)

(*) (*)

(*) = SPECIFIED PLANT SPACING PER PLANTING LIST

PLANT SPACING 
3/4" = 1'-0"

5
3293-02

TURF

FINISHED GRADE

STRAIGHT, CLEAN CUT
THROUGH GRASS

MULCH BED

45° ANGLE CUT BACK TO
FINISHED GRADE OF
MULCH BED

4"

TRENCHED BED EDGE
3/4" = 1'-0"

6
3293-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DJB



kkuroglu
Cloud

kkuroglu
Cloud

kkuroglu
Cloud

kkuroglu
Cloud

kkuroglu
Callout
New trees - evergreens. Can supplement with mature trees day one as needed

kkuroglu
Callout
New trees - more typical maple. etc 

kkuroglu
Callout
New trees - evergreens. Can supplement with mature trees day one as needed

kkuroglu
Callout
New trees - more typical maple. etc 



kkuroglu
Cloud

kkuroglu
Cloud

kkuroglu
Callout
Supplemental evergreens that can be planted

kkuroglu
Arrow



Fencing
COMPOSITE FENCE SYSTEMS FENCE DISTRIBUTORS

010923

96" O.C.
91"

3
8"

Fence
Height

117 3 4""

Steel
Post

 Height
54"

Concrete
Fill

Steel Post54" Min. Typ.
(Consult local

codes)

12"
Typ

5 3 4"

119 3 8"

Post
Height
120"

Br
ac

ke
t H

ei
gh

t

51 12"

Br
ac

ke
t H

ei
gh

t

Component lengths may vary

COMPONENT

Post Cap
Pyramid Flat Crown

5" x 5"Post

Top Rail

1" x 5 3/4"

144"

91"

2 3/4" x 5 1/8"

1 1/4" x 3 1/8"

90 1/2"

1 5/8"

N/A

N/A

LENGTH

91"

QTY.

1

1

1

4

2

6

24

Aluminum
Bottom Rail
Fence
Bracket
Ext. Wood
Screw

3.5"x3.5" 1 108"Galv. Steel
Post

67"19Picket

91"9.5
Bottom Rail /
Picket
(Cut to 45 3 8")

3/4"8

1"4

Bottom Rail
/ Picket

110

NOTES:

1. INSTALLATION TO BE COMPLETED PER
MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATION.

2. REFER TO TrexFencingFDS.com FOR
CONSTRUCTION DETAILS AND
PRODUCT INFORMATION

3. DRAWING NOT TO SCALE. CUT VIEWS

2 14"Top Rail

Picket

Post Cap

Aluminum
Bottom Rail

Fence Bracket
Bottom Rail 3

8"

1
2"

F
D
S

#7

#8

#7

543 E. 600 S. Provo, UT 84606
1-877-700-8739 - TrexFencingFDS.com 
Copyright © 2023. FDS FENCE DISTRIBUTORS. All rights reserved.
Modification or reproduction is prohibited without written permission. 

Fence Height: 10'

4" x 5"

1"x 5 3/4"

1"x 5 3/4"

#14 1 1/2"2
Self-Drilling
Screw

COMPOSITE FENCE SYSTEMS



PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING IMPROVEMENT PLANS

FOR

LOCATION MAP

LEGEND

EASEMENT LINE

SOIL BORING

TOPSOIL PROBE

REVERSE PITCH CURB & GUTTER

DEPRESSED CURB

NORMAL WATER LEVEL (NWL)

HIGH WATER LEVEL (HWL)

CLEANOUT

FLOODPLAIN

FLOODWAY

WETLANDS

FIRE HYDRANT

LIGHTING

SANITARY SEWER

STORM SEWER

WATER MAIN

GRANULAR TRENCH BACKFILL

BUFFALO BOX

FORCE MAIN

ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMER

CONTOUR

SPOT ELEVATION

DIRECTION OF SURFACE FLOW

OVERFLOW RELIEF ROUTING

TREE WITH TRUNK SIZE

POWER POLE

STREET SIGN

DITCH OR SWALE

GAS MAIN

TELEPHONE LINE

FENCE LINE, WIRE

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

CURB AND GUTTER

VALVE BOX

ELECTRICAL CABLE

OR PEDESTAL

SANITARY MANHOLE

STORM MANHOLE

CATCH BASIN

INLET

PRECAST FLARED END SECTION

VALVE VAULT

CONCRETE HEADWALL

EXISTING PROPOSED

FENCE LINE, CHAIN LINK OR IRON

FENCE LINE, WOOD OR PLASTIC

POWER POLE WITH LIGHT

GUY WIRE

UTILITY CROSSING

FENCE LINE, TEMPORARY SILT

DIVERSION SWALE

PROPERTY LINE

ABBREVIATIONS

C & G

EP

FG

FF

FL

FP

FW

HWL

ROW

TB

TF

TP

TS

TW

CURB AND GUTTER

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

FINISHED GRADE

FINISHED FLOOR

FLOW LINE

FLOODPLAIN

FLOODWAY

HIGH WATER LEVEL

RIGHT-OF-WAY

TOP OF BANK

TOP OF FOUNDATION

TOP OF PIPE

TOP OF SIDEWALK

TOP OF WALL

BL

CL

FR

INV

PC

PT

PVI

C

D

L

R

T

ST

MH

CB

WM

SAN

BASE LINE

CENTERLINE

FRAME

INVERT

POINT OF CURVATURE

POINT OF TANGENCY

POINT OF VERTICAL INTERSECTION

LONG CHORD OF CURVE

DEGREE OF CURVE

LENGTH OF CURVE

RADIUS

TANGENCY OF CURVE

INTERSECTION ANGLE

STORM SEWER

MANHOLE

CATCH BASIN

WATER MAIN

SANITARY SEWER

TDC TOP OF DEPRESSED CURB

NWL NORMAL WATER LEVEL

BW BOTTOM OF WALL

TC TOP OF CURB

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

ENGINEER'S LIMITATION

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC AND THEIR CONSULTANTS DO NOT WARRANT OR GUARANTEE THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS

OF THE DELIVERABLES HEREIN BEYOND A REASONABLE DILIGENCE. IF ANY MISTAKES, OMISSIONS, OR DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND TO

EXIST WITHIN THE DELIVERABLES, THE ENGINEER SHALL BE PROMPTLY NOTIFIED PRIOR TO BID SO THAT HE MAY HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY

TO TAKE WHATEVER STEPS NECESSARY TO RESOLVE THEM. FAILURE TO PROMPTLY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER OF SUCH CONDITIONS SHALL

ABSOLVE THE ENGINEER FROM ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSEQUENCES OF SUCH FAILURE. ACTIONS TAKEN WITHOUT THE

KNOWLEDGE AND CONSENT TO THE ENGINEER, OR IN CONTRADICTION TO THE ENGINEER'S DELIVERABLES OR RECOMMENDATIONS, SHALL

BECOME THE RESPONSIBILITY NOT OF THE ENGINEER BUT OF THE PARTIES RESPONSIBLE FOR TAKING SUCH ACTION.

FURTHERMORE, PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR CONSTRUCTION SAFETY OR THE MEANS AND METHODS OF

CONSTRUCTION.

BENCHMARKS

302 MITCHELL ROAD

SCALE: 1"=1000'

CONTACTS

PROLOGIS, INC. / LIBERTY ILLINOIS VENTURE, L.P.

JENNY TRAUTMAN, DEVELOPMENT MANAGER

321 N. CLARK STREET, SUITE 2625

CHICAGO, IL 60654

(714) 787-9860

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

BRIAN D. JOHNSON, P.E., CPESC, SENIOR PROJECT MANAGER

1051 EAST MAIN STREET | SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL 60118

(847) 551-5300

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA - PUBLIC WORKS

JOHN LASKOWSKI, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

25 EAST STATE STREET

NORTH AURORA, IL 60542

(630) 897-8228

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

MIKE TOTH, COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

25 EAST STATE STREET

NORTH AURORA, IL 60542

(630) 906-7372

GENERAL NOTES

INDEX OF SHEETS

C-1  COVER SHEET

C-2   PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

C-3  FOX METRO PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

C-4       OVERALL EXISTING CONDITIONS & DEMOLITION PLAN

C-5 - C-6 EXISTING CONDITIONS & DEMOLITION PLAN

C-7       OVERALL SITE DIMENSIONAL & PAVING PLAN

C-8 - C-9 SITE DIMENSIONAL & PAVING PLAN

C-10        OVERALL GRADING PLAN

C-11 - C-12 GRADING PLAN

C-13    OVERALL UTILITY PLAN

C-14 - C-15 UTILITY PLAN

C-16 OVERALL SITE STABILIZATION PLAN

C-17 - C-18     SITE STABILIZATION PLAN

C-19 - C-21  CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS

UTILITY CONTACTS

ELECTRIC

COMED    (800) 334-7661

NATURAL GAS

NICOR GAS   (847) 443-8157

PHONE/CABLE/INTERNET

AT&T   (877) 342-6686

COMCAST   (800) 266-2278

DIRECTV   (800) 531-5000

FRONTIER (800) 921-8102

METRONET (844) 692-6184

1. THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA BUILDING & ZONING DIVISION SHALL BE NOTIFIED 48 HOURS PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK AND 24 HOURS PRIOR TO EACH

INSPECTION AT (630) 897-1457.

2. ALL UTILITY COMPANIES, INCLUDING THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, SHALL BE CONTACTED AND THEIR FACILITIES SHALL BE LOCATED PRIOR TO ANY WORK IN ANY

EASEMENT, RIGHT-OF-WAY, OR SUSPECTED UTILITY LOCATION.  REPAIR OF ANY DAMAGE TO EXISTING FACILITIES SHALL BE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.  UTILITY

LOCATIONS SHOWN HEREIN ARE FOR GRAPHIC ILLUSTRATION ONLY AND ARE NOT TO BE RELIED UPON.

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY OFFSITE CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION THAT ALL OFFSITE EASEMENTS HAVE BEEN

SECURED, AND THAT PERMISSION HAS BEEN GRANTED TO ENTER ONTO PRIVATE PROPERTY.

4. EXCEPT WHERE MODIFIED BY THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, ALL WORK PROPOSED HEREON SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING SPECIFICATIONS (LATEST

EDITION):

a. VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE.

b. "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION" BY ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.

c. "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL ITEMS" BY ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.

d. "SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS AND RECURRING SPECIAL PROVISIONS" BY ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.

e. "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR WATER AND SEWER MAIN CONSTRUCTION IN ILLINOIS" BY ILLINOIS SOCIETY OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, ET AL.

f. OTHER STANDARDS OR SPECIFICATIONS SPECIFICALLY REFERRED TO IN AN INDIVIDUAL PROVISION OF THESE STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

g. "ILLINOIS URBAN MANUAL" AS PREPARED BY THE U.S. DEPT. OF AGRICULTURE & IL ASSOCIATION OF SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICTS.

h. KANE COUNTY "STORMWATER ORDINANCE" AS ADOPTED BY THE VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA.

i. THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, GENERAL CONDITIONS, SPECIAL PROVISIONS AND SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS OF THE PROJECT AS PREPARED BY PINNACLE ENGINEERING

GROUP, LLC.

j. ALL DOCUMENTS CITED IN THE ABOVE STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS RELEVANT TO THE SUBJECT UNDER CONSIDERATION. IF A CONFLICT ARISES BETWEEN ANY

PROVISION(S) OF THE REFERENCE ITEMS ABOVE AND ANY PROVISION(S) OF THESE STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS, THEN THE MORE RESTRICTIVE PROVISION(S) SHALL

APPLY.

5. UPON COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT, THE DEVELOPER SHALL PROVIDE FINAL "RECORD DRAWINGS" (1 MYLAR SEPIA REPRODUCIBLE, SIGNED AND SEALED BY THE ENGINEER) OF

ALL UTILITIES WHICH INCLUDE THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF ALL MAINS, SERVICE LINES, STRUCTURES, PAVED AREAS, SITE GRADING, STREET LIGHTS AND CABLES,

CURBS, AND MONUMENTS. FINAL RECORD DRAWINGS MUST ALSO INCLUDE A STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM TIE-IN. IN ADDITION TO THE DRAWINGS, AN ELECTRONIC FILE

(IN DWG OR DGN FORMAT) OF THE RECORD DRAWINGS MUST BE SUBMITTED ON CD-ROM.

302 MITCHELL ROAD

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

PLANS PREPARED

FOR

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP ILLINOIS DESIGN FIRM REGISTRATION NUMBER 184.006289-0010  035.003296

PROJECT LOCATION

REFERENCE BENCHMARKS

REFERENCE BENCHMARK:

NGS MONUMENT IL KANE 32 39 8 (AJ3008). MONUMENT DESCRIBED

AS LOCATED APPROXIMATELY 1.0 MI NORTHWEST OF NORTH

AURORA, 2.5 MI SOUTHWEST OF BATAVIA IN SECTION 32, T39N, R8E.

TO REACH FROM THE JUNCTION OF IL RT 31 AND MOOSEHEART RD

PROCEED WEST ON MOOSEHEART RD APPROXIMATELY 0.7 MILES

TO THE STATION LOCATED 65.4 FT NORTH OF CENTERLINE OF

MOOSEHEART RD.

DATUM: NAVD88

ELEVATION: 730.75

SITE BENCHMARK:

CUT CROSS IN CURB NEAR THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SITE.

ELEVATION: 718.03

DRAINAGE CERTIFICATE

I, BRIAN JOHNSON, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ADEQUATE STORM WATER STORAGE AND DRAINAGE

CAPACITY HAS BEEN PROVIDED FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT, SUCH THAT SURFACE WATER FROM THE

DEVELOPMENT WILL NOT BE DIVERTED ONTO AND CAUSE DAMAGE TO THE ADJACENT PROPERTY FOR

STORMS UP TO AND INCLUDING THE ONE HUNDRED (100) YEAR EVENT, AND THAT THE DESIGN

PLANS ARE IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE STATE, COUNTY, AND VILLAGE ORDINANCES.

DATED THIS 2ND DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2023.

_______________________________

ENGINEER

M
I
T
C

H
E
L
L
 
R

O
A

D

R

O

N

A

L

D

 
R

E

A

G

A

N

 
M

E

M

O

R

I

A

L

 
T

O

L

L

W

A

Y

 
(
I

-
8

8

)

EXPIRATION DATE:  NOVEMBER 30, 2025

(312) 292-3900

CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60654

321 N. CLARK STREET, SUITE 2625

/ LIBERTY ILLINOIS VENTURE, L.P.

EXISTING

STORMWATER

FACILITY

NOTE:

EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY SHOWN REPRESENTS SITE CONDITIONS AS

PREPARED BY PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LTD., INC.  ON MAY 26,

2021.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD CHECK EXISTING HORIZONTAL AND

VERTICAL SITE FEATURES AND CONDITIONS PRIOR TO

CONSTRUCTION AND NOTIFY ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES

PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION.

EXISTING WATER AND SANITARY SHOWN PER RECORD DRAWING.

FIELD VERIFY BEFORE CONSTRUCTION.

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2
0
2
2

SHEET

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

S
T
A
R

T
 
D

A
T
E

S
C
A
L
EPINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.p

in
n

ac
le

-e
n

g
r.c

o
m

CHICAGO OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN ST. | SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m
REVISIONS

IL DESIGN FIRM 184.006289-0010

COVER SHEET

 
-
 
C

O
V

E
R

 
S

H
E
E
T

1
9

6
0

.
2

0
-
I
L

B
D

J

6
/
0

9
/
2

3

N
O

N
E

C-1

C-21

1 REVISED BUILDING 11/13/23

IL DESIGN FIRM 184.006289-0010

ATTACHMENTS

L-1  LANDSCAPE OVERVIEW

L-2 - L-3  LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT

L-4  LANDSCAPE NOTES & DETAILS

L-5       COLOR EXHIBIT

302 MITCHELL ROAD

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/2023 9:05 AM - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\C-1 COVER SHEET.dwg - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\C-1 COVER SHEET.dwgZ:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\C-1 COVER SHEET.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
749

AutoCAD SHX Text
750.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
749

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Know

AutoCAD SHX Text
below.

AutoCAD SHX Text
what'

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
Call

AutoCAD SHX Text
before

AutoCAD SHX Text
you

AutoCAD SHX Text
dig.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Formerly JULIE 1-800-892-0123

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED FOR PRELIMINARY REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DPG

AutoCAD SHX Text
####



1
8

.
0
'

2
4

.
0
'

1
8

.
0
'

3
0

.
0

'
2

5
.
6

'

40.0'

8
5

5
.
0

'

30.0' 40.0' 85.6'

30.1'

2
4

.
0
'

30.0'40.0'81.0'

70.0'55.0' 70.0' 55.0'

70.0' 55.0'

70.0'55.0' 70.0' 55.0'

70.0'55.0'

70.0' 55.0'

8
5
5

.
0

'

500.0'

4
.
5

'

5
.
5

'

3
0

.
0

'
1

5
.
3

'

1
8

.
0

'

2
4

.
0

'

1
8

.
0

'

500.0'

1
3
3
.
0

'

30.1'

R60'

R10'

R50'

9.0' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

5
.
5
'

R15'

R15'

R3'

(TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)

R10'

R10'

1
2

.
0

'

30.0'40.0'

R10'

1
2

.
0

'

1
2

.
0

'
1

2
.
0
'

R15'

R10'

R60'

R3' (TYP.)R3' (TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)
R3' (TYP.)R3' (TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)
R3' (TYP.)R3' (TYP.)R3' (TYP.)R3' (TYP.)

R10'

R50'

1
2

.
0

'
1

2
.
0

'
1

2
.
0

'
1

2
.
0

'

R10'

R50'

2
4

.
0

'

2
4
.
0

'

R50'

R3' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

PROPOSED BUILDING

±439,380 SF

FF=705.50

WP1 WP1 WP1 WP1 WP1

WP1

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP1

WP1WP1WP1WP1

WP1

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP1

P2 P2 P2 P2 P2 P2

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P2P2P2P2P2P2

E1 E1 E1 E1 E1 E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

E1E1E1E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

WP1

R10'

R10'

R15'

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

LIGHT DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

CONCRETE SIDEWALK (TYP.)

CONCRETE PAVEMENT (TYP.)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

LIGHT DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

CONCRETE SIDEWALK (TYP.)

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

(TYP.)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

CONCRETE PAVEMENT (TYP.)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

(TYP.)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

R50'

R50'

R10'

R5'

R5'

R5'

R5'

R30'

R30'

R5'

R5'

R5'

R5'

60.0'

60.0' 60.0'

2
0

.
0
'

4
9

.
5

'

4
9

.
5

'

4
9

.
5
'

4
9

.
5
'

2
0

.
0

'

2
0
.
0
'

25.5'

25.5'

1
3
.
0

'

1
3
.
0

'

1
1
.
0

'

1
3

.
8

'
1
3
.
8
'

1
3

.
8

'

3
0
.
1
'

1
3
.
8
'

1
9

.
7

'

60.0'60.0' 500.0'

60.0'

60.0'

60.0'

60.0'60.0'

60.0'500.0'

2
9

.
9

'

R10'

R30'

2
0

.
0
'

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

1
3
.
0
'

1
3

.
0

'

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

LIGHT POLE (TYP.)

LIGHT POLE (TYP.)

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2
0
1
8

SHEET

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

S
T
A
R

T
 
D

A
T
E

S
C
A
L
EPINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.p

in
n

ac
le

-e
n

g
r.c

o
m

CHICAGO OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN ST. | SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m
REVISIONS

OVERALL SITE

DIMENSIONAL & PAVING

PLAN

 
-
 
O

V
E
R

A
L
L
 
S

I
T
E
 
D

I
M

E
N

S
I
O

N
A

L
 
&

 
P

A
V

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

1
9

6
0

.
2

0
-
I
L

B
D

J

6
/
0

9
/
2

3

1
"
 
=

 
8

0
'

C-7

C-21

1 REVISED BUILDING 11/13/23

SITE DATA TABLE

SITE DIMENSIONAL AND PAVING NOTES

1. ALL PROPOSED CURB SHALL BE B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE FACE OF CURB TO FACE OF CURB OR

BUILDING FACE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. BUILDING DIMENSIONS, GRADING, PARKING, AND UTILITY

LAYOUT HAVE BEEN PREPARED BASED UPON ARCHITECTURAL

INFORMATION.  SUBSEQUENT ARCHITECTURAL CHANGES MAY

EXIST AND CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL

PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.  IN CASE OF

DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN ARCHITECTURAL PLANS AND CIVIL

PLANS, THE CIVIL PLANS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE.

4. LOCATION OF PRIVATE SIDEWALKS SHALL BE COORDINATED

WITH PROPOSED DOORWAYS. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ACTUAL

BUILDING PLAN LOCATIONS WITH ARCHITECT/DEVELOPER PRIOR

TO CONSTRUCTING THE SIDEWALKS.

5. REBAR / TIEBARS SHALL BE USED IN ALL LOCATIONS WHERE

CONCRETE ABUTS OTHER CONCRETE FEATURES (ie. SIDEWALK

ADJACENT TO FOUNDATION WALL AND SIDEWALK ADJACENT TO

CURB & GUTTER).  TIEBAR SIZE AND SPACING SHALL BE PER

IDOT SPECIFICATIONS. ALL REBAR/TIEBAR SHALL BE EPOXY

COATED.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT ALL HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE

ROUTES IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL AND STATE ADA

REQUIREMENTS.

7. PAVEMENT SLOPES THROUGH HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE PARKING

AREAS SHALL BE 2.00% MAXIMUM IN ANY DIRECTION.

8. REFER TO CONSTRUCTION DETAILS AND GRADING

ENLARGEMENTS FOR SIDEWALK RAMPS AND HANDICAP STRIPING.

9. REFER TO PHOTOMETRICS PLAN (BY OTHERS) FOR LIGHT

STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

PAVING LEGEND

B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

DEPRESSED B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

PARKING STALL COUNT (NOT TO BE PAINTED)

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

8" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE

WITH 6"x6" W2.1 x 8GA.WWF

6" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B

LIGHT DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

1.5" BIT. SURFACE COURSE, HMA, MIX D, N50, 9.5mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22

2.5" BIT. BINDER COURSE, HMA, IL-19, N50, 19.0mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22

0.3 GAL/SY BITUMINOUS PRIME COAT (MC-30)

10" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE SUBBASE, TYPE B

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

2" BIT. SURFACE COURSE, HMA, MIX D, N50, 9.5mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22 (R.A.S. NOT PERMITTED)

5" BIT. BINDER COURSE, HMA, IL-19, N50, 19.0mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22

0.3 GAL/SY BITUMINOUS PRIME COAT (MC-30)

12" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE SUBBASE, TYPE B

SIDEWALK

5" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE (UNREINFORCED)

4" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B

*NOTE: FINAL PAVEMENT SECTIONS TO BE

DETERMINED BY OWNER AND/OR GEOTECH

RECOMMENDATIONS

STRIPING/SIGNAGE LEGEND

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

4'' WHITE LINE

4" YELLOW LINE

4" DOUBLE YELLOW LINE

YELLOW LETTERS OR SYMBOLS / PAVEMENT MARKINGS

24" WIDE WHITE STOP BAR

R1-1 STOP SIGN (30"x30")

R7-8 & R7-I101 HANDICAP PARKING & $350 FINE SIGNS

1" = 80'0 160'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

N
O

R
T
H

KEY MAP

C-9

C-8

IL DESIGN FIRM 184.006289-0010

SITE AREA:  23.963 ACRES

BUILDING FOOTPRINT: 439,380 SF.

OFFICE: 23,760 SF.

WAREHOUSE: 415,620 SF.

PARKING REQUIRED

WAREHOUSE (1/5000 SF): 84 STALLS

OFFICE (3/1000 SF): 72 STALLS

TOTAL:         156 STALLS

PARKING PROVIDED

TRAILER: 118 STALLS

AUTO: 193 STALLS

ADA:                                    7 STALLS

TOTAL: 318 STALLS

TRUCK DOCKS

DOCK-HIGH DOORS: 88

GRADE-LEVEL DOORS:         4

302 MITCHELL ROAD

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' EASEMENT FOR SANITARY SEWER PER DOC. 1650130

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN DETENTION POND H.W.L.=690.60 N.W.L.=685.10 REQUIRED VOL.=28.61 AC-FT PROVIDED VOL.=28.71 AC-FT (PER RECORD DRAWING) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' EASEMENT FOR SANITARY SEWER PER DOC. 1650130

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN DETENTION POND H.W.L.=690.60 N.W.L.=685.10 REQUIRED VOL.=28.61 AC-FT PROVIDED VOL.=28.71 AC-FT (PER RECORD DRAWING) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' EASEMENT FOR SANITARY SEWER PER DOC. 1650130

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN DETENTION POND H.W.L.=690.60 N.W.L.=685.10 REQUIRED VOL.=28.61 AC-FT PROVIDED VOL.=28.71 AC-FT (PER RECORD DRAWING) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' EASEMENT FOR SANITARY SEWER PER DOC. 1650130

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN DETENTION POND H.W.L.=690.60 N.W.L.=685.10 REQUIRED VOL.=28.61 AC-FT PROVIDED VOL.=28.71 AC-FT (PER RECORD DRAWING) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DPG

AutoCAD SHX Text
AJS

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/2023 9:05 AM - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\SITE DIMENSIONAL & PAVING PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\SITE DIMENSIONAL & PAVING PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\SITE DIMENSIONAL & PAVING PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
5



1
8

.
0

'

2
4

.
0

'

1
8

.
0

'

3
0

.
0

'
2

5
.
6

'

40.0'

30.1'

2
4

.
0

'

70.0'55.0' 70.0' 55.0'

70.0'55.0'

70.0' 55.0'

8
5

5
.
0

'

500.0'

500.0'

R60'

R10'

R50'

9.0' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

5
.
5

'

R15'

R15'

R3'

(TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)

R10'

R10'

1
2

.
0

'

30.0'40.0'

R10'

1
2

.
0

'

1
2

.
0

'
1

2
.
0

'

R3' (TYP.)

R3' (TYP.)

PROPOSED BUILDING

±439,380 SF

FF=705.50

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP1

WP1WP1WP1WP1

WP1

WP2

WP2

WP2

P2 P2 P2 P2 P2 P2

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

E1

E1

E1

E1E1E1E1

E1

E1

E1

WP1

R10'

CONCRETE PAVEMENT (TYP.)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

LIGHT DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

CONCRETE SIDEWALK (TYP.)

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

(TYP.)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

R50'

R50'

R10'

R5'

R5'R5'

R5'

60.0' 60.0'

2
0
.
0
'

4
9

.
5

'

4
9

.
5

'

25.5'

1
3

.
0

'

1
3

.
0

'

1
1

.
0

'

1
3

.
8

'

1
3

.
8

'

60.0'

60.0'

60.0'60.0'

2
9

.
9

'

R10'

R30'

2
0
.
0
'

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

LIGHT POLE (TYP.)

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2
0
1
8

SHEET

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

S
T
A
R

T
 
D

A
T
E

S
C
A
L
EPINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.p

in
n

ac
le

-e
n

g
r.c

o
m

CHICAGO OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN ST. | SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m
REVISIONS

SITE DIMENSIONAL &

PAVNIG PLAN

 
-
 
S

I
T
E
 
D

I
M

E
N

S
I
O

N
A

L
 
&

 
P

A
V

N
I
G

 
P

L
A

N

1
9

6
0

.
2

0
-
I
L

B
D

J

6
/
0

9
/
2

3

1
"
=

4
0

'

C-8

C-21

1 REVISED BUILDING 11/13/23

SITE DIMENSIONAL AND PAVING NOTES

1. ALL PROPOSED CURB SHALL BE B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE FACE OF CURB TO FACE OF CURB OR

BUILDING FACE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. BUILDING DIMENSIONS, GRADING, PARKING, AND UTILITY

LAYOUT HAVE BEEN PREPARED BASED UPON ARCHITECTURAL

INFORMATION.  SUBSEQUENT ARCHITECTURAL CHANGES MAY

EXIST AND CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL

PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.  IN CASE OF

DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN ARCHITECTURAL PLANS AND CIVIL

PLANS, THE CIVIL PLANS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE.

4. LOCATION OF PRIVATE SIDEWALKS SHALL BE COORDINATED

WITH PROPOSED DOORWAYS. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ACTUAL

BUILDING PLAN LOCATIONS WITH ARCHITECT/DEVELOPER PRIOR

TO CONSTRUCTING THE SIDEWALKS.

5. REBAR / TIEBARS SHALL BE USED IN ALL LOCATIONS WHERE

CONCRETE ABUTS OTHER CONCRETE FEATURES (ie. SIDEWALK

ADJACENT TO FOUNDATION WALL AND SIDEWALK ADJACENT TO

CURB & GUTTER).  TIEBAR SIZE AND SPACING SHALL BE PER

IDOT SPECIFICATIONS. ALL REBAR/TIEBAR SHALL BE EPOXY

COATED.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT ALL HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE

ROUTES IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL AND STATE ADA

REQUIREMENTS.

7. PAVEMENT SLOPES THROUGH HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE PARKING

AREAS SHALL BE 2.00% MAXIMUM IN ANY DIRECTION.

8. REFER TO CONSTRUCTION DETAILS AND GRADING

ENLARGEMENTS FOR SIDEWALK RAMPS AND HANDICAP STRIPING.

9. REFER TO PHOTOMETRICS PLAN (BY OTHERS) FOR LIGHT

STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

PAVING LEGEND

B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

DEPRESSED B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

PARKING STALL COUNT (NOT TO BE PAINTED)

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

8" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE

WITH 6"x6" W2.1 x 8GA.WWF

6" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B

LIGHT DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

1.5" BIT. SURFACE COURSE, HMA, MIX D, N50, 9.5mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22

2.5" BIT. BINDER COURSE, HMA, IL-19, N50, 19.0mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22

0.3 GAL/SY BITUMINOUS PRIME COAT (MC-30)

10" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE SUBBASE, TYPE B

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

2" BIT. SURFACE COURSE, HMA, MIX D, N50, 9.5mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22 (R.A.S. NOT PERMITTED)

5" BIT. BINDER COURSE, HMA, IL-19, N50, 19.0mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22

0.3 GAL/SY BITUMINOUS PRIME COAT (MC-30)

12" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE SUBBASE, TYPE B

SIDEWALK

5" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE (UNREINFORCED)

4" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B

*NOTE: FINAL PAVEMENT SECTIONS TO BE

DETERMINED BY OWNER AND/OR GEOTECH

RECOMMENDATIONS

STRIPING/SIGNAGE LEGEND

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

4'' WHITE LINE

4" YELLOW LINE

4" DOUBLE YELLOW LINE

YELLOW LETTERS OR SYMBOLS / PAVEMENT MARKINGS

24" WIDE WHITE STOP BAR

R1-1 STOP SIGN (30"x30")

R7-8 & R7-I101 HANDICAP PARKING & $350 FINE SIGNS

N
O

R
T
H

1" = 40'0 80'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

MATCHLINE (SEE SHEET C-9)

IL DESIGN FIRM 184.006289-0010

SITE DATA TABLE

SITE AREA:  23.963 ACRES

BUILDING FOOTPRINT: 439,380 SF.

OFFICE: 23,760 SF.

WAREHOUSE: 415,620 SF.

PARKING REQUIRED

WAREHOUSE (1/5000 SF): 84 STALLS

OFFICE (3/1000 SF): 72 STALLS

TOTAL:         156 STALLS

PARKING PROVIDED

TRAILER: 118 STALLS

AUTO: 193 STALLS

ADA:                                    7 STALLS

TOTAL: 318 STALLS

TRUCK DOCKS

DOCK-HIGH DOORS: 88

GRADE-LEVEL DOORS:         4

302 MITCHELL ROAD

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT PER DOC. 2000K073013

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ACCESS EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DPG

AutoCAD SHX Text
AJS

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/2023 9:05 AM - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\SITE DIMENSIONAL & PAVING  - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\SITE DIMENSIONAL & PAVING Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\SITE DIMENSIONAL & PAVING PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
5



8
5

5
.
0

'

30.0' 40.0' 85.6'30.0'40.0'81.0'

70.0'55.0' 70.0' 55.0'

70.0' 55.0'

4
.
5

'

5
.
5

'

3
0
.
0
'

1
5

.
3

'

1
8

.
0

'

2
4

.
0

'

1
8
.
0
'

1
3
3

.
0

'

30.1'

1
2
.
0
'

1
2

.
0

'

R15'

R10'

R60'

R3' (TYP.)R3' (TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)
R3' (TYP.)R3' (TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)

9.0' (TYP.)
R3' (TYP.)R3' (TYP.)R3' (TYP.)R3' (TYP.)

R10'

R50'

1
2

.
0

'
1

2
.
0
'

R10'

R50'

2
4

.
0

'

2
4
.
0
'

R50'

PROPOSED BUILDING

±439,380 SF

FF=705.50

WP1 WP1 WP1 WP1 WP1

WP1

WP2

WP2WP2

WP2

WP1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P2P2P2P2P2P2

E1 E1 E1 E1 E1 E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

R10'

R15'

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

LIGHT DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

CONCRETE SIDEWALK (TYP.)

CONCRETE PAVEMENT (TYP.)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

(TYP.)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT

PAVEMENT (TYP.)

B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

R5'

R5'

R30'

R30'

R5'

R5'

60.0'

4
9

.
5

'

4
9
.
5
'

2
0

.
0

'

2
0

.
0

'

25.5'

1
3

.
8

'

3
0
.
1
'

1
3

.
8

'

1
9

.
7

'

60.0'60.0' 500.0'

60.0'

60.0'500.0'

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12

CURB & GUTTER

1
3
.
0

'

1
3
.
0

'

LIGHT POLE (TYP.)

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2
0
1
8

SHEET

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

S
T
A
R

T
 
D

A
T
E

S
C
A
L
EPINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.p

in
n

ac
le

-e
n

g
r.c

o
m

CHICAGO OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN ST. | SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m
REVISIONS

SITE DIMENSIONAL &

PAVING PLAN

 
-
 
S

I
T
E
 
D

I
M

E
N

S
I
O

N
A

L
 
&

 
P

A
V

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

1
9

6
0

.
2

0
-
I
L

B
D

J

6
/
0

9
/
2

3

1
"
=

4
0

'

C-9

C-21

1 REVISED BUILDING 11/13/23

SITE DIMENSIONAL AND PAVING NOTES

1. ALL PROPOSED CURB SHALL BE B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE FACE OF CURB TO FACE OF CURB OR

BUILDING FACE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. BUILDING DIMENSIONS, GRADING, PARKING, AND UTILITY

LAYOUT HAVE BEEN PREPARED BASED UPON ARCHITECTURAL

INFORMATION.  SUBSEQUENT ARCHITECTURAL CHANGES MAY

EXIST AND CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL

PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.  IN CASE OF

DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN ARCHITECTURAL PLANS AND CIVIL

PLANS, THE CIVIL PLANS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE.

4. LOCATION OF PRIVATE SIDEWALKS SHALL BE COORDINATED

WITH PROPOSED DOORWAYS. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ACTUAL

BUILDING PLAN LOCATIONS WITH ARCHITECT/DEVELOPER PRIOR

TO CONSTRUCTING THE SIDEWALKS.

5. REBAR / TIEBARS SHALL BE USED IN ALL LOCATIONS WHERE

CONCRETE ABUTS OTHER CONCRETE FEATURES (ie. SIDEWALK

ADJACENT TO FOUNDATION WALL AND SIDEWALK ADJACENT TO

CURB & GUTTER).  TIEBAR SIZE AND SPACING SHALL BE PER

IDOT SPECIFICATIONS. ALL REBAR/TIEBAR SHALL BE EPOXY

COATED.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT ALL HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE

ROUTES IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL AND STATE ADA

REQUIREMENTS.

7. PAVEMENT SLOPES THROUGH HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE PARKING

AREAS SHALL BE 2.00% MAXIMUM IN ANY DIRECTION.

8. REFER TO CONSTRUCTION DETAILS AND GRADING

ENLARGEMENTS FOR SIDEWALK RAMPS AND HANDICAP STRIPING.

9. REFER TO PHOTOMETRICS PLAN (BY OTHERS) FOR LIGHT

STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

PAVING LEGEND

B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

DEPRESSED B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

PARKING STALL COUNT (NOT TO BE PAINTED)

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

8" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE

WITH 6"x6" W2.1 x 8GA.WWF

6" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B

LIGHT DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

1.5" BIT. SURFACE COURSE, HMA, MIX D, N50, 9.5mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22

2.5" BIT. BINDER COURSE, HMA, IL-19, N50, 19.0mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22

0.3 GAL/SY BITUMINOUS PRIME COAT (MC-30)

10" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE SUBBASE, TYPE B

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

2" BIT. SURFACE COURSE, HMA, MIX D, N50, 9.5mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22 (R.A.S. NOT PERMITTED)

5" BIT. BINDER COURSE, HMA, IL-19, N50, 19.0mm

NOMINAL SIZE, PG64-22

0.3 GAL/SY BITUMINOUS PRIME COAT (MC-30)

12" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE SUBBASE, TYPE B

SIDEWALK

5" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE (UNREINFORCED)

4" COMP. CA-6 AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, TYPE B

*NOTE: FINAL PAVEMENT SECTIONS TO BE

DETERMINED BY OWNER AND/OR GEOTECH

RECOMMENDATIONS

STRIPING/SIGNAGE LEGEND

REVERSE PITCH B-6.12 CURB & GUTTER

4'' WHITE LINE

4" YELLOW LINE

4" DOUBLE YELLOW LINE

YELLOW LETTERS OR SYMBOLS / PAVEMENT MARKINGS

24" WIDE WHITE STOP BAR

R1-1 STOP SIGN (30"x30")

R7-8 & R7-I101 HANDICAP PARKING & $350 FINE SIGNS

MATCHLINE (SEE SHEET C-8)

IL DESIGN FIRM 184.006289-0010

N
O

R
T
H

1" = 40'0 80'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

7

SITE DATA TABLE

SITE AREA:  23.963 ACRES

BUILDING FOOTPRINT: 439,380 SF.

OFFICE: 23,760 SF.

WAREHOUSE: 415,620 SF.

PARKING REQUIRED

WAREHOUSE (1/5000 SF): 84 STALLS

OFFICE (3/1000 SF): 72 STALLS

TOTAL:         156 STALLS

PARKING PROVIDED

TRAILER: 118 STALLS

AUTO: 193 STALLS

ADA:                                    7 STALLS

TOTAL: 318 STALLS

TRUCK DOCKS

DOCK-HIGH DOORS: 88

GRADE-LEVEL DOORS:         4

302 MITCHELL ROAD

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER DETENTION AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER DETENTION AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER DETENTION AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER DETENTION AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' PUDE PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DPG

AutoCAD SHX Text
AJS

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/2023 9:05 AM - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\SITE DIMENSIONAL & PAVING  - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\SITE DIMENSIONAL & PAVING Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\SITE DIMENSIONAL & PAVING PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
5



7
1
3

7

1

2

7

1

1

7

1

0

7

0

9

6

9

7

6

9

8

6

9

9

7

0

0

7
0
1

7

0

2

7
0
3

7
0
4

7
0
5

7

0

6

7

0

1

7

0

1

7
0

2

7
0

2

7

0

1

7

0

1

7
0

2

7

0

1

7
0

2

7

0

1

7

0

2

7

0

1

7
0

2

7

0

1

7
0

2

7

0

1

7

0

2

7
0

2

7

0

1

7

0

8

7

0

8

7

0

4

7

0

4

7

0

4

7

0

4

7

0

4

7

0

6

7

0

5

7

0

4

7

0

3

7
0
2

7

0

1

7

0

4

7

0

2

7
0
3

6

9

8

6

9

9

6

9

8

6

9

9

7
0

0

7
0

1
7
0
1

6

9

8

6

9

9

7
0

0

7
0

1

7
0

0

6

9

8

6

9

9

7
0

1

7
0

0

6

9

8

6

9

9

7
0

1

7

0

0

6

9

8

6

9

9

7
0

1

7
0
0

6

9

8

6

9

9

7
0
1

6
9
9

6
9
8

6

9

7

7

0

0

7

0

1

7

0

2

7

0

3

704

703

7

0

4

7
0
4

7
0
3

7
0
4

7
0
3

7
0
4

7
0
3

7
0
4

7
0
3

7
0
4

7
0
3

7

0

3

7

0

2

7

0

1

6

9

5
6

9

6

6

9

7

6

9

8

6
9
9

7
0
0

6

9

5

6

9

6

6

9

7

6

9

8

693

694

695

696

693

694

695

696

692

693

694

695

696

6

9

4

6

9

5

6

9

6

6

9

7

6

9

8

6

9

9

7

0

0

7

0

1

7

0

2

7

0

3

7

0

4

7

0

5

7

0

1

7

0

2

7

0

1

7

0

2

7

0

1

7

0

4

7

1

2

7

1

3

7

1

3

7

1

2

7

1

0

7
0
9

7

0

7

7

0

1

7

0

5

7

0

47

0

2

7

0

2
7

0

1

7

0

0

705

7
0
4

7
0
2

7
0
2

7
0
1

7
0
0

6
9
9

6
9
8

7
0
2

7
0
2

7
0
1

7
0
0

6
9
9

6
9
8

6
9
8

7

0

1

7

0

0

6

9

9

6

9

8

6

9

7

6

9

6

7
0
0

6

9

9

6

9

8

6

9

7

6

9

7

6
9
7

6
9
6

6

9

6

6

9

8

6
9
8

6
9
7

6
9
8

6
9
7

6
9
6

6
9
8

6
9
7

6
9
6

6
9
6

6
9
7

6
9
8

6
9
8

6
9
7

6
9
6

6
9
8

6
9
7

6
9
6

6
9
8

6
9
7

6
9
6

6
9
4

6
9
5

6
9
5

695

695

694

693

7

0

3

7

0

2

7

0

17

0

0

6

9

9

702

701

700

699

698

702

701

700

699

698

7
0
1

7
0

1
7

0
1

7
0

1
7

0
1

7
0

1

705

706

704

705

7

0

3

7

0

4

7

0

4

7
0
6

7

0

5

7

0

2

7

0

3

7

0

4

705

7
0
2

7
0
3

7
0
4

7
0
5

7

0

5

7

0

4

7

0

3

7

0

2

7
0
1

7
0
2

7
0
3

7
0
4

7

0

5

PROPOSED BUILDING

±439,380 SF

FF=705.50

7

0

3

7

0

5

7

0

6

7

0

7

7

0

8

7

0

9

7

1

0

7

1

1

7

0

2

WP1 WP1 WP1 WP1 WP1

WP1

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP1

WP1WP1WP1WP1

WP1

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP1

P2 P2 P2 P2 P2 P2

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P2P2P2P2P2P2

E1 E1 E1 E1 E1 E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

E1E1E1E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

WP1

WP1 WP1 WP1 WP1 WP1

WP1

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP1

WP1WP1WP1WP1

WP1

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP2

WP1

P2 P2 P2 P2 P2 P2

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P1

P2P2P2P2P2P2

E1 E1 E1 E1 E1 E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

E1E1E1E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

E1

WP1

©
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
2
0
1
8

SHEET

P
E
G

 
J
O

B
 
N

o
.

P
E
G

 
P
M

S
T
A
R

T
 
D

A
T
E

S
C
A
L
EPINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP    

w
w

w
.p

in
n

ac
le

-e
n

g
r.c

o
m

CHICAGO OFFICE:
1051 E. MAIN ST. | SUITE 217

EAST DUNDEE, IL  60118
(847) 551-5300

ENGINEERING I NATURAL RESOURCES I SURVEYING

PLAN I DESIGN I DELIVER

CHICAGO I MILWAUKEE : NATIONWIDE

w w w . p i n n a c l e - e n g r . c o m
REVISIONS

OVERALL GRADING PLAN

O
V

E
R

A
L
L
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

1
9

6
0

.
2

0
-
I
L

B
D

J

6
/
0

9
/
2

3

1
"
 
=

 
8

0
'

C-10

C-21

1 REVISED BUILDING 11/13/23

C-12

C-11

1" = 80'0 160'

 GRAPHICAL SCALE (FEET)

N
O

R
T
H

KEY MAP

GRADING NOTES

LEGEND

EXISTING PROPOSED

STORM DRAINAGE STRUCTURE

PRECAST FLARED END SECTION

CONTOUR

SPOT ELEVATION

DIRECTION OF SURFACE FLOW

OVERFLOW RELIEF ROUTING

SOIL BORING

PROPOSED RIDGELINE

TYPICAL SLOPE

SURVEYED TREE

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT 811 PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION

AND NOTIFY ENGINEERING OF ANY CONFLICTS WITH THE

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS.

2. BUILDING DIMENSIONS, GRADING, PARKING, AND UTILITY

LAYOUT HAVE BEEN PREPARED BASED UPON ARCHITECTURAL

INFORMATION.  SUBSEQUENT ARCHITECTURAL CHANGES MAY

EXIST AND CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL

PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.  IN CASE OF

DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN ARCHITECTURAL PLANS AND CIVIL

PLANS, THE CIVIL PLANS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL MEET ALL COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS AS

SPECIFIED ON SHEET C-2 AND PER IDOT.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT ALL HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE

ROUTES IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL AND STATE ADA

REQUIREMENTS.

5. PAVEMENT SLOPES THROUGH HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE PARKING

AREAS SHALL BE 2.00% MAXIMUM IN ANY DIRECTION.

6. REFER TO CONSTRUCTION DETAILS FOR SIDEWALK RAMPS AND

HANDICAP STRIPING.

7. ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED CONTOURS ARE SHOWN IN 1'

INCREMENTS.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT BLOCK DRAINAGE.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST ALL RIM ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

STRUCTURES TO PROPOSED GRADE.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO PLAN SPECIFICATIONS, SOIL

EROSION CONTROL PLAN, AND SWPPP PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION

FOR WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH LAND

DISTURBANCE.

1. CONTOURS ARE SHOWN AS FINISHED GRADE.

2. SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE SHOWN AS FLOW LINE ALONG THE CURB

AND GUTTER AND FINISHED GRADE ELSE WHERE UNLESS

SPECIFIED AS BELOW:

TW = TOP OF WALL

BW = BOTTOM OF WALL

TDC = TOP OF DEPRESSED CURB

TS = TOP OF SIDEWALK

ELEVATIONS

INLET

302 MITCHELL ROAD

NORTH AURORA, ILLINOIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER DETENTION AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=718.63 INV=705.53 24" RCP W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=711.59 INV=704.09 12" RCP SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=710.27 INV=694.07 36" RCP W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=715.82 TRUCK PARKED OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=715.75 TRUCK PARKED OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV=684.79 12" RCP NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=705.57 INV=698.57 8" CPP S INV=692.02 42" RCP NE INV=691.92 42" RCP W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV=704.64 8" CPP SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=705.31 INV=699.31 8" CPP SE INV=694.86 42" RCP E INV=694.76 42" RCP SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=705.26 INV=OFFSET 8" CPP SE INV=OFFSET 12" RCP S INV=697.41 42" RCP E INV=697.21 42" RCP W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=705.21 INV=OFFSET 8" CPP SE INV=698.41 42" RCP E INV=698.36 42" RCP W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=705.15 INV=OFFSET 8" CPP SE INV=OFFSET 12" RCP S INV=6999.88 42" RCP E-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV=704.05 8" CPP SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV=704.17 8" CPP SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV=704.17 8" CPP SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN DETENTION POND H.W.L.=690.60 N.W.L.=685.10 REQUIRED VOL.=28.61 AC-FT PROVIDED VOL.=28.71 AC-FT (PER RECORD DRAWING) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE RIP-RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER DETENTION AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 5-12-2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=718.63 INV=705.53 24" RCP W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=711.59 INV=704.09 12" RCP SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=710.27 INV=694.07 36" RCP W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=715.82 TRUCK PARKED OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=715.75 TRUCK PARKED OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV=684.79 12" RCP NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=705.57 INV=698.57 8" CPP S INV=692.02 42" RCP NE INV=691.92 42" RCP W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV=704.64 8" CPP SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=705.31 INV=699.31 8" CPP SE INV=694.86 42" RCP E INV=694.76 42" RCP SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=705.26 INV=OFFSET 8" CPP SE INV=OFFSET 12" RCP S INV=697.41 42" RCP E INV=697.21 42" RCP W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=705.21 INV=OFFSET 8" CPP SE INV=698.41 42" RCP E INV=698.36 42" RCP W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET RIM=705.15 INV=OFFSET 8" CPP SE INV=OFFSET 12" RCP S INV=6999.88 42" RCP E-W

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV=704.05 8" CPP SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV=704.17 8" CPP SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV=704.17 8" CPP SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN DETENTION POND H.W.L.=690.60 N.W.L.=685.10 REQUIRED VOL.=28.61 AC-FT PROVIDED VOL.=28.71 AC-FT (PER RECORD DRAWING) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER DETENTION AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN DETENTION POND H.W.L.=690.60 N.W.L.=685.10 REQUIRED VOL.=28.61 AC-FT PROVIDED VOL.=28.71 AC-FT (PER RECORD DRAWING) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN DETENTION POND H.W.L.=690.60 N.W.L.=685.10 REQUIRED VOL.=28.61 AC-FT PROVIDED VOL.=28.71 AC-FT (PER RECORD DRAWING) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DOC. 892442

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER DETENTION AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER DOC. 2007K125658

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK CUT CROSS IN CURB ELEVATION=718.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN DETENTION POND H.W.L.=690.60 N.W.L.=685.10 REQUIRED VOL.=28.61 AC-FT PROVIDED VOL.=28.71 AC-FT (PER RECORD DRAWING) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERN DETENTION POND H.W.L.=690.60 N.W.L.=685.10 REQUIRED VOL.=28.61 AC-FT PROVIDED VOL.=28.71 AC-FT (PER RECORD DRAWING) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE PLANS AND DESIGNS ARE COPYRIGHT PROTECTED AND MAY NOT BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DPG

AutoCAD SHX Text
AJS

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/2023 9:05 AM - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\GRADING PLAN.dwg - Z:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\GRADING PLAN.dwgZ:\Projects\2020\1960.00-IL\312 - ENGINEERING\FINAL\SHEETSET\GRADING PLAN.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
749

AutoCAD SHX Text
749

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
750.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
4:1



      
 
 

Memorandum 
To:         Mark Gaffino, Village President & Board of Trustees 

Cc:     Steven Bosco, Village Administrator  

From:  Brandon Tonarelli, Assistant Public Works Director / Village Engineer  

Date:  October 21, 2024 

Re:         Consideration of a Phase 1 & 2 Engineering Agreement with EEI for the Oak 

Street STP Project in the amount of $87,771. 

 
The Village has received a proposal from Engineering Enterprises, Inc. (EEI) for the Phase 1 
and 2 engineering services (design) for the Oak Street STP Project proposed for 2027.  This 
project would include pavement rehabilitation of Oak Street from approximately Acorn Drive 
to Adams Street.   
 
EEI’s proposal for Phase 1 and 2 engineering is in the amount of $87,771.  Included within 
their proposal is the use of a sub consultant.  Environmental testing and reporting services 
are to be performed by Huff & Huff in the amount of $24,295.  EEI’s scope includes the Phase 
I engineering report required by the Illinois Department of Transportation through 
completing final engineering plans and specifications for the project.   
 
The Village had obtained federal funding for this project through the Kane County Council of 
Mayors (KKCOM) and Chicago Metropolitan Planning Agency (CMAP) in 2022 with funding 
from the federal Surface Transportation Project (STP) in the amount of $500,000.   
 
A summary of the estimated project cost and grant funds is shown in the table below: 
 Phase 1 & 2 Eng. Construction Phase 3 Eng. 
Village Funds $87,771 $700,000 $120,000 
Grant Funds - $500,000 - 
Total $87,771 $1,200,000 $120,000 

 
Total Estimated Project Cost = $1,407,771 
Total Estimated Project Cost with Village Funds = $907,771 
 
The construction and Phase 3 engineering costs are estimated.   
 
Village staff reviewed the professional services agreement prepared by EEI for the Phase 1 
and 2 engineering services.  It was determined that the scope outlined in the agreement is 



sufficient to address the needs of the project. There is currently $125,000 budgeted for the 
project. Staff’s recommendation is to enter into an agreement with EEI in the amount of 
$87,771. 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                    OAK STREET RESURFACING – PHASE I AND PHASE II 

 
 
  
   

                                                                                                                                  PAGE 1 
 
 

Oak Street Resurfacing – Phase I and Phase II Engineering 
Village of North Aurora 

Professional Services Agreement 
 

  
THIS AGREEMENT, by and between the Village of North Aurora, hereinafter 
referred to as the "Village" or “OWNER” and Engineering Enterprises, Inc. 
hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor" or “ENGINEER” agrees as follows:  
 
A. Services:  
 
ENGINEER agrees to furnish to the Village the following services: The 
ENGINEER shall provide any and all necessary Phase I and Phase II engineering 
services to the Village as indicated on the Scope of Services (Attachment B).  
Phase I and Phase II Engineering for all locations indicated on Attachment D will 
be provided. Phase III Construction Engineering services are not included in this 
agreement. Engineering will be in accordance with all Village and Illinois 
Department of Transportation requirements.  
 
B. Term:   
 
Services will be provided beginning on the date of execution of this agreement 
and continuing, until terminated by either party upon 7 days written notice to the 
non-terminating party or upon completion of the Services.  Upon termination the 
ENGINEER shall be compensated for all work performed for the Village prior to 
termination.  
 
C. Compensation and maximum amounts due to ENGINEER: 
 
ENGINEER shall receive as compensation for all work and services to be 
performed herein, an amount based on the Estimated Level of Effort and 
Associated Cost included in Attachment C.  Phase I and Phase II Engineering will 
be paid for as a Fixed Fee (FF) in the amount of $87,771, of which direct 
expenses are estimated at $24,295. The hourly rates for this project are shown in 
Attachment F.  All payments will be made according to the Illinois State Prompt 
Payment Act and not less than once every thirty days.  
 
For outside services provided by other firms or subconsultants, the Village shall 
pay the ENGINEER the invoiced fee to the ENGINEER, plus 10%. Such outside 
services include, but are not limited to services to be provided by Huff & Huff, a 
Subsidiary of GZA. 
 
 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                    OAK STREET RESURFACING – PHASE I AND PHASE II 

 
 
  
   

                                                                                                                                  PAGE 2 
 
 

D. Changes in Rates of Compensation: 
 
In the event that this contract is designated in Section B hereof as an Ongoing 
Contract, ENGINEER, on or before February 1st of any given year, shall provide 
written notice of any change in the rates specified in Section C hereof (or on any 
attachments hereto) and said changes shall only be effective on and after May 1st 
of that same year. 
 
E. Ownership of Records and Documents: 
 
ENGINEER agrees that all books and records and other recorded information 
developed specifically in connection with this agreement shall remain the property 
of the Village. ENGINEER agrees to keep such information confidential and not to 
disclose or disseminate the information to third parties without the consent of the 
Village.  This confidentiality shall not apply to material or information, which would 
otherwise be subject to public disclosure through the freedom of information act or 
if already previously disclosed by a third party. Upon termination of this 
agreement, ENGINEER agrees to return all such materials to the Village. The 
Village agrees not to modify any original documents produced by ENGINEER 
without contractors consent.  Modifications of any signed duplicate original 
document not authorized by ENGINEER will be at OWNER’s sole risk and without 
legal liability to the ENGINEER. Use of any incomplete, unsigned document will, 
likewise, be at the OWNER’s sole risk and without legal liability to the ENGINEER. 
 
F. Governing Law:  
 
This contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Illinois.  Venue shall be in Kane County, Illinois.  
 
G. Independent Contractor:   
 
ENGINEER shall have sole control over the manner and means of providing the 
work and services performed under this agreement. The Village’s relationship to 
the ENGINEER under this agreement shall be that of an independent contractor.  
ENGINEER will not be considered an employee to the Village for any purpose.    
 
H. Certifications:   
 
Employment Status: The Contractor certifies that if any of its personnel are an 
employee of the State of Illinois, they have permission from their employer to 
perform the service.   
 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                    OAK STREET RESURFACING – PHASE I AND PHASE II 

 
 
  
   

                                                                                                                                  PAGE 3 
 
 

Anti-Bribery: The Contractor certifies it is not barred under 30 Illinois Compiled 
Statutes 500/50-5(a) - (d) from contracting as a result of a conviction for or 
admission of bribery or attempted bribery of an officer or employee of the State of 
Illinois or any other state.   
 
Loan Default: If the Contractor is an individual, the Contractor certifies that he/she 
is not in default for a period of six months or more in an amount of $600 or more 
on the repayment of any educational loan guaranteed by the Illinois State 
Scholarship Commission made by an Illinois institution of higher education or any 
other loan made from public funds for the purpose of financing higher education (5 
ILCS 385/3).  
 
Felony Certification: The Contractor certifies that it is not barred pursuant to 30 
Illinois Compiled Statutes 500/50-10 from conducting business with the State of 
Illinois or any agency as a result of being convicted of a felony.   
 
Barred from Contracting:  The Contractor certifies that it has not been barred from 
contracting as a result of a conviction for bid-rigging or bid rotating under 720 
Illinois Compiled Statutes 5/33E or similar law of another state.   
 
Drug Free Workplace:  The Contractor certifies that it is in compliance with the 
Drug Free Workplace Act (30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 580) as of the effective 
date of this contract.  The Drug Free Workplace Act requires, in part, that 
Contractors, with 25 or more employees  certify and agree to take steps to ensure 
a drug free workplace by informing employees of the  dangers of drug abuse, of 
the availability of any treatment or assistance program, of  prohibited activities and 
of sanctions that will be imposed for violations; and that individuals  with contracts 
certify that they will not engage in the manufacture, distribution, dispensation,  
possession, or use of a controlled substance in the performance of the contract.   
 
Non-Discrimination, Certification, and Equal Employment Opportunity: The 
Contractor agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the Illinois Human 
Rights Act (775 Illinois  Compiled Statutes 5), the U.S. Civil Rights Act, the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, Section  504 of the U.S. Rehabilitation Act and the 
rules applicable to each. The equal opportunity clause of Section 750.10 of the 
Illinois Department of Human Rights Rules is specifically incorporated herein.  
The Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246, entitled Equal 
Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as 
supplemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. Chapter 60).  
The Contractor agrees to incorporate this clause into all subcontracts under this 
Contract.  
 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                    OAK STREET RESURFACING – PHASE I AND PHASE II 

 
 
  
   

                                                                                                                                  PAGE 4 
 
 

International Boycott:  The Contractor certifies that neither it nor any substantially 
owned affiliated company is participating or shall participate in an international 
boycott in violation of the provisions of the U.S. Export Administration Act of 1979 
or the regulations of the U.S. Department of Commerce promulgated under that 
Act (30 ILCS 582).   
 
Record Retention and Audits:  If 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 500/20-65 requires 
the Contractor (and any subcontractors) to maintain, for a period of 3 years after 
the later of the date of completion of this Contract or the date of final payment 
under the Contract, all books and records relating to the performance of the 
Contract and necessary to support amounts charged to the Village under the 
Contract. The Contract and all books and records related to the Contract shall be 
available for review and audit by the Village and the Illinois Auditor General. If this 
Contract is funded from contract/grant funds provided by the U.S.  Government, 
the Contract, books, and records shall be available for review and audit by the 
Comptroller General of the U.S. and/or the Inspector General of the federal 
sponsoring agency. The Contractor agrees to cooperate fully with any audit and to 
provide full access to all relevant materials.  
 
United States Resident Certification: (This certification must be included in all 
contracts involving personal services by non-resident aliens and foreign entities in 
accordance with  requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Services for 
withholding and reporting federal  income taxes.) The Contractor certifies that 
he/she is a:   x  United States Citizen  ___ Resident Alien  ___ Non-Resident 
Alien  The Internal Revenue Service requires that taxes be withheld on payments 
made to non  resident aliens for the performance of personal services at the rate 
of 30%.   
 
Tax Payer Certification :  Under penalties of perjury, the Contractor certifies that 
its Federal Tax Payer Identification Number or Social Security Number is 
(provided separately)  and is  doing business as a (check one):  ___ Individual  
___ Real  Estate  Agent  ___ Sole  Proprietorship  ___ Government  Entity     ___ 
Partnership  ___ Tax Exempt Organization (IRC 501(a) only)   x   Corporation  
___ Not for Profit Corporation  ___ Trust or Estate  ___ Medical and Health Care 
Services Provider Corp.   
 
I. Indemnification:   
 
ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless the Village and Village’s agents, 
servants, and employees against all loss, damage, and expense which it  may 
sustain or for which it will become liable on account of injury to or death of 
persons, or  on account of damage to or destruction of property resulting from the 
performance of work  under this agreement by ENGINEER or its Subcontractors, 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA                                                    OAK STREET RESURFACING – PHASE I AND PHASE II 

 
 
  
   

                                                                                                                                  PAGE 5 
 
 

or due to or arising in any manner  from the wrongful act or negligence of 
ENGINEER or its Subcontractors of any employee of  any of them. In the event 
that the either party shall bring any suit, cause of action or counterclaim against 
the other party, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the prevailing party the cost 
and expenses incurred to answer and/or defend such action, including reasonable 
attorney fees and court costs.  In no event shall the either party indemnify any 
other party for the consequences of that party’s negligence, including failure to 
follow the ENGINEER’s recommendations. 
 
 J. Insurance:   
 
The ENGINEER agrees that it has either attached a copy of all required insurance 
certificates or that said insurance is not required due to the nature and extent of 
the types of services rendered hereunder. (Not applicable as having been 
previously supplied) 
 
K. Additional Terms or Modification: 
 
The terms of this agreement shall be further modified as provided on the 
attachments. Except for those terms included on the attachments, no additional 
terms are included as a part of this agreement. All prior understandings and 
agreements between the parties are merged into this agreement, and this 
agreement may not be modified orally or in any manner other than by an 
agreement in writing signed by both parties.  In the event that any provisions of 
this agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions shall be valid and binding on the parties.  The list of exhibits is as 
follows: 
 

 Attachment A:  Standard Terms and Conditions  
Attachment B:  Scope of Services – Phase I and Phase II Engineering 

 Attachment C:  Estimated Level of Effort and Associated Cost 
 Attachment D:  Location Map  
 Attachment E: Estimated Schedule 
 Attachment F: 2024 Standard Schedule of Charges 
 Attachment G: Huff & Huff Proposal 
 
 



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA  OAK STREET RESURFACING – PHASE I AND PHASE II 

 PAGE 6 

L. Notices:

All notices required to be given under the terms of this agreement shall be given 
mail, addressed to the parties as follows: 

For the Village: For the ENGINEER: 

President and Village Clerk Engineering Enterprises, Inc. 
Village of North Aurora  52 Wheeler Road      
25 East State Street  Sugar Grove, IL 60554 
North Aurora, IL 60542 

Either of the parties may designate in writing from time-to-time substitute 
addresses or persons in connection with required notices. 

Agreed to this _____day of __________________, 2024. 

Village of North Aurora:  Engineering Enterprises, Inc.: 

___________________________ __________________________ 
    Mark Gaffino           Brad Sanderson, PE 
 Village President  Chief Operating Officer / President 

___________________________ __________________________ 
 Jessi Watkins     Joseph W. Cwynar 
  Village Clerk   Senior Project Manager 



  
 
ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.  ATTACHMENT A – AUGUST 2024 

 
 

PAGE 1 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
 

Agreement:  These Standard Terms and Conditions, together with the Professional Services Agreement, constitute the entire 
integrated agreement between the OWNER and Engineering Enterprises, Inc. (EEI) (hereinafter “Agreement”), and take precedence 
over any other provisions between the Parties. These terms may be amended, but only if both parties consent in writing.  

Standard of Care:  In providing services under this Agreement, the ENGINEER will endeavor to perform in a matter consistent with 
that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under same circumstances 
in the same locality.  ENGINEER makes no other warranties, express or implied, written or oral under this Agreement or otherwise, in 
connection with ENGINEER’S service.  

Construction Engineering and Inspection:  The ENGINEER shall not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any 
contractor work, nor have authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques sequences, or procedures of 
construction selected or used by any contractor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety of the 
site, nor for any failure of a contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to such contractor’s furnishing and performing 
of its work.  

The ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor assumes responsibility for contractor’s failure to furnish 
and perform the work in accordance with the contract documents.  

The ENGINEER is not responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, or supplies, or any of their agents or 
employees or any other person at the site or otherwise furnishing or performing any work.  

Shop drawing and submittal review by the ENGINEER shall apply to only the items in the submissions and only for the purpose of 
assessing if upon installation or incorporation in the project work they are generally consistent with the construction documents.  
OWNER agrees that the contractor is solely responsible for the submissions and for compliance with the construction documents.  
OWNER further agrees that the ENGINEER’S review and action in relation to these submissions shall not constitute the provision of 
means, methods, techniques, sequencing or procedures of construction or extend or safety programs or precautions.  The 
ENGINEER’S consideration of a component does not constitute acceptance of the assembled items.  

The ENGINEER’S site observation during construction shall be at the times agreed upon in the Project Scope.  Through standard, 
reasonable means the ENGINEER will become generally familiar with observable completed work.  If the ENGINEER observes 
completed work that is inconsistent with the construction documents, that information shall be communicated to the contractor 
and OWNER for them to address.  

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs:  ENGINEER’S opinion of probable construction costs represents ENGINEER’S best and 
reasonable judgment as a professional engineer. OWNER acknowledges that ENGINEER has no control over construction costs of 
contractor’s methods of determining pricing, or over competitive bidding by contractors, or of market conditions or changes thereto. 
ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual construction costs will not vary from ENGINEER’S opinion 
of probable construction costs.  

Copies of Documents & Electronic Compatibility:  Copies of Documents that may be relied upon by OWNER are limited to the 
printed copies (also known as hard copies) that are signed or sealed by the ENGINEER. Files in electronic media format of text, data, 
graphics, or of other types that are furnished by ENGINEER to OWNER are only for convenience of OWNER. Any conclusion or 
information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the user's sole risk. When transferring documents in electronic 
media format, ENGINEER makes no representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of documents resulting from 
the use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware differing from those used by ENGINEER at the 
beginning of the project.  

Changed Conditions:  If, during the term of this Agreement, circumstances or conditions that were not originally contemplated by or 
known to the ENGINEER are revealed, to the extent that they affect the scope of services, compensation, schedule, allocation of 
risks, or other material terms of this Agreement, the ENGINEER may call for renegotiation of appropriate portions of this Agreement. 
The ENGINEER shall notify the OWNER of the changed conditions necessitating renegotiation, and the ENGINEER and the OWNER 
shall promptly and in good faith enter into renegotiation of this Agreement to address the changed conditions. If terms cannot be 
agreed to, the parties agree that either party has the absolute right to terminate this Agreement, in accordance with the termination 
provision hereof.  

Hazardous Conditions:  OWNER represents to ENGINEER that to the best of its knowledge no Hazardous Conditions 
(environmental or otherwise) exist on the project site. If a Hazardous Condition is encountered or alleged, ENGINEER shall have the 
obligation to notify OWNER and, to the extent of applicable Laws and Regulations, appropriate governmental officials. It is 
acknowledged by both parties that ENGINEER's scope of services does not include any services related to a Hazardous Condition. 
In the event ENGINEER or any other party encounters a Hazardous Condition, ENGINEER may, at its option and without liability for 
consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of services on the portion of the project affected thereby until OWNER: 
(i) retains appropriate specialist consultant(s) or contractor(s) to identify and, as appropriate, abate, remediate, or remove the 
Hazardous Condition; and (ii) warrants that the project site is in full compliance with applicable Laws and Regulations.   

Consequential Damages:  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, neither 
the OWNER nor the ENGINEER, their respective officers, directors, partners, employees, contractors, or subcontractors shall be liable 
to the other or shall make any claim for any incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of or connected in any way to 
the Project or to this Agreement. This mutual waiver of consequential damages shall include, but is not limited to, loss of use, loss of 



  
 
ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.  ATTACHMENT A – AUGUST 2024 

 
 

PAGE 2 
 

profit, loss of business, loss of income, loss of reputation, or any other consequential damages that either party may have incurred 
from any cause of action including negligence, strict liability, breach of contract, and breach of strict or implied warranty. Both the 
OWNER and the ENGINEER shall require similar waivers of consequential damages protecting all the entities or persons named 
herein in all contracts and subcontracts with others involved in this project.  

Termination:  This Agreement may be terminated for convenience, without cause, upon fourteen (14) days written notice of either 
party.  In the event of termination, the ENGINEER shall prepare a final invoice and be due compensation as set forth in the Professional 
Services Agreement for all costs incurred through the date of termination.  

Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause upon giving the other party not less than seven (7) calendar days’ written notice 
for the following reasons:  

(a) Substantial failure by the other party to comply with or perform in accordance with the terms of the Agreement 
and through no fault of the terminating party;  

(b) Assignment of the Agreement or transfer of the project without the prior written consent of the other party;  

(c) Suspension of the project or the ENGINEER’S services by the OWNER for a period of greater than ninety (90) 
calendar days, consecutive or in the aggregate.  

(d) Material changes in the conditions under which this Agreement was entered into, the scope of services or the 
nature of the project, and the failure of the parties to reach agreement on the compensation and schedule 
adjustments necessitated by such changes.  

Payment of Invoices:  Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt unless otherwise agreed to in writing.  

Third Party Beneficiaries:  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in 
favor of a third party against either the OWNER or the ENGINEER. The ENGINEER’S services under this Agreement are being 
performed solely and exclusively for the OWNER’S benefit, and no other party or entity shall have any claim against the ENGINEER 
because of this Agreement or the performance or nonperformance of services hereunder. The OWNER and ENGINEER agree to 
require a similar provision in all contracts with contractors, subcontractors, vendors and other entities involved in this Project to carry 
out the intent of this provision.  

Force Majeure:  Each Party shall be excused from the performance of its obligations under this Agreement to the extent that such 
performance is prevented by force majeure (defined below) and the nonperforming party promptly provides notice of such prevention 
to the other party. Such excuse shall be continued so long as the condition constituting force majeure continues. The party affected 
by such force majeure also shall notify the other party of the anticipated duration of such force majeure, any actions being taken to 
avoid or minimize its effect after such occurrence, and shall take reasonable efforts to remove the condition constituting such force 
majeure. For purposes of this Agreement, “force majeure” shall include conditions beyond the control of the parties, including an act 
of God, acts of terrorism, voluntary or involuntary compliance with any regulation, law or order of any government, war, acts of war 
(whether war be declared or not), labor strike or lock-out, civil commotion, epidemic, failure or default of public utilities or common 
carriers, destruction of production facilities or materials by fire, earthquake, storm or like catastrophe. The payment of invoices due 
and owing hereunder shall in no event be delayed by the payer because of a force majeure affecting the payer.  

Additional Terms or Modification:  All prior understandings and agreements between the parties are merged into this Agreement, 
and this Agreement may not be modified orally or in any manner other than by an Agreement in writing signed by both parties.  In the 
event that any provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall be valid and 
binding on the parties.  

Assignment:  Neither party to this Agreement shall transfer or assign any rights or duties under or interest in this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of the other party. Subcontracting normally contemplated by the ENGINEER shall not be considered an 
assignment for purposes of this Agreement.  

Waiver:  A party’s waiver of, or the failure or delay in enforcing any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of the 
provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Agreement.  

Attorney’s Fees:  In the event of any action or proceeding brought by either party against the other under this Agreement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all costs and expenses including without limitation the reasonable fees of 
its attorneys in such action or proceeding, including costs of appeal, if any, in such amount as the Court may adjudge reasonable.  

Fiduciary Duty:  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to create, nor shall it be construed to create, a fiduciary duty owed to either 
party to the other party.  EEI makes no warranty, express or implied, as to its professional services rendered.    

Headings:  The headings used in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience only, and in no way define, limit, 
enlarge, modify, explain or define the text thereof nor affect the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.  

 



Oak Street Resurfacing – Phase I and Phase II Engineering 
Village of North Aurora 

  
Attachment B – Scope of Services Phase I and Phase II Engineering 

 
 
Preliminary Project Management, Coordination and Meetings: 

 IDOT District One Phase 1/Phase II Kick-Off meeting (as long as approved by IDOT) 
 IDOT Project Development Report (PDR) Review Meeting 
 Fill out and maintain Project Program Information (PPI) form. 
 Project Management 
 Project Coordination 
 Project Scheduling 

 
Phase I Engineering: 

 Create exhibits required for the Phase I Engineering Report 
 Submit Draft Phase I Engineering Report using BLR 19100 without report.  Full Project 

Development Report (BLR 22210) is not included in the scope. 
 Perform design J.U.L.I.E. in order to obtain atlases from the utilities that have facilities within the 

project limits. 
 Obtain, review and inventory existing utility information to identify potential conflicts. 
 Revise Draft Phase I Engineering Report based on IDOT comments. 
 Submit Final Phase I Engineering Report using BLR 19100 without report. 

 
Site Review of Existing Conditions: 

 Conduct Site Visit to Assess Condition of Existing Pavement, Curb and Gutter, ADA Ramps and 
Drainage Structures 

 Assess existing ADA ramps for compliance. 
 
Geotechnical Investigation and Pavement Design: 

 Pavement cores and geotechnical information to be provided by the Village of North Aurora. 
 Review pavement cores and geotechnical information to determine optimal pavement section and 

potential areas of concern. 
 Perform Pavement Design 

 
Environmental Studies and Permitting: 

 Coordination of all permitting tasks. 
 Create Environmental Survey Request (ESR) Map for Submittal to IDOT 
 Submit ESR pre-screen to IDOT for Biological, Historical and Cultural clearances. 
 Local Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment (PESA) (Huff and Huff). 
 Perform Local Preliminary Site Investigation (PSI) and CCDD (Huff and Huff) 
 662 and 663 Forms (Huff and Huff) 

 
Design Project Management, Coordination and Meetings: 

 IDOT coordination and design review meeting. 
 Coordination with all utilities during Phase II Engineering as required. 
 Fill out and maintain Project Program Information (PPI) form. 
 Project Management 
 Project Coordination 
 Project Scheduling 



 

 
 

Prefinal Plans, Specifications and Estimates: 
 Coordinate documentation for CCDD Management of soils.  
 Coordinate with Village Staff regarding the final scope of improvements 
 Develop prefinal plans including the following: 

o Title Sheet 
o General Notes 
o Summary of Quantities 
o Existing and Proposed Typical Sections  
o Roadway Resurfacing Plans (1"=20') 
o Project Details 
o Village Details 
o District One and IDOT Details 

 Prepare bid package, and ancillary documents, including: 
o BLR12200 – Local Public Agency Formal Contract Proposal 
o BLR12200A – Schedule of Prices 
o BLR12230 - Bid Bond Form 
o BC57 - Affidavit of Availability 
o Index for Supplemental Specifications and Recurring Special Provisions 
o Check Sheet for Recurring Special Provisions 
o BLR11310 – Special Provisions 
o Bureau of Design and Environment Special Provisions/Check sheets 
o Prevailing Wage 

 Special Provisions in IDOT format 
o Local Roads Special Provisions 
o District One Special Provisions 
o Village of North Aurora Provisions & Details 
o Status of Utilities 

 Calculate Quantities and prepare prefinal Cost Estimate 
o Quantities to be organized by funding source (if necessary) 
o BDE 213 – Estimate of Cost 

 Prepare BDE220A – Estimate of Time Required 
 Submit prefinal plans to the utility companies as necessary 
 Submit prefinal plans, estimate of cost, estimate of time and special provisions to Village of North 

Aurora and IDOT for review. 
 Perform QC/QA review of prefinal plans, documents and cost estimate 
 Prepare and provide disposition of comments to IDOT. 

 
Initial Final Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates 

 Update plans based on comments received on prefinal plans 
 Prepare and provide disposition of comments to IDOT. 
 Update summary of quantities, estimate of cost and estimate of time for initial final submittal. 
 Update special provisions for initial final submittal. 
 Lump Sum Items Cost Breakdown 
 Submit initial final plans, estimate of cost, estimate of time and special provisions to Village of North 

Aurora, IDOT and utility companies. 
 Perform QC/QA review of initial final plans, documents and cost estimate 

 
Final Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates 

o Update plans based on comments received on initial final plans 
o Prepare and provide disposition of comments to IDOT. 



 

 
 

o Update summary of quantities, estimate of cost and estimate of time for final submittal. 
o Update special provisions for final submittal. 
o Submit final plans, estimate of cost, estimate of time and special provisions to Village of 

North Aurora, IDOT and utility companies. 
o Perform QC/QA review of final plans, documents and cost estimate 

 
Bidding Assistance 

o Answering contractor’s questions during bidding. 
o Provide all submittal plans to the Village, IDOT and Utility Companies in 11” x 17” format 

and specifications in 8-1/2”x 11” format. 
 

 
Items not included in the scope: 

 No allowance has been made for a full Project Development Report (PDR) using BLR 22210. 
 FHWA Coordination Meeting. 
 Development of Plat and Legals or right of way acquisition services.  No right-of way acquisition 

anticipated for this project. 
 Pavement Cores and Geotechnical Report.  Pavement Cores and Geotechnical Report to be provided 

by the Village of North Aurora. 
 Design services by a landscape architect.  Only basic landscaping will be provided. 
 Any special aesthetic features or treatments. 
 Drainage Technical Memorandum 
 Traffic Management Plan 
 Proposed Drainage and Utility Design and Engineering.  Minimum underground work expected. 
 Roadway Lighting design. 
 Traffic Signal or APS design. 
 No allowance has been made for Phase III Construction Engineering 
 No allowance has been made underground structure inventories and survey, as minimal underground 

work is expected. 
 No allowance has been made for full topographic survey.  
 Permanent signing plans. 
 Cross-sections  



ATTACHMENT C: ESTIMATED LEVEL OF EFFORT AND ASSOCIATED COST
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES            

CLIENT 
Village of North Aurora

PROJECT TITLE PREPARED BY
Oak Street Resurfacing - Phase I and Phase II Engineering

ADMIN
ROLE PIC SPM PE SPM SPT 2 PS SPT 2 SPT 1 ADM
RATE $246 $234 $168 $234 $175 $168 $175 $164 $72

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING

1.1 2            16          4            2            24         5,052$                 

1.2 8            20          2            8              2            40         7,038$                 

1.3 2            20          2            6            6            4            8              48         8,366$                 

1.4 4            8            4            8              24         4,292$                 
1.5 4            16          4              24         4,280$                 

Task Subtotal: 2            34          68          2            6            6            10          28            4            160       29,028$               

DESIGN ENGINEERING

2.1 16          8            24         5,088$                 

2.2 16          36          16          24            92         16,528$               

2.3 8            12          8            12            40         7,256$                 

2.4 4            8            4            8              2            26         4,436$                 
2.5 2            4            6           1,140$                 

 Task Subtotal: -             46          68          -             -             -             28          44            2            188       34,448$               

2            80          136        2            6            6            38          72            6            348       63,476                 

DIRECT EXPENSES
Printing/Scanning = 100$                    

Environmental (Huff & Huff) = 24,195$               
DIRECT EXPENSES = 24,295$               

LABOR SUMMARY
EEI Engin. Expenses = 42,060$               
EEI Survey Expenses = 2,526$                 

EEI CAD Expenses = 18,458$               
EEI Admin. Expenses = 432$                    

TOTAL LABOR EXPENSES 63,476$               

TOTAL COSTS 87,771$               

52 Wheeler Road, Sugar Grove, IL  60554  Tel: 630.466.6700  Fax: 630.466.6701  www.eeiweb.com

PROJECT TOTAL:

JWC

COST

ENGINEERING CAD DRAFTINGSURVEYING

Preliminary Project Management, Coordination and Meetings

Phase I Engineering

Site Review of Existing Conditions

Geotechnical Investigation and Pavement Design
Environmental Studies and Permitting

Design Project Management, Coordination and Meetings

Prefinal Plans, Specifications and Estimates

Initial Final Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates

Final Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates
Bidding Assistance

TASK 
NO.

TASK DESCRIPTION HOURS



S
ycam

o
re L

n

W
al

n
u

t 
D

r

W
ill

o
w

 W
ay

C
h

er
ry

tr
ee

 C
t

R
o

b
ert

S
t

T
im

b
er

 O
ak

s 
D

r

Redwood
Ct

Marvo

St

Eastview Rd

G
race S

t

Ju
n

ip
er

 D
r

M
ag

n
o

lia
 D

r

A
d

am
s S

t

Birchwood Dr

M
ap

le
w

o
o

d
 D

r

Pinewood Dr

P
o

p
la

r 
P

l

Cherrywood Dr
B

as
sw

o
o

d
 D

r

C
h

er
ry

Tr
ee

 C
t

State St

C
yp

re
ss

 L
n

C
an

dl
ew

ic
k 

C
t

Harmony Dr

Farview Ct

P
ra

ir
ie

R
id

g
e 

L
n

Fox Crossing Ave

C
ha

nt
ill

y 
Ln

A
u

ro
ra

-B
at

av
ia

 R
d

L
in

co
ln

 W
ay

W
ild

w
o

o
d

 D
r

H
ill

to
p

 D
r

P
in

 O
ak D

r

L
ar

ch
w

o
o

d
 L

n

A
co

rn
 D

r
S

ilv
er

 T
rl

H
arm

o
n

y C
t

Elm Ave

Maple Ave

Butternut Dr

Cottonwood Dr

Pheasant Hill Dr

Oak St
A

b
b

eyw
o

o
d

 L
n

Hillside Pl

Farview Dr

Mallard Point Dr

M
is

tw
o

o
d

 L
n

Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
52 Wheeler Road

Sugar Grove, Illinois 60554
(630) 466-6700

www.eeiweb.com

DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

FILE:

PATH:

BY:

SEPTEMBER 2024

NO2412

NO2412_Oak Street Resurfacing

H:\GIS\PUBLIC\NORTH AURORA\

MJT

Village of North Aurora

25 East State Street
North Aurora, IL  60542

630-897-8228 ³

1,000 0 1,000500 Feet

PROJECT LOCATION

        ATTACHMENT D      
OAK STREET

   RESURFACING 
LOCATION MAP



ATTACHMENT E: ESTIMATED SCHEDULE

CLIENT PROJECT NUMBER
Village of North Aurora NO2412

PROJECT TITLE DATE PREPARED BY
Oak Street Resurfacing - Phase I and Phase II Engineering 10/2/2024 JWC

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING

1.1
1.2
1.3
1.4
1.5

DESIGN ENGINEERING

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5

 52 Wheeler Road  Sugar Grove, IL  60554  Tel: 630.466.6700  Fax: 630.466.6701  www.eeiweb.com

2026 2027

Design Project Management, Coordination and Meetings
Prefinal Plans, Specifications and Estimates
Initial Final Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates

TASK 
NO.

TASK DESCRIPTION 2025

Final Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimates
Bidding Assistance

Preliminary Project Management, Coordination and Meetings
Phase I Engineering
Site Review of Existing Conditions
Geotechnical Investigation and Pavement Design
Environmental Studies and Permitting



  
   

 
 
EMPLOYEE DESIGNATION CLASSIFICATION HOURLY RATE 
 
  Senior Principal  E-4                            $246.00 
 
  Principal  E-3                            $241.00 
 
  Senior Project Manager  E-2                            $234.00 
 
  Project Manager  E-1                            $210.00 
 
  Senior Project Engineer/Surveyor II  P-6                            $200.00 
 
  Senior Project Engineer/Surveyor I    P-5                            $186.00 
 
  Project Engineer/Surveyor     P-4                            $168.00 
 
  Senior Engineer/Surveyor      P-3                            $155.00 
 
  Engineer/Surveyor     P-2                            $140.00 
 
  Associate Engineer/Surveyor  P-1                            $127.00 
 
  Senior Project Technician II  T-6                            $175.00 
 
  Senior Project Technician I  T-5                            $164.00 
 
  Project Technician  T-4                            $153.00 
 
  Senior Technician      T-3                            $140.00 
 
  Technician     T-2                            $127.00 
 
  Associate Technician  T-1                            $111.00 
 
  GIS Technician II  G-2                         $125.00 
 
  GIS Technician I  G-1                         $114.00 
 
  Engineering/Land Surveying Intern  I-1                           $  82.00 
 
  Executive Administrative Assistant  A-4                         $  77.00 
 
  Administrative Assistant  A-3                         $  72.00 
 
 

 

VEHICLES. REPROGRAPHICS, DIRECT COSTS, DRONE AND EXPERT TESTIMONY 
  Vehicle for Construction Observation                        $  20.00 
  In-House Scanning and Reproduction  $0.25/Sq. Ft. (Black & White) 
  $1.00/Sq. Ft. (Color) 
  Reimbursable Expenses (Direct Costs)                                 Cost 
  Services by Others (Direct Costs)                        Cost + 10%  
  Unmanned Aircraft System / Unmanned Aerial Vehicle / Drone                                $ 225.00   
  Expert Testimony                                         $ 275.00  

 ATTACHMENT F - STANDARD SCHEDULE OF CHARGES ~JANUARY 1, 2024



      

  

 

 

An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/V/H 

October 1, 2024             
 
Mr. Joe Cwynar, P.E.                               Via Email: JCwynar@eeiweb.com  
Senior Project Manager 
Engineering Enterprises, Inc. 
52 Wheeler Road 
Sugar Grove, IL 60554 
 
Re:  Phase I and II Environmental Services: Oak Street Improvements 
 North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
 Proposal No.: 81.P013103.25 
 
Dear Mr. Cwynar: 
 
Huff & Huff, Inc., a subsidiary of GZA, Inc. (GZA) is pleased to submit this proposal to 
Engineering Enterprises, Inc. (Client) to conduct Phase I and II environmental services for the 
proposed improvements project along Oak Street in the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, 
Illinois (Village). We understand the project limits along Oak Street extend from Adams Street 
to just east of Acorn Drive (approximately 0.9 miles). Client has requested completion of a 
Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment (PESA) and Preliminary Site Investigation (PSI) 
including assessment and documentation for consideration of disposal of spoils at a clean 
construction or demolition debris (CCDD) or uncontaminated soil fill operation (USFO) facility.   
 
This proposal presents our: Project Understanding; Scope of Services; Level of Effort, Cost, and 
Schedule; and Proposal Acceptance. Terms and Conditions are included as an attachment. 
 

1. PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 
Client has provided GZA with project information via email and a copy of the Oak street 
resurfacing Location Map which shall serve as the basis of our understanding for the attached 
scope and fee. In preparing this proposal, GZA has made the following assumptions and 
comments: 
 

• The Village intends to fund Phase I and II engineering using local funds and Phase III 
includes Federal funding via Surface Transportation Program – Urban (STU); 

• Phase I and II services requested herein are to be paid utilizing local funds provided 
by the Village and therefore IDOT-style invoicing is not necessary; 

• The project limits are estimated based on Client provided Figure (Oak Street 
Resurfacing Location Map) received via email on September 26, 2024; and 

• The scope of the project includes resurfacing, pavement patching, curb and gutter 
removal and replacement, ADA ramps, and sidewalk removal and replacement; 

• The proposed improvements are understood to have a maximum depth of excavation 
of less than 5-feet below ground surface (bgs), which therefore allows us to proposed 
sampling via hand auger; therefore direct costs for a driller and traffic control are not 
included. 

 
  

ATTACHMENT G

mailto:JCwynar@eeiweb.com


October 1, 2024 
81.P013103.25 – Phase I and II Environmental Services 

Oak Street Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 2 

 

P:\FY2025\P013 - Transportation\EEI\N Aurora\Oak Street\81.P013103.25 EEI Oak St N Aurora Ph I_II.docx 

Proactive by Design 

 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

Task 1 – Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment (PESA) 
 
GZA will conduct a Preliminary Environmental Site Assessment (PESA) for the local road portions of the Project Corridor. 
This process will follow general protocols contained within: 
 

• A Manual for Conducting Preliminary Environmental Site Assessments for Illinois Department of Transportation 
(IDOT) Highway Projects (Erdmann et al., 2012). 

• ASTM International (ASTM) standard 1527-21.  
• Chapter 27-3 of the IDOT Bureau of Design and Environment (BDE) (December 2019) Manual.  The IDOT BDE 

Manual was published September 2012 and Revised August 2023. 
• IDOT Bureau of Local Roads and Streets (BLRS) Manual, Chapter 20-12, Special Waste, July 2013. 
• Public Act 96-1416. 
• Clean Construction or Demolition Debris Fill Operations (CCDD) and Uncontaminated Soil Fill Operations: 

Amendments to 35 Illinois Administrative Code 1100.  Effective on August 27, 2012. 
 

A. Historical Research 
The Project Corridor historical land use/ownership record will be developed from standard historical sources. Historic 
aerial photographs will be reviewed to identify land use over time and potential areas of environmental concern, such as 
areas of surface disturbance and outside storage. 
 
B. Site Evaluation 
Current environmental features and conditions of sites adjacent to the Project Corridor will be evaluated. A site walkover 
of potential areas designated for excavation and/or acquisition will be conducted for first-hand evaluation of current 
environmental conditions within the Project Corridor. All of the features and conditions listed above will be investigated 
and, as appropriate, documented in photographs. The land-use and housekeeping practices of adjacent properties will 
also be evaluated in accordance with ASTM protocols. 
 
C. Records Review 
A records review will be conducted to determine potential environmental concerns within the Project Corridor. This will 
include a search of standard state and federal environmental record databases in accordance with the specifications of 
ASTM standards. This search is based on the limits of the Project Corridor. Specifically, GZA will search each database to 
identify any potential sources requiring further investigation. As appropriate, Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) requests 
will be filed with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) to obtain additional data pertaining to identified sites. 
 
D. Report Preparation 
A PESA Report summarizing the results of the evaluation will be prepared. The following information will be included in 
this report: 
 

• The project location and description; 
• Historical uses of Project Corridor; 
• The area geology and hydrology; 
• The environmental status of sites adjacent to the Project Corridor regarding chemical use and storage, 

underground and aboveground storage tanks, solid waste, special waste, hazardous waste, and PCBs; 



October 1, 2024 
81.P013103.25 – Phase I and II Environmental Services 

Oak Street Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 3 

 

P:\FY2025\P013 - Transportation\EEI\N Aurora\Oak Street\81.P013103.25 EEI Oak St N Aurora Ph I_II.docx 

Proactive by Design 

 

• An analysis of the site inspection; and 
• A summary of the findings regarding environmental concerns. The Potentially Impacted Properties (PIPs) will be 

assessed, per Subpart F, Section 1100, 35 IAC, related to CCDD management and in general conformation with 
IDOT memorandums. 
 

Task 2 – Preliminary Site Investigation / LPC-663 Form Documentation (CCDD) 
 
Based on the findings of the PESA and in consideration of characterizing soils for consideration of acceptance at a CCDD 
facility, the proposed scope of the PSI/CCDD assessment is presented below. 
 
A. Soil Sampling 
It is anticipated that one (1) day of field effort will be required with up to eleven (11) soil borings, completed via hand 
auger due to the proposed maximum depth of improvements previously identified. The borings will be advanced and soil 
samples collected for laboratory analysis to address sites identified as RECs/PIPs and for full project coverage of non-
REC/PIP for soil disposal considerations, specifically at locations identified for proposed excavation. The depths of the soil 
borings will be dependent upon design details to account for depths of proposed disturbance. Consultant will finalize 
depths of planned borings prior to mobilization consistent with project plans as provided by Client, in conjunction with 
PESA findings. Currently it is estimated that borings will be advanced to depths of approximately 4-feet bgs. Samples will 
be collected in 2 to 4-foot intervals for field screening and select samples prepared for laboratory analysis as discussed 
below.  
 
B. Laboratory Analysis 
A total of up to eleven (11) soil boring locations are proposed and we anticipate a single sample from each location for 
laboratory analysis, for a total of up to eleven (11) samples total. Since the corridor is primarily residential in nature, as a 
cost savings measure, we propose to analyze soil pH in all borings with up to seven (7) locations being analyzed for the 
contaminants of concern (COCs) per IDOT District One protocol, which include: 

• 22 Total metals (Target Analyte List (TAL) minus Aluminum) 
• SPLP/TCLP Metals (8 RCRA and Be, Co, Cu, Fe, Mn, Ni, and Zn) 
• Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) 
• Semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs) 
• Soil pH 

C. PSI Report Preparation 
A report summarizing the results of the soil sample collection activities and analytical results will be prepared. This 
document will present information pertinent for the bidding documents regarding conditions of soils tested, handling and 
final disposition considerations. Time has also been included to assist Client in preparing draft special provisions and pay 
items associated with the soil classifications identified in the PSI report consistent with IDOT Article 669.05. 
 
D. LPC-663 Form Preparation and CCDD facility Coordination 
The soil sample results will be compared to the Maximum Allowable Concentrations (MACs) associated with CCDD facility 
acceptance, including the soil pH range of 6.25 to 9.0. If results achieve the MAC values, GZA will prepare the LPC-663 
document that will be signed/stamped by the GZA.  Any locations that do not achieve the MACs (including soil pH range) 
will be identified as exclusion zones, not acceptable for CCDD facility disposal. GZA will coordinate with at least three (3) 
CCDD facilities to review the PSI/CCDD documentation and if acceptable, to provide pre-authorization acceptance letters 
for inclusion in the bidding documents. 



October 1, 2024 
81.P013103.25 – Phase I and II Environmental Services 

Oak Street Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 4 

 

P:\FY2025\P013 - Transportation\EEI\N Aurora\Oak Street\81.P013103.25 EEI Oak St N Aurora Ph I_II.docx 

Proactive by Design 

 

Task 3 – Project Administration 
 
Time under this task includes project administration and management activities that include cost and schedule tracking, 
coordination with Client on authorized activities, memo production and other in-house management activities, and 
project closeout. This task includes preparing a Health and Safety Plan as appropriate for the project and tasks. 
 
Task 4 – QA/QC 
 
Time under this task includes QA/QC time for the deliverables as described above.   

 
3. LEVEL OF EFFORT, COST, AND SCHEDULE 

 
The attached tables summarize the estimated cost to complete the project in standard (non-IDOT) format proposed as 
time and materials billing basis with a not-to exceed amount of $21,995.00 for the identified scope. The PESA work will 
commence within 5 days of the notice to proceed (NTP) and will require approximately six (6) weeks to complete. The 
PSI/CCDD work will commence following completion of the PESA and upon NTP from client. The PSI/CCDD work will 
require twelve (12) weeks to complete. If an expedited schedule is necessary, GZA will coordinate with Client to establish 
a schedule that is appropriate for the project needs. 
 

3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
CONDITIONS OF ENGAGEMENT 
The conditions of engagement are described in the attached Terms and Conditions for Professional Services.  GZA’s report 
will be prepared on behalf of and for the exclusive use of Client.  Client acknowledges and agrees that the report and the 
findings in the report shall not, in whole or in part, be disseminated or conveyed to any other party, or used or relied upon 
by any other party, in whole or in part, except for the specific purpose and to the specific parties alluded to above, without 
the written consent of GZA. GZA would be pleased to discuss the conditions associated with any additional dissemination, 
use, or reliance by other parties.  
 
ACCEPTANCE 
This agreement may be accepted by signing in the appropriate space below and returning one complete copy to GZA. 
Issuance of a Purchase Order implicitly acknowledges acceptance of this proposal. This proposal is valid for a period of 30 
days from the date of issue.  
 
We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal. Please feel free to contact the undersigned at (630) 684-9100 with 
any questions.  
 
Very truly yours, 
 
Huff & Huff, Inc., a subsidiary of GZA 
 
 
 
Jeremy J. Reynolds, P.G.  
Associate Principal 
 



October 1, 2024 
81.P013103.25 – Phase I and II Environmental Services 

Oak Street Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
Page | 5 

 

P:\FY2025\P013 - Transportation\EEI\N Aurora\Oak Street\81.P013103.25 EEI Oak St N Aurora Ph I_II.docx 

Proactive by Design 

 

Attachments: Terms and Conditions, Client Provided Information, Cost Sheets 

This Proposal for Services, Schedule of Fees and Terms and Conditions for Professional Services are hereby accepted and 
executed by a duly authorized signatory, who by execution hereof, warrants that he/she has full authority to act for, in 
the name, and on behalf of  ENGINEERING ENTERPRISES, INC.     . 

 

By:           Title:       

 

Printed/Typed Name:           Date:       

The Proposal for Services, Schedule of Fees and Terms and Conditions for Professional Services may be executed in two 
or more counterparts, each of which together shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission or by an e-mail delivery of 
a document in “.pdf” format, each such signature shall create a valid and binding obligation of the party executing the 
document, or on whose behalf each document is executed, with the same force and effect as if each such facsimile or 
“.pdf” signature were an original thereof. 

  



October 1, 2024 
81.P013103.25 – Phase I and II Environmental Services 

Oak Street Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
ATTACHMENTS 

 

P:\FY2025\P013 - Transportation\EEI\N Aurora\Oak Street\81.P013103.25 EEI Oak St N Aurora Ph I_II.docx 

Proactive by Design 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

  



TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
© 2024 by GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc. 

 

(06/24-Edition/05-9010)  June 28, 2024 

 

   
These Terms and Conditions, together with GZA's Proposal, make up the Agreement between GZA and You, Client, named above. If the attached GZA Proposal is 
styled as a Master Services Agreement, then these Terms and Conditions will apply to any and all services ordered by you and performed by GZA. 

BEFORE SIGNING THE PROPOSAL, BE SURE YOU READ AND UNDERSTAND THE PARAGRAPHS ENTITLED "INDEMNIFICATION” AND "LIMITATION OF 
REMEDIES" WHICH DEAL WITH THE ALLOCATION OF RISK BETWEEN YOU AND GZA. 
1) Services. GZA will perform the services set forth in its Proposal and any amendments or change orders authorized by you (the “Services”). Any request or direction 

from you that would require extra work or additional time for performance or would result in an increase in GZA's costs will be the subject of a negotiated 
amendment or change order. All Services performed by GZA will be governed by this Agreement, even if performed prior to your execution of the Proposal. 

2) Term. If the attached GZA proposal is styled as a Master Services Agreement, then the term of this Agreement will begin on the date of execution of the proposal 
(the “Effective Date”), and either party may terminate this Agreement for convenience upon thirty (30) days’ written notice, provided that GZA will be paid for all 
services performed through the date of termination. 

3) Standard of Care; Warranties. 
a) GZA will perform professional Services with the degree of skill and care ordinarily exercised by qualified professionals performing the same type of services 

at the same time under similar conditions in the same or similar locality. GZA’s sole responsibility with regard to Services which do not meet the foregoing 
standard of care is to reperform such Services, at GZA’s expense, but only if you provide GZA written notice of such non-conformity within ninety (90) days 
after completion of the Services. 

b) NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTY OF MARKETABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, IS MADE OR 
INTENDED BY GZA’S PROPOSAL OR BY ANY OF GZA’S REPORTS OR OTHER CONDUCT. 

c) GZA assigns to you any manufacturers' warranties of equipment or materials purchased from others, to the extent they are assignable, and your sole recourse 
will be against the manufacturer. Full risk of loss of materials and equipment will pass to you upon delivery to the Site, and you will be responsible for insuring 
and otherwise protecting them against theft and damage. 

4) Payment. 
a) Except as otherwise stated in the Proposal, you will compensate GZA for the Services at the rates set forth in the applicable Proposal, amendment or change 

order; reimburse its expenses, which will include a communication fee calculated as a percentage of labor invoiced; and pay any sales or similar taxes thereon.  
b) Any retainer specified in GZA’s Proposal shall be due prior to the start of Services and will be applied to the final invoice for Services. 
c) GZA will submit invoices periodically, and payment will be due within 20 days from invoice date. You will notify GZA in writing of any invoice disputes within 

10 days of the invoice date, and if no written notice of dispute is received, the invoice will be deemed approved in full. Overdue payments will bear interest 
at 1½ percent per month or, if lower, the maximum lawful rate. GZA may terminate the Services upon 10 days' written notice anytime your payment is 
overdue on this or any other project and you will pay for all Services through termination, plus termination costs. You will reimburse GZA's costs of collecting 
overdue invoices, including reasonable attorneys' fees (including costs for time expended by in-house counsel, which will be charged to you at the prevailing 
market rate for attorneys of similar experience practicing in the jurisdiction). Any amounts paid by you to GZA will be applied first to interest and costs 
incurred by GZA, and then to the principal balance. 

5) Your Responsibilities. 
a) If the Services involve entry onto a third-party property or otherwise require access to property you do not own or control, you will secure the access 

agreements, approvals, permits, licenses and consents necessary for performance of the Services, without GZA becoming a party to or otherwise being 
required to sign any such agreements, approvals, permits, licenses and consents. If you are the owner or operator of the Site, you will provide GZA with all 
documents, plans, information concerning underground structures (including but not limited to utilities, conduits, pipes, and tanks), information related to 
hazardous materials or other environmental or geotechnical conditions at the Site (including, if applicable, asbestos containing materials [“ACM”]) and 
other information that may be pertinent to the Services or, if you are not the owner or operator of the Site, you agree to make reasonable efforts to obtain 
these same documents and provide them to GZA. GZA is entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of documents and information you provide. You 
acknowledge that the quality of the services provided by GZA is directly related to the accuracy and completeness of the information and data that you 
furnish to GZA. 

b) If you use the services of a contractor or construction manager at the Site, you agree to use best and reasonable efforts to include in your agreement(s) 
with the contractor or construction manager provisions obligating the latter: 
i) to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, to the fullest extent permitted by law, GZA, its affiliates and subsidiaries, and each of their officers, 

directors, members, partners, agents, insurers, employees, and subconsultants (the “GZA Indemnitees”) and you, for or on account of any claims, 
liabilities, costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, arising out of or relating to the design or implementation of construction means, methods, 
procedures, techniques, and sequences of construction, including safety precautions or programs, of the contractor, the construction manager, or 
any of their subcontractors or any engineer engaged by them; 

ii) to name you and GZA as additional insureds under general liability and builder's risk insurance coverages maintained by the contractor or 
construction manager, or any of their subcontractors, and to ensure that such policies are primary and noncontributory with regard to the above 
indemnity obligations; and  

iii) to require that all of their subcontractors agree and be bound to the obligations set forth in (i) and (ii) above. 
c) In the event that you are unable to secure such provisions in the agreement(s) with the contractor or construction manager, you shall promptly (but in 

any event prior to the commencement of the Services) notify GZA and GZA shall have the opportunity to negotiate with you reasonable substitute risk 
allocation and insurance indemnities and protections. Failure to provide such notice will be a material breach of this Agreement. 

d) To the extent you are entitled to indemnification (either contractual or at common law) or are otherwise indemnified by the contractor or construction 
manager and/or their subcontractors, you agree to waive any claim (including without limitation indemnification or insurance claims) against GZA. 

6) Right of Entry; Site Restoration. You grant GZA and its subcontractor(s) permission to enter the Site to perform the Services. If you do not own the Site, you 
represent and warrant that the owner has granted permission for GZA to enter the Site and perform the Services; you will provide reasonable verification on 
request; and you will indemnify the GZA Indemnitees for any claims by the Site owner related to alleged trespass by GZA or its subcontractors. Although GZA 



Terms and Conditions 
Page | 2 of 4 

 
 

(06/24-Edition/05-9010)  June 28, 2024 

 

will exercise reasonable care to limit damage to landscaping, paving, systems and structures at the Site, you acknowledge that some damage may occur even 
with the exercise of due care and you agree to compensate GZA for any restoration it is asked to perform, unless otherwise indicated in the Proposal. 

7) Underground Facilities. GZA's only responsibility under this Agreement will be to provide proper notification to the applicable state utility "Call-Before-You-
Dig" program. You further agree to assume responsibility for and to defend, indemnify and hold harmless GZA with respect to personal injury and property 
damages due to GZA's interference with subterranean structures including but not limited to utilities, conduits, pipes, and tanks: 
a) that are not correctly shown on any plans and information you or governmental authorities provide to GZA; or 
b) that are not correctly marked by the appropriate utility.  

8) Reliance. The services, information, and other data furnished by you shall be at your expense, and GZA may rely upon all information and data that you 
furnish, including the accuracy and completeness thereof. You acknowledge that the quality of the Services provided by GZA is directly related to the 
accuracy and completeness of the information and data that you furnish to GZA. GZA’s REPORTS ARE PREPARED FOR AND MADE AVAILABLE FOR 
YOUR SOLE USE. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT USE OF OR RELIANCE UPON THE REPORT OR THE FINDINGS IN THE REPORT BY ANY 
OTHER PARTY, OR FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT OR PURPOSE, SHALL BE AT YOUR OR SUCH OTHER PARTY’S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT ANY 
LIABILITY TO GZA. YOU SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE GZA INDEMNITEES FROM ALL CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES, 
AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR RESULTING FROM ANY USE, REUSE, OR MODIFICATION OF THE 
DOCUMENTS WITHOUT WRITTEN VERIFICATION, COMPLETION, OR ADAPTATION BY GZA AND SUCH LIMITED LICENSE TO YOU SHALL NOT 
CREATE ANY RIGHTS IN THIRD PARTIES. However, in GZA’s sole discretion, which may be withheld for any reason whatsoever, if you request that GZA 
extend reliance to a third party, then such reliance will be conditioned upon the third party’s acceptance of such reliance on GZA’s standard reliance terms 
and you will be obligated to pay GZA a reliance fee calculated as 10% of GZA’s original fee for the report upon which reliance is being extended. 

9) Lab Tests and Samples. GZA is entitled to rely on the results of laboratory tests using generally accepted methodologies. GZA may dispose of samples in 
accordance with applicable laws 30 days after submitting test results to you unless you request in writing for them to be returned to you or to be held longer, in 
which case you will compensate GZA for storage and/or shipping beyond 30 days. 

10) GZA Professionals. GZA employees or consultants may act as licensed, certified or registered professionals (including but not limited to Professional Engineers, 
Licensed Site or Environmental Professionals, Certified Hazardous Materials Managers, or Certified Industrial Hygienists, collectively referred to in this section as 
“GZA Professionals”), whose duties may include the rendering of independent professional opinions. You acknowledge that a federal, state or local agency or 
other third party may audit the Services of GZA or other contractor/consultant(s), which audit may require additional Services, even though GZA and such GZA 
Professionals have each performed such Services in accordance with the standard of care set forth herein. You agree to compensate GZA for all Services performed 
in response to such an audit, or to meet additional requirements resulting from such an audit, at the rates set forth in the applicable Proposal, amendment or 
change order.  

11) Hazardous Materials; GZA “Not a Generator”. Before any hazardous or contaminated materials, including, if applicable, ACMs (the “Wastes”) are removed from 
the Site, you will sign manifests naming you as the generator of the Wastes (or, if you are not the generator, you will arrange for the generator to sign). You will 
select the treatment or disposal facility to which any Wastes are taken. GZA will not be the generator or owner of, nor will it possess, take title to, or assume legal 
liability for any Wastes at or removed from the Site. GZA will not have responsibility for or control of the Site or of operations or activities at the Site other than its 
own. GZA will not undertake, arrange for or control the handling, treatment, storage, removal, shipment, transportation or disposal of any Wastes at or removed 
from the Site, other than any laboratory samples it collects or tests. You agree to defend, indemnify and hold the GZA Indemnitees harmless for any costs or 
liability incurred by GZA in defense of or in payment for any legal actions in which it is alleged that GZA is the owner, generator, treater, storer or disposer of any 
Wastes. 

12) Limits on GZA's Responsibility. GZA will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of contractors or others at the Site, except for its own subcontractors and 
employees. GZA will not supervise, direct or assume control over or the authority to stop any contractor's work, nor shall GZA's professional activities nor the 
presence of GZA or its employees and subcontractors be construed to imply that GZA has authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures of construction, for work site health or safety precautions or programs, or for any failure of contractors to comply with contracts, plans, 
specifications or laws. Any opinions by GZA of probable costs of labor, materials, equipment or services to be furnished by others are strictly estimates and are 
not a guarantee that actual costs will be consistent with the estimates.  

13) Changed Conditions. 
a) You recognize the uncertainties related to the Services (including, without limitation, environmental and geotechnical Services), which often require a 

phased or exploratory approach, with the need for additional Services becoming apparent during the Services. You also recognize that actual conditions 
encountered may vary significantly from those anticipated, that laws and regulations are subject to change, and that the requirements of regulatory 
authorities are often unpredictable. 

b) If changed or unanticipated conditions or delays make additional Services necessary or result in additional costs or time for performance, GZA will notify you 
and the parties will negotiate appropriate changes to the scope of Services, compensation and schedule. 

c) If no agreement can be reached, GZA will be entitled to terminate the Services and to be equitably compensated for the Services already performed. GZA 
will not be responsible for delays or failures to perform due to weather, labor disputes, intervention by or inability to get approvals from public authorities, 
acts or omissions on your part, or any other causes beyond GZA's reasonable control, and you will compensate GZA for any resulting increase in its costs.  

14) Documents and Information. All documents, data, calculations and work papers prepared or furnished by GZA are instruments of service and will remain GZA's 
property. Designs, reports, data and other work product delivered to you are for your use only, for the limited purposes disclosed to GZA. Any delayed use, use at 
another site, use on another project, or use by a third party will be at the user's sole risk, and without any liability to GZA. Any technology, methodology or technical 
information learned or developed by GZA will remain its property. Provided GZA is not in default under this Agreement, GZA's designs will not be used to complete 
this project by others, except by written agreement relating to use, liability and compensation. 

15) Electronic Media. In accepting and utilizing any drawings, reports and data on any form of electronic media generated by GZA, you covenant and agree that 
all such electronic files are instruments of service of GZA, who shall be deemed the author and shall retain all common law, statutory law and other rights, 
including copyrights. In the event of a conflict between the signed documents prepared by GZA and electronic files, the signed documents shall govern. You 
agree not to reuse these electronic files, in whole or in part, for any purpose or project other than the project that is the subject of this Agreement. Any transfer 



Terms and Conditions 
Page | 3 of 4 

 
 

(06/24-Edition/05-9010)  June 28, 2024 

 

of these electronic files to others or reuse or modifications to such files by you without the prior written consent of GZA will be at the user’s sole risk and 
without any liability to GZA. 

16) Confidentiality; Subpoenas. Information about this Agreement and GZA's Services and information you provide to GZA regarding your business and the Site, 
other than information available to the public and information acquired from third parties, will be maintained in confidence and will not be disclosed to others 
without your consent, except as GZA reasonably believes is necessary: (a) to perform the Services; (b) to comply with professional standards to protect public 
health, safety and the environment; and (c) to comply with laws, regulations, court orders and professional obligations. GZA will make reasonable efforts to give 
you prior notice of any disclosure under (b) or (c) above. Information available to the public and information acquired from third parties will not be considered 
confidential. You will reimburse GZA for responding to any subpoena or governmental inquiry or audit related to the Services, at the rates set forth in the applicable 
Proposal, amendment or change order (including, without limitation, for outside counsel expenses incurred by GZA and/or time expended by in-house 
counsel,which will be charged to you at the prevailing market rate for attorneys of similar experience practicing in the jurisdiction). Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
GZA shall be entitled to use your name and a general description of the Services in promotional materials. 

17) Insurance. During performance of the Services, GZA will maintain workers’ compensation, commercial general liability, automobile liability, and professional 
liability/contractor's pollution liability insurance. GZA will furnish you certificates of such insurance on request.  

18) Indemnification. You agree to hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the GZA Indemnitees against all claims, suits, fines and penalties, including mandated 
cleanup costs and attorneys' fees and other costs of settlement and defense, which claims, suits, fines, penalties or costs arise out of or are related to this 
Agreement or the Services, except to the extent they are caused by GZA’s negligence or willful misconduct  The duty to defend will be triggered upon a claim, 
suit, fine and/or penalty being alleged or threatened, and will only terminate when and to the extent GZA’s proportion of negligence is finally adjudicated by a 
court of competent jurisdiction. If the foregoing indemnification is determined to be void or unenforceable as a matter of law, then it shall be automatically 
reformed to apply the original intent of the clause to the maximum extent permissible by law. 

19) Limitation of Remedies. 
a) To the fullest extent permitted by law and notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, the aggregate liability of GZA and its affiliates, 

parents and subsidiaries and subcontractors and each of their employees, insurers, principals, officers, directors, partners and agents (collectively referred to 
in this paragraph as "GZA") for all claims arising out of this Agreement or the Services is limited to $50,000 or, if greater, 10% of the compensation received 
by GZA under this Agreement. 

b) You may elect to increase the limit of liability by paying an additional fee, such fee to be negotiated prior to the execution of this Agreement. 
c) Any claim against GZA related in any way to the services provided pursuant to this Proposal, or the terms herein, is waived unless suit is commenced in a 

proper jurisdiction within one year of substantial completion of GZA’s services. This waiver may not be construed to extend any applicable statute of 
limitations. 

d) GZA will not be liable for lost profits, loss of use of property, delays, contractual penalties or other special, indirect, incidental, consequential, punitive, 
exemplary, liquidated, or multiple damages. This includes but is not limited to fines and/or penalties and/or sanctions imposed by any local, state, or federal 
government, agency, or regulatory body. 

e) GZA will not be liable to you or the Site owner for injuries or deaths suffered by GZA's or its subcontractors' employees.  
f) You will look solely to GZA for your remedy for any claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, including any claim arising out of or relating to alleged 

negligence or errors or omissions of any GZA principal, officer, employee or agent.To the extent damages are covered by property insurance or any other 
insurance, both you and GZA waive all rights against each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of the other, for damages, 
except such rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in this Agreement. You or GZA, as appropriate, shall require of the 
contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of any of them, similar waivers in favor of the other parties enumerated herein. 

20) Disputes.  
a) All disputes between you and GZA shall be subject to non-binding mediation. 
b) Either party may demand mediation by serving a written notice stating the essential nature of the dispute, the amount of time or money claimed, and 

requiring that the matter be mediated within forty-five (45) days of service of notice. 
c) The mediation shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its most recent Construction Mediation Rules, or by such 

other person or organization as the parties may agree upon. 
d) No action or suit may be commenced unless mediation has occurred but did not resolve the dispute, or unless a statute of limitations period or the one year 

waiver period described in 18(c) above would expire if suit were not filed prior to such forty-five (45) days after service of notice. However, where non-payment 
of an invoice has occurred and GZA sends you a final demand letter for payment, your failure to respond within ten (10) days of receipt (or, for certified mail, 
the date of the first attempt to deliver the letter to your address of record if you ultimately do not accept receipt of the letter) of such letter will be deemed 
to be a waiver of your right to enforce this mediation clause and GZA may immediately file suit to enforce the terms of this Agreement. 

e) You agree to pay reasonable attorneys' fees and all other costs and expenses (including, but not limited to reasonable investigative expenses and expert and 
consultant expenses) which may be incurred by GZA in the enforcement of this Agreement in the event that (a) it is finally adjudicated by a court of competent 
jurisdiction that you have breached this Agreement; or (b) where you allege that GZA has breached this Agreement or otherwise acted negligently and it is 
finally adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction that GZA did not in fact breach this Agreement or act negligently. If for any reason it is adjudicated 
that the foregoing provision is in violation of applicable law, is subject to a state statute automatically converting this clause to be reciprocal between the 
parties, is contrary to public policy or is unconscionable or a contract of adhesion, then the foregoing clause will be null and void and of no effect. Under no 
circumstances shall the foregoing clause be replaced with a reciprocal clause. 

f) You shall make no claim against GZA for professional negligent acts, errors, omissions and/or alleged breach of contract either directly, indirectly, as a 
counterclaim or crossclaim, or in a third party claim, unless you have first provided GZA with a written certification executed by an independent professional 
practicing in the same discipline as GZA and licensed in the jurisdiction in which GZA provided you its Services. This certification must (i) identify the name 
and license of the certifier, (ii) specify each and every act or omission that the certifier contends is a violation of the standard of care expected of professional 



Terms and Conditions 
Page | 4 of 4 

 
 

(06/24-Edition/05-9010)  June 28, 2024 

 

performing professional services under similar circumstances; and (iii) state in complete detail the basis for certifier's opinion that each such act or omission 
constitutes a violation of the standard of care. This certificate must be provided to GZA no less than thirty (30) days prior to the submission of a formal claim. 

21) Miscellaneous. 
a) This Agreement and all claims relating thereto shall be governed by the substantive and procedural laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as they 

presently exist or may hereafter be amended, without regard to principles of conflict of laws. 
b) The above terms and conditions regarding Limitation of Remedies and Indemnification shall survive the completion of the Services under this Agreement 

and the termination of the contract for any reason. 
c) Any amendment to these Terms and Conditions must be in writing and signed by both parties. No modification of these Terms and Conditions will be binding 

against GZA unless specifically approved in writing by a principal of GZA. 
d) Having received these Terms and Conditions, your oral authorization to commence Services, your acceptance of performance of the Services, your 

actions, or your use of the Report or Work Product constitutes your acceptance of them. 
e) This Agreement supersedes any contract terms, purchase orders or other documents issued by you, even if signed by an authorized representative of GZA. 
f) Neither party may assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or duties hereunder without the written consent of the other party. 
g) Your failure or the failure of your successors or assigns to receive payment, reimbursement, insurance proceeds or grant funds from any other party for 

any reason whatsoever shall not absolve you, your successors or assigns of any obligation to pay any sum to GZA under this agreement. 
h) These Terms and Conditions shall govern over any inconsistent terms in GZA’s Proposal.  
i) Any provision of this Agreement later held to be unenforceable for any reason shall be deemed void, and all remaining provisions shall continue in full force 

and effect on the parties, who agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to replace such voided provision with a valid and enforceable provision that comes 
as close as possible to expressing the intention of the voided provision. 

j) The covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement shall apply to, inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and upon their 
respective successors and assigns. 

k) Any reports generated by GZA will be subject to GZA’s standard report limitations for that particular type of report. 
l) To the extent applicable to GZA’s Services, you acknowledge and agree that GZA cannot anticipate the effects of climate change/extreme weather on 

any report, design or other document produced by GZA, unless such analysis is specifically within the scope of GZA’s Services. 
m) You agree that during the performance of GZA’s Services and for a period of twelve (12) months completion of those Services, you will not encourage, 

induce, or otherwise solicit, or actively assist any other person or organization to encourage, induce or otherwise solicit, directly or indirectly, any 
employee of the GZA or any of its affiliates to terminate their employment with GZA or any of its affiliates, or otherwise interfere with the 
advantageous business relationship of GZA or any of its affiliates with their employees. You agree that if you violate this non-solicitation provision, you 
will pay GZA liquidated damages in an amount equal to the total earnings of the solicited employee during the last twelve (12) months of their 
employment with GZA. 

n) This Agreement does not create any third-party beneficiaries and is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and 
permitted assigns, and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced by, anyone else. 

22) Asbestos Abatement Services (If Applicable). If the Services include asbestos abatement services, then the following terms and conditions will apply and 
will supersede any conflicting terms contained elsewhere in this Agreement. 
a) You acknowledge that conditions can vary from those encountered at the times and locations of explorations and data collection, and that the 

limitation on available data may result in some level of uncertainty with respect to the interpretation of those conditions, despite due professional 
care. GZA therefore cannot guarantee specific results such as the identification or removal of all asbestos or other contamination. 

23) Microbial Services (If Applicable). If the Services include Microbial services, then the following terms and conditions will apply and will supersede any 
conflicting terms contained elsewhere in this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, Microbial is defined as any and all fungal and/or bacterial growth 
including but not limited to mold, mildew, yeast, fungus, fungi, bacteria, spores, odors, particulates, vapors, gas, or other emissions produced by or arising 
out of or toxins emanating therefrom. 
a) You recognize that meeting the standard of care does not establish an assurance that corrective procedures will be permanent. Because Microbial 

infestations are created by near-omnipresent living microscopic spores which grow very quickly and are influenced by nanoclimatological conditions 
that are very difficult to detect and sources of water intrusion, elevated moisture or relative humidity over which GZA has neither control or 
responsibility, GZA cannot and does not claim that its Services will eliminate the risk of a Microbial infestation recurring. 

b) You acknowledge that the Services entail risk of personal injury and property damage (including cross-contamination) that cannot be avoided, even with 
the exercise of due care. You also acknowledge that environmental conditions can vary from those encountered at the times and locations of 
explorations and data collection, and that the limitation on available data may result in some level of uncertainty with respect to the interpretation of 
these conditions, despite due care. GZA therefore cannot guarantee specific results such as the identification of all contamination or other 
environmental conditions or problems nor their resolution.  

c) You acknowledge that Microbial infestations may be hidden from view and concealed in locations that are difficult to discover. Accordingly, you agree 
that despite GZA’s efforts, some Microbial locations may remain undetected. In such situations, you agree that you will have no claim against GZA 
provided GZA followed the applicable standard of care and all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to the Work.  

d) You further agree that when GZA performs Services intended to minimize the risk of Microbial infestations, GZA shall not be liable for damages resulting 
from Microbial contamination including but not limited to fungal or bacterial infestations and water damage or dry or wet rot. You agree to waive any 
Microbial infestation claim(s) against GZA and you agree to indemnify, defend and hold the GZA Indemnitees harmless from any claim alleging that 
GZA’s Services caused or aggravated a Microbial infestation or did not prevent a Microbial infestation from recurring. 

 



October 1, 2024 
81.P013103.25 – Phase I and II Environmental Services 

Oak Street Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
ATTACHMENTS 

 

P:\FY2025\P013 - Transportation\EEI\N Aurora\Oak Street\81.P013103.25 EEI Oak St N Aurora Ph I_II.docx 

Proactive by Design 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

CLIENT PROVIDED INFORMATION 

  



S
ycam

o
re L

n

W
al

n
u

t 
D

r

W
ill

o
w

 W
ay

C
h

er
ry

tr
ee

 C
t

R
o

b
ert

S
t

T
im

b
er

 O
ak

s 
D

r

Redwood
Ct

Marvo

St

Eastview Rd

G
race S

t

Ju
n

ip
er

 D
r

M
ag

n
o

lia
 D

r

A
d

am
s S

t

Birchwood Dr

M
ap

le
w

o
o

d
 D

r

Pinewood Dr

P
o

p
la

r 
P

l

Cherrywood Dr
B

as
sw

o
o

d
 D

r

C
h

er
ry

Tr
ee

 C
t

State St

C
yp

re
ss

 L
n

C
an

dl
ew

ic
k 

C
t

Harmony Dr

Farview Ct

P
ra

ir
ie

R
id

g
e 

L
n

Fox Crossing Ave

C
ha

nt
ill

y 
Ln

A
u

ro
ra

-B
at

av
ia

 R
d

L
in

co
ln

 W
ay

W
ild

w
o

o
d

 D
r

H
ill

to
p

 D
r

P
in

 O
ak D

r

L
ar

ch
w

o
o

d
 L

n

A
co

rn
 D

r
S

ilv
er

 T
rl

H
arm

o
n

y C
t

Elm Ave

Maple Ave

Butternut Dr

Cottonwood Dr

Pheasant Hill Dr

Oak St
A

b
b

eyw
o

o
d

 L
n

Hillside Pl

Farview Dr

Mallard Point Dr

M
is

tw
o

o
d

 L
n

Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
52 Wheeler Road

Sugar Grove, Illinois 60554
(630) 466-6700

www.eeiweb.com

DATE:

PROJECT NO.:

FILE:

PATH:

BY:

SEPTEMBER 2024

NO2412

NO2412_Oak Street Resurfacing

H:\GIS\PUBLIC\NORTH AURORA\

MJT

Village of North Aurora

25 East State Street
North Aurora, IL  60542

630-897-8228 ³OAK STREET
RESURFACING
LOCATION MAP

1,000 0 1,000500 Feet

PROJECT LOCATION



October 1, 2024 
81.P013103.25 – Phase I and II Environmental Services 

Oak Street Improvements – North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
ATTACHMENTS 

 

P:\FY2025\P013 - Transportation\EEI\N Aurora\Oak Street\81.P013103.25 EEI Oak St N Aurora Ph I_II.docx 

Proactive by Design 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

COST SHEETS 
 



Prepared for:  Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
Project:  Oak Street North Aurora Ph I & II

Task Hours Labor Reimbursables Total

1 Task 1 PESA        42.00 4,628.00         332.00             4,960.00              

2 Task 2: PSI/CCDD        82.00 9,081.00         5,629.00         14,710.00            

3 Task 3: Project Administration          6.00 735.00             -                   735.00                 

4 Task 4: QAQC          7.00 1,590.00         -                   1,590.00              

Grand Total 137.00   16,034.00$     5,961.00$       21,995.00$         

Huff & Huff, Inc.
Proposal

10/1/2024

F:\Proposal-FY2025\EEI Enterprises\N Aurora\Oak Street\81.P013103 EEI Oak St N Aurora PESA PSI-CCDD Non-IDOT Standard Costs.xls  1



 
Prepared for:  Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

Project:  Oak Street North Aurora Ph I & II

Task Reimbursables

1 Task 1 PESA
Trips 60 miles x 1 x 0.670$        = 40.20$             
Tolls 2 x 3.40$          = 6.80$               
E4 database Package 1 ea x 1 x 285.00$      = 285.00$          

Task Total 332.00$          

2 Task 2: PSI/CCDD
Trips 60 miles x 2 x 0.670$        = 80.40$             
Tolls 4 x 3.40$          = 13.60$             
Field Kit 1 day x 1 x 35.00$        = 35.00$             
PID 1 day x 1 x 100.00$      = 100.00$          
GPS 1 day x 1 x 100.00$      = 100.00$          
Driller 0 day x 0 x 2,950.00$   = -$                 Hand Auger
Traffic Control 0 day x 0 x 2,750.00$   = -$                 Hand Auger
pH soil (alone) 0 ea x 5 x 24.00$        = 120.00$          
Lab Samples IDOT Protocol
VOCs+5035 1 ea x 7 x 145.00$      = 1,015.00$       
SVOCs 1 ea x 7 x 160.00$      = 1,120.00$       
TAL (22) Metals 1 ea x 7 x 135.00$      = 945.00$          
SPLP (15) Metals 1 ea x 7 x 145.00$      = 1,015.00$       
TCLP (15) Metals 1 ea x 7 x 145.00$      = 1,015.00$       
Soil pH 1 ea x 7 x 10.00$        = 70.00$             
Lab Cost Sub-Total 5,180.00$    
Cost/IDOT Sample 740.00$        

Task Total 5,629.00$       

3 Task 3: Project Administration

Task Total -$                 

4 Task 4: QAQC
0 x -$            = -$                 

Task Total -$                 

Grand Total 5,961.00$       

Huff & Huff, Inc.
Proposal

10/1/2024


	24-11-04 Village Board Agenda
	Village Board Minutes 24-10-07
	COW Minutes 24-10-07
	Bills List 24-10-21
	2024-25 Salt  Purchase + Memo
	Executed Contract

	Season's Substantial Completion + Memo
	Res. Triggering One Year Maintenance Seasons
	IMLRMA Renewal + Memo
	Invoice


	Zepelak Drive Substantial Completion + Memo
	Res. Triggering One Year Maintenance Zepelak

	IMLRMA Renewal + Memo
	Invoice

	Animal Control Services + Memo
	Resolution 
	2025 Agreement Animal Housing and Services Update
	2025 Appendix A


	Tobacco Code Amendments +Memo
	Ordinance

	Economic Development Strategy + Memo
	Economic Development Strategy Resolution
	Economic Development Strategy

	Public Works Policy Updates + Memo
	Resolution 
	Public Works Policies Manual Updated


	Material Testing Services New Public Works Site + Memo
	Testing Award Recommendation

	24-10-21 VB Minutes
	24-10-21 COW Minutes
	24-11-04 Bills List
	Travel and Business Expense Report
	Metro West Bill Invoice Golf Outing

	Fortunato Substantial Completion + Memo
	Res. Triggering One Year Maintenance Fortunato

	Boss811 JULIE Ticket Management Software + Memo
	Agreement

	Petition #24-01: 302 Mitchell Road + Memo
	Ordinance Approving Special Use PUD 24 01 Final
	Exhibit B Application
	Special Use Application 302 Mitchell Rd   Prologis.pdf
	1a   Narrative_231219.pdf
	1c   Special Use Standards Conformance_231219.pdf
	1b   Planned Unit Development 231219.pdf

	Exhibit C Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN


	Exhibit D Elevations
	Exhibit E - Mitchell Road Landscaping Plan
	1960.00-IL FENCE PLAN (2024-10-22)
	(11) 1960.00 IL Landscape Plan reduced
	Sheets and Views
	L-2 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
	L-3 LANDSCAPE TREE PLAN ENLARGEMENT
	L-4 LANDSCAPE TREE PLAN ENLARGEMENT
	L-5 LANDSCAPE NOTES & DETAILS


	1960.00 Cross sections 9.10.24 color
	1960.00 Cross sections 301 Mitchell 9.10.24 color
	2023-SECLUSIONS-10-TALL-110-1
	Sheets and Views
	SECLUSION 10' TALL 110



	Exhibit F Preliminary Engineering Plans

	EEI Engineering Services Phase1 and 2 Oak Street STP Project + Memo
	North Aurora-Oak St Phase I-Phase II Eng-Proposal EEI Signed
	1 - Agreement - NO2412
	2 - Attachment A - Standard Terms and Conditions
	3 - Attachment B - Scope of Services NO2412
	4 - Attachment C - Fee Estimate NO2412
	5 - Attachment D - Location Map 11x17
	6 - Attachment E - Schedule NO2412
	7 - Attachment F - SSOC 0124 
	8 - Attachment G - Huff and Huff Proposal






